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LIST OF SESSIONAL PAPERS.

VOLUME X.—SESSION 1877.

ARRANGED ALPHABETICALLY.

Accidents Nz?é
018 by Railway Frogs..... cocoessseeens e 1
ACCOURLE, Bublic. . ..o 2
yy Vertising, Government..... cees esanusee 30
A“P‘-General, London....... e 29
gricultural Report........uere. . 8
Anch“, West Breakwater... e 107
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:mpbelton and Paspebiac Mails .....cee verernes 169

Oanagﬂ Agricultural Insurance Company...... 12

0"‘& 8 Central Extension, Engineer's Report 193

C&n&dg. Pacific RAILWAYT...oeeee reereeesseres secemes BT

o nadian Shipping, light dues . 158
anadian Ships sold in Franc: 100
anal Enlargement..... ..... 6
apital offences, Convictions. 43
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ars, Railways, interchange of 72
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Attle imported into Canads ......... 170
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No.
Dominion Dam..........c... o ceoveases seorusecs sr. srssess 46
Dominion Notes.... 80
Dominion Police......cccues .. 92
Dredging Chenal Ecarté.. 38
Duty on Malt....coeescervereenseveeeessseenss woe 93

Eagle HATDOT ..vceeiiiinies ocvvans coverrnes sorensssacaen
Enginecr's Estimates, &€ ..cooeveveeeien
Engineer’s Report, . C. Extension...
Esquimault Graving Dock......ccee oree.
Estimates ......... ccoeeuer oo
Extradition of Prisoners..

Financial Agents........ o srenenes
Fish-breeding Establishment,
Fisheries, abolition of ............
Fishermen, St. Lawrence.
Fog-whistle, Cape D'Or...
Fort Francis Locks ....... ..........

Freight, Government Railways ........

Geological Survey, Canada........ o rnsesererantanans 194
Goderich Harbor Works ... . .. 15
Government Advertising.......cceesaevens ansen 30

o Deposits, Ontario Bauk.......

o Deposits in Banks......

“ Officials, P. E. I............

¢ Railways .........

Grabam, Wm.....cccoveinaneer e
Graving Dock, Esquimault....
Grand g{'ruuk Mails delayed..
Grand Trunk Railway
Great ‘I‘iras d'Or,

Postmaster .....
Seizing Officers
Great Seal, Province of N. S....
GYPBUI...oceverrenensiesicrenn

eosanaes

Harbor Commissioners, Montreal.........33, 120-167

¢ Ingonish .ciceeeniiiieriniinnnns 6T

‘¢ Masters, appointment of ... 174

¢ Parry Sound...... 150

¢ Port Hood......... 115
Horse Shoe Bar, Channel 106
llicit Stills sernssneesren 188
Immigration Department, London...... 29
Indian Commissioners, N.8.............. 81
Indian Lands, B.O....cceveere ovvnees cevvnvnns orennnes 183
Ingonish Harbor...... wtses 14
Inland Revenue Report ..... wccovivcnvicineneeroneee &
Tnsurance Reports........ 13
Interchange of cars on 13
1nterior Report.... 11
ntercolonial Railway .............. 25
[nternational Exhibition, Philad 108

p o
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Iron Rails, Loan of ...cccveeserens soconsons sosensvesanses 161
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Jesuit Barracks, Que... vererenesacrieianie 26 | Portage Island... eeniieensresees sesoes seresene ... 178
Judicial Staff, Dlstrnct Montreal cesereesanse.srenns 118 | Port Hood Harbor v 115
Post Offices and Lustom Houses, Dominion..... 123

Kamouraska Court House.......coevs covorsesscrnnne. 183 | Postmaster-General’s Report 3

Kennebec Railway, mail contraot8u.....coce eees. 177 Preserva ion of Buffalo, North-West... 149
Kidston, Wm., E8q....ccccevvurivens - 164 | P. E. I. Legal Service, &c..... ... . 173
Iﬁngaford Wm., Report, Baio St. Paul........ . 14 “  Railway.... 165
Printing and Statlonery, P, 0 Deps.nment 59
Lachme Canal ... corcveren secies sosessecnsensiesecennee, 189 | Provincial Acts, Disallowance of ... vevesrees 89
cé, Benjamin, Esq...... .- 190 | Public Accounts ......ueeeereere ceeee 2
'La,En Huron, Mail Bervice. 70 ¢ Works Report. .. e 6
Langmuir's, Mr., Report... 56 ¢ Buildings, Water Supply O -
Lapsed Balances 97
Le Oredn Foncier ...... wses 95 1 Quebec and Lake St. John Railway .............. 125
Library of Parliament... <o 16 | Quebec Harbor Commissioners......... .coeeeer..... 182

Light Dues, Canadian thpn

L'Islet, Breakwater ... .... .. 159 [ Rails, old -.eeeee e 50
Little Glace Bay, Harbor fees . 111 leways, Nova Scot! 49
Live Stock, Imports and Expor . 61 New Brunswic . 42
Loan, London.. . 39 ¢ Government ......... 78, 161
Long Island, By-Wash . 113 1 Railway, Quebec to St. John .. . 126
Y.oranger, HOD. M. JUSHLCE...crrs sorrre sonree sorerre 4 Railway Statistics....ccecssereeisaisrnee srenee .. 143

. Revenue paid by each Province to Dominion. 103
Macdonald, Right Hon. Sir J. A...... coieviiennan, 195 | Rideau River Bridge... veeeen sesesaresesrsensense 116
Mail bag, loss of . 126 | Rideau Canal................... e 141

Mails allace and Malagash 38 | Rioux, Nicolas Sexgnwry 9l
Mail Service, Lake Huron... « 70 | River Bydenham Surveys. 73
Mails delayed. .. . . 142 | Rondeau Lighthouse. . 90
Mails, Syduoey and Cow Bay 81 | Royal Canadian Insurance G0 ..... w12
¢« Scott’s Junction......... . 85
¢ Campbellton and Paspe nc ..... 169 | Scott’a Junction mails ..o eeveens cneanrnnenn o e 86
Mail Condnctor, Kennebec Railwa, 177 | Secretary of State's Report.. 9
Mails, British Oolumbia 180 l Senators appointments....... 68
Malt, duty on.. 93 | Slide Masters, Ottawa River. 181
Manitoba RN woo 41 | Smelt Fisheries ...c....cccee veeeiens . . 108
Marioe and Fisheries Report ..... e B I Sorel and St. John Harboar Masters 174
Harme Hospn.al Syduey ... cere TL | StALULEB...ct ceveieer crreiins ernniareienaen e e 20
Quebee .. 56 l Steel Rails.ccoocce cvceer voeer - 17
Manufactured Goods... 40 } Steam Communication P.E L.. 101
McGill College . 28 | Steam Fire Engines.......... 22
Merchant bhlppmg 99 | St. Augustin, Postmsste 176
Militia Report.... 7 | St. John River, N.B....... 117
Military (_mllege ngston 34 | St. Jean l’Eva.ngehate, P. .. 184
Militiamen, 1812-15 ...l 76 | St. Lawrence Fishermen........cooceees voveesenen, 87
Minister of Justice, Misgion.. .. 13| St. Peter’s Canal........... .... . 19, 158
Moffatt, Robert, Esq...... .. 162 | Sugar, imported, &c s 65
XMontreal Museum ........ ... «e-o 140 | Superannuation... 21
Montres! Harbor Commissione wene-n 120 ) Supreme Court... 27
Morris, Hon. Alex. ccuiicensnnie, . 52,121 | Surgeons on British Steamers. 45
Mowat, John, 88qQ. ceeee weiveee srecsrenecoe sacnnneees 127 1 Srrveys, River Sydenbam ... 73
Sydney and Cow Bay mail8enrenn. . . 81
Napier, Schooner 131
Nase. J. Murray, Esq...... .. 186 | Tobique 'ndians.....c.coet ceveereen e, 94
Navigation, American C .. 104 | Toronto Harbor.. 112
Newspapers, P-\]d Post&ge .. 166 | Trade and Naviga on Rep . veenes 1
New South Wales.. 24 | Treaty of Washington ......ccceevvevnns coenee. 14
Nicolas Rioux, Sei mory of . 91
Non-tidal waters, § .. 135 | Unforeseen Expenses... veres res . veeens
Norris, J. (3., Ksq .. .. 130 , Unprepaid Letters.. .
North American Boundary Commission. . 191 | Upper St. Francis, Postmasur of..
Northern Railway Cummission... e 10
Northern Light ..cocco covvoeveinnes .. 98 | Vice Admiralty Ceurt.....cueeerereee vorvvrunnan .., 54
Notre Dume de Grice, P. O.ccoevviiniiiiiiiinniinnens 129 | Victoria, Breakwater ........c coercevunann, .. . 47
Victorin and Kootenay Customs Stations......., 138
Ordnance Land S&1e6.......cccetivvreevenineinnins cevnen 163 | Vieux Chateau, St. Louis... 32
Volunteer [Force, Canada.. 82
Pacific Railway, Canada . 57
Parry Sound Harbor...... 150 , Wallace and \Ia]ngnsh Mails. ..

Partridge Islaud River... 66 , Warren, Wm.,

Penitentiaries Report... . .. 15 Water Suppl Publlc Bunldlngs
Pilotage Returns, [0 - J0U N ... 109 | Weights ard het\lures Act.......
Point E:cuminac lheahwater veeseessenneee 160 | Wood Land, Marquette, Man.......ccoeeereennnenns
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LIST OF SESSIONAL PAPERS.

ARRANGED NUMERICALLY AND IN VOLUMES.
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No.

No.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 1.

~;TRADE AND NavigaTION :—Tables of the Trade and Navigation of the Dominion of Canads,

for the year ending 30th June, 1376.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 2.

...'PUBLIc AcCOUNTS oF THE DomiNioN or CANADA :—For the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1876.

Estimares :—Estimates of the sums required for the service of the Dominion, for the year
ended 30th June, 1878.

)

-SuPPLEMENTAY :—For the year ending 30th June, 1877, for Fisheries.

For the year ending 30th June, 1877.

For the year ending 30th June, 1878.

«|PosTMASTER GENERAL: —Report of, for the year ending 30th June, 1876.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 3.

-\INLAND RpvENUE:—Report, Returns and Statistics of the Inland Revenues of the Dominion

of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1876.

BurpLEMENT No. 1 :—Canal Statistics for 1876.

——— e

SuppLEMENT No. 2 :—Report, Weights and Measures for 1876,

SuppLEMBNT No. 3 :—Report, Adulteration of Food for 1876.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 4.

«[MaRINE axp Fisuerms:—Ninth Annual Report of the Department of, for the fiscal year ended

30th June, 1876.
— SureLEMANT No. 1 :—List of Lights on the Cosste, Rivers and Lakes

of the Dominion of Canada, on the 313t December, 1876.

SorrreMENT No. 2 :—Report’of the Chairman of the Boaid of Steame=
boat Inspection, for the calendar year ended 31st December, 18Y6.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 5.

Mariwn anp Fisrerizs :—SueeLansxt No. 3:—Reports on the Meteorological, Maguetic and
other Observatories of the Dominion of Canada, for the year ended 318t December, 1876.

—SurpLenENT No. 4 :—Report of the Commissioner of Fisherizs for the
Year ending 31st December, 1876,
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No. 6...

No. T...
No. 8...

No. 9...
No. 10...

No. 11...
No. 12...

No. 13...

No. 14...

Xo. 15...
No. 16..
No. 17...

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 6.
PusLic WoRkS :—General Report of the Minister of, for the fiscal year ended 30th J une, 1876.

——Report of the Chief Engineer, on the progress of Canal Enlargement between
Lake Erie ana Montreal.

— Water SuppLY, PusLic BuiLpines :—Agreement between the Water Gom-
missioners of the City of Ottawa and Her Majesty Queen Victoria, for the supply of water
to the Parliament and Departmental Buildings, Workshops, and Post Office, &c., Ottawa
and Rideau Hall. (XNot printed.) R
an.n'u :~Report on the State of the Militia of the Dominion of Canada, for the year 1876,

AqricULTURE :(—Report of the Minister of Agriculture for the Dominion of Canada for the

calendar year 1876.
CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. Y.

{

'SECRETARY OF STATE FOR CANADA :—Report of, for the year ended 31st December, 1876.

NortHERN RaiLway ComuissioN :—Message with Report of & Commission appointed by Order
in Council of 22nd July, 1876, to enquire into the affairs of the Northel;ﬁ Rnilway& Com-~
pany of Canada.

INTERIOR :—Report of the Department of the Interior, for the year ended 30th June, 1876,

I!SU;AANRC;‘ :I—IReport of the Superintendent of, for the year ending 31st December, 1875.

-Abstract of Statements of Insurance Companies in Canada, for the year 1876,
(In advance of the Report of the Superintendent of [nsurance.)

—Rovar Canapian INsuranNce Coupany :—Return to Address, Reports of, which
may have been made, in conformity with 36 Victoria, chapter 99, section 16, and 31
Victoria, chapter 48. Also, Reports res]{?c.ﬁn the business carried on by the said Royal
Canadian Insurance Company, in the United States of America, in conformity with” 31
Victoria, chapter 48, of the Acts of Parliament of Canada, and the Forms B. and C. of the
said Acts. (No¢ printed.)

A full and complete statement of the property and affairs of the Canada Agri-
cultural Insurance Company, incorporated in 1873, by the Act of Canada, 25 Victoria,
chapter 104—such statement to be dnll'sworn to a8 required by the Act of Canada, 38
Victoria, chapter 20, and to exhibit a List of the Stockholders, with the amount subscribed
for, the amount paid thereon, and the residence of each Stockholder, &c., &c. (Not

printed.)

MinigTar or Justice—MissioN To ENcLaxp:—Relating to Extradition of Criminala; Maritime
Jurisdiction upon the Inland Waters, and of the Royal Instructions and Commission to
the Governor (General, particularly with reference to the prerogative of Pardon.

TreaTY or WasniNaToN :—Return to Address, Correspondence hetween the Government of
the Dominion, and the Government of the United States, respecting the alleged violation
of the Treaty of Washington.

——— Report of the Committee of the Privy Council which had under
consideration the long and serious delays that had aiisen in the organization of the
Commission that was to have met at Halifux for the consideration of certain articles in
the Treaty of Washington.

Correspondence which Articl
Washington Treaty. (‘JNot pgmed.) e may have takon place on Article XX of the
CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 8.
PemiTantiARss :—Report of the Minister of Justice on, for the year ended 31st December, 1876.
LirARY OF PARLIAMENT :—Report of the Librarian on the state of.

ExrrapITION OF PRisoNmrs:—Return relating to iti f Pri .
Treaty between Great Britain and the Un‘ited gf‘:ﬁ:&or‘ Extradition of Prisoners under




40 Victoria. List of Sessional Papers. A 1877

No. 18...!Banks :—List of Shareholders of the several Banks of the Dominion of Canada, in compliance
with Act 34 Vic., cap. 5, sec. 12. [Not printed.]

No. 19... BApTisMS, MaRrIAGES AND BumiaLS :—General Statement of, for certain Districts in the
Province of Quebec, for the year 1876. | Not printed.]

No. 20...|Srarures: —Official Return of the distribution of the Statutes of the Dominion of Canada,
being 39 Victoria, Third Session of the Third Parliament, 1876. [Not printed.]

No. 21... SupErANNUATION :—Statement of Allowances and Gratuities under the Act 33 Vic., cap. 4.

No. 22..[SteAu Fire Encines:—Return to Order, Statement of all Steam Fire Engines imported into
the Dominion of Canada, and the Country wheance imported, from 1st July, 1867, to 23nd
March, 1876. [Not printed.]

No. 23..|Unroreszey Expnses :—Statement of Payments charged to Unforeseen Expenses under Orders
in Council, from 1st July, 1876, to date, in accordance with the Act 39 Vict., cap. 1,
Schedule B. [Printed for distribution only.]

No. 24..|Nxw Sovrn Warse Exmisrrion :—S3tatement of Expenditure on account of New South Wales
Exhibition, under authority of Special Warrant of His Excellency the Governor General,
dated 21st December, 1876, for $25,000. [ Not printed.]

265...|InTERCOLONIAL RaILWAY :—Statement of all claims made by private individuals or corporations

in relation to the construction of the Intercolonial Railway, within the limits of the
Province of Quebec. [Not printed.]

Nawes of the Valuators employed on the Intercolonial Railway,
in the Counties of Temiseouata and Rimouski, for the purchase of lands and the valuation
of damages. [Not printed.] .

Claims fyled with the Government for damageo caused by the
expropriation of lands in the said Oounties, and the amount allowed by the Valuator on
each of the said claims. (Not printed.)

Statement shewing the amount which the Government of Canads
have incurred in the construction of the Branch around Courtney Bay towards the Ballast
Wharf, at the City of 8t. John, N.B.; and for the purchase of the Rankin Wharf
Property for a deep water terminus for the said Railway. [Not printed.)

Contract for the Iron Roof of the Station House, to be erected at
Halifax ; together with Tenders for the same.

Tenders received for the erection of the Passemger Station at
Halifax ; correspondence, &c. [Not printed. |

Correspondence in connection with payments made to J. F. B.
McOready and others in King’s County, for alleged damage sustained from thelntercolonial
Road from fire and other causes. [Not yra’nudﬁe

Correspondence between the authorities of the City of Saint John,
N.B,, and the Dominion Government, in the matter of the Courtney Bay Exteasion of the
Inter?loninl Railway to the Ballast Wharf and ground required for the Works. [Net
printed. ]

Correspondence between the Government and tue interested par-
ties of the Parish of Bic, with reference to the change of gite of the Railway Station at
the said piace ;—also with the interested parties of the Parish of 8t. Octave de Métis, and
neighbouring Parishes, asking that the Station at St. Octave, be placed in a more con-
venient situation. [1\}ot printed.]

Correspondence between the workmen on Section 8 of the Inter-

colonial Railway and the Government, in relation to the non-payment of their wa,
for work done under the direction of John ()'Donnell, agent of Duncan McDonsd‘,
contractor for the said section. [Not printed. ]

Statement of accideuts which have occurred on the Iutercolonl;l

Railway in the County of Northumberiand—the number of cattle killed—with the canses
of such accidents—with a list of claims and amounts paid. [Not printed.]

- Statement shewing the monthly sales of Season and commutation
tickets, at each Station of the Intercolonial Railway for & period of eighteen months

preceding the 3ist December last. [ ot printed.]
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No. 25...

INTERCOLONIAL RAILWAY :—Statement shewing all claims made against the Intercolonial Rail-

way for damages or loss of any kind sustained by private individuals resulting from
working the railway duriag the year 1876. [Not printed.]

: Statement giving full information in relation to the arrangement
made betwcen the Government and the Pullman Palace Car Compaany, in pursuance of
which their cars are run on the Intercolonial Railway. [Not printed.)

Stat t shewing the varicus tariffs for the carriage of freight on
the Intercolonial Railway, which have been in operation since 1st January, 1875, together
with the changes made therein ; and also shewing all special rates granted since 18t
January, 1876, to persons and companies or particular stations. [Not printed.] :

CorresFondence relating to Sroperty on the Marsh Road in the
County of St. John, N.B., alleged to have been damaged by Fire from Locomotives.
[ Not printed.]

Statement of Tenders made from the 30th June, 1875, to 31st Decem-
ber, 1876, &c., for Wheels, Axles, Springs and other principal supplies; and for Buildings,
Snow Bheds, &c., including the names of the parties, who made such offers. [Not printe j

- Correspondence with the Pheenixville Iron Com}mn , OF & person
from a Oompanﬁn the State of Pennsylvania, in relation to any offers for Brid uper-
nt{uct;re, Iron Roofs, Turn-Tables, Engines, éarn, &c. since, 31st December, 1875, [Plt’ot
printed. ) '

Orders in Council and Correspondence in regard to the appoint-
ment of Mr. James McAlister to the position of Cashier of the Intercolonial Railway, the
creation of the office of Dominion Auditor at Moncton, the transfer of Mr.James McAlister
thereto, the appointment ot Mr. Charles D. Thompson, to the position of Cashier, the
subsequent removal of Mr. Thumpson, the abolition of the office of Dominion Auditor
and the re-appointment of Mr. James McAlister to the office of Cashier; algo in regard to
the subsequent provision made for Mr. Thompson. [Not printed.]

Statement of Accidents which have occurred on the Intercolonial
Ra.ilw;‘y] since 1st July last, tho locality and cause of each, and damage done, &c. [No¢
printed.]

Contracts for the conveyance ot Mails between Wallace in the
County of Qumberland and Greenville Station on the Intercolonial railway, supplying the
several way offices at Wallace Bridge, Six Mile Road, &c., to 18t November last when the
delivery for these offices was changed to Wentworth Station, with the Contract for the
latter service and the amount paid therefor. (Not printed.)

Return of all monthly measurements and estimates for the various

kinds of work done on Section No. 16, Intercolonial Railway, while under contract to
Messrs. King & Gough, and subsequently under contract to J. C. Gough, shewing the
actual quantities and kinds of all work executed and returned, &c. [No?¢ printed.]

- Correspondence relating to Coal alleged to be detained, forfeited
or misappropriated. [Not printed.}

- Correspondence in pursuance of which the Officers of the Inter-
colonial Railway are insured with the Guarantee Company of Canada. [Xot printed.]

- Statement showing the authority under which two dw<.)ing-nouses
with stables and outbuildings were erected during the past summer, at Moncton, for the
use of the resident Engineer and Traffic Superintendent of the Intercolonial Railwa ;
the ‘u;m])unt authorized to be expended and the amount actually expended. [Not
printed.

Expenses incurred for changing the guage of the Intercolonial
ngilw‘:yj, and showing how the expenditure is olulifeld in the Railway Accounts. [Not¢
printed.

Description and cost of each of the works of the Intercolonial Rail-
‘way, not charfeable to ordinary maintenances, which bave been construcied during the
two years ending 31st December, 1876. {Not printed.]

——S8tatement shewing (1st) the arrangement made for insuring the Em-

loyézhof the Intercolonial Railway against accidents ; (gznd), the monthly deducugons made

"m \ "t:!". gr salaries on account of said insurance ; and (3rd), the particulars of
all amounts paid out of the Railway on account of such insurance. [Not printed.]
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No. 25...

INTEROOLORIAL Ramwway :—Statement of sll expenditures made in constructing restaurant,
enlarging the store-house, erecting freight-house, &c., and other such work done in the
railway station yard at Moncton during the year 1876. [Not printed.)

Return showing the number and names of all pergons who have passed
free on the Intercolonial Railway and its branches; from the 1st day of January, 1876,
to the 1st day of March, 1877, stating authority, and for what cause such free passages
were given. [Not printed.]

Return showing the total cost of the Superintendent’s Palace Qar, so

called, including the work done thereon bz the artizans employed by the railway author-
ities, the extra cost of running the same, &c. [Not printed. ]

Return of the salaries or perquisites received by the General Superin-

tendent and all other officers and employés of the said railway, including Condactors,
Station Masters and Ticket Agents. [Vol printed.]

Return of the resident employés on the Intercolonial Railway within

the County of Northumberland—the date of their appointment—when they were located
or stationed in their present positions—the nationalities of the several individuals, and
the number of them which were at the time of their appointment residents of the said
County, with the rate of wages which they respectively receive. [Not printed.}

No. 28...

No. 21...

No.2s...

No. 29...

No 30...

No. 31...

JesuiT BarRACKS :(—Return and Supplementary Return to Address, Correspondence between
the Dominion Government, and the Government of Quebec, relating to the Jesuit Barracks
in the City of Quebec, &c.

SvprexE Court :—General Rules and Orders made by the Judges of the Supreme and Exche-
quer Courts since 1ast Session. ]Not printed.]

—_— Return to Addreas, Number of suits instituted before the Supreme Court;
and of the number of Judgments rendered by the said Court.. [Not printed.]

Returu to Address, Correspondence between the Government of the
Province of New Brunswick aand the Dominion Government, on the subject of obtaining
the opinion of the Supreme Court on the question of the powers of the Proviacil Legisla-
ture, relative to the granting or withholding of licenses to sell intoxicating liquors.

McGui Couuear :—Copy of every contract, deed or agreement entered into between the Gov-
ernment of the Dominion of Canada aud Mc@Gill College, concerning an immovable, situate
in the City of Montreal, known by the name of the Orystal Palace, and heretofore possessed
li)lv the Board of Arta and Manufactures, and subsequently by the Council of Arts and

anufactures, of the Province of Quebec. [Not printed.)

hoaeration DepartTuEsTt, LoNpox:—Return to Address, Statement of the ambdunts ex-
nded on behalf of the Dominion in the Government Immigration Department in
ondon, England, and all expenditures connected therewith from the 30th June to lst
January last i also, Correspondence between the Dominion Goverament and the Ageat
General of Uanada, in London, respecting changes in the Immigration Department at
London. [Not primted).

‘ .
ApvurTisiNg :—~Return to Address, Statement showing the newspapers in which advertising

has been done by the Government for the years 1872, 1873, 1874 and 1875, in each of the
Provinces of the Dominion, &¢. [Not printed.}

—————Return to Order, Statement of the expenses during the years 1874, 1875 and
1876, in advertising on bebalf of the Government or any public service in the public jour-
nals of the Dominion ; also, the amount paid in subscriptions. :

Boxps axp Sgouririns :—Statement of Bonds and Secarities registered in the Department of
the Secretary of State of Oanada, dated 16th February, 1877. [Not printed.]

No. 32...|Vigux Crarsav St. Louts :~Return to Address, Correspondence between the Domigion Gov-

ernment and the Government of the Province ot Quebec, relating to an exchange of the
property called ‘ Vieux Chateau St. Louis,” in the City of Quebee, for that of Hospital
and Officers’ Quarters, in 8t. Louis Street of the said City.

No. 33...1HarBoUR Coumasionnes, MonteEAL :—Return to Address, Statement of all salaries, fees and

indemnity paid by the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal, to any member oc employ®é of
the said Harbour Commission, since 1872, [Not printed.]

No. 34...|Muirary CoLinan, Kinasrox :—Retura to Order, Number of candidates that have come forward

for admission to the Military College at Kingston, from each Province, distingunishing

those of French origin from the others. [Not printed.]
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No. 35...

No. 36...

No. 37...

No. 38...

No. 39...

No. 40...

No. 4l...

No. 42...

No. 43...

No. 44...

No. 45...

No. 46...

No. 47...

No. 48...

FinanciaL AGENTS, &c.:—Return to Order, Statement of all moneys lying at the credit of the
Dominion in any bank, or in the hands of any financial ;vgent, or other persons with whom
such moneys are deposited in Canada or elsewhere. [Not printed.]

CuenaL EcarTg, &c.:—Return to Order, All expenditure in detail incurred in dredginga
channel at the entrance of the Chenal Ecarté, into Lake St. Clair. [Not printed.}

FisagrMEN, St. LAWRENCE :—Return to Address, Correspondenoe between the Federal Gov-
ernment and Local Government of the Province of Quebec, respecting the distressing

condition of the resident fishermen and traders located vn the North Coast of the River
St. Lawrence, within the.Dominion. [Nof printed.)

WALLACE AND MALAGABH :—Igp.turn to Order, Contract for the conveyance of the Mail between
Wallace and Malagash, in the County of Cumberland, &c. [Not printed.]

Loax :—Return to Order, Prospectus issued by the Hon. Minister of Finance in London for
the last Loan—a Statement of the time allowed for the reception of tenders, and the
period when the reception of Tenders was closed, with the several amounts offered by
parties tendering, and the amounts allotted to them respectively.

MANUFACTURED GooDs :—Return to Order, Showing the general nature and value of all

Manufactured Goods imported into Canada from the United Statesin the years 1874,
1875, and 1876.

MaxiroBa :—Return to Address, Letters between the Dominion Government and the Govern-
ment of Manitoba, re:pecting the relief to be given to settlers. [Not printed.]

Return to Order, Returns of all lands
to the Government of Manitoba, for road purp

——

surrendered by the Dominion Government

—Return to Order, Correspondence relating to the distribution of Half-breed
lands, in the Province of Manitoba. [Not printed.}

RaiLways, New Bruxswiox :—.Reiun to Address, Correspondence between the Government
of Canada or Companies in New Brunswick, since the 1st January, 1874, in relation toaid
to be given to the construction of Railways in that Province. [Not printed.]

CarrraL Orrexces :—Return to Order, All convictione for capital offences between the lst

July, 1867, and thﬁ 31st December, 1876, showing the names of the convicts, the nature of
the crime, the action of the Executive,and the date of such action.

LoraNGER, Hon. Mr :—Return to Address, Petitions of T. D. Latour and others, dated the
5th June, 1874, and the 2nd November, 1875, presented to the Guvernment, concernin
the Hon. Mr. Justice Loranger, and of all correspondence relating thereto. [ Not pr.nud.i

Return to Address, Petition of J. B. Brousseau, Esq., of the Town of
Sorel, dated the 24th February, 1876, in relation to Mr. Justice Loranger. [Not printed.]

SurcEoNS ON BRrTisE STEANERS :—Return to Address, Correspondence between the Govern-
ment of Canada and the Imperial Government or any Steamship Company or private

' individual, touching the qualifications of Surgeons on’ B.itish Steamers, or other passen-
ger ships sailing to, or rrom British ports.

DomiNioN Dax :—Return to Order, All instructions or orders from the Department of Public

Works relur.inito the destruction by force, last July, of the Dam called the Dominion
Dam, oa Devil Lake, in the Couaty of Addington. ~ [Not printed.]

Vicroria Bresxwarse :—Return to Order, Reports in possession of the Department of Public
Works, in connection with the Victoria Breakwater, Wood Islands, Prince Edward

Island ; also all correspondence relating to the same, recéived from the Government of
Prince Edward Island. [Net printed.)

CirapeL or Quessc :—Return to Order, Contracts between the Government and any person
or company for the execution of work at the Citadel of Quebec in 1874 and 1875 ; 2nd.

Copies of all arrangements made for the execution of any portion of the said works.
[Ngt printed.]

No. 49..;RamLways 18 Nova Scoria:—Return to Order, Special rates accorded to any companies or

No. 50...

individuals for the conveyance of freight over the Railways in Nova Ncotia or New
Brunswick, with the names of the companies or individuals. (Not printed.)

Ra1us:—Return to Order, Quantity of old Rails in the
whether the same are of such a character as to
construction of Branch Lines.

gessior of the Government, shewing
made availatle for the aiding in the
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No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

51...!Non Scoria, Inpian Commissioners :—Return to Order, The number of Commissioners for

52...

53...

Indian Grants in Nova Scotia ; the Counties over which each presides, and the amount
annually placed in the hands of each. [Not printed.)

Morris, Hov. AukxaNpEr:~—Return to Address, Instructions to th» Honorable Alexander
Morrk, Lieutenant-Governor of the North-West Territories. (Not printed.)

WEeiGHETS AND MEASURES AcT:—Return to Order, Instructions from the Department of Inland
Revenue to Inspectors, in connection with the Weights and Measures Act; together with
the names and salaries of each Inspectors, and Sub-lnspectors.

Correspondence relating to the working of the Act on
‘ Weights and Measures.” (Not printed.)

.| VicR-ADMIRALTY, &c., CourT orF:~—Return to Address, Correspondence between the Governe
ment of the Dominion, and of the late Province of Canada, and the Imperial Government,
touchiug the extension of the Jurisdiction of the Court of Vice-Admiraity to the Inlan

Waters of Canada.

- GRAND TRUNK RalLwayY:—Correspondence respecting disturbance on the line of the Grand
H Trunk Railway of Canada.

Correspondence on the subject of the arrangements effected,

permitting the carriages of the Intercolonial Railway Company to run over that section

of the Grand Trunk Railway between Rivi¢re-du-Loup and Point Levis.

86....Marine HospiTaL, Queskc:—Return to Order, For Mr. Langmuir'’s Report on the Marine

57,

Hospital, at Quebec.  (Not printed.)

«|Paciric RamLway :—Return to Address, Reports made as to the construction of the Georgian

Bay Branch of the Pacific Railway, under contract by the Hon. A. B. Foster, together
with a statement of the service or services for which the sum of $109,000.50 has been paid
to the said A. B. Foster on account of said contract. (With Map.)

Correspondence between the Government and the Contractors for the
construction of the Pacific Telegraph.

Return to Order, Tenders received for the construction of Contract
No. 15, Canadian Pacific Railway. (Not printed.)

Return to Address, Papers connected with the awarding of Section 16
of the Canadian Pacific Railway, including copies of advertisements for tenders.

Statement shewing the quantity of land purchased for railway Km?om
bg the Government on the Kaministiquia for a terminus of the Canadian Pacific Railway,
the persons from whom said purchase was made, and the amount paid therefor. Also, &
copy of all correspondence between the Government and the Municipality of Shuniah,
Prince Arthur's Landing, touching the terminus of the said Railway, or aid thereto.

Message with Correspondence having reference to the construction of the
Canadian Pacific Railway. ’

printed.)

~——Statement showing cost of construction of Pacific Telegraph. (Not

Contracts entered into for construction of the Canadian Pacific R{sil':ge,
together with a Statement of sums expended in construction, in cnnformity with
provisions of the Act 37 Victoria, Chapter 14, Section 9. (Not printed.)

No. s8,.. BLoomsBurG :—Return to Qrder, Correspondence with the Postmaster General in reference to

chg.rg;s)preferred against tne Poatmaster of Bloomsburg, in the County of Norfolk. (No¢
printed.

No. 59..|Panring anp Srulonn? Post Orrice DepaRTMENT :—Return to Order, Showing the amounts

No.

60,

paid for printing and stationery for the Post Office Department during the year 1675 and
1876 respectively, other than to the Parliamentary Printer and Contractor at Ottaws, &c.

..-1CoLLET, Mr. :—Return to Order, Correspondence and documents relating to the dismissal of

Mr. Collet, as Posimaster of St. Heari, in the Qounty of Lévis. (Notprinted.)

No. 81._|Live Srock—IuporTs axND ExporTs, &c :—Return to Order, Classified Return of imports and

exports of live stock, showing place from whence it comes and destination; for each
?g;;ter, from March 1st, 1875, to Jaauary 1st, 1877, and for the mouth of January,
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No. 62...

No. €3...

No. 64...

No. 65...

GREAT Bn’u d’ Or :—Return to Order, Correspondence re rding the Postmaster at Great
qu:tteid())r and the reason why McLeod did not get the office, after he wasappointed. (No¢
printed.

SriziNg AXD LANDING Urricars .—Return to Order, Correspondence with John Baine, Angus
Morrigon and Charles 8. Campbell, regarding their dismissals from office as Seizing and
Landing Officers at Great Bras d'Or.

Gyrsus :—Return to Order, All Gypsum or Plaster of Paris imported from the United States
into Canada, ngu}g the Ports or places whence imported, as also the Ports in Canada
where entered. (Not printed.)

Sucar IMPorTED, &C:—Return to Order, Retarn from 1st January, 1875, to 1st January, 1877,
showing the quantities of different grades of sugar importéd from Europe, British and
|  Foreign West Indies and the United States.

No. 66.. Parrriee IsLaNp River, &c :—Return and Supplementary Return to Order, Correspondence

No. 67..

No. 68.

No. 69...

No. 70...

No. 71...

No. 72...

No. 73...

No. 74...
No. 75...

No. 76...

No. ...

relatinf to the improvement of the Harbor at the mouth of Partridge Island River. (Not
printed.)

InconisH Harpor :—Return to Order, Tenders and Contracts for the construction of a Harbor
at Ingonish, Nova Scotia, &c. (Not printed.)

Return, Plans of Contract for building Ingonish Harbor (being part of
Contract) ; also report of Engineer agreeing to curtailment of said original plans and
specification, and the correspondence on that subject. (Not printed.)

SENATORS, ADDITIONAL :—Return to Address, Correspondence that has taken place between the
Canadian and Jmperial Governments since 1873kin reference to the appointment of
;ddit.iona.l Senators to the Senate, as provided by Clause 26 of the British North America

ct.

——— Return to Address, All correspondence between the Dominion and the
Imperial Governments from the month of October, 1873, to 3lst December, 1874, and
relating to the appointment of Senators for the Dominion. (Not printed.)

Orzigaron Josepd :—Return to Address, Correspondence with the Government relative to the
e;}:pointinglut ear of Joseph Creighton, Shipping Officer for the Port of Lunenburg, *
ova Scotia. (Not pn’ntcdg

Laxe Horox Ma1L Servics, &c. :---Return to Address, Advertisement or notice issued calling
for tenders for the performance of the Mail Service for the season .:f 1876, on Lakes Huron
and Superior between the ports on Lake Huron and the Georgian Bay and Prince Arthur's
Landing, Duluth, &c. (Not printed.)

Marine HospiTaL, Bypnxy :—Retarn and Snpﬁlementary Return to Order, All money expended
in building & Marine Hospital at Sydnoy, Cape Breton. (Not printed.) ¥ expe

CaRs oN RalLways, INTERCHANGS OF, &0. :—Return to Order, St&temeqt of any arrangement
made between the Government Railways and the Grand Trunk Railway Compan ,gfzr the
interchange of cars and transportation of passengers ard freight. (Mot printed.{

Rivir Sypsxeaum Sorveys, &c.:—Return to Order, Statement in detail of all expenses
incurred and moneys expended in connection with the surveys of the North Branch of the
River Sydenham. ~(Not printed.)

Barx St. Paur, &e¢. :—Return to Order, Mr. Kingsford's Rexrort on the Piers at{Baie St. Paul,
Eboulements and Malbaie, in the summer of 1876. (Not printed.)

GopxricH HarBor Worxs :—Return to Address, Orders in Council, having refe
Goderich Harbor Works. ’ ! & rence to the

MiLrTiaMex 1812 '15:—Return to Order, Shewing the names of all veterans who have proved
their right to partake in the grant of $50,000 voted last session by Parliament in favor of
Militiamen of 1812 and '15.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 9.

Srexn Rams:—Return to Address, Statement showing the use which h
t.h?, yeu.ri 18;;33 of any portion of the Steel Ra-ls purchased by the Go:k&:g?ﬁzﬁag;‘xg
1874 and 1875.

Return to Order, Statement of' all accounts paid in connection with the pure

chase of 50,000 tons of Steel Rails, fastenings, &e., for the Pacific Railway.
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No. 78...

No. 79...

Ko. 80...

No. 81...

No. 82...

No. 83,.,

No. 84...

No. s5...

No. 6.,

No. 87

.o

No. gs..,

No. 89...

No g9

No. g1

T

No. g9

GovEENMENT RalLwavs, MarITIME ProOVINCES :—Return to Address, Shewing the number of
tons of freight carried over the Government Railways in the Martime Provinces, in the
quarter ending December 31st, 1875. (Not printed.)

St. PeTer’s CaNaL, C.B.:—Return to Address, All corresﬁondence during the past year in
relatic;n)to the enlargement of St. Peter’s Canal, in the Island of Cape Breton. (XNof
printed,

DouisioN¥ Nores:—~Return to Address, Statement showing the amount of Dominion Notes
that bave been redeemed in gold from the first day uf SBeptember, 1874, to the 3lst
December, 1875, showing the names of the banks or individuals making the demand, or to
whom the money has been paid. (Not printed.)

Return to Order, Accounts of Dominion Notes of the denomination of
one and two dollars, payable in Victoria, which have been forwarded by Government to
the Assistant Receiver-General for the Province of British Columbia, during each year,
since the adwission of thut Province into the Dominion. (Not printed.)

Syp¥ey o Cow Bay, &c., MaiLs :—Return to Address, Contracts entered into during the
year 1876, for the conveyance of Her Majesty’'s Mails from Sydney to Cow Bay, Little and
Big Glace Bays, and Bridgeport, in the County of Cape Breton. (No¢ printed.)

Vo.uxTEErR Force oF CaNapa:—Retura to Order, The names of all the Deputy Adjutant~
Generals and Brigade Majors on the Staff of the Yolunteer Militia Force of Canada on the
18t day of January, 1876. (Not printed.)

Bannagrp, F. J. :—Return to Address, Correspondence between the Government of Canada
and F. J. Barnard, Esquire, Contractor for the Telegraph Lines in British Columbia,
since the 26th May, 18175.

-Return to Order, Statement showing each sum of money paid to F.J,
Barnard, Esquire, Contractor for the Telegraph Lines in British Oolumbia, since the 10th
February, 1815, (Not printed.)

EacLE Hanpor :(—Return to Engineer’s Report of the Survey of Eagle Harbor, i the County
of Elgin, to decide on its suitableness as a Harbor of Refuge; and map of the said

Harbor. (Not printed) .

Scorr’s JuncTion :—Return [to Order, Correspondence between the Insgiect.or of Post Offices
for the Quebec Division, in relation to the contract for carrying the Mail between Scott's
Junctioun, in the County of Beauce, and Parish of St. Bernard, in the County of Dor-
chester. {Not printed.)

-INova Scotia, GREAT SEaL:—Return and Sup[l)lemenmry Return to Address, All corres-

pondence relating to the Great Seal of the Province, that has been affixed to all docu~
ments requiring the same since Confederation.

GraRAM, WiLLIAK :—Return to Order, Correspondence between Sarah Graham, Widow, and
the Government, in reference to an application for aid in consequence of the reduction of
salary and subsequent death of the late William Graham, at that time a Messenger of
this House. (XNot printed.)

Forr Fraxcis Locks, &e,:—Return to Address, AIl Orders in Council relating to the
construction of Fort Francis Locks or Canal. '

ProvixcraL Acts, DisanLowaxor orF :—Return to Address,“All correspondence between the
Federal and any of the Provincial Goveraments since the establishment of Confederation
concerning the disallowance of Provincial Acts or the action on Provincial Billa
reserved.

Retnrn to Address, Correspondence between the
Imperial and Canadian Governments, concerning the mode of exercising the power of dis~
allowance of Proviccial Acts.

RoxpEAU LicrTHoUsz :—Return to Order, Shewing in detail the cost of erection of Lighthouse
at the Harbor of Refuge at Rondeau. (Not¢ printed )

Niconas Rioux :—Supplementary Return to Order, Correspondence between the Government
and the Censitaires of the Seigniory Nicolas Rioux, in the County of Rimouski, in the
matter of the tax which they pay to the Seigaiors, instead of Statute days’ labor (les
Journées de Corvée). (Not printed.)

DoaiNio¥ PoLick :—Annual Return under the Act 31 Vietoria, chapter 73, section 6, shewing
the average number of the Dominion Police employed during each month of the year,
ended 318t December, 1876 ; the cost of pay, and of travelling expenses, expended in

respect thereof. (Not printed.)
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No. 93./MacrT, Duty oN:—Return to Order, Instructions issued from the Inland Revenue Department
to its Officers throughout the Dominion, as to what time the additional duty on malt was
to take effect. (Not printed.)

Return to Order, Monthly Return of the malt taken out of bond each
mouth from the 1st July, 1876, to the 28th February, 1877. (Not printed.)

No. 94.|Tosique Inp1ans :—Return to Order, Corresponilence between the Government and the Tohique
Indians relating to the appointment of a resident agent at that place. (Not printed.)

No. 95.|{Le Crfpir FonciEr pU Bas CaNapa:—A statement of the property and business assets and
liabilities of a Company bearing the name of * Le Crédit Fonciér du Bas Canada,” incor-
porated under Chapter 102 of the Statutes of Canada, 36 Vic., (1873), &c. (Not printed.)

No. 96.|“BerNg” PosTaL Uniox:—Return to Address, All correspondence in regard to placing the
Dominion of Canada in as favourable a position as any Foreign Gonntry, under the pro-
visioni of the Postal Union made at “Berne” on the 9th October, 1874, (Not
printed.)

No. 97.|Lapsep BaLaxces, &c.:—Return to Order, Showing all amounts carried over by Orders in
Council, at the end of the financial year, under the authority of Chapter 2 of the Act of
last Session ; with copies of the Orders in Council, and a Statement of the amounts of
such lapsed balances remainipg unexpended at the end of three months from that date;
together with a Statement of all amounts carried forward by Orders in Conncil, from 1st
July, 1867, showing the sums actually expended in each case, and the Parliamentary
autﬁority sanctioning the same. (XNot printed.)

. 98.|%NorrueeN Licar' :—Retarn to Address, Showing the number of passages made by the
No. 98 Steamship Northern Light between &}eorgetown in Prince Edward Island and Pictow,
or Pictou Island in Nova Scotia and back ; the number of mails carried by thé said Steam-
ship, and the number of passengers carried by her on each passage. (Not printed.)

Return to Order, Showing the total amount of cost of the Steamer
Northern Light; also an account of any and all expenditure in connection with the
said Steamer, down to the 31st January last. (Not printed.)

Return to Order, Qontract with Mr. Sewell for building the Steamer
Northern Light ; the Report of the Inspector and Government Agent connected with
the building of the said Steamer. (Not printed.)

. 99.'MgrcuanT SHipping :—Return to Address, Correspordence between the Government of
No. 99.! Canada and Her l!&jestg"s Government in relation to Legislation affecting Mer:hggg
Shipping. (Not printed.

Inst.ructions given to Mr. Wil}iam Sm'it.h, Deputy of the Minister of
Marine and Fisheries, on his recent mission to Kngland in connection with the above
subject. (Not printed.)

Correspondence had in relation to such mission between the Mini
of Marine and Fisheries and the said Deputy with the Report of the said Deputy,)i‘,:n;:ﬁf
tiou to such mission. (Not printed.)

No. 100..{C aNapIAN Saps soLp ix FrAxor :—Return to Address, Correspondence between the Govern-
ment of Canada, the Imperial Government and ang other Governments or persons on the
subject of the duty imposed on Canadian ships sold in France.

No. 101..!Steau Communication, P.E.I :—Return to Address, Statement showing what steps have been
l taken by the Government, touching the opening up of steam communication in the winter
geason, between Prince Edward Island and the mainland, in accordance with the terms of

Union. (ot printed.)

0. 102.. INTERNATIONAL ExmiBiTioN, PHILADELPHIA, 1876:—Report of the Canadian Commission of.
‘ (Not re-printed for Sessional Fapers.)

0. 103.., RevENTS PAID BY BACH PBOVINCE, &C. :—Return to Order, Setting forth, as nearly as the offt
N of the Government can do so, the amount of the r’evenpe paid b’y ench P{- ovinc: oote:hr:
Dominion, and the expenditures made therein on Dominion account during the past five
years.

No. 104... NavicaTioN OF AMERICAN CaNALS :—Return to Address, Correspondence between the Dominion,
United States and Imperial Governments, respecting the navigation of American canals
and rivers.

No. 105../CosL IuporTED INTO THE DomiNion :—Return to Order, Quantities and value of the Coal
imported into the Dominion of Canada for the six months ending 31st December, 1876.
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Ko, 108..

No. 107..

No. 108..
No. 109..

¥No. 110

No. 111.

No. 112.

No. 113,

No, 114,

¥No. 116,
No. 117
Fo. 118,

No. 119

Ko,

Xo. 13,

. 120,

Horsg Saoe Bar CuaxNer, Miravica1 River :—Return to Order, Correspondence between the
Minister of Public Works and the officer in charge of the dred;ii(ng improvements and
deepening of the Horse Siivoe Bar Channel at the entrance of the Miramichi River. (Not¢
printed.)

ARICHAT WEST BrEAKWATER :—Return to Order, Reports and plan of Arichat West Break~
water, in the County of Richmond, Nova Scotia. (Not printed.)

Suxvr Fisueries, HarBovk oF BATHURST :—Return to Address Orders, in Council, Rules and
Regulations made in relation to the Smelt Fisheries in the Harbourof Bathurst. (Not
printed.)

Pirotaae ReTURNS, Capk BreToN :—Return to Order, Returns from Pilotage Authorities of
Cape Breton for the year 1876, showing the names of all Pilots, and the amount paid to
each. (WNot printed.)

.\INTOXICATING LiQuors, SaLe o¥, &c.:—Return to Address, Correspondence between the

Government and the Lieutenant Governors of the different Provinces regarding the rela-
tive jurisdiction of the Dominion and Provincial Parliament over the manufacture and
sale ot Intoxicating Liquors. (Not printed.)

Lirtie GLAcE Bay, HarBour Fems, &c.:—Return to Order, Return of the Harbour Master
for the Port of Little Glace Bay, N.3, for the ‘year ending 3lst December, 1876;
shewing the amounts of Fees collected ; the names of all veasels from which fees were
collected ; also any Correspondence in relation to the office of Harbour Master of the Port
of Little Glace Bay, N.S. (XNot printed.)

Toronto HarBour :—Return to Order, Statement shewing the extent and character of the
Works carried on in the improvement of the Toronto Harbour during the past year.
(Not printed.)

Loxe IsLanp Bripae By-Wash, &c. :—Return to Order, Correspondence between the Govern-

ment and the Council of the County of Carleton respecting a Bridge over the By-Wash at
Long Island. (XNot printed.)

CrLBute Canan:—Return to Order, Correspondence between the Department of Public
Works and the Engineer in charge of the Culbute Oanal, in reference to the petition of
Elizabeth Sullivan, of the Township of Pembroke, in the County of Renfrew, praying for
compensation for damages alleged to have been sustained by her, through the construction
of & Dam at the said Culbute Canal. (Not printed.)

.|Port Hoop HarBour :—Return to Qrder, Reports and Plans of Port Hood Harbour, in the

County of Inverness, made by the Engineers under the direction of the Dominion Govern-
ment. (Not printes.)

Ripgav River, ViLLAGE oF WELLINGTON :—Return to Address, Oorrespondence between the
Government, and the Council of the County of Carleton, respecting a Bridge across the
Rideau River, at the Village of Wellington. (Not printed.),

.81, JonN River, N.B.:—Return to Order, Reports made by the Engineer or Engineers in

charge of Public Works on the improvement of the Navigation of the 8t. John River, N.B.,
since June, 1871. (Not printed.)

JupiciAL S1aF¥, MoNTRRAL :—Return to Address, Correspondence since last Session, between

the Federal and the Quebec Governments, concerning the Judicial Staff of the bistrict of
Montreal. (Not printed.)

,|{CaBLe Companiks, &c.:-—Return to Address, Correspondence between the United States

Cable Company The Anglo-American Telegraph Company and any other Marine or
Telegraph Company and the Government, as well as copies of all Orders in Council
affecting the same, since the twenty-first day of March, 1876,

MoxTrEAL HARROUR Coumissionrs :—Return to Order, Statoment as exact as possible, shew-
ing the amount paid by each Steamboat, to the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal,
during the seagon 1875-76, for wharfage dues,—together with the name and length of such
Steamboat. (Not printed.)

Mogrgis, Hon. ALaxaNpsn :—Return to Address, Instructions to the: Honourable Alexander
Morris, Lieutenant-Governor of the North-West Territories ; also copies of all Orders in
Council relative to the said Territories since their organization, and not aiready published ;.
also copies of all reports and official correspondence between the Lieatenant-Governor

and the Dominion Government from the date of his appointment.
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123.[AgeY Bay HarsoUr, Victomia :—Return to Order, Report of the Government Engineer, on
the practicability of opening Aspy Bay Harbour, Victoria, 50 as to admit vessels of certain
tonnage, in the year 1872. (Not printed.)

. 123. Posr Orrioes awp Cusrox Housss or tae DowinioN :—Return to Order, Shewing the num-

1 ber of Post Office sud Custom House Buildings owned by the Dominion, designatirg th
bu.i’}:‘:‘in)ce 1867; the names of the Cities ang Towns where the same’ are gituateg (m
pr .

124. E squiMauLt, GraviNg Dock :—Return to Address, Correspondence by telegraph or otherwise
! respectihg the Graving Dock at Ksquimault sinoe July, 1874. (1\’;! pn‘nlc;.) ’

125.. QueBEc To Laks St. Jow, RAnLway :—Return to Order, Correspondence respecting the grant
by the Dominion 3Jovernment of a sum of money, to assist in the construction of the
Railway from Quebec to Lake St. John. (Nof printed.)

. 126.. MaIL Bae, Loss or, &c.—Return to Order, Correspondence between the Postmaster General

and the Post Office Inspector at Halifax and other Post Office officials, with reference to
the loss of a Mail Bag between Truro and Halifax. (Not printed.)

127..|Mowar, Jorx :—Return to Order, Commission or other document a};pointing John Mowat a
Fisixery Officer in the County of Restigouche, in the Province of New Brunswick. (Not
printed.)

128.. DEEp-SEa WEIRe OrR PouxpS :—Return to Order, Number of persons who have obtained
Licences or permission from the Department of Marine and Pisheries to erect Deep Sea
| Weirse or Pounde for the purpose of capturing Fish at the Head-lands or Capes of the

; Maritime Provinces. (Not printed.)

129.. NoTRE DAME DE GRACE AND STE. CUNEGONDE, P.Q. :—Return to Order, Petitions respecting

| the establishment of a Post Office at Notre Dame de Grace, near Mont{es_tl. and of another
at Ste. Cunégonde, part of the territory of the Town of St. Heuri, in the County of
Hochelaga, recently erected into a separate Municipality. (¥o¢ printed.)

130..'Norris, J. G. :—Return to Address, Correspondence with reference to the appointment of
Mr. J. G. Norris, as Deputy Collector of Customs, Kootenay, British Columbia. (Not

printed.)

. 131..|ScHooNER ‘¢ NAPIAR '’ :—Return to Order, Correspondence connected with the seizure of the

Schooner Napier, in Ingonish, in_the year 1872, for smuggling, and a statement showin
if the Hon. William Ross has redeemed his bonds given for the release of said vessel.

(Not printed.)

2. Warney, W : —Return to Order, Correspondence relating to the superannuation of William

Warren, Esq., late Collector of Customs for the Port og Whitby, Ontario. (ot printed.)
i

133.. VicToh1a Axp KooTENaY, CT8TOMS STATIONS :—Return to Address, Correspondence between

the Government and Mr. O. T. Dupont, or any other partler;& with reference to his inspec-

tion of the several Customs Stations between Victoria and Kootenay, in 1876.

134..| NewcasTie, Oxr., Fisn-BrEEDING EsTaBLISOMENT ‘—Return to Order, Showing the titie held
by the GOVe’rnment to the land and other property connected with the Fish-breeding
establishment at Newcastle, Ontario. (Not printed )

135..IN xw Brunswicx, Nox-ripaL WaTzes :—Return to Order, All leases of the righi to fish in the
) non-tidal waters of New Brunswick. (Not printed.)

136..| Cove FigLp, QuesEc :—Retura to Order, Statement showing the instructions given for th
division ?f the QOrdnance property at Quebec, known as the Cove Field ; the cost o:
dividing, &c. (Not printed.)

! ¢ B &c. :—Return to Nrder, R f .
1. Gover NMENT DkposITS IN BARKS, &C. :— ra to Order, Return of the Government 4

‘in the different Banks of th_e’Dou;lmon on the first day of each month, from Janua?;o::g
1876, to January 1, 1877, inclusive ; and also at the agencies of such Banks and other
Banking Houses ia London.

. 138...IrLicit Stiues .—Return to Order, Shewing the number of Illicit Stills seized by the Revenue

Officers of the Dominion in 1873, 'T4 and '75. (Not printed.)

. {Cascomerc Harsour :—Return to Address, Survey and Report on the Im -
139 cumpec Harbour, Prince Edward Island, made by C. E. Perley, Esq., ."é).vexz:;:‘t ;:' 13:1.')

0.!MoxnTREAL MuUsguM :—Return to Address, Correspondence which bas tak
14 Director of the eological Surve and the Minister of the Interiorezxﬁl::c:hgez’te?p::l.
1873, on the subject of removing the Statt and Musenm from Montreal to Ottawa. ’
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141..|RipBAU CaANAL :—Return to Order, Shewing the quantity and price of land purchased for the
purposes of the comstruction and maintenanee of the Kingston and Ottawa Division of
the Rideau Canal. (Not printed.)

142.|MaiLs DerAYeD, &c., Granp TrUNK :~Return to Order, Statement shewing the expenditure
incurred by the Post Office Department for carrying the mails below Quebec, during the
whole time when the Grand Trunk was stopped by snow, during the winters of 1874,
1875 and 1876. (.Vo! printed.)

143.. RAILwAY StaTisTicS OF CANADA :—Reports for the years 1875-76.

144..{01viL SEgvice :—Return, in part, to Order, For certain statistical information respecting the
inside and outside Divisions of the Civil Service of Canada.

——Return to Order, for the names of persons appointed to office between the
1st of January and the 7th of November, 1873 ; the names of the officials whose salaries
were increased during the same period ; the names of those so appointed whose appoint-
ments were cancelled subsequent to the Tth of November. (.Vof printed.)

145. Excinzers’ EsTinates, &c. :—Return to Address, Reports and estimates of the Engineer upon
! the works é)rog)osed to be performed at the following porm or localities, namely :—
Arisaig, N.S., Annapolis, N.8., &ec., &c. (Not printed.)

. 146.! GovernugnT OFrFiciaLe, P.E.I. ;—Retnrn to Address, shewing the names of all Government

Officials in Prince Edward Island, specifying nature of office held by -each, date of
appointment and amount of salary.

147./CuanBoxsEAU AND CoTE:—Return to Address, A petition complaining of injustice done by

the Montreal Harbour Commissioners, or by some person or persons in their employ, in
the arbitrary dismissal of Pierre Charbonnean, Pierre Coté and several others employed
on the works of the said Commissioners on the River St. Lawrence. (XNotprinted.)

148..|BuseBy, ARTHUR T.:—Return to Address, Correspondence between the Dominion Govern-

ment and the Local Government of British Col'imbia, relative to the appointment of a
County Court Judge for the District of New Westminster in place of Arthur T. Bushby,
deceased. (XNot printed.)

. 149..'BuFraLo 1IN N. W, T., PRRSERVATION OF THE :—Return to Address, Communications from the

first Council of the North-West Territories in regard to the preservation of the buffalo;
and all Orders in Council or Acts passed by the present Government of the North-West
Territories having this object in view. (Not printed.)

150.. Parry Souxp Harsour :—Return to QOrder, Engineer’s Report of the survy of Parry Sound
Harbour, made by Mr. Michaud, C.E., and others, in 1876, (.No? printed.)

151..' MARQUETTE, MAN., WooDLAND 1N :—Return to Order, Showing the quantity of woodland in the

County of Marquette, and the number of licemses to cut wood, sold or issued by the
Dominion Lands Offi-e, in Manitoba, during the last three years, to persons not being
actual settders. (Yot printed.)

152.. ' Raiuway Frogs, Accipenrts BY :—Return to Address, Showing the number of accidents to
persons caught io railway frogs; the points where the accidents occurred, and the partic-
ulars connected therewith ; for the five years ending 31st December last. (Nof printed.)

158../Inp1aN Laxps, B.C.:—Return to Address, Correspondence between the Loeal and the Dominion
Goyvernments during 1876, with referexce to the adjustment of Indian lands, in British
Columbia. (Aot printed.)

. 154..!Kms1'ou, WiLLiau :—Return to Order, Correspondenoe in connection with the defalcations of

1 the ex-Collector of Custcms, William Kidston, at the Port of Baddeck. (Notprin‘ed.)

155.. €oLwrLL, WiLLiax :—Retarn to Order, Correspondenes in connection with the dismissal of
William Colwell, locker in the Customs House Department, St. John, New Brunswick.
‘ (Not printed ),

1566.. OAvADIAN SmippiNg, Ligut Duks on :—Return to Address, Correspondence that may have paased

" during the past three years between the Government of Great Britain and the Government

of 'thi; )Dominion, relative to the abolition of light dues on Canadian shipping. (No¢
printed.

lb'l..‘ll"lsnmls, &c., AroLiTioN 0¥ :—Retarn to Ordei-, Papers relating to the abolition of fiskerics in

the rt:dpi;in of the Richeliew, in front of the Village of the Camton of Uhambly. (Not
printed.
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No. 158..St. PeTEr’'s Caxarn:—Return to Address, Contracts and Orders in Council daring the year
1876, in connection with the enlargement of the St. Peter's Canal. (No¢ printed.)

No. 159..{L’IsteT, &c., BREARWATERS :—Return to Address, Instructions given to Mr. Kingasford, and

correspondence in relation to repairs and other work done on the breakwaters at L’islet,
Rivi¢re Quelle, Riviére du Loup and Rimouski, on the south shore of the St. Lawrence,
Province of Quebec. (Not printed.)

No. 160..|PoINT EscuMINAC BREAKWATER :—Return to Order, Correspondence with the Government and
the inhabitants of the Countiy of Northumberland, in relation to the necessity of a break-

waterdfor the protection of fishermen at the easterly side of Point Escuminac. (XNot
printed.)

No. 161..[GoveErxMeNT RATLWAYS—TRON RalLs :—Return to Order, Showing the quantity of iron rails

removed from the Government railways—Railway Companies to which they have been
loaned, &c.

No. 162..|Morratr, RopErT :—Return to Order, Letters, &c., which have passed between Robert Moffatt,
of Dalhousie, N.B., and the Government of the Dominion, in respect to the transport of

cargoes of rails and other railway materials from the vessels Colonist, Bessie Parker
and Stabstadt, &c.

No. 163.|DeparTMENT OF JUSTICE—QRDNANCE LAND SaLRs :—Return to Address, Statewent of all gums
of money charged and received by the Department of Justice, by Way of costs or moneys
over due on ordnance land, sold under authority.

No. 164..|DEor Loav Law :—Return to Address, Correspondence between the Government of Canada
and the Inspector of Customs for the Province of Nova Scotia, or any of the Custom
House officials, in relation to the violation of the Deck Load Law. (No¢ printed.)

. 166...Prixce Epwarp IsLaND RAILWAY:—Return to Address, Disbursements paid on account of t
No. 1 Prince Edward Island Railway up to January, 1’876, together w?th a sm'»ement:;f tll::
earnings of the Road up to that time. (Not prented.)

. 168. [NEwspapErs PAID PosTAGE, &¢:—Return to Order, Statement setting forth the total b
No.1 of Newspapers and other periodicals in each’(}oumy and City of the Dominionm:vl?:i:é
have paid postage on papers sent from ‘‘ the office of publication,” with the tota} lzevenue
raised therefrom during the past year. (Not printed.)

Tarier oF :—Return to Address, Order in Council of the 5th
No. 167 Pmo:;g:;ving of a By-law of the Montreal Harbour Commissioners, in refere,
I of Pilotage between Quebec and Montreal. (Not printed.)

March, ultimo,
nce to the Tariff

.. & S7. Francs, N.B:—Return to Order, Correspondence in the possession of th .
No. 168 Uppfnem, re ard_m’g the dismissal of the Postmaster of Upper St. %‘rancis, in the éo(:g:;r:f

Madawaska, in the Province of New Brunswick. (Not printed.)

No. 169..'CAMPRELLTON AND PABPEBIAC ;—Return to Order, Correspondence resg

: 3 ecting the r
the contract for the transportation of the mail between Camp elltog and l;,:sggilagf
(Not printed.)

ImporTATION OF :—Return to Order, Showing the value of live cattle imy; i
No. 170. Gn:,:? exported from each Province] betwe’en.the 18t day of January, 1875, a,fnlimt. ftff. ’3,‘,;
of Jauua.ryil 1877 ; the value of live cattle imported and exported, and the total value of

meats, fresh or cured.

171,14 CranBLy ™ AND “CrLTIVATSUR” StEaMErs :—Return to Order, Statement showi
No. 17 amounts paid by the Steamer Chambiy and the Steamer Guaiva’teur, at the St. 0::’!;31‘3;
ou the River C bly, during the season of 1875. (Not printed.)

. NCB EDWA'RD Isnanp, LueaL Ssryices, &c. '—Return to Order, Of all monies
No. 173. Put gervices or legal expenses in Prince ﬁdward Island, from lst’Janusry, 1874,
time. (ot printed.)

paid for legal
to the present

. 173.. Foe WmstLs, Cars D’Or:—Retura to Order, Correspon-ence between the Go
No ! any arti;:s in Nova Scotia, relntmﬁ to th;a S?Ply of coal and water for thevzl;lf:gz:%%
the Fog-Whistle at Cape D’Or.  (Not printed.)

appointment of Harbour Masters at Sorel, St. John’s, Three Rivers and ine, i

Province of Quebec, and also givin a detailed s,ccqunt of all fees cgii.:emt:de ’b? silh(el
arbour M ) y 1875, up to this date, under the authority of 38

vl:cmm,, (,gl_.gm- 3:‘),{ nmehndm 37 ' ':o:l)" Ghapter 34, together with the names of the

ships on which such fees bave been levied in each year, and the

R gl year, names of the masters of

Xo. 114.,‘Hunon Masrers, Sosmn, St. Joﬁn, &o:—Return to Order, Indicating the names and date of
|

Harbour Masters since the 15th A‘Fn
ic
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No 17518t Avcusmiv. Pamsn oF :—Return to Order, Corresponidence in relation to the appointment
of & new Postmaster for the Parish of St. Angnstin, County of Two Mountains, and to
the change in the location of the Post Office the of said Parish. (Not printed.)

No. 176. [CorNock, WiLLIAM :—Return to Order, All correspondence in reference to the dismissal of
Mr. Wm. Cornock from the Postmastership of Erin Village, in the County of Wellington.
(Not printed.)

No. 177..'KenNeggc Raiway, Mamw Coxpuctors :(—Return to Address. Correspondence having refer-

: ence to the change of Mail Conductorson the Kennebec Railway, since the first of January,
1476 ;—and also the names of those parties from whom contracts were taken away since
that date. (Not printed.)

No. 178..{PorTAaar IsLaNp:—Return to Address. Correspondence between the Dominion Government
and the British Government, in relation tv the transfer of Portage [sland, in the Bay of
Miramichi, from the jurisdiction of the British Admivalty to the Dominion Government.
(Not printed.)

No. 179..!GoverNmMExT DEPOSITS, ONTARIO BaNk :—Return to Order, Correspondence between the

President or Cashier of the Ontario Bank and the Hon. the Finance Minister, or the
Finance Department, respecting the Government Depogits in tie Ontario Bank since 1st
November, 1873, to the present time.

No. 180.. Britisn Corousia Marig:—Return to Order, (‘opy of every tender received since November

i 1nst by the Postal Department, for carrying the Mails in British Columbia. (Not printed.)

No 181./8tiox Masters, Orrawa Rive :—Return to Order, Shewing the names of the Slide Masters
at each of the Slide Stations on the Ottawa River and its tributaries on the 1st day of
July, 1876 ; the salary or remuneration paid to each, the number of pieces of timber and
saw logs, respectively, passed through each of the said Slide Stations for tle year ending
18t July, 1876. (Aot printed.)

No. 182..‘Qu:s=c Harsor ComxissionNErs :—Return to Address, Petition of the Harbor Commissioners
of Quebec, praying for the guarantee of the Government for an adduional sum of
$250,000, in order to complete improvements. (Not printed.)

No. 183.'Kauourasks Courr Housg:—Return to Address, A statement of debentures issued by the
: (tovernment of Canada, for the purchase of a building for the Court House aud Gaol of
the District of Kamouraska, &c. (Not printed.)

No. 184.'Sr. Jeaw L’EvanenLiate pu LA NouveLLg Post QFrick:—Return to Address, Correspondence
on the subject ot the closing of the Post Office in the vicinity of the charch St. Jean
L’Evangeliste de 1u Nouvelle. (Not printed.)

No. 185...Daws, Joun:—Return to Order, Commission or other documents appointing John Dewe, Post
Uffice Inspector, und also of all orders defining his duties and functious. (Not printed.)

No. 186..INasg, J. MURRAY :—Recturn to Order, Correspondence in connection with the dismissal of
‘ J. Murray Nase, Postmaster, at the mouth of the Neripis, King’s Co., N.B. (Not printed.)

No. 187.. Lerters, UNpreraid :—Return to Order, Correspondence between the Council of the Quebec
Board of Trade, and the Dominion Government, relating to the rule in existence in
regard to unprepaid letters. (Nof printed.)

No. 188..'Bass anp Gaspreavx Frsmxr'ws, Mirauicai:—Return to Address, All Reports to Council in
relation to the Bass and Gasperaux Fisheries, in the Rivers Napan and Black River,
Miramichi, and the shores of the vicinity of the same. (Not printed.)

No. 189.. Lacuine CanaL:—Return to Order, Statement shewing the names and salaries or wages of
each officer composing the Government staff of the Liachine Canal for 1875-6 and 1876-7 ;

and the amount of contingencies in connection with the said staff for each of these years.
(Not printed.)

No. 190. | L.acacs, Bexsadix :—Return to Order, Oorresgondenoe respecting the appointment of Mr.
Benjn(xi\in Lagacé a3 Postmaster of Jonquidres, in the County of Chicoutimi, &c. (Not
printed.)

No. 191 . NurE AMERicAN BoUNoary Coumission :—Message, trausmitting Despatch, dated 1st Sep-
” tember, 1876, from H. M. Secretary of State for the Colonies, relative to the North
American Boundary Commission, together with & record of the proceedings, at the
meeting held by the Commissioners on the 28th of May last. (Not printed.)

Nu. 192.. Careantar & Oo.:—Return to Address, Returns of all moneys paid to Carpenter & Co.,
togetbher with O ‘ders in Council recommending such payment ou account of the Dawsoun
Route Subsidy, from 1st January, 1877, to 31st March, 1877. (Not printed.)
2
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No. 193.. Oanapa Centrat Exrension, Excineer’'s Reporr:—Return to Order, Engineer's Report of
‘ the Bonnechére and other possible routes of the Canads Central Extension. (Not printed.)

No. lsL..,Gnotoaxcu Survey or CaNapa :—Report of Progress of the Geological Survey of Canada,

y Alfred R. C. SBelwyn, F.R.8., F.G.8., Director, for the year 1875-T6. (Not re-printe in
Sessional Puapers.) -

No. 195., MacpoxaLp, Rieur Hox. Sk J. A.:—Return to Order, Statement of the suits and
legal matters in which the legal firm of the Honorable Sir Jobn A. Macdonald, M.P., or
any partner of his eaid firm was instructed by his Department to act on behalf of the

Crown, during his tenure of office ag Minister of Justice and Attoruey-General of Canadas.
(Mot printed.)




40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No.9.) A. 1877

REPORT

OF THE

SECRETARY OF STATE

CANADA,

FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31st DECEMBER, 1876.

Printed by Grder of Parliament,

OTTAWA.:
PRINTED BY MACLEAN, ROGER & Co., WELLINGTON SBTREET.

1877.






40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 9.) A. 1877

REPORT

OF THE

SECRETARY OF BSTATE,

FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31sr DECEMBER 1876

To His Excellency the Right Honorable Sir FREDERIC TEMPLE, Earl of
Dufferin, Governor-General of Canada, &c., §&c., &c

May 11 PrEasE YOUR EXCELLENCY :—

I have the honor to submit, in compliance with the 31st Vict., Chap. 42, Section
41, my report of the proceedings of this Department for the year 1876.

Among the statements of the operations of the several branches contained in the
Appendix to this Report, will be found that relating to the North-West Mounted
Police Force, which Branch has been transferred from the Department of Justice
and attached to this Department since the date of my last Report.

During the year, 1,469 letters were received by, and 2,630 were sent from tho

Partment ; if the first number be multiplied by four, it will fairly represent the
&Verage of reports, &c., and renewed applications, making a total of 5,376,
The Reports of the several Branches are hereto appended.

"The whole respectfully submitted.
R. W SCOTT,

Secretary of State.
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APPENDIX A,

DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF CANADA,
REGISTRAR'S BRANOH,
Orrawa, 16th January, 1877,

The Hon. the Secretary of State,
&e., &e., &c,
Ottawa.

. S[R,_—In compliance with your request, I have the honor to submit, for your
information, a statement of the work done in the Registrar’s Branch of the Depart-
ment of the Secretary of State, from the 1st January, 1876, to the 31st December, 1876.

I have the honor to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

L. A. CATELLIER,
Deputy-Registrar General of Canada.
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A CoNDENSED STATEMENT showing the work dome in the Registrar's
Branch of the Department of the Secretary of State from the 1st
January, 1876, to the 31st December, 1876.

DocumeNTs. Engrossed. | Recorded. Total.
onpmissions, under Great and Privy Seals........ eees vereenecesens 88 88 176
WIits Of BIECHONB «-evuce sorecsereseressesescenres or aveses sssnsenre s O S, . 12 12
Tits Of Supersedeas...ccciciies vovcveee cvcrnncreere sonses eress seese 3 3 6
itary Bounty Grants... 126 126 252
Dominfon Land Sales...... 81 81 162
do do (33 Vic.) weerreene 174 174 348
do do (Special Grant).... 1 1 2
Hon_lestead Grants.ccuecees coniunnen vossnesenanss 1 1 2
ian Land SALeS ..cccvvee srevereescrseeesraessasraeesvorers sevsnens sunen 249 249 498
Ordnance Land Sales......c.... s . . 82 82 164
Intercolonial Railway Land Sales.. 20 20 40
8CIAl LaNd Sale..cces rerrreies ossencrrvvnenscanesssesnuess sesses sassss sesernnes 1 1 3
BEAB O SA1EH ..ovtveveesieiitentniue cerenenns seeseeses saesueses saessescs sassnesen 2 2 4
eed of Exchange ...... ... 1 1 2
leases from Mortgage... frevavre ereeanine 13 13
roclamations .......e.....e

UETENAETS .uuvvceesvarercrreroreesorssessrast sosssssonassss cosssune sanaasess sansss | aaneanass aossssvns 106 106
BNCellations.....cccee vevreesiirenaessonersae 29 29
etters Patent, Granting an Annuity...... . 2 2 4
Summoning to Senate.. 3 lg
......... 5
3 3
24 48
572 572
5 10
3 6
1 1
2 4
1 2
RN 2,531
Co !
Ples . ‘ 1739 pages

An Annual Return of all Bonds and Securities recorded in this Depariment
under 31 Vict., chap. 37, ie prepared for the Parliament of Canada under Section 15 of
© eame Act; and a Quarterly Return of all the Indian and Ordnance Lands is also

i‘;:nzdto the Registrar of each County for the lands in which such Patents have
ued.

L. A. CATELLIER,
eputy Registrar General of Canada.

DeparTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE,
RecisTrRAR'S BrancH,
OtTaWA, 16th January, 1877.
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APPENDIX B.

To the Honorable R. W, Soorr,
Secretary of State of Canada, &e., &c., &c.

The undersigned has the honor to submit the following Report respecting the
services performed under his superintendence during the year ending 30th June
last :—

CANADA GAZETTE.

There is again a deficit in the revenues derived from the public for the Canada
Gazette, as compared with the expenditure of the Government upon it. It would be easy
to balance thie account by charging, against each Department, the cost of the Notices,
Orders in Council and Proclamations published on their behalf; but as these amounts
could not be charged against the contingencios of those Departments in the accounts
of the Dominion, but must stand against the special vote taken to defray the cost of
publication, a statement of this sort would be more curious than useful.

The sums certitied for by me on account of the Gazette were, for the financial
year:—

For paper......cccecoveerveiiinvennnienns ceetaensecersannes cernennas $1,195 98
“ printing and distribution®......ccccoiiniiiiians e « 2,301 51
“ translations ....ceveiieiiiiiiiiiiiieeserieitinis e 184 80
$3,682 29
The revenue for the same period was:—

From subscriptions.....cieeveeessscssnvancsniinniiienni.., $241 80
“  advertisementS....coceeeeiieriiiieeiiitiiiiieiiiiiiiiain, 578 48
“ casual 8aleS.......eviiiieiiiiraniiiiiiiiienin 25 90
$816 18

The number of copies issued on the last Saturday in June was :—
To official persons, &c. (Gratis)...c.oeevrrionneiiinnnniiiiins 1,049
“ subscribers and advertisers ..........c.oceeiiiiiiiaiiii, 88
Total....ccovererreererirnnrenniinn, 1,137

THE STATUTES.

There were printed this year 22,500 copies of volume I, containing the Public
and General Acts, (with Orders in Conneil, &c.) viz:—18,000 in English and 4,500
in French. Of volume II, containing the Local and Private Acts, there were printed
6,000 copies in English and2,000 in French. ) _

Of these, 5,540 copies of both volumes I and II in English were bound together,
and 1,850 of the French edition in the same way, leaving 12,400 English and 2,650
French of volume I (the bulk of these being for the use of Justices of the Peace,
&c.) and 460 English and 180 French of volume II to be bound separately.

*Not including postage. p
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Altogether there were turned out, as will be seen above, a little over 23,000
bound volumes, of which the.cost was as follows :—

For paper ......cccccevvenirnniinnans teeereteteuteeiteniiereenineeraens $3,490 66
“ printing (including translations of Orders in Coun- ’

ClL &) vreiiiiiriiiir e 1,723 34

0 DINAIDG coverniiiiininiriiiie i e e e . 3,911 60

« distribution (not including postage).........cceeevveennes 897 51

Total..uviviiiiiriciinieiiresicninnas $10,023 11

Or an average of 43} cents per volume.

For a statement of the distribution of the Statutes for the year, I beg leave to
refer you to the regular statutory return now in course of preparation in this office.

DEPARTMENTAL PRINTING AND BINDING.

Tables are appended, shewing the cost of Departmental printing, binding, &e.,
€xecuted by the contractors for those services during the financial year; also s
Statement of accounts for similar services performed by others than the contractors,
for the several Departments, and sent by them to this office for audit. Also similar
Statement for the half year, ending this day.

It will be seen from these tables that there has been a very large increase in

he cost of this work. This has evidently arisen in some part from tge constantly
Operating causes of increased population and opening up of more territory, pargy
from the gradual concentration of all the work under superintendence at the Capital,
but perhaps in a greater measure from the setting in operation of the necessary
Machinery, to carry into effect recent postal conventions, and the Acts respecting

O8pection, &c., under the control of the Inland Reveriue Department.
o oo The number of requisitions issued during the year were—upon the Printer,
<286, upon the Binder Y75, and upon the Stationery Office 2.506. Total 5,767, as
3gainst 4,500 in the previous year.

ADVERTISING.

The superintondence of Government advertising and audit of advertising
Accounts was confided to me by Order in Council of 17th December, 1875. A calendar
ear has since expired, and I subjoin a table showing the amount of these accounts
audited and certified by me in the year ending this day.

Something has been done during that time to systematize the work, involving
3t firgt a great deal of troublesome detail. Even yet I have reason to believe that
;ﬁme portion of the work (perhaps no considerable portion) is not brought under

© superintendence and audit contemplated by the Order in Council.

The whole respectfully submitted.

B. CHAMBERLIN,
Queen's Printer.

QOeen's Privrer's OFFICE,
OrTAWA, 30th December, 1876.
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CosT of Departmental Printing, &c., by Departments, for the Years ending
80th June, 1875, and 30th June, 1876.

)
Printing and Binding. Stationery for same.
Department.
1874-76. 1875-76. 1874-75. 1875-76.
At CoNTRACT RaTES. | $ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Agriculture ........ . 1,094 39 1,028 53 667 32 702 10
Civil Service Board.. ........ ... 3 24 513 2 42 178
Clerk of Crown in Chancery . 181 95 25 95 171 18 16 87
Customs...... soeetrees sarsrenne sacare 5,031 33 5,038 07 2,965 14 2,961 14
i 1,839 10 2,327 84 624 11 808 94
Governor General’s Secretary 58 73 274 13 122 68 63 65
Inland Revenue......ossieinense snnes 6,443 94 8,717 58 2,145 28 3,904 38
Interior ...... ...... 669 89 1,012 85 346 03 382 67
Justice 975 29 941 70 427 67 603 11
Library of Parliament. 772 5 58 8 96 106
Marine and Fisheries . 2,732 31 1,603 77 1,274 12 970 33
Militia and Defence . S 1,459 02 1,577 32 1,013 75 873 22
Post Office...... ..., .| 10,596 34 | 23,982 12 8,413 53 | 18,249 48
Privy Council . 131 24 232 24 18 17 66 64
Public Works.. . 978 60 1,029 07 382 81 605 03
Receiver General . 243 16 208 83 123 71 124 32
Secretary of State.... . 621 64 538 22 205 16 231 62
Mi8Cellaneous.....cutcovivre. corens srvnvsene sirnansaanss sasennnns 288 70 6 37 57 03 4 43
33,356 65 48,455 30 18,968 97 30,570 76
At CoNFIDENTIAL RaATES. ,
]
Agriculture ... 1% PRSP 63 43
Finance ........ 981 08 1,024 72
Inland Revenue. 174 91 |oreiiene coverennn
Interior ..... ..... 397 73 67 25
Justice . oeeer cerrenennte 17 13 61 95
Marine and Fisheries.. s faerenssecnnsvenas l 228 01
Militia and Defence ....ceeceeeceees ereeees venrennn connenens 18 23 74 20
Public Works ...eeveveeerienenns cvseee 1,302 38 17 76
Secretary of State ......eveeeecoereevervnnerveien sanenaes 30 00 44 03 |..
Miscellaneous........ . 432 40 75 95
3,353 86 2,357 29 |ieiieraecenrmennnelevrens vonnne mene
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Cosr of Departmental Printing, &c,, by Quarters, for the Years ending 30th
June, 1875 and 80th June, 18%76.

——— — ——————
Printing and Binding. Stationery for same.
Quarter.
1874-75. 1876-76. 1874-75. 1875-76.
Ar CoNTrRACT RATES. $ wcts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
September Quarter................. reneeen s v ereranens 10,196 58 1 12,563 32 | 3,994 54 , 8,251 29
CEMBEL A0  aeeresreererereversenens evess sesesnsen sonses 7,892 58.1 13,259 62 5,908 51 1,513 05
rch GO oorreeeerserres vreses sersenens ssnerenees 6,405 00 | 9,427 47 | 3,832 21 7,004 55
June do veewenee| 8,862 49 | 13,204 89 5,233 Tl 7,801 87
33,356 65 | 48,455 30 | 18,968 97 | 30,570 76
At CoNFIDENTIAL RATES. |
September QUATLEr...... .. ccerin. cevrures semcsore sersoraes fee sonses-aseasens 93 67 ecveernreeereenen |
mber do .. 33 78 499 T4
March do 2,977 52 1,631 48
Jone do '342 56 132 40
3,353 86 | 2,357 29 |irivrresseenreens | wrerenseserennene

——

STATEMENT of Accounts for Printing work done by others than the
Contractors, but sent to this office for audit.

——

- - .
Month. Department. ! Amount.
i
— |
! !
! $ cts
- I 1,546 | 30
. 489 | 00
l 2,449 | 00
Ja""lal'y... ceverees e (Publlc Works ves . crvveeeeen , . 21| 25
F go rrenneaiensenes tJustice... 228 1 15
ebraary ........oouueee |Publlc Works... e 637 | 02
" do " L. {Clerk of Orown in Chancery . 70 | 00
‘:1’011- .| Public Works... . 95 | 35
d° wrtersennes seoneness | POBE Office...... 3,000 | 00
dg e veesneene senosses | FIDANCE wurer vesnen e 3|5
L. 115 | 00
A}&nl . ../ Finance. ... cuerees 265 | 00
Mae ..|Agriculture... 1,294 | 70
8y ..... .iPublic Works ...... 401 | 10
962 | 00
27 1 00
12,374 | 62
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Cost of Departmental Printing, &c., by Departments, for six months ending

31st December, 18Y76.

Printing and | Stationery for
Department. Bmdxgg sg;,m:'.Y
AT CONTRACT BATES. $ cts $ cts.
ARTICUITUTE eesiins cotit teerinn taeststnsres catons tesesicns ssassssonnrrsneses sessss ssasen sasens 418 00 481 40
Civil Service Board.. 0 87 Juvvernrereesversuvnne
Customs...cc .evvrevennn 2,479 63 1,308 40
Finance .......ooeeees 845 96 217 87
Governor. General's Secrotary.. 33 22 38 34
Inland Revenue.....es veeesera o 3,365 19 1,291 89
Interior ............. 580 60 304 91
Justiee..cces cerernns 303 86 172 69
Marine and F‘lshemes ...... 618 35 246 85
Militia and Defence .. 919 03 452 26
Post Office....... 13,869 73 9,334 91
Privy Counci 63 70 28 94
Public Works.. 549 62 303 21
Receiver General... 1566 96 76 47
Secretary of State... tieneseneraaens 487 26 271 36
24,701 78 14,529 50
AT CONFIDENTIAL RATES
Marine and FiSheries ...ccovveesreress veneeesas sevessone rosssssnsssssssnsssn sessssnne sesraness 479 |oureererevennrecanane
Militia and Defence......... 25 50 |uvevnerrerrrecannsens
30 29

sssesesesacecicssene

10
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STATEMENT of Accounts for Printing work done by others than the Con-
tractor, but sent to this Office for Audit, for six months ending 31st
December, 1876,

O ——
Date. Department. Amount.

$ cts.
August.............[Public Works. cuowes .ovuee seres oeenens sessena seenes R 131 86
September... A0 e o " e eereesnes cesnasen 101 41
do  ...eee (IDLRTIOL cueeeree cercnene eueenan o e rrenaeseee sovennens 610 97
October ...... ...|Agriculture......... vereraeneas teer veeeseeecses sessan ren esssene 1,334 00
do oo 1Secretary of State.......cvve cicricne ceerieinnne sriseiieiiinnenes oeesineeienes sesesenes 62 90
NOVEIbEr ....vvvv. [PUBLC WOTKS.euuruns: vevenscesees essssssssesesssss cosess s ssssssess sessssssssesses ose 20 75
December ......... SeCretary OF StALE .coceoeres erveree risseriersnsserssscrisssucsss osmnras sesssens sassasans 28 00
2,289 89

11
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APPENDIX C.

DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE,
STATIONERY OFFICE BRANCH,
OrTaAWa, 12th January, 187%.

"The Honorable R. W. Scorr,
Secretary of State, Ottawa.

~ Sir.—I have the honor to submit herewith, statements of the accounts of this
office for the year from the 1st July, 1875, to 30th June, 1876, and also for the past
half year ending 30th December, 1876.
Detailed accounts of the business will be found in the (three) accompanying
tabular statements, the aggregate of which is as follows:—

Value of goods in stock 1st July, 1875.....cccvueeennes $15,246 05

“ “  received during the year............... 54,359 71

Profit on the year’s business 30th June, 1876......... 1,052 17
Total ..oviiviiniiieciiineniiene cinienn $70,657 93

Goods issued on demand to the Departments......... $13,941 21

« « “  to the Outside Service....... 14,131 09

« “  to Queen’s Printer for Departments... 28,280 71

« “ « “ for Statutes......... 130 04
_— $56,533 05
“ in stock carried forward, June 30th, 1876........cccoeuneens 14,124 88
Total.cveiin i e e, $70,657 93

The business of the past half year, aggregated in the same way, is :—

Stock brought forward, 1st July, 1876......... ........ $14,124 88

Goods received to 30th December, 1876................ 32,334 61
Total tevreis cirviiiinin e $46,459 49

Goods issued to Departments.......c.ccceievvinniininannn, $5,460 24

« « Outside Service........ccovvveenennnn.. 8,892 40

« “« Queen’s Printer for Departments.. 14,537 94

——  $28,390 58
“ in stock carried forward, 30th December.......... ........ 17,568 91

Total..ueniienericiereiiiirens e annss

veeeeee. $45,469 49
13
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During the year there has been 1,864 parcels and cases packed and despatched,
for the Outside Service, involving the despatch and return of about 1000 invoices
and letters, and the demands on the officc have numbered 5,119, an increase of
163 over the previous year. The value of goods issued also shews a large increase :

The total issue (as above) being 1875-76...ccccceerrvannn. $56,633 05
Against for 18T4-T5..ccccivvvet tivnevn cevnvnvemnennenes 50,447 71

—

Not increased demand........cc...... . $6,085 34

Details of this increase will be found in the Comparative Statement (No. 3);
but it may be here stated that it is wholly due to an increased consumption of goods
prices having been considerably lower than for the past four years—-esPecia%ly of

pers for forms, &c., which alone shew an increased issue amounting to §5,824.50.
R‘?m reduction of prices, however, affected only the half year (January to June),
almost the whole of the inerease being in the previous six months.

The waste paper collected from the various offices shews a very large reduction
in quantity—the weight sold in 1874-75 being 42,064 1bs., and the sum received,
$566.71, and for the last year 1875-6, 20,095 1bs., and the value, $160.56. The prices

by tender) having been reduced from $1.50 per 100 Ibs in the first half of the
ormer year, to 62; cts. per 100 1bs. in the last half of the latter.

The net sum received from waste in all, for the year is $1'72.56, and for the past
half year $107.08, which, with goods refunded, amounting to $57.02, and $32.18in the
respect'ive periods has been deposited to the credit of the Honorable the Receiver-
General.

Respectfully submitted. .
I have the honor to be, Sir,
Your most obedient servant,

JAMES YOUNG.
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GOVERNMENT STATIONERY OFFICE.

BrateEMENT of Expenditure for and Issue of Goods in each month of the
year ending 30th June, 1876; and of the half-year ending December

30th, 1876.

Goods
Goods Entered Issued from
— from July 1st, 1875, to July 1st, 1875,
June 30th, 1876. to
June 30th, 1876.
. —_—
Sterling.
£ 8 d. $ cts. $ cts.
1875—July Ceereeshranenssrrnns 1,224 17 11 1,159 87 : 5,317 34
August... ... 199 4 11 1,353 86 ! 4,263 52
September. ....... 646 2 4 2,068 87 | 2,906 50
October ........ 644 17 9 1,394 26 4,674 30
November... 731 111 1,037 83 | 4,476 13
December .. 321 4 6 2,860 49 5,862 39
1876—January........ 564 8 17 2,161 30 | 5,438 72
February ...... 489 10 4 2,581 14 1 5,970 09
MAICh viveveres corocaes cueven 591 3 0 1,503 86 4,581 52
67115 1 1,412 29 4,067 82"
412 10 8 1,807 17 4,090 81
522 111 910 57 | 4,583 31
Expenditure in Currency... 20,249 51 '
do Sterling....oceesennercesans 34,110 20 |eieerierenenncrsorinene
Total eXpenditure ..ceeveeerensre sosinnnes|snrersers envenvenenisen { 54,359 T1 |eevesrenssuneescecrreran
Brought forward from June 30th, 1875ure.ceres: servec | rusecsrsressescss eres 15,246 05 Joruvurrs veeres covereens
P Total IS8UEC.covveres corerronssreeerrnnranseneennes 56,533 05-
B:Oﬁts On years business v weeeenne veen . : 1,052 1T feevevvrnnnenier vonnnnnee
lance Stogk in hand, June 30th, 1876....... 14,124 88
..................... 70,657 93 70,657 93
Btock carried forward—Verified .o cresessesseseessee | censrseee sevess-sersens IEREZE: . TR ———
—_———

Goods Entered

from July 1st, to June 30th, 1876.

Goeds Issued
from July 1st to
Dec. 30th, 1876.

—~—
1876 July oo 1,026 0 9 2,745 99 5,338 11
August....... 71318 3 2,647 57 5,494 85
September . 887 17 4 1,084 08 3,967 99
October......... 796 8 2 1,312 09 4,619 42
November... 456 0 6 2,178 18 | 4,545 24
ecember ... 303 510 2,126 80 4,924 97
Bxpenditure in Currency..ouee: wovsece |ivneraes cosiaceonenn 11,974 T1 [icvviveenrsnnssesvunnes
do Sterling.ceeee eecronssnne 4,183 10 10 20,359 90 |.cevrerenreee o reeanens
Total eXpenditure ..cccovveee ruvrereessserecse fuunvernes vee! 82,334 6] [iceeer verrrens ocranne

B""?xht forward, JULY 18b..c. veveserevee: coses avusessreres fuenensrsnnsrenes I 14,124 88 |... .
TOtal IB8UB..ceeeecerererseverrsrrnnrersonssernnces faessnnnesssssmnenssesnne]vrreesnetensvornnsvonins 28,890 58
B‘hnce Stock in hand, December 30th......c..... e [N B O ceeesaant seeens 17,568 91
wrevaveres sssnes 46,459 49 46,459 49
BUOEK Carried formard.n e soeere esssresvessnecers | csmrsssssssisses ses 17,668 O1 | oooes oree o

\
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40 Victoria.

Sessional Papers (No, 9.)

A. 1877

GOVERNMENT STATIONERY OFFICE.

CoMPARATIVE Statement of Issue of Goods to the Departments, in the
Years 1874-75 and 1875- 76

———— — — - — o ——— ] pr——
1
1874-75. 1875-76. ]
| b
—_ | g |8
| & g o
1 Depart- | o igige. | DeBOtte | guige. | E |
g ] &
i
t 1
$ cts.a $ cta.] $ cts.| $ cots| $ tsl $ ots.
Dept. of jAgriculture... o 582 16} 877 09 viueerverninen 296 93 ...
"do Census Branch | o one. | 8 611 ceeerveerrenn 84 451 v | 64 16
do Immigration do .. SNSRI FUUUPRUTRRVONE DUUOP 8 91 8 91 aue
. do Phlladelphm Com- oener
migsion Branch........eciveeienniiens [ennennse s 11 20 11 20(.
Dept. of Customs .. 737 96| 3,075 06| 567 20| 3,130 01 *54 95| $170 76
do  FibAnce .eereoeveereeennns cemes] 901761 207 46 605 32/ b 1296 44
i *207 46
do do  Treasury Beard.. 72 84ficeieiiniinnn 157 Tleeeeeniinnns 84 87..
do . do Contingencies Branch 54 55|... 60 75].... . o
do do Insurance A0 [eeresvee vavns |seosuneneinnees 128 75'.... . "
do  Governor (xeneral’s Secretar) 865 58.0eessvrernen 647 85)evuererrne wvaterrrn o] 21T 73
do Inland Revenue.......c.ou.s 472 03, 1,722 17 434 76| 1,955 99 23382 | 137 26
do  Justice ..cceecerens orene ‘ GOL 23[eeeenn crernenn 669 T1{icce..... 231 52
do do Suprewe Court.. ceerrevereesene | . 245 74 245 T4
do do Insp. of Penitentiaries 89 391, T2 35 iciseennnns 1:1' 04
do do Kingston do . 249 23! .ceeiviiinnn 316 35! 67 12]....
do do St. Vincent de Paul
Penitentiary.|.coeiceens 100 84}.... 231 56 130 720... R
do do 8t. John do . 34 24}... 13 36}.vee s | 20 88
do do Halifax do - 11 67].... 14 77 3 10| neennnn
do do Rockwood Asylum ..... 39 03 38 97 0.66
ao do Dominion Police. .... |. 27 46|... 38 63 TR . ;
do do North-West Police.....|.. 161 95|, 55 70 - 10600
do do Manitoba Penitentiary|....coooe eves fevceet coneneees 7 50 7500 X
do Marine and Fisheries...... «.. 1,3 47 180 02 261 69 *g1 67| 1979 55
do Militia and Defence .... 773 E5fuunee cerrens o " 239 70
do do Adjutant-Genera ’
(1411 PR 1,146 18}.eieiinnnene .
do Privy Council... - 420 76/ .eens verennes
do Public Works ... Wl1,849 49 693 64]  t301 95' 27 83
do do Railway Com—] !
missioners..... 106 19: SR { 13 51
do do Canagia.rll Paci-z | A R 1178l
fic Railway...|veeveee e 1,186 99 358 15
do  Post OtHce comveees cnnnenetvninnnnes 2,370 80 5292
do do  Savings ‘Bank ! ’ v 981 774 22{ 1870 26
Bmuch veen e | 146 72! .. 370 564 65
do  Receiver-General... 159 89! .. 630 64 63 eee. 226
do Secretary of State.. 452 98i
do do Reglsh‘m 3 anch 80 68 ...ceiveeenee| 105 49]..... 24 8if.
do do Queen’s Printer's ! [ seevianes
Branch .ceeeeiienens 47 27’ 67 43 vivver uunns e 20 16 ......
do do Quecen's Printer, for |
Departments .....| ....... Coenn i 32,636 25)............. L 180 04 5.824 50
et i { 28280 71, 1824 50| eevar.ine
do do Stationery Uffice... 56 80 70 98)..nn. . 1418
do do  N.-W. Pulice 241 11 241 111,
do Iuterior.. e cerenee e 134 961 gy B 112 43l
do do Dom. Lauds Branch.| 634 11} 156 54 727 96) . " 93 85!
do do Ordnance do 88 93:.0iiee ceeeenen 75 31
do  do Indiws Aftairs do . 208 12| 138 50[ 0719 112 17|{ ;; g?,
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CoMPARATIVE Statement of the Issue of Goods to the Departments, in the
Years 1874-75 and 1875-76.— Concluded.

1874-75. 1875-176. ‘
— i1
Depart- ; Depart- : g &
ments. Outside. ments. Outside, s g
— a
|
$ cts $ cts $ cts $ cts.! $ cts. [$ cts
| 1
i i
Clerk of the Crown in Chancery ........ 22 3ieiiiiiienen | 16 12[uirecseeieeens feenne tevensens 6 22
Vil Service Board......eores.verersnn. p . 3 .
'bl'ary of Parliament....
epartments generally
GO0AS TefURACH .rveenrereormeee creres vomrenes ; 200 1 evvinen e
‘ 13,941 21| 42,501 81/
Increase... TR B 10,109 63 ..
Decrease. .o cvenrniiins s v

I 4024 29

*Outside Service. {Departments.

Nore.—~The above Statement exhibits an increased demand for the Outside Service
AMOUNEIIE 10 1eveveiiiiiirei i sereuvens srosiisas sossssess oot tenser senneeens sorvssnts soessrnnnsase $7,331 37
And a decreasei demand for the Departments of...c.c.coeviiiviniiiieciiiiiiicvnnne wones 1,246 03

Leaving the net increased issue of Goods for 1875-76 ....... ........... .. $6,085 34
The demand for Forms, Books &c, through the Queens Printer, showmg
an increase of....coevoun.. o . ciieens neeee 5,824 50

Leaving the total increase for other Goods......ccies civiiiiisn cvieenss e $260 84
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(Memorandum.)

(GOVERNMENT STATIONERY OFFICE,
OTTAWS, January 12th, 1877,

To the Hon. R. W. Scorr,
Secretary of State.

Sir,—In refercnce to the clause in the accompanying report regarding the
reduction in the prices of papers, entirely the result of my journcy in England, in
October, 1875, the following is a list of the leading lines affected—almost exclusively
papers for forms—and will serve to show how far the report is justified.

-
|
D
Quantity Former Present | Average l Net

Reams. | Price. Price. alDlﬁ‘erence.}Reduction

!

!

f R
i \ $ cts. $ ots. $ cts. $ cts.
Foolscap, Azure, 121bs. ooovviieineenns 1,406 220 185 035 492 10
do ' do ' 12 do . L 1oz , 220 200 210| o012| 12336
Double Cap,do 24 do...... e - 52 424 390 026 ; 13 52
do Cream laid, 24 and 2 . 25 450 4 24 | 016 4 00
Foelscap, Azure laid, 15 1bs........eeenees 2061 28 264] 260 234 0 22 45 32
emy do 23 do . . 8. 45+ 450 432 408 0 30 24 00
Medium Bank, 13 1bs....... ceovcvvenn 20 l 8351 4 40 395 79 00
do Azure laid, 32 lbs.. | 221 395 560) 530 4178 070 15 40
do do 18 do cooneeinn 54| 344+ 333 | 311 280 030 16 20
Post Folio, Cream laid, 17 do .......... 169 } 2 82 2 56 ; 026| 4394
do Azure do 15 do .een.... 55 300 235 065 ! 35 75
Large Post, Cream do 18 do ... 19 33 304 034! 1666
do Azure do 18 do . ... 110 3 40 280 0 60 66 00
de do do 18do ... 101 ! 340 338 314 025 25 25
Net reduction in these items for the year ... viinesiniennniennns osrrernnn wrvevorenee 1,000 50
S
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APPENDIX D.

NORTH-WEST MOUNTED POLICE.

To The Hon. R. W. Scorr,
Secretary of State,
Ottavea.

By Order in Council of the 20th April. 1876, the control and management of the
North:West Mounted Police was transferred from the Department of Justice to the

Jepartment of the Secretary of State.

By Order in Council of 20th™ July, 1876 Lieut.-Colonel Jsmes Farquharson
MaCLeod, C. M. G. was appointed to succeed Lieut.-Colonel French, as Commissioner
of Police.

. In July an escort of eighty-two men was detailed to accompany the Lieutonant
Governor of the North West Territories on his mission to Forts Carleton and Pitt,
I connection with the making of a treaty with the Cree Indians.

In consequence of the Indians in the adjoining Territory of Montana being
SNgaged during the past summer in conflict with the United States troops, it was
Considered necessary, as a precautionary measure, to increase the force at Forts

cleod andWalsh (Cypress Hills) ; one hundred men were accordingly ordered

ere from the northern posts. Four seven pounder guns were also purchased from

¢ Militia Department and forwarded, together with a supply of ammunition, to

°Pt1Walsh. Two nine pounder field guns had previously been snpplied to Fort
cleod,

i The massing of the Force at these posts near the frontier has no doubt secured

Yanquility in that section of the Territory and prevented the American Indians
"Om using Canadian goil as a base of operations for prosecuting the war with the

Dited States troops.
fro On the 22nd Xu ust the following report of Sub-Inspector Denny wus received
™ the Assistant Commissioner.
fo ¢ According to orders received on July 8th to proceed to the Blackfoot camp
* the prisoner ¢ Nataya,’ 1 left Bow River on the above mentioned date and found
® Blackfeet, camped about thirty miles above the mouth of Red Deer River, that
®Ing about two hundred miles north-east of Elbow River.

“ After having secured the prisoner [ was detained in camp by a council called

Y tl}?']‘)rincipal Blackteet Chiefs, who invited me to their meeting.

Wep ‘They told me that they were very glad we had arrived, as at that time they
th;?;m 4 very unsettled state, owing to communications that had passed between
he H}laéCkf’oot nation, including Blood Indians and Piegans, and the Sioux from across
Piec “ About a month ago the Sioux sent a message to the Blackfoot Camp with a

ac?.(?f tobaceo, which the Blackfoot Chief showed me. The messenger told the
will <feot, from the Sioux, that the tobacco was sent them to smoko if they wore
ot Q“{?" to come across the line and join the Sioux in fighting the Crow Indians, and
ﬁghtl’ ribes with whom they were at war, and alo the Americans whom they were

‘l‘",Lg at the same time.
of ho The Sioux promised to give the Blackfeet, if they would join them, plenty

nacll;?es and mules they had captured from the Americans; they also told the
ang t{h%t that they had plenty of white women, whom they had taken prisoners,

&y promised 1o givo them to the Blackfeet if' they would join them,
21
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“They also told the Blackfeet (l:at if they would come to help them against
the Americans, that after they had killed all the Whites they would come over and
join the Blackfeet to exterminate the Whites on this side.

“They also told him that the soldiers on this side were weak, and that it would
take them but a short time to take any forts that they had built here, as they had
taken many strong stone forts from the Americans, at small loss to themselves.

“ The Blackfeet had sent an answer to the Stoux a short time before 1 arrived,
to the effect that they could not smoke their tobacco on such terms, and that they
were not willing to make peace with the understanding of helping them to fight the
Whites, as they were their friends and they would not ficht against them.

“ The messenger from the Blackfeet to the Sioux had just returned when I got
to their camyp, with the answer the Sioux had sent.

“They said that as they would not come and help them against the Americans,
that they would come over to thisside and show the Blackfeet that White soldiers were
nothing before them, and that after they had exterminated the soldiers and taken
their forts they would come against the Blackfeet.

“TIn consequence of this message the Blackfeet nation, when I reached their
camp, were in a state of uncertainty, not knowing how to act. ‘ Crow-foot,” the Head
Chief of the Blackfeet was authorized by the nation, all of whom were present, to
ask me whether in case they were attacked by the Sioux without themselves being the
aggressors, and called upon us, for the Meunted Police, to help them, we would do so.
I told them that in case the Sioux crossed the line and attacked the Blackfeet, with-
ont the Blackfeet giving them any cause to do so, that we were bound to help them,
they being subjects of this country, and having the right of protection as well as any
other subjects.

“They were well pleased at what I told them, and said that they intended always
in future to be at peace with the Whites, and particularly with us; that they saw the
way we had dealt with them since we had been in the country, and they were sure
we were their friends.

“The Chief told me in these words; he said : ¢ We all see that the day is coming
when the buftalo will all be killed, and we shall have nothing more to live on, and
then you will come into our camp and see the poor Blackfeet starving., ¢I know,’
he said, ‘that the heart of the White soldier will be sorry for us, and they will tell
the great mother who will not let her children starve.” Ile said ‘We are getting
shut in, the Crees are coming in to our country trom the north, and the White
men from the south and east, and they are all destroying our means of living ; but
still, although we plainly sce these days coming we will not join the Sjoux against
the Whites, but will depend upon you to help us.’

“ The Chief then told me that the Blackfeet had told him to tell me that as we
were willing to help them, in the event of the Sioux attacking them, that they
would, in case of being attacked, send two thousand warviors against the Sioux.

“[ thanked them for their offer, and told them [ would inform you of all they
had told me, and that as long as they were quiet and peaceable they would always
tind us their triends and willing to do anything for their good.

“They expressed great satistuction at all I had told them, and promised to do
nothing without letting us first know, and asking our advice.

“ I distributed some tobacco among them, and {old them to let us know of any
movements of the Sioux to the north.

“7 left them on Friday lust, camped altogether about 30 miles above the mouth
of the Red Deer River, I hrought the prisoner with me withont any trouble, an
arrived here this day.” '

A copy of this report was forwarded by Ilis Honor the Deputy Governor, to the
Right Honorable the Secretary of State for the Colonies, from whom the following
reply was received by His Iixeellency the Governor Goeneral :—

“T have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of the Deputy Governor'®
despateh, No, 21, of the 26th August, enclosing a report of Sub-Tnspector Denny. ©
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the North-Weat Mounted Police, giving an account of a recent visit to the camp of the
lackfoot Tndians.
“T have read Mr. Denny’s report with much interest and have communicated a
Copy of it to the Queen.
“ Her Majesty has commanded me to instruct you to inform the Chiefis of the tribe
that Hey Majesty has heard, with much satisfaction, of their faithful conduct in
e{31ining to take up arms with the Sioux Indians, and has been much gratified by
Is evidence of their loyalty and attachment. You will further apprize them that
he Great Mother desives to assure them that she has always taken, and will continue
take, a lively interest in all that concerns their welfare, and trusts that nothing
May at any time occur to disturb the friendly relations existing between Her Indian
d White subjects.”
_Instructions have been given tor the communication or this messuge from Her
Majesty to the Indians.
The conveyance of prisoners and witnesses from distant parts of the North-West
}?Manitoba, has, in the past, been a source of considerable expense to the Police
‘oree, During the past summer three escorts have been supk)llied for the conveyance
Of prisoners and witnesses from Forts Macleod and Walsh to 2 anitoba, a distance of
3bout 700 miles. The recent organization of the Government of the North-West,
‘V!llCh includes provision for the Administration of Justice within the territories,
i, it is hoped, avoid similar expense to the Force in the future.
has Reprcsontations having been made that, owing to the destruction of crops by
hai] storms, the inhabitants of the parish of St. Albert, near Edmonton, were likely
2 suffor great distress during the present winter, it became necessary, in order to
avert the threatened famine, to consider what steps should be taken to atford relief,
“‘"d also to prevent the breaking up of the settlement and dispersion of the inhabi-
E ts; instructions were accordingly given to the officer commanding the Police at
dmonton to invite the clergy of the several denominations to assist him as a
%‘)H}mittee for relieving distress, to such extent as the surplus supplies of the Mounted
f’llcb\ would permit, payment at cost price and expense of transport to be obtained
Vhere Possible,—where payment not possible, the best available security to be taken
T ultimate payment in furs or money.
hi he country between the Cypress Hills and the Rocky Mountains, which has
erlltll(n'to been claimed by the Blackfeet as their hunting ground, has this year been
a Croached upon by other Indians and Half-breeds, causing much irritation
ong the Blackfeet, who have called upon the Police to protect them in maintaining
BIr rights to their territory, saying that if they were not vestrained by the presence
8 Police, they would make war upon the intruders.
e correspondence on this subject has been submitted to the Lieutenant-Gover-
 the North-West Territories, in order that it may receivo the consideration of
.© North-West Council, in connection with the adoption of rules for hunting and
®8erving the buffalo from extinction,
304, he following extract from Report 01.' the Asqistant Commissioner, dated
the Poﬁy last, is evidence of the friendly relations oxisting between the Indians and
ce,
Whe“ I have the honor to report, for the intormation of the Minister of Justice, that
Yo “ I way at Cypress Hills last week, a Piegan Indian came to Fort Walsh, and
W£:1ted that a Blood Indian (“Pox,” or “ Woman’s Breast,”) for whom I have a
N l‘.ﬂnt for the murder of his wife near Fort MacLeod, in the spring of 1875, was in
s “{0 camp abont 30 miles from Fort Walsh. 1 immediately dispatched Sub-
y epéﬁtor Welch, who knew the Indian ¢ Pox,” and four men to arrest him. Mr.
Blac(i{ Teturned the next morning and reported that the Chief of the Cree Camp, “Little
oft . Bear,” told him that the Blood Indian (Pox) had been in his camp, but bad
o ¢ previous day. The “ Little Black Bear,” however, expected him back in a
fupyy, )&.YS, when he would send in and inform the Police. ‘“Little Black Bear”
m L promised Mr. Welch that he would have a “big feast” and a dance in his
» D When the Indian Pox returncd, so us to detain him in his camp till the police
23
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arrived, I left Cypress Hills, as soon as Welch returncd, for this place, and a few
days after my return here Mr. Welch arrived at this post with the prisoner
“Pox” in charge. “Little Black Bear,” the Cree Indian Chief, kept his promise.
Inspector Crozier, now in command at Cypress, writes to me:—1 have the honor to
report that the Cree Chief «“ Little Black Bear” sent information by his son on the
morning of the 14th instant, that the Blood Indian “Pox, Woman’s Breast,” whom
we sent after when you were at this post, wus again in his camp, twenty-five miles
from here.

“ Lat once sent Sub Inspector Welch, and a detachment of a consiable and four
men to arrest him. I am glad to be able to’ report that Mr. Welch was successful,
and brought the prisoner to the Fort the same c¢vening.

“¢The Little Black Bear’ rendered Mr. Welch every assistance, and even had a
dance given, in order to detain the prisoner until the arrival of the Police. Appar-
ently none of the people in his large camp knew what we werc after. The prisoner
was completely taken by surprise.”

About 700 American Sioux Indians, with their families, have recently crossed
the border and located themselves at Wood Mountain, in Canadian Territory. An
ofticer of the Police Force has visited them, and reports that they are friendly and
peaceably disposed, but the presence of so large a y of Americans on Canadian
soil is not unattended with anxiety.

During the past year 39 men have taken their discharge at the expiration of
their term of engagemsent, 7 have been dismissed, 18 have been invalided, 2 have
been allowed to purchase their discharge, 1 has deserted aod 1 has died. Total 68.

During the same period 18 have been ve-engaged for a sccond term of service,
and 63 new men have been engaged. Total 81.

The present strength and distribution of the Force is as follows :—

|
|
|

s | | 2
g & . o
< |8 21 g Ll
S5 12l% £)83
Places. Sieg s C|EIE] 8|8
z|88|518|ls18|&l=5g .
Em IEIEIE 1818 85| ¢
Elg (Z18|l2 15128 | ¢
ol e |+ 1|8 &S &
‘ ]
1
FOrt MACIEOM vees wreverrones sruvencosss cvenvanes sostsncosson cossanans 1 1] 1]... [ ! 1{ 5{ 103| 103
Fort Walsh, (Cypress Hills)...coveaermner vecsseessnnnssvnnineins fnvees fonens 1 ... 1 4 95 90
Fort Calgary .cocvee voees ceneeniennerisiniiaunes e sennsene e 1 [1 35 37
Fort Saskatchewan (Edmonton and Tail Oreek). 1] 1 20 18
Battleford and Carleton....ccuivees suunereeesseres cavenens 1 fouuns 11 16
Swan River.cu. e 1] 1 29 10 .
Shoal Lake .... v evane P PO IOy FSRO [T J 1 7 4
Qu' Appelle -... sessnefunnens 5 4
Beautiful P1ains...v.cierieees coceesane cesonararsorssomenanes o ven 1 3
6113 209 | 287

The expenditure during the fiscal year ended 80th June last, for Mounted Polico
sorvice was $369,518.39 but that amouant included $41,184.47 arrears of the fiscal
years 1873-74 and 1874-75, also a charge of $19,762.95 for miscellancous stoves tauken
over from Her Majesty’s North American Boundary Commission in 1874-75.

The crops of the Mounted Police farm at Swan River promised fav orably in the
carly part of the seasoun, but were totally destroycd by grasshoppers during July
and August.

Thgravagos of the grasshoppers also caused great scarcity of hay at Swan River
Barracks. 0
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Prior to the arrival of the police at Fort Macleod, that section of the Territories
Was in possession of outlaws and illicit traders.

The liquor traffic is now suppressed, and a number of Americans have crossed
the border and engaged in stock raising and other pursuits in Canadian territory. A
Village has sprung up around the Fort, and trade is rapidly increasing. The Cus-
toms duties collacted at this port by the officers of the Police during the ten months
ended 31st October last, amounted to $16,324.69, and over 20,000 robes were shipped
from there during the past season.

At the Cypress Hills, the scene of the massacre of 1873, there is also a settlement.

he customs collections made there by the Mounted Police during the nine months

ended 30th September last, amounted to $5,5684.22.
. The pemmican required by the United States Government in the North West,
¥ now obtained almost exclasively at the Cypress Hills settlement.

Respectfully submitted,
FREDERICK WHITE.

‘Ottawa, 30th December, 1876.

-3 25
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REPORT

To His Excellency the Right Honorable Sir Freperick TeMpLE, Earl of DurreriN,
Viscount and Baron Clandeboye of Clandeboye, in the County Down, in the
Pecrage of the United Kingdom, Baron Dufferin and Clandeboye of Bally-
leidy and Killeleagh, in the County Down, in the Peerage of Ireland, and a
Baronet, Knight of the Illustrious Order of St. Patrick, Knight Grand
Cross of the Most Distinguished Order of St. Michael and St. George, a Knight
Commander of the Most Honorable Order of the Bath, ete., ete., Governor-
General of the Dominion of Canada, and Vice-Admiral of the same.

Aay it plense Your Excellency,—

. We, the undersigned, two of the Commissioners appointed by Your Excellency
Ender Commission bearing date the 22nd day of July, 1876. ¢ For investigating the
;Books, Accounts and Vouchers of the Northern Railway Company of Canada, and
the disbursements and expenditures of the said Company,” and for other purposes
Named in the said Commission (Mr. Adam Hope, the third Commissioner, having
eclined to act), have the honor to report to Your KExcellency the result of our en-
qUiry, 5o far as we have been enabled to proceed therewith.
At the first meeting (after the opening of the Commission), held on the 23rd
¥ of Aungust, 1876, for the purpose of taking evidence—the Crown and all parties
Cing duly represented by Counsel—the Honorable the Attorney-General of Ontario
1 behalf'of the Dominion Government, demanded that the Northern Railway Com-
Pany should allow free access to the books of the said Company, or place the same at the
sSposal of the Commissioners for full investigation; whereupon Mr. J. D. Armour, Q.C.,
“Ounsel acting for and on behalf of the bondholders of the Northern Railway
Mmpany, and of Mr. Cumberland, the General Manager of said Company, by a written
g’cmorandum, requested that, before the investigation is procoeded with, there should
® furnished a memorandum of the specific items of misappropriation, and of fraud-
‘_ent entries, referred to in the preamble of the Commission, and that Mr. Camber-
(‘"‘“d_ should have ono day for the examination of the books as to said items. After dis-
Ussion, 1t vwas arranged (without prejudice to any question) that a memorandum of
92050 iteras should be given; that the Commission should adjourn until Friday, the
;;’t August, 1876, at one o’clock, p.m.; that Mr. Miall, the Accountant in attendance
! behalf of the Government, should have froe access to the books on Friday morning
uti] t_ho meeting of the Commission, if desired, for all catries having reference to
i €se items ; that on Friday the examination of witnesses should be procceded with,
Ounsel for the Government should so desire; that Mr. Cumberland should then
resent himself for examination or cross-cxamination without being subpeenaed ; and
Ofat other witnesses might also be examined. The question of the general examination
ion ) 'books and affairs of the Company, apart from or in addition to the above men-
ox ed ltems (or any specified items) was then discussed by Counsel, and such general
dMmination being objected to by Mr. Armour, the subjoct was postponed until the
Xt meeting without prejudice.
ang On Friday, the 25th Augus.t, 1876, the Commission met, pursuant to adjournments
oxib; . Cumberland was cxamined at some length. (For cvidence then given, and
18 filed, see Appendix A.)
clog On Saturday, tie 26th August, Mr. Cumberland’s examination was rosumed. Atit
®, thellgonorable Attorney-General of Ontario, renewed his request for a general,
—13
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examination of the books, to which requost the Honorable J. H. Cameron, counsel for
the Northern Railway company, submitted the following written objection :

“ Mr, Cameron refuses to assent to any accountant examining the books of the
“ Company gencrally, and without reference to any specific charge or sum of money
“ which the Government expect to show to be incorrect, or to which the Govern-
“ment claims to be entitled, as a part of the proceedings under the Commis-
“sgion ; also, to allow any cxumination unless the party examining is sworn
“ and makes the examination before the Commission, or some statement on the part
‘ of the (rovernment that they expect to show that they are entitled to some further
“ gums of money than those which are specitically charged aud referred to in the
¢ Commission, and to state what those sums are.”  Ile also contended that the Com-
mission had no power to order an examination of the books by the accountant.

At the next meeting of the Commission, held on the 30th August, 1876, Mr. Cum
berland was further examined, and the Ilonorable the Attorney-General of Ontario
again resumed his request for a fuall investigation of the books of the Northern
Railway Company, and the IHonovable J. 1I. Cameron requested an adjournment to
tho following day, to enable him consalt with Mr. G. D’Arey Boulton. the solicitor
of the Northern Railway Company (who had just returned from Englapd). This
request was granted. )

On the following day (the 31st of August, 1576), ll{ne Honorable J. I1. Cameron
submitted to the Commission a written document, applying for afurther adjournment
to the 14th September, 1876, on grounds therein stated, as follows: |

“Mr, Cameron, on Lehalf’ of the Northern Railway Company, applies tor an
“ adjournment until the 14th proximo, as he considers that he ought to have the views
“ of tho London Board of Directors, before determining upon giving or withholding
the books of the Company for the purposes of a general examination. The adjourn-
ment will enable him to send a communication to the London Board by mail
* to-morrow, and receive an answer by cable by the day to which the procebdingi
are adjourned ; and, as this adjournment will thus prevent, in all probability, any
necessity for his personal decision upon the question of production or non-production
of the books (the point having been left by the Board here to his decision), hy
considers that it will be more in aceordance with the views of the Government and
“ the Company, that the adjowrnment shall take place; and, if the production of
“ the books is now pressed, he will foel it to be his duty to vefuse their ]H'()ductim:."

-

‘

This adjournmont having, after consideration, been eoncarred in by the Tonor-
able the Attorney-Gencral, was granted.

At the meeting held on the 24th September, 1876, pursuant to adjournment, e
Honorable J. H. Cameron stated that he had received no reply, as'yot, tfrom the
London Board, but that, at the request of the Attorney-General, he was willing, in the
meantime, that the Government uccountant should investigate the hooks of the
Northern Railway Company, as far back as the year 1868, under the heads of *¢ Legal
and Parliamentary Ixpenses, " © Contigencies,” and ‘* Printing and Advcl-{iﬁgl-,?,”
which books, for the parposes afuresaid, should be open to the said accountunt not
later than Tuesday morning, the 19th September, 18706,

On the 15th September, 1876, the Conumission examined Messrs, G. T, Denison
jun., J. D, Bdgarand £. W, Cumberiand (recalled.) (For evidence, ride appendix A.)

On Monday, the 18th September, 1876, Mr. E. Miall, the Government accountant,
attended at the office of the Northern Railway company, to inspect the books under
the heads named in the minutes of the meeting of the 14th September, 1856, and wad
refused, under the plea of Mr. Cumberland's illness. On the 19L and the 20th
September, Mr. Miall also attended the said office, with the like result.  On the 215
September, Mr. Featherston and Mr, Miall attended at the office of the Northerd
Railway Company, and requested access to tho bLooks for the prrposes aforesaidy
and were refused, the sceretary (Mr. Hamilton) producing a copy of a veced®
resolution of the Toronto Board of Directors of the said l‘ompany, prohihiting

4
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any eoxamination of the books, or any extract (o be tuken therefrom, unless by
Order of the president or Mr. Cumberland, or in the presence of one or other of them,
Unless otherwise ordered.  Mr. Featherston and Mr, Miall then called on the presi-
dent and Mr, Camberland at thefr respective residences, and stated the result of their
Application for an examination of the books at the Northern Railway office, and
Proposed to the latter gentleman, to suit his convenience, and to facilitate the inves-
ligation, that the inspection should take place at his own residence, which offer Mr.
Cumberland promised to take into consideration, _
Having failed to obtain any facilities foraccess to the hooks, the Commission met
O Suturday, the 23rd September, 1876 (of which notice had been given), when
¢ Honorable J. 1I. Cameron, on the plea of Mr. Cumberland’s continued illness,
"equested a still further adjonrnment, to enable Mr. Cumberland to be present, and
Submitted the following document to the commissioners :— '

* Mr. Cameron objects to any further proceeding on the examination of the new
A,('hkll'ges submitted to him, in the absence of Mr. F. W. Cumberland, who is so
o awell as to be unable to attend the Commission, and he requests an adjournment
« 0 that ground, until such day as the Commission may again be called, on Mr.
Cumberland being able to appear. .
« . Me. Cameron also objects to any new charges being submitted to the Commis-
o« loners which are not stated in the communication of Mr. Hamilton, the sccretary
« % the Northern Railway Company, as they are not within the scope of the Com-
. Mussion, which, he coutends, is confined to the recital of the charges by Mr.
Hamilton.”

la ‘.)L‘- Cameron not producing any medieal certificate, accounting for Mr. Cumber’
o Ud's absence, and it appearing to the Commissioners that it was not desirable to
%’ianb any further delay, in view of the impediments which had already been raised
‘v}‘he progress of the Commission, declined to acecede to Mr. Camcron’s request ;
Olel'eupon, as he had previously intimated, he withdrew, leaving Mr. G. D'Arcy Boul-
tag to take his place as counsel for his clients; and the Commissioners procceded to
K¢ the evidence of Messrs. It 11. Heward, Noah Barnhart, Patrick Burns, Alexander
';Q‘;“‘lmg, John Ginty, William Rowland, and William II. Lockbart Gordon (for which
wh Appendix A), and afterwards adjourned to Monday, the 25th September, 1876,
\vaen Mr. Archibald I'. Campbell, counsel for Mr. Camberland, stated that his client
i Still too ill to attend for investigation of the books, or to he present at the meet-
(‘all:ls under the Commission.  Upon the Attorney-General's declaring his intention to
ovi Messx_'s. Ball, Douglax, and Wood, and others who had been su%poenaed to give
inque.nce in mgard to commissions paid to Mr. Barlow Cumberland on premiums of
bey rance on Northern Railway property, Mr. A. . Campbell, on behalfof Mr. Cum-
and, undertook to produce a statement from hix client, admitting the receipt of
quil%mn}issinns by Mr. Barlow Camberland and other employés (which was subse-
the itly filed as exhibit No. 1 of tho 27th September, 1876.—Sec Appendix A.), and
' Above named witnosses were not examined.
N view of the continued obsiructions placed in the way of the Commission, to
n 't a complete investigation into the affairs of the Northern Railway Company
v Sl'lu; é{en.eral way and to the extent contemplated by the Commission, and Mr. Cum-
tbe‘co 8 illness having created a pause in the proceedings, and he having admitted
rrectness of the most important of the representations referred to in the pre-
thay ¢ of the Commission, we deem it advisable at this stago to report the progress
raig. 138 been made, and to solicit Your Excellency’s instructions for our future
&uidan e,
Stat“\tve have the honor, then, to report that, out of the moneys which, under the
in pon es in t.hat behalf were payable, and should have been paid tothe Govcrm‘nept
the ];lpect of the Government licn, the following items were, on the contrary, paid in
anner, and for the purposes, hercinafter mentioned :—

Preve

L We find that varions sums, amounting tozether to $5,440.68, were paid out o
5
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the Railway funds for the clection expenses of tho Honorable J. B. Robinson, as a
candidate for the District of Algoma (the said Robinson being at that timo Presiden

of the Northern Railway Company), and that, under Mr. Cumberland’s direction, the
said amount was thus charged in the books of the said Company, viz.: one-third to
« Contingencies,” one-third to “Parliamentary Expenses,” and one-third to « Legal
Expenses,” in instalments of one-twenty-fourth per month,—making in all seventy-
two instalments. (The details of these entries will be found in Appendix A, Exhibit
1, filed 25th August, 1876.)

2. Wo further find, that the Honorable J. B. Robinson, whilst President of the
said Company, overdrew his account to the extent of about $4,900.00, which sum is
in addition fo the sum of $5,440.68 above mentioned, and is, with interest, still
unpaid.

3. We further find, that there was paid out of the funds of the Northern Rail-
way Company the sum of $1,000.00 for stock in the Mail newspaper, which Mr.
Cumberland subscribed for, and still holds, in his own name, and the amount of the
same was, by his direction, charged in the books of the Northern Railway Compuny
to the accounts of “ Legal and Parliamentary Expenses” and “ Printing and Adver-
tising,” but no value therefor, in printing and advertising was to be given.

4. We further find, that Mr. F. W. Cumberland, on the 25th February, 1873, drew
upon the treasurer of the Northern Railway Company for the sum of $8,000.00, which
was paid, and, out of the funds arising from the procceds of this draft, he paid
$7,600.00 towards his sharo in the stcamer Chicora, which was purchased by him
jointly with the Honorable Frank Smith and Noah Barnhart, Esquire, buat in the
name of these two gentlemen alone; and that he dirccted the said sum of $8,000,00
to be charged to “ Parliamentary Expenses ” (suspense account); that subsequently
the president of the Company, Mr. William Thomson, directed this sum of $8,000.00
1o be charged to Mr. Cumberland’s individual account, by the following entry : —( Vide
Appendix 4, exhibit 6, of 25th August, 1876.)

1876.
February 26— F. W. Cumberland (special) Dr.
To Parliamentary Expenscs.

“ JRor this amount, representing a portion of Mr. Camber-
« land’s investment in stcamer Chicora, which sum is
¢ to be represented by an assignment of his interest in
« gaid steamer to the above extent, and held by the
« Company as @ sccurity for such advance, the said
« investment to be made matter of enquiry with a view
“ 10 adjaStMeNt. .. oovtiliiieeneenites sttt $8,000.00"

and that said sum, with interest, has not been repaid to the said Company.

5. We further find, in reference to a sum of $9,665.68, paid to the secretary of &
commiltee of sharcholders of the Northern Reilway Company, by four promissory
notes, in June, July, August, and September 1875, by the direction of Mr. Cumberlands
that it was paid out for the various purposes detailed in Mr. Campbell’s ¢ Explanatory
Memorandum,” filed on the 14th September, 1876, as Exhibit No. 4, in Appendix A
that, of this sum, Messrs. Morrison, Wells and Gordon received, for services render
the committee of shareholders of the Northérn Railway Company, in their endeavou®
to raise a sum of 300,000 pounds sterling by way of new capital, to meet the requir®,
ments of the said railway; in assisting 1o prepare the bill to re-arrange the capital 0
the said Company, and for other purposcz‘; ; and to get the same allowed—including



40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 10.) A. 1877

fP@_quent journeys and attendances at Ottawa, New York, and England, for tho fore-
&oing purposes, extending over a period of eighteen months and
UDWATAS +.eveinreerenereenrosacnseraersonsosessssasssonsssscnsasansasnsessnnes vereeeees $5,000.00

For their disbursements, which includes fee to London Agents,
200 pounds sterling.........cocieiiiiuieeriiiiiiniiiiiiiine., $1,886.47

That Mr. G. T. Denison, as sccretary to the committce of
sharcholders, received for his services, extending over
cighteen months...... reeeeatutreeiteettietaenttneherataenenrans 2,000.00

And for sundry disbursements made by him, including asum
of $200.00 paid to the Estate of the late Secretary (Mr.
Henderson)............ Cerrerens ereesieiraeeeriaeenans errreenaens 404 29

That Mr. C. J. Campbell received for his disbursements,
including travolling expenses to Ottawa and New York,
in connection with the shareholders’ legislation, etc..... 276.92

And that Messrs. Morrison, Wells & Gordon also received the
amount of their bill of costs, in the Chancery suit of R.
L. Denison vs. the Northern Railway (afterwards
WIthdrawn)....ocoviiinr viniiiiiiiiiii e e 98.00

$9,665.68

On the investigation of this account, the evidence was taken of Mr. Cumberland,
Mr. C. J. Campbell, Col. Denison. and Mr. Gordon. ( Vide Appendix A.)

In roference to the first of thesc items, although the fee appears excessive, the
Services rendered are stated to have been valuable, and to have extended over a
Sogthoned period, involving, for a considerable portion of it, the services of two
Professional gentlemen.

The second item requires no comment, being for actual disbursements.

As regards the third item, it appears by the evidence that this charge was
Specifically made by virtue of an agreement enteredinto with the committee of share-

Olders, before Mr. Denison accepted the position of Secretary.

The fourth item is for money actually disbursed by Mr. Denison, whilst acting

38 Secretary.
. The fifth item is for actual disbursemoents made by Mrv. C. J. Campbell, whilst
acting on the committee of shareholders, and by their authority.
I Th.e last item is for costs incurred in Chancery proceedings, instituted by Col. R.
* Denison against the Northern Railway Company, and withdrawn by arrangement
With said Company.

.. And we further find, in regard to said sum of $9,665.68, that, although it was
Paid out as above by the Northern Railway Company, with the apparent consent of
o @ Stock and Bondholders, it doos not appear that the Dominion Government were

Ohsulted on the subject, or that their interests, as tho largest creditors of the said
Ompany, wore considered in the matter.

Rail 6. We further find, that a sam of $2,500.00, charged in the books of the Northern
'way Company to the Honorable D. L. Macpherson, was not money due to or
by that gentleman, or for which the Company had received, or was to receive, value ;
Was a subscription paid by Mr. Cumberland to the said Honorable D. L. Mac-
Joerson, a8 Treasurer of a fund raised as a testimonial to the Right Honorable Sir
0!1? A. Macdonald, and was so paid out of the funds of tho Northern Railway
the &i)my ; that the said sum was falsely made to appear in the books as an asset of
Sione Jupany, until the amalgamation of the said Company with the Northern Exten-

8 Companies was completed.

(f
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That the sum of $2,616.00, charged in the said books to the debit of William
Hamilton & Son, and made to appear as an assct of the Company, is a sum paid out
of the funds of the said Company, in discharge of a note of the said Company, in
tavor of William Hamilton & Son, and given by order of Mr. Cumberland, and the
proceeds of which were paid out for “the expenses and remuneration of various
** deputations into the country, and local expenses of opposing the Midland Railway
“ Company.” It does not appear by the cvidence that this purpose was not in the
commercial interest of the Northern Railway, or that,in view of such interest, the
outlay was excessive;

That a further sum of $12,593.21, to which our enquiries were directed, consists
of tho notes of $2,181.29 and $10,411.92 respcctively, given on the 30th June, 15869,
and the 15th April, 1873, by Mr. K. W. Cumberland to the Northern Railway Com-
pany, to cover so much of his private account, which he alleges to have been over-
drawn—partly in payment of his election expenses as a Parliamentary candidate for
Algoma and Cardwell, and partly in payment of his share in tho steamer
Chicora. The sumn for the former is $4,166.90, and which Mr. Cumberland claims
the Company should justly have paid.

We find, in connection with the foregoing items of 2,616, $2,500, and $12,593.21
(sco Appendix—exhibit 2, filed 25th August, 1876), a journal entry to the following
cffect t—

Northern Extension Railway, “ new account,” Dr.

To Sundries, viz:—

To William Hamilton & Son ....cocoiviniiiinnin i, $ 2,616 00
D. L. Macpherson........ccc.oeeeeee. . 2,500 00
Billsreceivable. .ovveeeiiieiviiiionieeiiines cvvevnne evnnen 12,593 21

$17,709 21

And, ax there appears to havo been two sets of books in use—the one containing
transactions of the Northern Railway Company (proper), and the other containing
transactions of the lixtension Companies—the effect of this entry was to expunge
these items, as assets, from the books of the Northern Railway Company {proper),
and to place them to the debit of an account which did not represent assets, but
rather expenditures, or, in other words, losses, in the books of the Extension Companies.

Simultaneously an entry appears to have been made in the Extension books, as
tollows :—

Municipal bonus and government subsidies expenses, Dr.,
To Northern Railway (new account), viz:

For amounts traasferred by Northern Railway Company, being items standing to
debit of the following in their books, 30th June, 1875 --

Win. Hamilton & Son......cvveve ververnvnercnnnnnne. evees $2,616 00
D. L. Macpherson........ ........ erereneriare, N 2,500 00
Bills receivable.....oes veveees © rerersariaretiacestaneran . 12,893 21

817.909 21

The effect of tho last entry was to change the naturc, as well as the position or
location, of theso accounts.

Subsequently, on the 20th of February, 1876, a further entry appears to have
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been made under the direction of the President, Mr. William Thomson, upon his
ttention having been called to tae foregoing cntries by the ~cerctary, as follows:—

(See Appendix A.—Exhibit 3, filed 25th August, 1876.)
Sundries, Dr.
To Municipal bonus and Government subsidies expenses, for the following amounts : —

W. Hamilton & Son (being the note of the Northern Railway Co.,

to W. Hamilton & Son, dated 31st October 1871)............ 82,616 00
D. L. Macpherson......coouuvveiiininniiiiceimneeiienenennninneecsnnenne 2,500 00
F. W. Cumberland, adjustment, represented by two notes :

One dated the 30th June, 1869, at 4 months... $ 2,181 29
The otherdated 15th April, 1873, at 6 months.. 10,411 92

12,503 21

$17.709 21

Sio Thus re-establishing the amount as the apparent asset in the books of the lxten-
“OU companies, in whieh position, we presume, it now stands.
7. In consequence of rumors that other parties had reccived sums of money
mproper purposes out of the funds of the Northern Railway Company, and that Mr.
- U. Kdcar had been the recipient of some for his election expenses, it was considered
IiI'OPe,- to have Messrs. Cumberland and Edgar examined in relation thereto; and this
2Ving been done, we find that there is no ground for such rumor ; but that whatever
igﬂeys Mr. Edgar received from the Northern Railway Company, were so received in
in lgl'O&fsxonal capacity, for legal and parliamentary services rendered the Company
Sopxs 74-75, when he had no seat in Parliament, and that the remuncration for his
TVices had the sanction of the Board of Directors for the time being.

for §

Ra; 8. It having becn reported to us that a practice had obtained in th¢ Northern
llway Office, of permitting employés to receive, for their own bencfit, from the agents
;Dsurance Companies, commissions upon the premiums of insurance offected with
Al companies, we called and intended to examine several of the lcading Insurance
woents in Toronto on the subject; but, having ascertained from the evidence of
ine“‘l‘& Frank Heward and William Rowland, that such practice did prevail, and,
&much as Mr. Cumberland justified the practice on the ground (as he stated) that
fllgth commissions were taken into account in fixing the salaries of officials so employed,
thay er investigation on this matter was not pressed. Wao therefore find, on this head,
% Mr. Barlow Cumberland and Mr. Telfer, in the employ of the Northern Railway
Hio:?l)any as salaried officers, have received, and are still in the receipt of, commis-
rai] SVOn all premiums of insurance cffected by them upon the property of the said
Dl‘e“ 1y, and that such commissions usually amount to nbout_ ten per cent. upon tho
an d“{m_m.s paid. (We refer to Appendix A—to the ovidence of Messrs. Frank Heward
2%th Ylllxam Rowland, taken on the 23rd September, 1876, and to exhibit 1, tiled on the
*th September, 1876.)

lang 9 Having been informed that Mr. Cumberland or his son, Mr. Barlow Cumber-
the 32y have derived advantages in commissions from parties contracting with
orthern Railway Company, we examined Mr. Patrick Burns, a wood and coal

deg]ay :
Caler jp the cily of Toronto, also Messrs. Alexander Manning and John Ginty, con-

ofaf,';?l'S, who had held contracts for the construction of the Northern extension lines

lway. TIn the former case, there was no cvidence to substantiate any such
9
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charge. In the latter, it appeared that no sums, in the way of bonus, or in any way
whatever, had been paid to cither Mr. Cumberland or his son ; that after Messrs.
Manning and Ginty obtained the contract to build the North Grey line to Meaford
(a distinct line at that time from the Northern Railway), Mr. Barlow Cumberland
was associated with them as a partner for a short time, with one-half interest in the
profits ; but this arrangement was never compléted, and he subsequently remained
at a salary—and Messrs Manning and Ginty both stated that Mr. F. W, Cumberland
objected to his son’s having any interest in the profits of the contract as a partner.
(See Appendix A for the evidence of Messrs Patrick Barns, Alexander Manning, and
John Ginty, under date of the 23rd September 1876.)

We further find, that all payments of moneys referred toin items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6.
7, 8 and 9, above mentioned, were so made in all cases by the authority of Mr. Cum-
berland, and without the sanction of the Board of Directors of the Northern Railway
Company for the time being, and that the entries in the books of the Northern
Railway Company were made in like manner, excepting those made under the
direction of the President, Mr. Wm. Thomson, and specially referred to.

We have also further to report, that, up to the present time, we have had no
communication from the Northern Railway Company, or their counsel, to intimate
whether the London Board of Directors are willing or unwilling to place the bools
of the Company at our disposal, for the purpose of a general examination, notwith-
standing that such information was promised us by the 14th September last.

Before closing our interim report we fecl it to be our duty to state, that we
consider that much credit is due to the Sceretary of the Northern Railway Company
(Mr. Thomas Hamilton), who was instrumental in bringing the charges under the
notice of your Excellency’s Government, for his conduct in this matter, the course
adopted by him being in our judgment, exceedingly proper, and in strict accordance
with his duty. ’

In conclusion we take the opportunity of acknowledging the valuable assistance:
afforded by Mr. Miall, the efficient Government accountant, in the various matters
which have come under our consideration.

All which is vespectfully submitted. ]

(Signed) LARRATT W. SMITH,

Commissioner.
(Signed) JOHN P. FEATHERSTON,
Commissioner.

10
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APPENDIX A.

INVESTIGATION RE NORTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY.

ToroxTo, August 25, 1876.
Mr. F. W. CuMBERLAND, sworn,
Examined by Mr. Mowat :—

Q.—Have you brought with you the books of the Northern Railway Company ?
A.~-1 have not.
Q.—None of them ?
A.—None of them.
%—Were you served with a subpeena to bring them ?
~No.
(Q.—You are the Managing Director of the Railway Co.?
A.—The General Manager.
Q.—How long have you occupied that one position ?
A.—TI have held two offices, as Managing Director, and at another time and
"OW as General Manager, and both offices since 1851,
Q.—That is, one or other of thesc offices ?
_A.—One or other dependent upon my having a seat at the Board. IfT had a.
Seat at the Board I was Managing Director, otherwise I was General Manager and
Mot Managing Director.
Q.—With reference to the item of $2,500, said to have heen paid as a subscription,
A testimonial to Sir John Macdonald, is that correct ?
J‘\-_Y(,‘S. .
Q.—Was that paid out of the regular funds of the Company ?
A.—Yes.
Q.—About what time?
A.—The 14th of January 1871.
Q.—That was the date of the cheque ?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Have you got the cheque ?
A.—Yes.
Q—Is it here?
A.—The cheque is not here, but I produced it to Mr. Miall this morning.
Q.—Was it a'cheque of the Company ?
A.—It was,
~—It was payable to whom ?
A.—The Hon. D. L. Macpherson, Treasurer of the Macdonald fund.
Q.—Was that the only sum paid by the Company to that fund ?
A.—~The only sum.
Q.—Was there any other sum paid towards a like fund for Sir John Macdonald 2
~—None, that was the only sum so paid.
Q. —What fund was that ?
~—It was a fund, as I understood, raised in consideration of the eminent public:
es of Sir John Macdonald.
~—How was the entry made in the books for payment ?
' 11

to

Servie
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A.—We produced the cheque, and the order of myself to the Treasurer to pay
$2,500 to the Hon. D. L. Macpherson, and to hold the same in suspense until further
orders.
Q.—-That was your order ?
A.—That was my order.
Q.—Have you the order here ?
A—I do not think I have a copy of the ovder, but I have given you it in almost
the exact words as it reads.
Q.—Was there a subscription list ?
A.—1I never saw a subseription list.
By the Chairman :—

Q.—On whom was the order ?

A.—Tho order was to the Treasuver, Mr. Thox. Llamilton, to issue the cheque.
By Mr. Mowat :— .

(. —Was there any order of the Board for that subscription ?

A.—~ None.

Q.—Did they know of it ? or was it by their desire or concurrence ?

A.—Not corporately as a Board. ) )

Q.—Was it with the knowledge and concurrence of individual members of the
Board ?

AT cannot say that it was with tho knowledge or concurrence of all the
individual members of the Board ; but I think I can say that it was with the know-
lege and concurrence of some members of the Board.

Q.—How many members of the Board were there then ?

A.—-There were thon I think five, with two corporation members. Those were
the members for the City of Toronto, and the County of Simcoce.

"Q.—Making seven altogether ?

A.—1 think so.

Q.—And which of those members had authorized the subscription ?

A.—I could not say now, for I really do not remember }vl?o were on the Board then.

Q.—Can you say how many of them had sanctioned it ?

A—No, I could not. .

Q.—But you arc quite sure that some of them did ?

A.--Quite sure. L

Q.—Was that sanction given before the subscription, or afterwarls ?

A.—Before.

Q.—So that you knew at the time of giving the cheque that it had the concur-
-ence of some of the Directors ?

A.—Yes.

Q.~-The majority of them ?

A.—T could not say.

Q.—Would you give a choque without the concurrence of the majority of them
#or such a purpose ?

A.—Yes, at that time the managemont was to a large degrec personal, and I
was not afraid to take upon myself responsibilities in the interest of the Company.

Q. —Sir John A. Macdonald was at that time Premicr of the Dominion ?

A.—1I think he was.

Q. ~You know he was, I suppose ?

A.—Yes, I know he was.

QQ.—And you thought it to bo in the intorest of the company to give him &
subseription of $2,500 ? Did you give this subscription becanse you thought it was
in the interest of the Company to do so ?

A.—Not so much that it was in the interest of the Company, as that I thought all
q)arties interested in the Public Works of the country should recognize his eminent
services.

Q.—Then you gave it because of the services of Sir John Macdonall and not
hecause you thought it in the interest of the Company ?

12
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A.—1 did not give it with any view to the interest of tho Company at all—to the
future interest of the Company.

Q.—Did you give it with any view to the interest of the Company ?

A .—Certainly not. ,

Q.—Then I understand you to say that you gave a subscription of $2,500 to Sir
John Macdonald’s testimonial without the authority of tho Directors, and without
thinking it was in the intorest of the company ?

, A.—~Without the official authority of the Directors, and without any view to the
future interests of the Company.
. Q.—Did you consider 1t was for the interest of the Company that you should
give that subscription ?
A.—T had no such thought.
Q.—Then I understand you gave that subscription without the authority of the
ctors as a body, and without any thought of the intevest of the company.
A —Yes.
Q.—How soon afterwards did those Dirvectors who had not sanctioned the
Payment beforehand become aware of it ?
A. -Not for a considerable time.
Q.—Iow long ?
A.—I counld not fix a date,

Dire

Me. Winnian Erviorr, sworn.
Examined by Mr. Mowat.

Q.—You ure the acting president of the Northern Railway Company ?
A.—XNo I am not the acting President, T have simply acted as chairman of the
Meetings of the board,—appointed pro tem.
Q.—Where is the President now ?
A.—He is out of town,
Q.—Who is the President ?
A.—Mr. Wiltliam Thomson.
(v%.-—l\ir. William Thomson is out of town, at Philadelphia ¢
A—Yes.
{).—How long has he been at Philadelphia ?
A.—TFour or tive days.
Q.—Whero you subpenaed to attend, and were you required to produce the

books of the Company ?
A—T was,
Q.—Iave you produced them ?
A.—No, Sir.

Q.—Are they with you ?

A.—No, Sir.

Q. —Why ?

A.—I have no authority over them any more than auy other Director,

Q.—Who has the authority over them ?
4 A.—They are in the possession of the General Manager or the Treasurer, I think

'¢ General Manager has the custody of them.

thcm‘w}_}—-Then Mr. Cumberland is the person who has the authority to produce
A—Yes, sir.

Mr. F. W. CuMBERLAND—resumed.

tion f’Q-~Y0u don’t recollect when the other Directors became aware of the subscrip-

A.—No. 1 would not say that they were not all aware, but I do not know thai

they were,

Q.~Ilad you any conversation with them afterwards about it ?
13
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A.—Well, the thing dropped.
Q.—Was there any reason for concealing it from the other Directors, or any of
them ?

A.—None.
Q.—You had no intention of concealing it from them ?
A.—No.

Q.—You did not conceal it, then ? You thought if they were not actual parties to
it beforehdnd they were quite willing to sanction it ?

A.—T have no doubt they would have sanctioned it.

Q—In January 1871, I think you said the transaction took place ? The Board of
dircctors met frequently, I suppose every week ?

A.—No, our board meetings at that time were very infrequent.

Q.—How often did they meet ?

A.—They met on call.

Q.—How often, taking one month with another, or one quarter with another ?

A.—Perhaps onco in three weeks or a month.

Q.—When does your annual meeting take place ?

A.—The semi-annual meeting gencrally takes place early in August,

Q.—Did the meeting of 1871 take placo in August ?

A.—T think so.

Q.—~Where does the meeting take place ?

A.—In Toronto.

Q.—Were the Directors all aware of it before that semi-annual meeting at all
cevents ?

A.—I am not sure, I do not know.

Q.—You do not know that they were aware of it, up to the semi-annual meeting ?

A.—I could not say.

Q.—Any belief as to that ?

A.—T should be better able to speak if I refreshed my memory with a know-
ledge of the gentlemen who were then members of the Board.

3.—You cannot therefore say, whether they all were aware, then, at the time of
the next semi-annual meeting, whether this transaction had taken place ?

A —1] could not say.

Q. —How was it entered in the booksoriginally ?

A.—TIt was simply entered against the Ifon. D. L. Macpherson as a payment to
him.

Q.—It was not entered, then, to the suspense account ?

A.—TIt was not entered or classified to any service.

Q.—-Have yoa got a suspenso account in the ledger ? .

A.—Wae have various suspense accounts—bhut no general suspense account.

Q.—-Why was it charged to D. L. Macpherson ?

A.—Because he was treasurer of the fund and received the money.

Q.—But he was not a debtor of the Company ?

A.—It was kept in the suspense account until it could be charged to some
specific service.

Q.——How long did it remain at the debit of D. L. Macpherson ?

A—TUntil the 30th June 1875. It remains thero still.

Q. —Why did yon name the 30th Junec 1875, if it remains to his debit still ?

A—Because on the 30th June 1875, it was carried to the account which was made
in connection with the amalgamation of the Northern Extension Railway, which had
the effect of giving us for the first time a capital account.

Q.—What was done with it then ?

A.—It was then entered on the 30th June 1875, to municipal bonuses, govern-
ment subsidies, expenses of the Northern Railway Company, new account.

Q.—Are you giving me now the entry in regard to this item in the Northern
Railway books ?

A.—No.

14
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Q.—Tell me first how that was disposed of.

A.—TIt was by a voucher. .

Q.—-How was the entry in June, 1875, made in the Northern Railway books of
this item ?

A.—“Northern Railway Iixtension, new account, Dr. to Sundries.”

Q.—One of these sundries, was this item ?

A.—Yes.

b Q.—Thereby closing the account of D. L. Macpherson in the Northern Railway
Ooks ?

A.—Ye-. .

Q.—1s that the way the matter stands now in the Northorn Railway books ?
. A.—Yes. Sinco the amalgamation on the 3rd of Junc, whatis called the Northern
Extension Special Account has been just as much the Northern Railway Company’s
Account as the other; the openingof the Northen Extension Railway special account
took place at the time of amalgamation, by Deed, on the 3rd of June 1875, and the
“Xtension then became part and parcel of the Northorn Company; but in order to
‘eep that purchase as a capital account scparate from revenue, the burdens and
liabilitics that we took over of the Extension Railway at the timo of amalgamation,
Jave been continued in the account that we call the Northen Kxtension Special or
~\Cw account.
. Q.—Have you since that date had a «eparate set of books for the Northern Exten-
Slon Rajlway ? :

A—Yes. '

Q.-—You have a separate set of bo ks, the amalgamation account being in effect
the Northern Extension Railway, I suppose ?

A.—Yes, it is the account coming 10 us by amalgamation.

Q.—Upon that date you charged this item to the Northern Extension Railway
New account, you say ?

A.—That’s it.

Q.—~Were there any other Northern Railway items trensferred on that day 1o
that account ?
. A—There were two others. One was a note of William Hamilten & Sons, of
33,316, and one was a note of my own of $12,593.21.

(Q.—Did those other items stand respectively to the debit of Hamilton & Sous
and yourself in these accounts ?

A—Yes.

Q.—By whose direction were those entries made ?

A.—By my own.

).—Had these entries heen ordered by the Board ?

A.—No.
(%--—\Vere they made with the concurrence of the Board ?
A.—No.

Q.—They knew nothing of them beforchand ?
A.—No, I directed the entries in the exercises of my own authority.
%-\Vithout any communication with the Board whatever ?
A.—Yes,
Q.—And witheut the knowledge of the Board ?
A —Thut is, without any knowledge that I am aware of.
(‘fl‘x'i?"‘? Did any members of the Board know that you were going to make these
s, ¢
A,—1I do not think so; I did not consult any of them.
¢ Q-—Did the members of the Board know that those three items were standing
0 the debit of the respective partiex, previous to this?
A.—1I do not think they did.
$2: Q.—You do not thirk, then, that the Board knew that there was that sum of
<900 standing to the debit of D. L. Macpherson ?
A.—Unless they examined the balance sheet.
15
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Q.—Did it appear in the balance sheet ?

A.—Yes
Q.—Charged in that way ?
A.—Yos.

Q.—Have youn got that bslance sheet here ?

A.—No, but I will produce it.

Q.—Did the Board know that that sum of $2,616, was standing to the debit of
Hamilton & Sons ?

A.—In the same way, dnly by the balance sheet.

Q.—Did they know ot the $12,593.21.

A.—In the samoe way.

Q.—Did they ever enquire what these entries meant ?

A.—1 could not suy.

Q.—Is the balance sheet o large document or not. How many items or how many
sheets, speaking roughly ?

A.—I should say perhaps four pages of foolscap.

Q.—That is, the items of the debits?

A.—Yes.
Q. —And these were amongst them ?
A —Yes,

Q.—Does that item of $2,500 now stand as one of the items of that Northern
Extension Railway new account ?

A.—Yes, it stands there in suspense.

Q.—Another item you mention as having been transferred on that day was the
note of William Hamilton & Sons of 2,616,  Did they owe that sum ?

A.—No. )

Q.—How long had it been standing to their debit ?

A.—Since the 21st October 1871.

Q—Had they been paid that sum ?

A.—They had heen given anote,

Q.—By the Company ?

A.—By the Company. _

Q.—And that note was paid by the Company ?

A.—Yes.

Q.—And the Company received value for that note ?

A.—~Well, the Company did receive value for it.

Q.—Had the Company any transactions with Ilamilton & Sons at or before the
time that note was given ?

A.—Yes, from early in 1871 down to 1873, a good many transactions.

Q.—1ad you a settlement with them at that time of the accounts up to that
timo?

A.—From 1871 to 1873 we had numerous transactions and contracts with Hamil-
ton & Sons.

Q.—Had you a settlement with them about the 21st October, 1871, when that
note was given ?

A.—1 don’t remember, T think therc was a balance struck every half year with
them.

Q.—This sum, however, was always left to their debit?

A.—Yes, a little more or a little less, every half year.

.—Why was that left ?

A.—Because the proceeds of that note were applied to various purposes of the
Company.

Q.—'Then they did not give value for it ?

A.—Hamilton & Sons did not give value for it.

Q.—Then the note was for some other purpose ?

A.—1It was for bonus purposes.

Q.—To whom?

16
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A.—T could not tell ; I mean to say that the distribution of moneys applied to
those purposes was at the time when we wore fighting the Midland Railway.

Q.~~What was the money paid for?

A.—Tt was paid for the expense and remuneration of various deputations into
the country, and local expenses of the opposition to the Midland.

Q.—Have you any account of the particulars to which the money was paid ?

A.—1 have not.

Q.—Why was it left as a debit to Wm. Hamilton & Sons, when they did not owe
*y such sum ?

A.—Because it was for confidential services.

Q.—And it has waited from that time until now ?

A.—Until there was an opportunity to place it in capital account. To adjust it
then and provide for it from capital, we were working for a capital accourt at that
very time.

Q.—What do you mean ?

. A.—We were seeking legislation by which the Northern Railway Company could
Talse new money for various purposes; we had no capital account at the time of these
tansactions, and we suspended the entries in anticipation of the powers we have
Mnee received.
Q.—Was it Hamilton & Sons who disbursed this money ?

. A.—No, it was disbursed under the control of a number of gentlemen who were
Mterested with myself.

Q.—Had Hamilton & Sons received this money ?

. A.~—~They received a note, and the proceeds were appropriated under the control
Of the parties connected with the Muskoka and the Northern Railway and were paid
9t to Jocal persons on the line of the disputed territories, and individuals who went
M deputations from Toronto for that purpose.

().—Who was it that made these appropriations ?
Wi A.—The President of the Northern ilway at that time, Mr. Robinson, Mr.
ilson, the late partner of the Hon. Frank Smith, and quite a number of people—

. Smith, eollector of Customs, who had been a director of our road, was one.

Q.—Was he a Divector at this time?

A.~1 am not sure, at that time; he was immediately before, at any rate.

).—And he assisted in appropriating this money ?

A—1 do not know that he assisted, but we were all cognizant of the way the
mo“ey was placed.

Q.—Was the money paid to him ?

A.—No, not to my knowledge.

Q.—Did he get any of it ?

A.—1 think he did.

Q. ~How much did he get ?
pai ]A---He went like all the others out to canvass and work, and our expenses were
e . T do not know how much he got, and [ do not know that i personally got

'Y. His services were gratnitous.
nme(g---\\"ere any expenses incurred in the same matter besides the proceeds of that

A.—Xot by the Northern Company.
(.~~No other moneys out of the funds of the Northern Company ?
h.“tl“\-*—'l‘hnt was the sole amount of money of the Northern funds dishurzed in that
attle,

e Q—With respect to the next item of $12,593.21—How long had that been stand-
€ 4t your debit in the books of the Northern Railway Company ?
A.—Since early in 1873.
~—Can you give me the particulars of the notes making up that sum ?
the oﬁ-\There were two notes, one was given on the 30th June, 1869, of $2,1S1.29,
- er on the 15th April, 1873, of $10,411.92.
~—There were notes of yours to the Company ?
17
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A.—These were notes of mine to the Company.

Q.—What was the occasion of the first of thesc notes—that of $2,181.29 ?

A.— The ocecasion of both of these notes was the charging to my account expenses
which, in truth belonged to the Company, but which I had carried, and still carry,
but which was owing to me, as T contend, at those dates, for services the expenditure
for which had been charged to my personal account, and it was to relieve my personal
account from the appearance of being overdrawn, aud to provide, in fact, for my
personal requirements, which were embarrassed by these charges.

Q. =Did the Board take the same view of these items as you did ?

A.—The Board has never been asked, because it was prematuro to discuss these
matters until the capital account to which I have before referred was at our hand,
and I declined to oxercise my official powers to relieve my own account and therefore
gave a note.

Q.—Was there an account opened against you to which these notes were
charged-?

A.—Those are the notes which, with the Macpherson and ‘the Hamilton items,
were transferred on the 30th June, 1875, from the Northern accounts to the Northern
Extension account.

Q.—How did these notes stand before that transfer?

A.—They were in bills receivable account.

Q.—3So that they did not appear at your debit ?

A.—No.

Q.—Did any of the Directors know you had given these notes?

A.—I could not say, I did it on my own responsibility the same as the others.

Q.—You do not know that they knew at the time you guve the notes. Did
they ever know?

A.—I do not know that they knew, I do not think they knew until the president
Mr. Thomson, ou the 20th of March of the present year, became aware of it, and
looked into the whole matter.

Q.—Am | to understand that over and above salary and 80 on, you had drawn to
the amount of both of these notes without the Directors knowing it, to the amount of
$12,593?

"A.—It was an overdrawn account previously.

Q.—Previous to what date ?

A.—Of both notes.

Q.— Then your account was overdrawn to the extent of $12,593 without the
Directors knowing of it ?

By Mr. Cameron : —
Q.—Doesn’t it appear always in the semi-annual balance sheet ?
A.—It did until it took the form of notes.

By Mr. Mowat : —

Q.—But these items did not appear against you individually in the balance sheet
after they took the form of notes ?

A.--No.

By Mr. Cameron :—
Q.—They appeared then in bills receivable ?
A.—Yes.

By Mr. Mowat :—

Q.—Then I am to understand that that over-drawing took place without the
Directors being aware that you had overdrawn ?

A.—T think so. I do not know whether they knew or not. I never reported it

Q.—To auy of them ?

A.—-J do not think to any of them. 1 might possibly to the President. The
presidents of the day are always in close communication with me.

Q.—Who were the Presidents at this period ?

A.—From 1869 to 1873 Mr. Beverley Robinson was president, until he was
succeeded about two years ago by Mr. Thomsen,

18
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Q.—Myr. Thomson became president in 1874 ?

A —T think so.

Q.—Where have these notes been since the making of them ?

A.—In the custody of the Company.

Q.—What do you mean by the cu.tody of the Company ?

A.—They have been in the custody of Mr. Hamilton up to the time the transfer
Wwas made to the Extension Company, and since then they have been in the custody
©of the clerk keeping the Northern Extension account.

Q.—Then the same notes are still in existence ?

A—.Yes.

Q.—Are they stamped notes ?

A.—No. '

Q.—The accounts of the Company have been audited from time to time ?

A—Yes.

Q.—Once a year, or how often ?

A.—Every half-year.

Q.—How many auditors are there now ?

A.—Two.

Q.—Who are they ?

A.—Mr. Gamble and Mr. Graham.

Q.—How long have they been auditors?

A.—Mr Gamble has been auditor for a good many years.

Q.—Before 1869 ?

A.—I fancy so.

Q.—And Mr. Graham ?

A.—Mr. Graham for two years.

Q. —Whom did Mr. Graham succeed ?

A.—Mr. Osler.

Q.—After these entries were made, did the auditors—any of them—ask any ex-
Planation of these items ?

A.—YNo.

 Q.~Were you never called upon to make any explanation of them until Mr.
Thomson made the enquiries during the present year?

A.—No.

Q.—The entry you had directed to be made on the 30th June, 1875, was to charge
thege against capital account ?

A.—XNo, it was to transfer them from the revenue books of the Northern proper
to the Extension speciat account.

Q.—These were overdrawings on account of the Company, and not on account of
Yourself ?

A.—These were overdrawings on expenditures which I had made on behalf of
the Company. and which had been entered in my personal account, and for which I

ad relieved the accumulated pressure by making them in the form of notes.

Q.—In your personal account there were two classes of charges—one of them
Was in ¢onnection with the purchase of the stecamer Chicora, and the other in connec-
ton with political expenditure. Have you got the particulars of these items ?

A.—1I have.

Q.—Got them here

A.—No.

Q.—The items making up the $12,593, the expenditure which you consider you
“hould be relieved from ? ) _

. A—1T have got the item with regard to the Ckicora, and 1 have got the items
Which 20 to make up the amounts of these notes in my own personal accounts.
Q. —Therefore you could furnish the details, I suppose, if they were reqguired ?
A.—1 have got the details.
W Q.—You say part was on account of the purchase of the steamer Chicora
s that purchase made on behalf' of the Cg}ompany ?
1
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A.—In 1871, the steamer Chicora having been running for several years in the
Collingwood and Lake Superior line, was about to be sold to Colonel Sibley, of Silver
Islet, to be put on between the head of Lake Superior and Detroit, an opposition line,
and I conceived, she being the best of our steamers on these waters, that it would be
equivalent to the breaking up of our line if we were to lose her; and I considered
how it was possible to retain her in the line and the only method of doing that was
to buy her over Sibley’s head.

Q.—Did you become the purchaser, then ?

A.—It was my anxiety to get her bought, so as to retain her in the line, and.
with that view I organized a party to subscribe and buy this steamer, of which party
I undertook to find one-third of the capital.

Q—What was the whole capital to be ?

A.—The whole purchase was somewhere about $60,000.

(Q.—How much of that came out of the funds of the Company ?

A.—The proposition at that time was, not that I should take upon myself the
burden, but the manner of it was this :— the Company could not, according to law,
iteself become the proprietor of the boat, therefore I went in to save her to the line,
taking own-third in my one name, which, however, I proposed to carry for the Com-

any. That is to say, the Company was to find me half the money for the one-third
interest which I had assumed.

Q.—Then the purchase money was $60,000, your third was to be $20,000, and
the Company was to furnish half of the $20,000 ? ‘

A.—Yes.

Q.—Did the Company furnish half the money ?

A.—No.

Q.—How much ?

A.—8$7,600.

Q.—Do you mean the Directors of the Company agreed to furnish that ?

A.—No, the programme was this--first, secure the boat; second, that, in order
to do that, I was to assume one-third of the purchase. I had notthe meansto assume
that one-third, and I took it upon myself, as representing the Company, to assume at
least half.

Q.—Then did you assign one half of your purchase to the Company ?

A.—What I mean is that, after the Company had paid $7,600, I had to find the
balance independent of the Company altogether.

Q.—The Company were not purchasers of the boat, so they had no interest in
the boat?

A.—They had every intercst.

Q.—Ilow was the $7,600 paid ?

A.—It was paid by a cheque of the Company, by a draft made by myself.

Q.—That is, you drew upon the Company, and the Company cashed the draft ?
And that is the only money that went into the Chicora of the funds of the Company ?

A.—Yes.

Q.—1s the Chicora on that route still.

A.—She is, bat she is laid up.

Q.—I1low was that $7,600 charged in the books?

A.—It was charged to Parliamentary Expenses.

Q.—Parliamentary Iixpenses ? when was that charge made ?

A.—At the time of the draft.

Q.~ What was the date of that?

A.—The 28th of I'ebruary, 1873.

Q.—That is to say, a draft on the Treasurer of the Company in your own favor ?

A.—No, in favor of my son. 1 was at Montreal.

Q.—Did this draft dircct it to be charged to Parliamentary Expenses Account ?

A.—It directed the amount to be charged to Parliamentm‘y Expenses.

Q.—And that was done accordingly ?

A.--That was done accordingly.
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Q.—Was that reported to the Board ?

A.—1I had better go on to say that the object was to put the payment by the
Company on account of the Chicora into suspense, and there was no item of any
classification to which it could be carried. It had simply to be put somewhere until
it could be provided for. One account is just as good as another for that purpose,
and it remains under suspense in that account until now.

By the Chairman :—

Q.—I suppose there was an account open at that time for Parliamentary
Fsxpenses ?

A.—There is always an account open for Parliamentary Expenses,

By Mr. Mowat :—

Q.—You got a bill of sale of the boat, I suppose, from the former owners, from
whom was the purchase made ?

A —From Milloys,

Q—And to whom was the boat conveyed ?

A.—To the Hon. Frank Smith, Mr. Noah Barnhart and myself. (This was after
wards corrected, see post).

Q.—You were the three partners ?

A.—Yes. '

Q.—Was Mr. Frank Smith a member of the Board then ?

A.—No, he has only been a member since the time of amalgamation.

Q.—Was My, Barnhart a member of the Board ?

A.—No.

Q.—Never 80 ?

A.—Yes, he wag, under an act of Parliament after the date of amalgamation for
4 few months.

Q.—This note was not charged to you ? It is mentioned as $8,000.

A.—Yes, there was a draft of $8,000, but the payment made on the boat was
only $7,600.

g.-%o you got $8,000 on account of the Company ?

—Yes.

Q.—But that was never charged to you ?

A.—No, it was charged to Parliamentary Expenses.

Q.—But, as T understand, this $12,593 was charged to you ?

A.—Yes, but this $8,000 is no part of the notes. I had paid the first two instal-
Ments on the boat, being together $9,166.34, as part of my share of the instalments

alling due on the purchase in 1872. Then in March, 1873, came the instalment for
Which the draft was made, and for which the Company provided the funds. That was

the $7,600, which has been referred to as $8,000. .
%.-—-Do younow say that the $8,000 is or is not included in the $10,411.92 ?
~—It is not.

Q.—Was thereany payment in the account of the Chicora included in that sum
*f 10,411.92?

A.—Yes. On the 31st of December, 1873, the Company’s cheque was given for
. $6,245.02 on account of the instalment falling due on that date.

Q.—Do you say this was included in the expenditure ?

A.—T say that was charged and wasincluded in my personal account on the date
of the cheque, the 31st December, 1873,

Q.—Is that part of the note for $10,411.92?

A.—Yes.

Q.—That note is dated 15th April, 1873, and the note you now speak of was
Madefin December of that year. How could it be included in the $10,411?

~—If I am wrong, it is because my clerk has misled me. (The witness here

%Onsulted his clerk) Yes, it is aclerical error—the date of December. The payment
W88 made on the 10th of January, 1873.

Q.—What payment ?
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A.—The $6,245.02 which was paid by the Company’s cheque, and charged to my
account.

Q.—Of what other item did the $10,411 note consist ?

A.—Services charged to my account.

Q.—What were they ?

A.—They were connected with my elections for Algoma and Cardwell, which L
eonsidered the Company should pay.

Q.—How much of the balance was on that service ?

A.—The whole balance of the $10,411.

Q.—You were candidate for Algoma ?

A.—I was and became member.

Q.—That was the election of 1867 ?

A.—It was the first election after Confederation.

Q.—Was it the same year as when you ran for Cardwell ?

A.—No, I ran for Cardwell in 1871.

Q..—Was that for the House of Commons?

A.—No, that was for Ontario.

Q.—Were there any other sums paid out of the accounts of the Company
towards your election expenses except the balance of the $10,4117?

A.—The Company have really paid none of my election expenses. I have paid
them, and have given a note for them.

Q.—That is, you have given this note of $10,411.92?

A.—Yes.

Q.—The moncy was first taken from the funds of the Company, charged to you,
and then it was included in the note you gave ?

A.—~The cheques were upon my salary. I drew upon the Company, and the sums
were charged regularly to my private account.

Q.—During the election?

A.—Yes.

Q —How much of the $10.411.92 was for election expenses which you thought
the Company should relieve you from ?

A.—I think that my claim upon the Company would prove to be larger than the
balance, after deducting the charge for the Chicora, viz., $4,166.

Q.—How much would tho excess be over that amount?

A.—Well, probably $800 or $1,000 more.

Q.—That is over and above the $4,166?

A.—Yes, I think I have under-estimated rather than over.

. Q.—Were there any other moneys of the Company that wen to clection expen-

ses, besides the sums you have now mentioned ?

A.—Yes.

Q.—What others ?

A.—We paid the expenses of Mr. Robinson as a candidate for Algoma in the
election of 1872.

Q.—How much did those expenses amount to ?

A.—About $5,000.

Q.—Was it exactly $5,000 ?

A.—No, $5,440.68.

Q.—Was that all paid, in one sum ?

A.—No, various sums.

Q.—Drafts ?

A.—Yes, and payments of accounts for legitimate expenses.

Q.—Drafts drawn by whom ?

A.—Drafts from Algoma, choques of particular accounts, expenses incurred, &o.

q Qé—When were the payments made, making jup that sum—between what
ates

A.—Between the 22nd July, 1872, and October, 1872.
Q.—Have you the particulars here ?
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A.—Yes.
(The witness handed a memorandum to Mr. Mowat.)
(. —This memorandum is headed “ Algoma Election.” Is the account entered in
that way in the books ?
A—Yes. :
Q.—Is there an account in the books for the Algoma election—that is, in the
books’of the Northern Railway Company ?
A.—Yes.
By the Chairman :—
Q.—Was the account opencd at the time ?
A.~-Tt is a voucher.
By Mr. Mowat :—
Q.—When were the entries made ?
A.—On the 31st October, 1872.
Q.—They were on the onc date ?

A.—Yes.
Q.—Was all the money paid before that date ?
A.—Yes.

(i.—l}{rave no more moneys been paid since on the same account ?
—No.
Q.—Were the expenses of your election entered in the same way ?
A.—No, they were charged to myself.
Q.—Was there any arrangement made beforehand that Mr. Robinson’s expenses
Should be paid by the Company ?
I A.—TLinvited Mr. Robinson, being our president, to seek the seat of Algoma, and
Proposed to him that if he did, we would pay the election expenses.
‘S.—Was there any resolution of the Board on that subject?
A.—None.
Q.—Was it discussed at the Board ?
A.—No. '
Q.—Did you confer with any other members of the Board except the president ?
A.—No, I did it myself.
%.-\;{Vas Mr. Robinson president at the time he ran ?
~VYes.
%—%'nd continued so for some time afterwards ?
—~Yes,
§-~’I{’hese entries were made on the 31st October, 1872, in that way
—Yes.
. (The document here shown to the witness was put in, and marked “ Exhibit A ™
Vide infrq.)
?\-—'Irjhat is a correct statement taken from the books?
~—Yes.
da Q.~—You say this entry was made in October, 1872, but some of the cheques are
ted ag early as July—one in July, and one in August?
A.—These all went through my personal account.
1875 ?-~And they were all transferred from your personal account in October,

A.—Yes.
Q.—1Is this Algoma election account now in the books ?
~—That voucher is now in the books, as you see it.
Q.—Does it now appear in the books as ¢ Algoma Election, $5,440.68 " ?
A.—It has been transferred to Legal and Parliamentary Expenses.
~~When was that done ?
Pay A.—On the 31st of October, 1872, it was carried to these expenses—Contingencies,
onesimentary Expenses, and Legal Expenses, and a portion charged in monthly,
third to each of these accounts.
~~For how many months ?
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A.—For about two years I thi=k.
Q.—1t is now all wiped off

A—~—Yes,
(Q.—Is there an account against Mr. Robinson now in the boolks ?
A.—Yes.

Q.—What is that for ?

A.—As President, as long as he was President, and now as Director. We have
opened an account with each Director,

Q.—I= there not a considerable balance at his debit ?

A.—Yes. '

Q.—Does he owe that balance ?

A.—Well, he disputes it.

Q.—Why does he dispute it ?

A.—First of all, because part of that amount he claims to have expended on the
Company’s services, and chiefly, because he has been paid less than his predecessor,
in the presidency.

Q.—What is the balance at his debit now ?

A.—About $4,900.

Q.—What portion of that does he claim as having been expended on the Company’s
services ?

A.—I don’t know.

Q.—TIave you bad any conversation with him about it?

A.—T have had several conversations and correspondence with reference to his
elais for expenditure and services for the Company, and also with reference to his
getting the same pay as his predecessor obtained. If he had got the same pay, he
would be in credit instead of in debit.

Q.—How much does he claim for services from which the  mpany should relieve
him ?

A.—T do not know.

Q.—How long has this sum of $4,900 been at his debit?

A.—1t has been accumulating for some years.

Q.—Have you the particulars of that account here?

A.—No, I ehowed it to Mr. Miall this morning.

Q.—1 see from this memorandum that in 1871, 1872 and 1873, each of these years
there are some large items of bills payable ; that there are six notes of considerable
amounts charged to Mr. Robinson during these three years. Were theso notes of the

Company ?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Al of them.
A.—VYes. :

Q. —What salary was he to get?

A.—81,000 a year, that is, $500 a year as President, and $500 as Director.

Q.—Was that credited to him from time to time

A.—Yes.

Q.—What was the first of these notes, viz: $1,000 on October 27th 1871 for ?

A.—The Company gave it to him on account of his claims.

Q.—Was that for some services performed for the Company.

A.—T do not know.

Q. —Who gave him this note?

A.—TIt was given by my authority, I presume.

Q.—Do you not know what it was given for ? Was it for some purpose of the
Company ? ) )

A.—1 suppose it was allowing him to overdraw his account—payment in advan ©
of his salary.

Q.—You think he was going to use that for his own private purposes ?

A.—T think so.

Q.—Then you gave him in May, 1872, $500; what was that for ?
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A.—I could not say to what that refers. I suppose it was in the same way.

Q.—Then, October 1st, 1872, $1.000; what was that given for ?

A.-—In the same way. You will observe that the whole of these notes, taking
the ageregate amount, would be the same as was paid to Mr. Justice Morrison when

© was our president.

Q.—But you were not paying Mr. Robinson the same as Mr. Justice Morrison ?

A.—No, but it was my intention that he should be paid the same as his predecessor.

(.—And on account of that intention you paid him these amounts ?

_A.—I won't say that it was an absolute intention; but I saw and recognized his
laim, and when the time arrived when I could exercise my influence, I would see
that he was paid.

Q.—And therefore yon gave him these notes from time to time ?
A.—Yes, that was the reason.
Q.—Did you tell the Board you were doing this ?
A.—1 do not think the Board knew.
Q.—It was a mere matter between you and Mr. Robinson ?
A.—T did it myself; thatis, I presume I did. He may have obtained some
Notes from the Secretary without my knowledge.
Q.—Then I find on the 11th September, 1872, another note was given him of
$400; what was that for ?
A —My previous observations will apply to that.
Q.—On the 15th July, 1873, 81,050 ?
A.—The same observation will apply.
Q.—On the 1st October, 1873, you gave him a note for $2,000 ?
P A.—My impression is that this refers in part to expenditures as our President—
arliamentary Expenses.
Q.—Were you seeking legislation then ?
A.—Yes,
Q.—Were any of the other sums for Parliamentary Expenses ?
I A.—I could not speak from memory, but I have no doubt that part of them were,
t wag necessary to incur certain expenses at Ottawa which we deemed it our duty
pay.
Q.—But there were no entries of these in the books ?
A.—No, they were charged to Mr. Robinson individually.
2-~Did any of these sums go to election expenses?
-—No.
th Q.—In exhibit A, which shows a number of election expenses for Algoma, I see
a ® name of a Mr. Cameron mentioned. After that election did you pay any sums to
Person living there named Cameron ?
i A.—Cameron kept a tavern at which our agent boarded. I have no doubt that
82 tavern bill.
Q.—You paid 70 per month to some Mr. Cameron after the e lection ?
A.—Yes, that is the same man—he was our agent.
Q.—How long did you pay him ?
A.—During the season of navigation, so long as he acted for us as the agent of
line at Sault Ste. Marie.
—How long did he act for you?
A.—T could not say from memory.
Q.—And you paid him $70 per month ?
Q A.—1I do not know how much we paid. It is in our account, I know, because
&meron served as our agent on my own appointment.
Q.—Will you be good enough to look for that ?
A.—Yes.  Cameron is dead now.
Co Q—Have you told me the whole amount that went out of the funds of the
Mpany to pay for the Chicora ?
A —Yes.
Q.—That is the $7,600 and the $6,245 ?
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A.-Yos.

Q-—Was therc a subscription to the Mail newspaper paid out of the funds of the
Company ?

A—Yos,

Q.—How much ?

A.—$1,000.

Q.—No more ?

A.—No, not to my knowledge.

Q.—Was there only one payment ?

A.—No, it was made in two or three payments.

Q.—Was that for subscription or stock ?

A.—For stock.

Q.—Is the Company now a stockholder in the Mail newspaper ?

A.—I don’t know how one corporation could take stock in another,

Q.—You don't know whether this stock is in the name of the Company ?

A.—TI think it i8 not—it is in my own name.

Q.—When was the payment made?

A.—TIt was made in three payments.

Q.—What dates ?

A.—I don’t know.

Q.—-Was there an account opened in the books of the Company for Mail stock ?

A.—No, there was not.

Q.—How were the payments to the Mail Company entered ?

A.—They were charged to several services, Legal and Parliamentary Expenses,
Printing and Advertising, I think.

Q.—-l%ut that was not for any account of Printing and Advertising ?

A.—No.

Q.—You have an account in the books under the head of Printing and Adver-
tising ?

A.—Yes.

Q.—And part of this subscription you charged in the books to the account for
Legal and Parliamentary Expenses, and part to the account for Printing and Advertis-
ing, making altogether $1,000 ?

A.—Yes. There werce three payments : $500, $100 and $400.

By Mr. Armour :—

Q.—You speak of the Chicora being held in yourown name. Did you bold your
interest in the steamer in trust for the Company ?

A.—Yes, I s0 considered it.

Mr. Cameron said that he had no questions to ask on behalf of the Company;
that the witness had explained his transactions as his own, and so far as the Company
was concerned he (Mr. Cameron) had no questions to ask.

By Mr. Armour : —

Q.—Apart from that subscription of 2,500, were al! these moncys advanced by
you for the best interests of the Company ?

A.—Yes.

By Mr. Mowat :—

Q.—When you say that all these payments, with that exception, were in the
interests of the Company, does that include all the sums paid for clection expenses?

A.—FEverything that 1 have consented to take and pay was in the interests O
the Company

Q.—Including these election expenses ?

A.—Yos, sir.

In answer to Mr.Mowut, the witness said :—The papers marked, Appendix A,
Appendix B, Appendix C, Appendix D, and Appendix E, (which were put in) are
correctly taken from the books of tho Company by officers of the Company.

The Commission then adjourned.
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ToroNnTO, August 26, 1876.

Mr. F. W, CoMBERLAND was ve-called.
Examined by Mr. Mowat. .

1876 -—1I gee from this paper marked “ Appendix C,” that on the 29th of February,
b, a cross entry appears to have been made, by which these items we have been-
Sl)Guking of, viz., Hamilton & Sons, $2,616, Hon. D. I.. Macpherson, $2,500, and F. W.
:;)nberland, $12,5693.21, were re-charged to the respective parties. How did that

-“a8ppen ? ‘
A.—That occurred by reason of the secretary, Mr. Hamilton, having brought

these amounts to the notice of the President, and he suggested and made the cross-
vy, ;
Q.—Mr. William Thomson is the President ?
A.—Yes.

Q.—How long has he been President ?
A.—I think two years. e is in his second year.
Q.—Does he get a salary ?
A—Yes.
Q.—How much ?
dirg £-~He gots £100 sterling as President, and the same amount as the other
Ors,
Q.—That is a little less than Mr. Robinson got ?
A.—No, the same.

hi Q.—Do you make advances to him, as you did to Mr. Robinson, over and above
8 salary, in anticipation of future increase ?

A.—No, I am not aware of it.

- Q.—Appendix E, I see, shows that on the same day—February 29th, 1876—the
™ of §8,000 was transferred from the account ¢ Parliamentary Expenses ” to the
ount of «« . W. Camberland, special,” when was that entry made ?

to A-lemt was at the same time done by the President. I should like to be allowed

hin‘ixplam that. The President, acting in consequence of information conveyed to

th, by the secretary, on the 20th of March, 1876, requested me to meet him, with
. Secrotary and the auditor, in order that the matters brought to his notice by the
earetary. might be looked into,—and we met accordingly. At the close of the balf’

Witﬁ ending 30th June, 1875, I, as is my habit, looked over the draft balance sheet,

.21 the view of giving instructions with regard to any particular items that I con-
acred ought to be dealt with, as, for instance, profit and loss, suing for some
o o‘mts., and 80 on, and as to chargifg certain items, and classifying them according
30:!’115’ discretion. I had done so with the balance sheet for the half year ending the -

J une, 1875, and directed that the accounts you now mention—these three —should

Acceal’l‘le’ti to “ Amalgamation Special Account, Government Lien, and Corporate

newount. That is, we amalgamated the Extension’s road on the 3rd of June by the

Se Act of Parliament, and we continued the Extension accounts as “ Amalgamation
e:“ﬂ Account,” 80 as to keep them separate from the ordinary and previous-

Wao (B8 of the Northern Railway itself, and they have always been kept in that

‘erfn dva11 to the present date, and are now so kept. And in that memorandum the

Taijyy, Amalgamation Account” means the continuity of the account of the Extension

to ¢ 4ys on their being amalgamated on the 3rd of June. I directed them to be carried

"Ouczt account and by a comparison of that memorandum with voucher number 3107 in

ite, or book, number 46, it will be found that I directed the ¢ transfer ” of these

“tar 10 the « Northern Extension, new account,” and that they were now to be

to exen Into” the Special Account, by order of the Managing Director. What I desire

thy, Dlain is, that, in directing that they should be in the first instance ¢ carried to”
they +3t memorandum was with the view to the preparation of a voucher. That
ns;‘hould.be ‘“carried into " the Special Account, was that they should be bodily
taiy, o rod into the Special Account, and the voucher which I explained before con-
8 the Wwords, “transfer of these items to new account,” and says that they are
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“now to be taken into” that Special Account. Moreover. the clerk who drew the
voucher upon the instruction of the first memorandam, drvew it originally with the
words, * now chargeable to Special Account,” and before I had attached my initif
and passe 1 that voucher, the clerk, by my direction, passed his pen through the
words ~now chargeable,” and inserted the words, by my instruction, ¢ now take?
into.” and it was thus that the voucher was left, and has since vemained. Now, th®
avhole intention of my original memorandum, and of the voucher which was baseé
apon it —iny whole object in getting the clerk to change the words, “now chargeable’
to ths words, “ now taken into,” —was that the debits and the credit should go ¥
gether—that the accounts should be bodily transferred into the Special Accounh
which was a capital account and be there held in suspense, both credit and debit, un
they should be dealt with under the capital account to be raised under the Act ¢
Parliament of last Session.

Q.—That. in fact, they were to be taken out of the capital to be raised by th*
Act ot'last Session ? .

A.—Yes, the reason I trouble you with that explanation is that I wish to ach't
myself of the suggestion that at the time transfor was made. there was any intentio®
on my part to change the form of the account. [ wanted to change the place of h®
account, but not the sorm, and it was therefore that the words * now chargeabl®
were takon out, and the words, “ taken into” put in. I never saw the voucher agail
and [ never saw the entries in the account to which it was carried, or the accoul
which it was ¢ taken into” until that day, the 20th of March, when the President an®
myself looked into them. I had not the slighest suspicion but that my instru®’
tions were carried out, and that the entry was properly made. I never saw th?
entry until the 20th of Marchin the presence of Mr. Thomson, and he then point
out to me very much to my surprise, that the effect of the entry was to change the
nature of the account.

Q.—What change was made ?

A.—Releasing the debits.

Q.—Do you mean to say you did not intend that an entry was to be made bY
which the debits were to be wiped out?

A.—Certainly not. 1 gave no such instruction. I am not a skilled book-keepe®
and I have to be guided by those who are. 1t was not until the time we are n0
speaking of that it came to my knowledge that there was any change in the form of
the acconnts. My intention was to change the place and not the form.

Q.— What place did you mean to change?

A.—To carry them from the revenue account of the Northern, and take the®
into the Special Account of tho Extension, and hold them in suspense.

().—What were the entries which you meant to be made from the vouche®
marked “ Appendix 1"? ,

A.—1 meant, that they should be ¢ transferred,” * carried over,” ¢ taken int0s
just as they stood in the previous books. '

' Q.—What entry would have carried out your idea ?

A.—Thaut I could not say, because T am not a sufficient book-keeper, and 1 do
not remember how they stood. You know that yesterday wereferred to these items
atanding to the debit of the respective parties. Taking them as they stood on tho
30th June, 1873, my intention, order and direction wss to transfer them from b
account where they stood in the Northern accountto the Special Extension Accou?
not t-;: change their form, but to take them from one set of hooks and put them ie
another.

Q.—! thought you said there was only one set of books ?

A.—Although there are two sets of books, there is only one account.

Q.—Have you got the entry here ?

A.—TI have a copy. 1 Kroduce a copy of the original—that is, of my first order;
Exhibit No. L is a copy of the original instruction I gave to the eclerk in charge “
the Special Account.” :

(This document was here put in, and marked “ No. 1.” Vide infra.)
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Q.—Have you the original paper here ?

o A —This is a correct copy of it, but I will bring the original. Tn Appendix I,
 voucher No. 2 here produced, the words, “ now chargeable” were struck out, and the
ords + taken into” substituted by the clerk before I initialled the voucher.

Q.—You initialled this voucher, (No. 2) as amended ?
A —Yes.
Q.~-And it was not until you initialled this voucher as amended, that the entries

Were made in the books ?

A.—No. )
i dentl_il'.lMowat, after comparing the voucher with the euntry, said that they were
ical,
Q.—You see that the entry in the books exactly corresponds with the voucher ¥
A.- -What I submit is this : my order and voucher was adircction to change the
pla“’ and not to change the form, of the account. But the effect of the entries, as
e, was to do that which I did not intend to do.
Q.—Then do you mean that the secretary did not carry out your instructions ?
th A.—T1 mean to say that there must have been a misconception of my order, and
3 1 neither was appealed to for instruction nor explanation, and until in the pre-
NCe of the secretary, on the 20th of March, the effect of that entry was explained

d ll){le by Mr. Thomson, I had supposed that these charges, which stood to individual
®bits when [ gave that voucher, stood to individual debits still.

Q.—Then I understand—not that the secretary did not carry out your instruc-

» but that you did not give the right instruction ?

vo A.—1 say that if the language of my original order for the preparation of a

thchi_ﬂ’ had been obeyed, the subsequent entries would not have the effect of

“gmg the accounts.
Vou ¥ 1 understand yon fo say that the paper marked “ Appendix 1” is the
Ucher which you initialled ? Is this the voucher which constituted the instruetion
© Sec;gtary, as to what he was to enter in the books?
—Yes.
1 Q-ﬁl’oint out where .tl}at entry which he did make, varies from the voucher
dig ?ng him to enter the difference between what you told him to do, and what he

“DOkA"I say the effect has been wholly different from what 1 intended. 1 never
18756 tothe secretary on or about these entries or vouchers between the 30th of June,
» and the 20th of the succeeding March. No conversation, no enquiry, no sug-
t‘;‘m of a change was made to me by anybody. It was not the subject of a word
1876%“ the secretary and myself, and it was only therefore, on the 20th of March,
entry When the President, in .th.e presence of Mr. Hamilton, said that the effect of the
thay 5 was to release the individual debits, that I invited the President to see whether

Was the case, and he =aid it was the case, and then the cross-entry was made.

~~How long have you been Manager of the Railway ?
A —Since 1851.

thay h;ﬁ;‘?& book-keeper, I don’t see how the secretary could have done anything else

wa, ~—I do not say that he could ; but 1 would say that if the secretary found that

Wou| S Instructed to make entries by which individual debits would be released he

thyg, ; Naturally, and as his duty, enquire whether that instruction was given with

taiy, Dtention.” If the secretary had explained to me the effect of the entries con-
n appendix A, they would not have been made.

W gpr _' ou mentioned yesterday that a person of the name of Cameron was employed
gent for tho Chicora at the Sault ?
Lak, SM'H‘? was employed, if T remember rightly, as agent of the Collingwood and
na di:‘llpe}‘lor Royal Mail Line, for the sale of tickets both'on the American and the
ligg a dn side, and especially with the intention of getting passengers off the American
d on the Canadian line.
—~When was he first employed in that office ?
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A .—-T could not tell.

Q --Would your books show ?

A The books of the Coltingwood and Lake Superior Line would. M. impres
sion i~ that the Line paid half of his salary and the Railway Company the other half
I really don’t know whether the steamboat line paid the whole or whether we p:li
part.

Q.~~Had there been an agent there at the expense or part of the expense of the
Company before this Cameron was employed ?

A.—1 do not think there was. There had been an agent at the Bruce Mines, and
another agent at Thunder Bay, and we were of the opinion, as were the steambod
line, that it would be desirable to have an agent also at the Sault Ste. Marie.

Q.—And Cameron was accordingly the first person appointed there ?

A —1I think so.

Q.—I think you say he was employed for the rest of that season ?

A.—Yes. It only runs while the boats are running. :

QQ—Was there an agent employed for the same purpose at the Sault the
following year ? -

A —I o not think so. I think when he ceased to be agent, we found that it did
not produre much advantage, and we stopped it at the end of that season.

Q.—When did the election take place there ?

A.—I do not know, I think it was after the other elections.

Q.—Speaking of elections, you gave us, I think, about $4,600 as the amount of
expenses for your own three clections ?

A.— They came to more than that. What Isaid was that the difference between
the $6,245 and the amount of the note for $10,411-92 was election expenses, includ-
ing all my elections. :

Q.—Was that the only amount for election expeunses ?

A.—Certainly. That is the only amount, as being taken from my persorml
account. [f1 spent more on my elections, that i3 my own matter. It has not yet
come out of the Company, but assuming that the Company will, as I assume, they
will, relieve me from the pressure of those election expenses, then it is clear that all
they can relieve me from is the difference of the note.

Q.—Were there no other election expenses that were borne by the Company but
those you have mentioned ?

A.—-No other.

Q.—Whatever else there was was out of your own pocket ?

A.—Yes.

(L —You said that you could give the particulars of some of these sums we were
talking of yesterday. Have you provided yourself with the means of doing 80
Speaking of the Algoma election, most of the items there are drafts, andso on. Have
you got the particulars showing how they were expended ?

A.—That was all charged to my personal account.

Q.—Can you give me the particulars of the note of $2,616 given to Hamilton &
Sons ?

A.—TI told you yesterday that I could not. I told you it was involved in expendi"
tures for deputations, &e.

Q.—I understood you to say yesterday *hat you got the proceeds of that note and
they were disbursed by the parties who were working the opposition to the Midlan
road ?

A.—Yes.

Q.—And from whom did they get the money ?

A.—From lamilton. Ile, L suppose, discounted that note, and the proceeds of
it were taken by the parties working.

Q.—Did the proceeds not pass through your hands ?

A.—I believe there wax a bundle of bank notes—I never opened it. It was sen®
or taken to my oftice by 1lamilton.
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Q—When the bundle of bank notes was brought into your office, what did you
do with them ?

A.—I sent them down to the city within two minutes after receiving them.

Q.—Did you divide the money before sending it down ?

A.—No, 1 did not open it.

Q.—Then you sent the bulk down without making any division at all ?

A.—] never broke the seal.

Q—Did you give directions as to how it was to be divided ?

A.—T had nothing to do with any division of it.

Q.—To whom, then, did you send it ?

A.—To Mr. Wilson, Mr. Frank Smith’s partner.

Q.—Is he living now ?

A.—-He died about two years ago.

Q.—Did you send him the money jusi as you received it

A.—Yes, just as Hamilton sent it to me.

Q.—By whom did you send it ?

A.—By my son.

Q.—Did you give him any instructions as to what he was to do with it ?

A.—He knew what was to be done with it.

Q.—What kind of notes ?

A.—] don't know.

Q.—Did you give any directions as to what kind of notes ?

A.—No, I didn’t know anything about them.

. Q.—Were you aware how the money was to be divided before you sent it ta

Wilson 7

A.—TI was only aware that it was to bedisbursed in the campaign in which
Were engaged.

Q.—How came it to be an uneven sum--$2,616 ?
kindA.——The note was $2,600. The $16 must have been interest or something of that

Q.—I think you said you could get the particulars of the $2,181.29 ?
A.—1 think you quite misunderstood me. That was the overdraw of my personal
4¢ount—the cxact amount of my overdraw at that date,
Q.—Is it therefore impossible to say what the particulars of that note consist of ?
A.—Certainly, without reference to my personal accounts.
By Mr. Cameron : —
to Q—TI understood Mr. Cumberland to say he gave no instructions to make any entry
Wipe out these debits, and he had no such intention ?
voue“}:xé——lt was against my intention, and against my order as expressed in my
r,
out Q2—Ts this statement correct : “I gave no instruction to make my entry to wipe
% these debits, and if such was the effect, such was against my intention and against
. ¥ order as expressed in my voucher ? ”
A.—Yes.
By Mr. Armour :—
ty Q'.~What, was done with the notes that represented these debits, were they
Nsferred from the Northern into the Northern Extension account ?
tio A.—Yos; and the notes were handed over to the clerk who kept the last men-
Med account, and who now produces them.
r. Mowat here proposed a general examination of the books by the accountant.
Mr. Cameron refused to assent to any accountant examining the books of the
Pany generally, and without reference to any specific charge, or sum of money
¢h the Government expects to show to be incorrect, or to which the Government
™ to be entitled, as a part of the proceedings under this Commission ; also, to allow
bef CXamination unless the party examining is sworn, and makes the examination
ex r® the Commission, on some statement on the part of the Government, that th
}‘Pect ' ; ON sOIe Sta .p. 7 ent, that the
to show that they are entitled to some further sums of money than those
31
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which are spocifically charged and referred to in the Commission. and to state
what those sums are. He also contended that the Commission hasno power to order
an examination of the bookx.

ToroNTO, August 30th, 1876,

Mr. Cumberland’s evidence as taken down by the stenographer, having been read
over and corrected, -

Mr. Cumberland desired to make the following explanation with reference to
two sets of books :—

When I spoke of two sets of books, my meaning was this: Those are the book#
of the Northern Railway, and when the Northern Extension railways weve purchased
we thought it better to continue the purchase and amalgamation as a separate
account, and in the hands of the clerk who had previously kept the Extension account.
Both books are Northern, the distinction being that the Extension special account
deals with transactions arising out of amalgamation, and is a capital account, whilst
the Northern accounts are all revenue accounts, 1 desire to add, with reference to the
transfer of the Chicora. that, although the purchase was muade as [ have aiready
stated, the transfer or bill of sale was in fact made to Mr. IF'rank Smith and Mr. Noah
Barnhart only. I was in error in saying that my name wis included. She stands in
their names still.

(Signed) FRED. CUMBERLAND.
The Commission then adjourned.
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(Exhibit A. Filed 25th August, 1876.)

—

ALGOMA ELECTION,

1872,
July 22 To Clnequc Self coiieiiiiiiieeiieea $ 400 00
Augast I, “ 4 e 500 00
do 17. “ © rrreerarerensinacensens 600 00

Sept. 7. ‘ drafts of Mr.Shortisson G.D.B 500 00
do 10. « cheque in payment of Plum-
mer’'s acCoUNts....cueeaeyereees 1,468 68
do  10. “ cheque, draft of Mr. Church.. 50 00
do  31. “ amount paid from F. W. C’s.
private account N, Jones dratt.. 150 00
do 18. ¢ cheque I. B. R......cceuvennnne.. 226 00
do 18, « » N. L sundry accounts, 345 00%

4,239 68
Mr. Boulton’s draft....cc.cviiviienniine cevieininnn. 200 00
4,439 68
Str. AlGoma...vviiiiieiiiiiieiiiiiieiireirenrerninsiens . 730 00 F.W.C ( At close
Thro’ tickets...covveeiiiiiiiiiieiiniiieninn e eeineennn, 263 50 F.W.C. of season
J. T. Rolphs, account..ivvviiiiiiinierienns cenees 7 50 F.W.C. (_account.
$5,440 68
Carry to suspense account and let & per mouth be transfurred.
Monthly % contingencies.
do % Parlmmenmly expenses.
do  § Legal expenses.
(Signed) F.W.C.
F. W. Cumberland to be credited with.....cooereunernnnnn... 84,239 68
G. D. Boulton do e 200 00
$1.439 68
FAL CaMOION ittt et reertes s v er e s eens $ 50 00
Bampton.....coeeenviii i, ererreeriete et e e aess 143 00
Luxton ..o e e 20 00
JOUES .ot e e e e e 122 00
Corhould tuvvveiii e 1000

§345 00
T For this Voucher see Voucher Book No. 38, No. 3,417.
ORoNra, 31st Qctober 1872,
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APPENDIX A.

——

Northern Extension Railway, New Account, Dr.
To Sundries.
For transfer of these amounts, being items standing at the debit of the following
accounts on 30th June 1875, and now taken into special account, the former by order
of the Managing Director pp. No. 3,107.

To Wiiliam Hamilton & Son, Note of 21st October, 1871,
and disCOUNLt...ccvivrriecanriarienes coemreonnne savenen $2,616 00
D. L. Macpherson, p. cheque of 14th January 1871.. 2,500 00
Bills Receivable. F. W, Cumberland’s Note
of 30th June, 1869........ccovenvrueen. . § 2181 29
And Note of 15th April, 1873....... 10,411 92
—— 12,593 21

$17,709 21

For the above entry see Journal No. 8, folio 497 of 30th June? 1875,—Carried
into Ledger No. 7, folios 569, 895, and 559.

APPENDIX B.

Municipal Bonus & Government Subsidies Expenses, Dr.
To Northern Railway Company ** New Account.”

For amounts transferred by Northern Railway Company, being items standing
to debit of the following in their books 30th June, 1875, by order of Managing

Director.
W fHamilton & Son eeevnniiienniiiieiniinan. 2,616 00
D. L. Macpherson...ccoviiivunererinieinniiinciinns 2,500 00
Bills Receivable..cciiiiiiiieriiiiiis veviiiiennnnnane, 12,593 21

$17,709 21
For theabove scegVoucher Book “Special Account” Voucher No. 49.

APPENDIX.

Municipal Bonus & Government Subsidies Expenses, Dr.
To Northern Railway Company “ New Account.”

For amounts transferred by Northern Railway Company, being items standing
to debit of the tollowing in their books 30th June, 1875:

Wm. Hamilton & Son.....cveviiiiiie i, 2,616 00
D. L. Macpherson........ccoocviiniiiiiienc e, 2,500 09

Bills Receivable....ooveviniiiiiiiiiiininnn ., 12,593 21
_— 817,700 21

For the above entry see Journal ¢« Special Account ” folio No. 9 of 30th June, 1870-
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APPENDIX C.

Svuxpries, Dr.
To Municipal Bonus & Grovernment Subsidies Expenses for the following amounts :

W. Hamilton & Son, being the note-of the Norcthern Railway Company
Te W. Hamilton & Son, dated 21st October 1871.... 2,616 00
D. T.. Macpherson..ovevenanio, rerereereie e, evrenss 2,500 00
F. W. Cumberlan, adjustment account, represented
by 2 notes, one dated 30th June, 1869 @ 47..... 2,181 29
the other dated 15th April, 1873 @ 67.. 10,411 92

12,593 21

$17,709 21

For the above entry see “ Special Account,” Journal folio No. 39, February 29th,
1876. TLedger folios 60, 340, 341.

APPENDIX D.

—
T “ MoNTREAL, 256th February 1873,
Hos, HamiLron, Esq.,
Sec. Northern Railway of Canada,
Toronto.

On demand pay to the order of Fred. B. Cumberland, or himself, cight thousand

Qollapg ($8,000) and charge the same to “ Parliamentary Expenses Suspense Account,
(Signed) FRED. B. CUMBERLAND.
Received payment,
(Signed) FRED. B. CUMBERLAND.

For the above see Draft Book No. 11.

APPENDIX.

1873,
Pebl'llary 28.

By Parliamentary Iixpeuses paid F. W. Cumberland’s

sight dratt of 25th February......coooiiviiiiiiiinnnnnan. $8,000 (0
For the above entry sce (ash Book No. 40 of' 28th February, 1873, folio 287
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APPENDIX E.

—

1876.
February 29.

F. W. Cumberland ““Special Account” Dr.

To Parliamentary Expenses :

For this amount representing a portion of Mr. Cum-
berland’s investment in steamer Chicora which
sum is to be represented by an assignment of his
interest in said steamer to the above extent and
held by this Company as a security for such
advance, the said investment to be made matter
of enquiry with a view to adjustment, No. 5,592...... $8,000 00

For the above entry see Journal No. 8, folio No. 608,  29th February, 1876, and
Ledger No. 7, folio 965.

NORTHERN RAIiLwAy or CANADA.
GENERAL MANAGER’s OFFICE.

Memorandum.
Toronto, 187 .
Accts. 1, 3 and 4 to be carried to Amalgamation—Special Acct. “Government Lieh
and Corporate Account” (to be opened.)

No. 1. Hamilton & Son.....ccovvveviiivnnnnn.n ... .8 2616.
.No. 3. D. L. Macpherson.........cc.oceevviinnniinnnnn, 2,509,
No. 4. Bills Receivable c.ooouviiuiiiiiiiinias cinneni 12,000.

APPENDIX I.

Voucher. .
Northern Exiension # New Account,” Dr,
To Sundries :

For transfer of these amounts, being items standing to the debit of th*
following accounts, 30th June, 1875, and now taken into Special account by orde
of Managing Director.

To William Hamilton & Son—balance of account.................. $2,616.00
D. L. Macpherson....co... veeeviiiiiiiinienninnieiniin e cveen 2’500.00
Bills Receivable. F. W. (s Note 30th June, 1869 $ 2,181.29 ’

do 15th April, 1873 10,411.92

12,593.21

S

$17,709.21

P

For above sce Voucher Book No. 46,Voucher No. 3107.
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Toronto, September 14, 1876.

Mr. C. J. CAMPBELL, sWOr'LD.

Kxamined by Mr. Bethune.

Q.—You were a stockholder in the Northern Railway Company ?

A.—1I was.

.—And I believe that a certain number of the stockholders were at one time
dissatisfied with the management of the road ?

A.—They were.

Q.—And an arrangemoent was come to between the stockholders and the Company
that they would take some steps with a view of having the affairs of the road
properly investigated ?

A.—There was. A meeting of the shareholders was held, and a committee was
appointed to look after the interests of the shareholders.

Q.—Were you a member of that committee?

A.—1 was not at that time a shareholder. Subsequently I became 4 shareholder,
and I joined the committec.

Q.—What did that Committee do ?

A.—They held meetings from time to time, and discussed the proposed bill
which we understood was to be brought before Parliament.

Q.—Did you retain solicitors on behalf of the shareholders?

A.—The committee appointed Mr. Gordon solicitor on behalf of the committee
and the shareholders, an(}) they agrecd to pay his expenses.

Q.—Was any fee to be paid to him? -

A.—No special fee was named, but he was to be paid by the shareholders through
this committee.

Q.—I believe that some settlement took place between this committee of
Sharebolders and Mr. Cumberiand ropresenting the road at the time this bill was

efore Parliament ?

A.—They ﬁnallz agreed upon a bill, which they took to Ottawa to endeavour to
get passed, but in which they failed.

Q.—That was in 1874 ?

A.—No, that was in 1875. And then, finding we could not get what we wanted,
we applied for what we could get.

(Q.—At the time you came to this basis of agreement with the Northern Railway

mpany, was there any understanding as toindemnifying the committee in regard
to expenses to which they were put in Ottawa ?

.—No understanding.
Q.—Was there any agreement with the Railway Company for paying Morrison,
Wells & Gordon ? ‘

A.—Not that I am aware of.

Q.—1 believe that a sum of money was afterwards paid to Morrison, Wells &
Gordon, a sum paid to their agents in England, and a sum paid to yourself and Mr.

enison ?

A.—After the matter was closed, we discussed the question of costs, and as the
shareholders were liable for the costs, and as the legislation was the general desire
of the shareholders and the Company, we thought t%at the Railway Company should
Pay the bill. Mr. Gordon made out a statement of the costs, and ‘Mr. Cumberland
agreed that the costs xhould be paid by the Company.

By the Chairman :—

Q.—Is it a fact that the committee wished Mr. Gordon to go to England and obtain
300,000 pounds ? ‘

A.—Yes. If he negotiated that amount of stock, he was to get one per ¢ent on it.

Q.—How was the amount tixed at about $5,000 ?

A.—Tt was a fee for his services during the whole period.

The witness desired to make the following correction :—
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With regaurd to the costs, Mr. Cumberland acquiesced in the principle of the
Company paying them without saying what the costs would he, and it was understood
that that matter was to be left between Mr. Gordon, Mr. Denison and myself, und
that two of us could decide what was to be paid by the Company, Mr. Denison and
myw~elf.

By Mr. Bethune :—

Q.—Were was this understanding come to ?

A.—At the Company’s Office at Toronto.

Q.—At what period ? Before the bill was passed ?

A.—After the bill was agreed to.

Q.—Up to that period was there any liability on the part of the Company for the
payment of these costs ?

A.—Not that 1 am aware of.

Q.—Who werae liable for the payment at that time ?

A.—The shareholders were to be assessed pro ratd, according to the amount of
stock they held. .

Q.—That is, the dissentient shareholders ?

A.—Yes, originally, it was the understanding between the committes and Mr.
Gordon that the shareholders, whom the committee represented should pay the
CO8ts.

Q.—Up to that time no bill had been rendered to you by Morrison, Wells and
Gordon ?

A.—No.

Q.—Had you any idea of what their claim amounted to ?

A.—None whatever.

Q.—At the time the arrangement was made between Mr. Cumberland, yourself,
and Mr. Denison, was an approximation of the amount of the bill mentioned ?

A.~1 think not.

Q.—~When did you first know the amount of the bill ?

A.—At the meeting which took place at the Northern Railway offices Mr. Deni-
son and I discussed the matter, and then the items came up.

Q.—Were you aware what was the size of the bill ?

A.—I was not. Ishould say that it had been agreed to pay Mr. Denison $2,000
as secretary of the committee.

Q —At what time ?

A.—When he was appointed secretary of the committee.

Q.—Was that agreement in writing ?

A.—T think it was a resolution passed by this commitiee.

Q. —Was there any writing signed by you, Mr. Denison, and Mr. Cumberland at
the time you discussed this matter in the office.

A.—I think there was not.

Q.—Upon what principle was it thought that the Company was liable—they had
not discussed this agreemeut, and they had not discussed these costs until the Bill was

assed ?
P A.—The general principle that where litigation takes place between shareholders
and a public company, the costs follow the Bill. ‘

Q.—But the Bill usnally provides for the costs in such cases ?

A.—I do not know, I am sure.

Q.—Did this Bill provide for any ?

A.—They did not appear.

Q.—-Can you explain how the shareholders were liable ?

A.—Mpr. Cumberland can tell you that.

Q.—YCan you give any principle ?

A.—By the same principle I mentioned.

Q.—Did Mr. Camberland raise any objections to the paymertt ?

A.—Not that I am aware of.

Q.—A statement has been put in helga by Mr. Gordon, which was furnished to
3
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Yourself, and which goes to show the principle and the amount of the Bill. Do you
now anything as to the statement of” facts regarding the amount of work done by
Morrison, Wells and Gordon ?

A.—I know as to the number of meetings held, the large number of documents
Prepared by Mr. Gordon, and as to his going to England. There was a great deal of
Wwork arising out of this English mission.

Q.—Have you any doubt as to the facts in this letter of the 6th of April, 18767

A.—1I have not. ‘

Q.—When did you first submit to Mr. Cumberland the Bill of costs referred to?

A.—I cannot recollect the date.

Q.—It was submitted by whom?

A .-—It was a certificate submitted by me in pursnance of the arrangement.

Q.—Was it a verbal communication that passed between you and Mr. Cumber-
land when you submitted the account, or was it a written statoment ?

A.—TIt was a written statement furnished by me showing the accounts,

Q.—Have you that statement here ?

(Exhibit marked “ No. 3” was here put in.)

.. Q—This seems to have been certified by “C. J. Campbell, 10th May, 1875.”
Did Mr. Cumberland raiso any objection to the account?

A.—No, he did not.

. Qd-?— Are you quite sure that there was no arrangement made before the Bill was
asged ?

A.—There was no arrangement before this Bill was agreed to.

Q.—Then the first arrangement made was this verba% arrangement after the bill
Was aA.greed to, and before it was finally passed ? '

~-Yes.

Q.—Then it was before the bill was passed that this arrangement was come to?

A.—T do not remember exactly in what month the arrangement was come to.
}t was after we had agreed upon the basis, but before the Bill was actually passed.

Q.-—-Was the payment made after theB ill was passed ?

A.-Yes, some time after the Bill was passed.

Q.—How was the payment made ?

A.~-Tt was made by four notes.

Q.—--Payable to whom ?

AT am not certain whether they were payable to myself or Mr. Denison. I
8hould like to say that I had no interest in these charges except tho amount I received
Or my own disbursements, $276.92, my actual expenditure.

By Mr. Mowat : —

Q.-—Avre you able to say whether the statements in this letter of Mr. Gordon to
You are correct or not ?

A.—T cannot say absolutely that they are correct, but I believe to the best of my
knOwledge they are correct. Of course I have had no opportunity of checking the
Bumber of meetings, &c., but I believe generally that that statement is correct. I

ow Mr. Gordon devoted a great deal of time to the affairs of the Railway. He is
Yery anxious to be examined himself on the matter.

Q.—What was the total amount of the costs ?

A.—The total amount of the costs is $9,665.68, and the amount charged in favor
“f myself is part of that,
¥ Q.—Was any agreement, in writing, so far as you know, made between

orrison, Wells and Gordon and the dissentient shareholders about the payment of
18 money ?

A.—Not that I recollect.

Q.—Have you heard of any agreement being in the custody of Col. Denison ?

A.—T have not.

Q.—T see in the examination there is a reference to a sum of $276.92. Did that
®ver your entire expenses, or were you paid any part of the $5,000 ?

A.—None whatever. I have explained that before.
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Q.—And that $276.92 was the only sum which you received ?
A.—Yes.
By the Chairman :—

Q.——Then you have not charged your expenses to Englund ?

A.—That has nothing to do with this whatever. That sum was simply my
disbursements between Ottawa, here, and New York.

Q.—But you did go to Fngland on the business of the Northern Railway ?

A.—Yes, T went last winter.

Q.—On what business ?

A.—It had nothing to do at all with the proceedings of the shareholders’
committec.

(Signed) . F. CAMPRELL.

Mr, F."W. CuMBERLAND was recalled.

Examined by Mr. Mowat.

Q.—You sent & memorandum on the subject of this item of $9,655.68 to the
Government. When was that ?

A.--The date of it was the 17th April, 1876. A letter of explanation accom-
panied it.

Q.—Do that letter and memorandum state correctly what you know with regard
to this item ?

A —Yes.

Q—1Is there any addition which you would ike to make with regard to that
statement, ov any explanation?

A.—T should like to read it over before doing so.

(The witness then read a portion of the letter.) \

Q. —That memorandum is a correct statement of fact, snd.contains a correct
statement of your views?

A.—Yes.

Q.—Are these still your views?

A.—Quite so.

Q.—1 observe two documents are mentioned, and one is a lotter of Mr. Cnmpbell
to the shareholders’ committce. Is that Mr. Campbell’s ¢ Explanatory Memorandum ?”

A.—Yes. Of course, I had nothing to do with that. In my letter to the Govern-
ment, I «imply enclosed a copy of that.

(This memorandum was here put in, and marked “No. 4.”")

Q.—Was this payment made with the authority of the Board—this sum of
$9,665.68 ?

A.—It was made on my own authority.

Q.—And the reasons of your making it are those which you state in your memo-
randum to the Government ?

A.—Yes.

(Signed) FRED. CUMBERLAND.

(Exhibit 1. Fyled 14th September, 1875.)
Private.

ToroNTo 5th April, 1876.
Dxar GorpoN,—

I would feel obliged by your furnishing me with a full statement of the ground$
upon which you founded your claim for the compensation which was paid your fir®
by the Shareholders Committee of the Northern Railway.
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If I remember rightly, the matter was only discussed in a general way when T
Certified the bill and 1 xhould now be glad to have the items of the claim in detail.
Youars faithfully,
(Signed) C. J. CAMPBELL.
W. H. Lockaart Gorpoy, Exq.

(Exhibit ) -
ToronTo, Gth April 1876.
Dear Mz, CavMpBELL,—

. In reply to your letter of the 5th instant, asking me to give you in writing a
full statement of the grounds upon which we founded our claim against the Committee-
of the Sharcholders of the Northern Railway which was afterwards settled at $5000 ;

have to say that if I remember rightly at the time you certified the bill the different
Services rendered and the claims we had against the shareholders were discussed in
3 general way and the sum referred to was then fixed as a proper amount to be paid
to us in settlement of these services and claims.

. However, as you wish me to mention to you again the services rendered and the
Clrcumstances under which T acted for the Committee, I am verry happy to do so.

. You will remember that the Shareholders’ Committee authorized me to go to-
Lﬂgland and raise the £300,000 of new capital for them, and for this I was to receive
One per cent, or say $15.000. On this understanding I crossed the Atlantic in June,
1874, and was absent three months, endeavouring to raise this new capital, I would

ave successfnlly accomplished this and had found parties ready to place the loan on
the market had the Shareholders obtained for me the co-operation of the other parties
Wterested in the road. On my return to Canada in September, 1874, the Committee
deknowledged the services I rendered them by passing the fdllowing resolution :

MEETING.
22nd September, 1874.

« “Mr. Gordon reported verbally the result of his mission to England which was:

. Most satisfuctory to the Committee, and it was moved by Mr. Scarth and secondod

« by Mr. Shortiss, that Mr. Gordon’s efforts and operations in England meet with the

. hearty approval of the Committee, and that the Committee hereby tender thanks to
Mr. Gordon for his exertions in the interests of the Shareholders.”

The shareholders having subsequently failed in obtaining for me the powers
Tequired before the new capital could be placed, and having subsequently made
Arrangements with the Executive of the Northern Railway which took the negotia-
00 of this loan out of my hands, I believe I was legally entitled to claim the
15,000 promised to me by them in writing. At any rate, I was entitled to some
Considerable compensation when the matter was taken out of my hands.
. With regard to the other services: they are very numerous and extend over a
Period of two years. It probably will be best for me therefore to divide them under
Separate headings.

Attendances and Services at Ottawa.

I find on referring to our books that Mr. Wells and I paid no less than ten visits
Ottawa between April, 1874 and April, 1875. On some of these occasions, we were
ere three weeks at a time, on others a fortnight and at other times ten days and a
Week. T think only \on two occasions did we remain less than five or six days. I
Would be glad to give you the exact number of days wo were absent on each occa-
&IQD_, but inasmuch as we expected to be remunerated by a fee for our attendances

Wing each of the two Sessions of Parliament we have only kept an account of our
®Xpenditure on each of these visits, and not of the time, and without referring to the
41
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Hooks of the hotel where we stopped on each occasion T cannot see how I can furnish
you with any more definite information ou this point.  In addition to the visits to
Ottawa during the two Sessions reforrel to Me. Wells an i I wore theve on the two
other vecasions on Northern Railway business. on each ot which time, I think, we
were absent from Toronto four days at least. 1 believe I am within the mark when
I say that the time given by us to the business at Ottawa could not have been less
than three months altogether. During pretty nearly the whole of each of the
two Sessions either Mr. Wells or I was watching the interests of the shareholders of
the Northern Railway at Ottawa, which was a considerable service in itself.

Attendances on the Committee.

Since April, 1874, until October, 1875, T have been in constant attendance on the
Shareholders’ Committee, being present I think at about twenty mectings, and cach
meeting generally lasted about two or three hours. I have prepared all the important
papers, letters and notices published or sent out by this Committee. I have on two
occasions deawn Bills for the committee to be submitted to Parliament in the interests
of the Shareholders and prepared petitions regarding the same.

Attendances before the Municipal Councils of Toronto and Simcoe.

I have on several occasions attended before committees of the City Council with
& view to procuring the co-operation of the City of Toronto, and have also gone to
Barrie to obtain the assistance of the County of Simcoe.

Attendunces at the Northern Railway and on Conunittees appointed by the Company.

You ave also aware that last yoar, after the annual mceting of the Northern
Railway at which I was present in the interests of the shareholders, I was, with you
and Col. Denison, appointed on a special joint committee of shareholders and bond-
holders which had for its object a settlement of the differences between the two
parties. These committees met at least half a dozen times, each meeting lasting
nearly the whole of « day, and on each of these occasions 1 was present in the interests
of the shareholders and acting for them.

Legilation.

Ycu also know that the Northern Railway Bill of 1875, was the production of
" Mr. Edgar acting for the company, and of myself acting for the shareholders. Mr.
Edgar drew the Bill but I spent many hours over it both alone and in conjunction
with him and Mr. Camberland in endeavouring to make it acceptable to all parties.
You will understand that before I could properly examine thix Bill T had to thoroughly
acquaint myself with all the previous Acts of the Company and also of the Extension
Companies and to be thoroughly posted on the guestion of amalgamation which waé
one of the subjects dealt with by the Bill. The obtaining of this information alone wa#
no inconsiderable labor.

Correspondence.

I find that in letters alone Thave at different times, during the two years, written
over oue hundred large sheets of letter paper. It would be quite impossible for me
to mention in this letter the numerous pamphlets, papers and documents I have
prepared in support of the shareholders’ views, but if you desire it I can show yo®
some of these, copies of which I have retained.

From this statement you will sce the large amount of work that has been done
and the large amount of time that Mr. Wells and T have been necessarily absent
from the office. I consider that this cannot be reckoned at less than six months i
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all, and as a business man you will readily understand how six months’ absence from
e office must necessarily affect the business of the firm.

We felt this muatter was a very important one for the shareholders, and that the
Wterests involved in these Parliamentary contests were large. We therefore spared
D0 time or trouble in our endeavours to get the shareholders recognized, and when a
avorable arrangement was made for them at Ottawa, we think, looking at all the
CIrcumstances of the case, and the arrangement under which we took the matter up,
Were entitled to be well remunerated for our services, whereas wo have received from
the shareholders what, as you know, I always thought was considerably less than

_We might fairly have claimed.

In conclusion, I may mention that in addition to the services above set out,
Iappeared for you before the arbitrators appointed to value the stock, and also for
the ‘shareholders at the Special General Meeting called by Mr. Cumberland, with a
View of carrying the commutation of the stock at the price fixed by the arbitrators.

. 1 hope this statement is what you desire. If any thing requires further explana-
tion, T shall be most happy to give you all the explanation you may ask.

I am, dear Sir,
Yours faithfully,

o (Signed) W. H. LOCKHART GORDON.
v Jo CAMPBELL, Esq,,
Toronto.



40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 10.) A. 1877

(Eshibit 3))
The Committee of the Shareholders of the Northern Railway of Canada
To Morrison, Wells & Gordon, Dr.

1874. $ cts. $ cte
March 12 ... Paid cablegram to Agents in London....ccoevueivenneivonsrneconienen, 17 00
18 ..... do do do o] 13 00
27 g do to them again...... . 4 00
April 27 ‘Mr Gordon 8 expenses to Ottawa.. 31 50
May 26 ....| do do .. 62 00
26 .....|Mr. Wells do do ... . 60 25
Mr. Gordon’'s expenses in Ottawa, New-York and Englaud. 454 17
Sept. 24 .....!Cab hire...... cecevees rvireeeeen esssanae aiserecsransnnen sesnasses saressers 075
Oct. 21.... Paid for Printing Powers of attorney from Shareho‘ders 5 00
30 .....|Expenses of Mr. Wells and Mr. Gordon at Ottawa ... 54 00
1875.
February 22./Mr. Gordon's expenses at OttaWa. v.covves vieviiies vevrreneennencen. ceeees 32 00 l
March 1....JExpenses at Ottawa going to and returning therefrom 41 00
2......Mr. Gordon's expenses at Ottawn a second time..... 41 00 l
10.....[Cab hire .oociietiiiiiiin cervnenes evenenne crrsiiens cenernnens 0 50
13..... do .. 025
15.....1Paid telegmm from Mr. Campbell 0 67
Paid reply to him .......... 0 30
17.....|Telegram to Mr. Wells. 0 42
19.....|Reply from him........ ceveees 0 26
22.....|Mr. Wells’ expenses at Ottawa ... 74 50
33.....|Paid express charges on parcel o 2 90
29.....1Paid eab hire....ccoccvvveeee evinniniennn vnaees o resenseeerrses ovossen 100
Postage... 5 00
Cheque to get “draft for £200 stg, “to send Agents in London
or their charges.......oveeeeeeeennnnnes [T 995 00
|| 1,886 47
April  6..... Fec for services rendered by Mr. Gordon......ccsveeees vveverarveennines 5,000 00 5,0@
6,886 47
Add G. T. Denison, Secretary, claim... 2,404 29
Add C. J. Campbell do .. 276 92
Add R. L. Denison Ao . 98 00
—| 2,
! _—
[ $9,685 68
i -
Received payment by the Northern Railway Company’s notes as follows :—
8‘3,697 61 due 10th June, 1875.
: 2" 69 ¢« 10th July, 1875
l,. 22 69 ¢« 10th Aug., 1875.
2,322 69 +  10th Sept., 1875.
$9,665 68
For the Committee of Shareholders.
(Signed) GEORGE T. DENISON,
Seet. of Committee.
« C. J. CAMPBELL.

May 10, 1875.
“ Legal and Parliamentary expenses, ’

(Signed) F. W. C
14
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NorTHERN RArLwAy oF CANADA,
GENERAL MANAGER'S OFFICE,

ToroxToO, 11th May, 1875.
Thos. HaMiLtox, Esq.,
Secretary.
Make and execute to the Compary’s own order, four notes as follows :—

$2,697 61 payable 10th June, 1875.

2,322 69 “ 10th July, 1875.

2,322 69 “  10th August, 1875.

2,322 69 “  10th September, 1875.

$9,665 68 and charge the same to “New Capital Account Parliamentary
Expensges ”’ upon which consult me.

(Signed.) FRED. CUMBERLAND.

(Exhibit No. 4 filed 14th Sept., 1875.)
No. 2. N. R. C.

“ 1)EGAL AND PARLIAMENTARY EXPENsEs, 1875.”
Memorandum.

Adverting to the letter of Mr. Buckingham, Private Secretary to the First
inister, dated Ottawa, 31st March, 1876, and requesting explanations as to an
alleged “irregular payment during the past year, said to have been mude by the
“Board, to certain sharcholders in Toronto for alleged services rendered by them,” I
g to report as follows :
The private shareholders held a meeting at Toronto, on 11th March, 1874, and
en appointed a committee to watch the interests of the stock in connection with
Certain legislation then contemplated by the Directors.

Such committee being composed of a majority of persons not shareholders in the
‘ompany, was not recognized by the Board.

Such committee, nevertheless, continued to act, and did act in hostility to the

irectors and (and as they scemed to think) in promotion of the interests of the share
Capital. :
Due in great measure to such hostility, no legislation was obtained in 1874..

The opposition of the committee was conducted under the guidance of counsel,
and an Agent was sent to London, England, to promote the financial scheme adopted

Y the committee with a view to the raising of the new capital.
. A draft Bill was presented by the Board at the annual general meeting, held on
Wednesday, the 10th February, 1875, which encountered the opposition of the share-
olders, but was ultimately approved by a majority vote of the Company, the share-
olders voting in the negative.
. Tt was, nevertheless, felt that the passage of the Bill would be greatly hindered,
If not abrolutely endangered, unless some arrangement could be come to with the
‘ﬂhareholdcrs, and a committee of shareholders was appointed to that meeting « with
‘: a view to an agreement upon the proposed Bill, such committee consisting of Mr.
C. J. Campbell and Col. Denison (with their solicitor, Mr. Gordon”) representing
an absolute majority, by proxies, of the whole share capital of the Company in
Personal holding.

A meeting was held with that committee on Saturday, the 13th February, when
the draft Bill was discussed and an effort made so to reframe some of its clauses as to
Satisfy alike the views of the Board and of the shareholders.
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At that mecting, Mr. Cuinberland with the Parliamentary counsel (Mr. Edgar)
was present on behalf of the Board.

After great lubor and long discussion. the Bill was re-drawn in the clauses causing
the difference, and the difficulties so far compromised and adjusted as to lead to its
final adoption by all parties and in mutual interest. Thereupon. and on the same
night, all the parties to the Bill proceeded together to Ottawa to promote the measure.

When a final solution had been reached and before separating, the question of the
payment of expenses was raised on behalf of the shareholders. and it was urged that
in all like cases of hostility in regard to legislation between the Directorate and the
shareholders of a Company, and when a settlement was reached by mutual conces-
sions, all precedent charged the expenses to the Company and not to the individual
shareholders.

After some discussion this view was assented to by Mr. Cumberland and Mr
Edgar.
The question of amount was then raised by Mr. Cumberland, but as no accounts
had been prepared, and as there were further expenses yet to be incurred in regard to
the Bill, it was impossible to state then : and it was then expressly agreed that no
charges should be made excepting such ag the shareholders would have been legally
liable for and must have paid if no arrangements had been concluded with the Com-
pany. Mr. Cumberland under advize of Mr. Edgar then consented that the expenses
thus limited should follow the settlement and be paid by the Company, provided
further that all accounts should first be approved and certitied by Mr. Campbell and
Col. Denison on behalf of the shareholders.

Having regard to the interests of the shareholders. as represented by Messrs.
Campbell and Denison, to the reputation of tho-e gentiemen, and to the high
standing of the firm of Morrison Wells and Gordon with whom the expenses had
mainly been incurred, it was felt that the Company was fully protected by that
arrangement. .

The Bill as mutually adopted was promoted at Ottawa by all the parties, acting
in concert, and (with some amendments made in Committee) was ultimately passed,
and became law on the 8th April, 1875. .

Some timo thereafter an account of the expenses was presented to Mr. Cumber-
land through Mr. Campbell. but not being certified in accordance with the above
understanding it was returned to Messrs. axmpbe]l and Denison for their examination
and audit. ‘ . :

Those gentlemen having satisfied themselves as to the charges, returned the
account certified by them for payment.

And on the 10th May, 1875, the account was adjusted at $9.665.68 and wasimme-
diately passed, under ordinary routine, into the Treasurer’s office for payment and
record, wheve tt still is, with all similar vouchers, and where it has been entered
and classitied to * Legal and Purliamentary Exvpenses,” a charge on new capital raised
under the provisions of the Act.

It is submitted that the principle of the settlement was wholly legitimate, that it
was in accordance with all precedent in such cases, and was directly beneficial, if not
absolutely essentiul, to the objects and interests of the Company in regard to legis-
lation.

The question of the amount of the expenses charged ix of course open to chal-
lenge, upon this I attach the explanations given to Messrs. Campbell and Denison by
Morrison, Wells and Gordon when the account was certitied ; us well also as a copy
of an explanatory memorandum which Mr, Campbell presented to the shareholders.

Experience ot similar accounts of this Company and of others in connection with
Parliamentary proceedings and contests in legislation. would seem to suggest that
having regard to the nature and the amount of the services as stated, to the IB]]g time
(nearly two years) over which they were rendered; to the special mission to England,
and to the attendances at Ottawa and elsewhere, the amount although large in the
ageregate, would not (as [ am advised) be considered by the legal proféssion 49
nunusual and excessive ; upon this I am not competent 1o express an opinion, but 1
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think that having regard to the protective arrangoments previously made and which
Wwere complied with, it would have heen utterly inconsistent with good faith, if after
the Bill by combined effort and mutual concessions had become law, I, as acting for
the Company, had ignored itsliability for the expenses, and cast them back upon the
mmdividual shareholders who were primarily responsible.

On a review of the whole transaction the only portion of it which I regard with
regret is the responsibility and authority I personally assumed in connection with
the final adjustment and passing of this account. In that particular, and in that only
I'think I erred in judgment, but harassed as the Company ard myself had long been,

¥ the hostilities of shareholders; anxious as I was (after repeated previous failures)
to secure tinal legislation, and sensitive as the credit of the Company was, and still is
In connection with the raising of new capital, I drifted into a course which whilst
technically irregular has in my judgment been based upon wise and legitimate policy
With good practical results. The effect has been to re-unite the previously discordant
elements of the Compuny (share and bondholders) in a mutual policy and in strenuous
effort to avail of the Act of 1875, especially in regard to the extinguishment of the:

ominion Lien,

This is apparent from the fact that the present Board of Dircctors was elected

Y an unanimous vote composed of nearly equal numbers of share and bond votes.

(Signed) FRED. CUMBERLAND,
General Manager.
Toroxto, 17th April 1876,

Mr. CAMPBELL'S EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM.

Memorandum of Moneys paid for claims against the Shareholders’ Committee-
Northern Railway.

Morrison Wells & Gordon, fee......ccooiviviniiins vvvvnvainnan. $5,000 00
do do disbursements........c.c.ccevuenenen. 891 47
London Agents of Morrison Wells & Gordon................... 995 00
G. T. Denison, Secretary for services............ errrereere s 2,000 00
do Aishursements..oceeieeneiiiieneneerieneenrannnnann, 404 20

C. J. Campbell, do creenes 276 92
R. L. Denison rs. Cumberland, cost of suit..........c..ooeeeneis 98 00

e ——

$9,665 68

The fec to solicitors was in lieu of commission which the Committee agreed to:
Pay in the event of the stock being floated, but as they failed in their negotiations
Or the want of the authority of the Company, they of course could not claim the
“Ommission which was fixed atone per cent and would have yielded them £3,000
ﬂte1‘ling. The fee of $5,000 was therefore not considered excessive. Their disburse-
Ments included Mr. Gordon’s expenses to England and several trips to and from

tawa. The legal Agents in London sent in a claim of £200 sterling for services
I""’dered, which was allowed and paid.
The Secretary was paid $2,000 in accordance with his agreement with the
Rommittee. The disbursements made by him include what was paid to the late
* 4. Henderson.
Mr. Campbell's disbursements merely include travelling expenses.
The item of $98 puid R. L. Denison was for cost of suit vs. Cumberland.
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To cover the foregoinig account of $9,665 68 the Northern Railway gave the
following notes, some of which are still current.
$2,697 61
2322 69
2322 69
2,422 69

$9,605 68
(Signed) C.J. CAMPBELL.
ToroxNTO, 26th November, 1875.

ToroxNTO, September 15, 1876,
Mr. Georar T. DexisoNn, sworn.

Examined by Mr. Mowat.

Q.—Amongst some moneys that were paid by the Northern Railway Company,
{ find a sum of $2,000, said to have been paid to ({.’P. Denison, Secretary, for services.
Avre you the G. T. Denison there mentioned ?

A—] am.

Q.—What was that sum paid for ?

A.—1t was paid for my services as secretary of the committee, during a period
-of about a year and a half.

Q.—What committee ?

A.—A committee of the private shareholders. That was the agreement upon
which I was employed by the committee. Mr. Campbell made the arrangement
with me, and agreed to give me that amount. At the end of the time he got it from
the Company, and paid it to me.

Q.—For whom was Mr. Campbell acting ?

A.~He was one of the committece. He was not regularly appointed on the
-«committee, but he was virtually appointed, inasmuch as he acted during the whole

period,
A.—Was this a committee of the private sharehlders ?
A.—Yes.

Q.—What services were you to render ?

A.—I was to act as the paid secretary of the committee, to attend all the mect
ings, to keep all the minutes, &c. They were to have the use of my office in which
to hold mectings. [ was in fact under the orders of the committee to do what was
necessary to be done during that period.

Q.—When was the bargain made ?

A.—I1t wan betre [ took the position atall. 1 did not wish to take it at the
outset, but they came to me several times about it. My uncle was the Chairman ©
the committec.

Q.—How Jong was that before an arrangement was come to between the share
holders and the directors of' the Company-?

A.—I think it must have been nearly a year afterwards before we settled upo?
the terms of legislation, and then there was a great deal to be done atter that, 1wenb
1o Ottawa on several occasions atter that.

Q.—Upon the business of the committee ?

A.—Yes, | was sent down under the orders of the Committee.

Q.—Was your compensation for this included in that $2,000 ?

A—Yes, that included everything except actual disbursements.
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By the Chairman :—
Q.—There was another item for disbursements ?
A.—1 do not remember the particulars of that, but about $200 out of that were
the disbursements of the former secretary of the Committee, the late Mr. Henderson.
By Mr. Cameron :—
Q.—What was the amount of the disbursements ?
A.—8404.29. Some of that was my travelling expenses down to Ottawa on four
Or five occasions. Mr. Campbell has got the particulars, and I think there is a copy
3mong the papers my uncle has got. I think I furnished Mr. Campbell with a memo-
fandum of these items in detail. He was aware of nearly all the sums that were paid,
and was satisfied with that amount. About $200 was paid to the estate of the late
. Henderson.
By Mr. Mowat :—
Q.—Was the rest actual disbursements ?
A.—Yes, all actual disbursements. I may just mention that I was not a member
of the committee nor a shareholder.
QQ.—Can you inform me how many shares were represented by the shareholders
on whose behalf the committee was acting ?
A.—I could not tell you from memory, but Mr. Campbell represented a very large
. Sum, gver $200,000. Ie represented very much more than all the rest put together.
Ithink the rest represented only from $10,000 to $20,000. :
Q.—Who were the other members of the committec ?
A —'They varied somewhat, The original committce was not exactly the same
3 when I was appointed secretary. )
Q.—-Who were the members of the committee when you were appointed
Secretary ?
A.—It was in this way :—The Committec had power to add to their number, and
they asked Mr. Campbell to come there. There was my uncle as Chairman, Mr.
“Ampbell, Mr. Thomas H. Lee, Mr. Scarth, and Mr. Thomas Shortiss. M. G. P. Dick-
On was appointed on the committec the same day I was appointed secretary. Later
"fn: after the Bill was passed, Mr. James 8. M'Mwrray was appointed a member of the
YOmmittee, and then some time after that Mr. Johu Beverly Robinson. I think Mr.
Obinson only attended perhaps one or two meetings before we reported.

(Signed) GEORGE T. DENISON.

— ——

Me. F. W. CuMBERLAND, re-called.
3

_ Examined by Mr. Mowat:—
R Q.—1 was told yesterday of a rumour that money had been paid to Mr. J. D.
“dgar for his election expenses out of the Northern Railway funds. Is that true ?
" A.—No, it is not true.
Q.—Mr. Edgar was a member of Parliament at one time ?

A.—Yor.
Q.—And has been a candidate more than once ?
A.—Yes.

N ¥—And was nothing contributed towards his election cxpenses out of the
Orthern Railway funds on any of these oceasions ?

A.—Nothing.

Q.—On none of these occasions, either directly or indircctly ?

A.— Neither directly nor indirectly, not a doliar.

Q.—Was he ever employed professionally by the Northern Railway Company ?
%mlf)\-~ﬂc was employed professionally by the Northern Extension Railways

any.
Q—Was that a distinct Company ?
A.—Yes.
49
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Q.—Is that the Company which was afterwards amalgamated with the Norther?
Company ? '

A.-—Yes.

Q.—Was it before the amalgamation that he was employed ?

A.—He was solicitor to that Company.

Q.—Did he never act as Parliamentary Counsel for the Northern Railway ?

A.—He did.

Q.—When was that ?

A.—That was during the Session of 1875. It was when we were carrying ouf
last Bill through.

Q.—Was that the only professional employment which Mr. Edgar had from the
Northern Railway Company that you remember ? .

A.—I think so. I do not remember any other. Ho was associated with me 1P
London one time, but he was then acting for the Extension Company.

Q.—He was in London with you, but acting for the Northern Extension whil?
you were etfecting some business tor the Northern Railway there ?

A.—Yecs. 1 was acting at the time for both Companies.

Q.—Did he do any work there for the Northern Railway Company ?

A.—Our Directors in London, I think, invited him to draft a Bill.

(Q.—When did that occur ?

A.—Tt was in 1872 or 1873.

Q.—You say he was asked to draft a Bill ?

A.—He was asked to draft a Bill by my London Board.

().—What Bill ?

A.—A Bill that was to be introduced into the Canadian House of Commons. W?
were then seeking legislation, and they thought they would take advantage of h¥
presence in London and get him to frame the Bill.

Q.—Did he draft the Bill?

A.—He did not. He declined to give us any professional assistance. _‘

(Q—When you say he declined to give us, you mean the Northern Railwaf
Company ?

A.—Yes.

Q).—Why did he decline ?

A.—On the ground that he was holding a seat in Parliament. |

Q.—Did he bold a seat in Parliament at the time he was Parliamentary Couns®
for the Northern Railway in 1874757

A.--He was out of Parliament at that time. 7

Q.—How much did he get for his services as Parliamentary Counsel in 187410

A.—For services in drafting a Bill and attending at Ottawa, and in that mattéf
of there-arrangement of the terms of the Bill, to which we testificd yesterday,— of
the whole, I think, $2,500.

Q.—Was the fee passed by the Board ?

A.—It was. '

By the Chairman :—
Q.—The Board of the Northern Railway Company ?
A.—Yes.

By Mr. Mowat :—

Q.—Had this payment anything to do with election expenses ?

A.—Nothing whatever. .

Q.—Was there any Election fund to which you have contributed out of t
Northern Railway funds besides what you have mentioned before ? ’
_dA.—-None. In my original evidence I gave you all the election expenses we ha"'
paid. : )
Q.—1In the Pacific Railway enquiry an election fund was mentioned, and I this*
it was mentioned that you were a contributor to the fund ? )

A.—Nothing whatever. It is quite untrue. Neither corporately nor indi?™
dually had I anything to do with that fund.
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).—Did you contiibute individually to any election fund for Mr. Edgar?
A.—I did not.
(Signed) FRED. CUMBERLAND.

Mr. J. D. EpGAR, sworn.

Examincd by Mr. Mowat : —

{).—Wus any contribution made by the Northern Railway Company towardsany
Clection expenses of yours ?

A.—Not at any time.

().—Was any such contribution made indirectly out of the funds of the Northern

Ompany ?

‘A.—Neither directly nor indirectly by that company nor any other.

().—Have you ever been employed professionally by the Northern Railway
Company ?

A.=Yes, in connection with the legislation of 1875, negotiating with the Govern-
Ment on behalf of tho Company, and helping afterwards to carry out the amalgama-
tion clauses in the Bill.

Q.--Were you in Parliament at that time ?

A.—I was not.

().—Was your account settled by the Company ?

A.—Tt was, I understood, passed by the Board. At least, I was told I could not
get it settled until the Board passed it.

Q.—What was the amount ?

A.—$2,500.

().—Had that anything to do with election expenses ?

A.—Nothing whatever.

().—Was any part of that sum in consideration of election matters?

A.—No, it had nothing to do with them.

0.—Did Mr. Cumberland contribute personally towards your election expenses?

A.—No. Mr. Camberland’s sympathies 1 understood to bo on the other side of
Politics, and in consequence I would not have asked him.

Q. —Were you solicitor at one time for the Northern Extension Company ?

A.—I was until amalgamation, and, in fact, am so still, in closing up any matters
Of right of way in connection with that Company. .

QQ.—Were you ever in England with Mr. Cumberland about the aftiirs of the
Extension Company ?

b A.—I was. I was solicitor of the Extension Company, and was sent to England
Y the Extension Company’s Board to try and enforce a contract which had been
Mage by cable with Messrs. McEwen, of London, for the sale of bonds of the Exten-
on Company, which contract the McEwens were not carrying out.

Q.—Did you do any professional worl there for the Northern Railway
%Mpany ? :

t A.—None atall. T was asked if I would draft a bill by the London Directors of
(}: Northern Railway Company, but I declined becaunse I was elected to the House of
mmons then, and the Bill would come before the Legislaturo.

Re; Q.-=You say that no contribution was made out of tho funds of the Northern
" ilway Company towards any election expenses of yours ? Was any such contribu-
'on made out of the funds of the Extension Company ?

A.—No, not a cent. I may say also that from December, 1874, until the amal-

8mation in June 1875, the larger part of my professional time was occupied either
Jttawa or here in connection with the Bill on the amslgamation ; and also that

f“"lllg the time 1 had a seat in Parliament neither I nor my partners received any
Whatever in connection with Dominion Legislation.

(Signed) J. D. EDGAR.
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ToroNTO, September 23rd, 1876.
Mr. Fraxcis Harrts HEwWARD, sworn.

Examined by Afr.,Bethune :—

Q.—You aro agent for the Royal Insurance Company ?

A—] am.

Q.—And have been for & number of years?

A.—25 years.

Q.—Have you effected on behalf of the Company risks, policies of insurance—o"
the property of the Northern Railway Company ?

A.—Never for the Company.

Q.—Are the policies in the name of the Company ?

A.—There are no policies in existence.

Q.—Had you no policies at any time ?

A.~—None. T had offers.

R.—And never cffected insurance on the property of the Northern Railway
Company at all?

A.—No. I had offers, but 1 declined them.

Q.—Then you never had any policies on the plant or the buildings ?

A.—No.

Q,—Did you have any on stores, wheat in the elevator, or something of {hat
kind ?

A.—XNot with the Northern Railway Company directly, but for other partie=.

Q. —Was that cffected through the medium ot Mr. Cumberland or his son ?

A.—No. 1 hat offers from Mr. Barlow Cumberland “verbally, for insurance "
the plant, &e.

Q.—Why were these offers not aceepted ?

A.~-Wo agreed as to rates, and he wanted & commission of ten per cent. on “’f’
premium, which | conld not give him. With the last offer, we agreed upon the tern”
and he said he would be satistied with five per cent, but T could not afford to give him
even that.

Q.—I believe that commission was to have been paid to him personally ?

AL believe it was.

Q.—Was it to be on property held in trust by the Company ?

A—Yes. ,

Q—Did that consist of buildings and plant, or the stores which the Company
held ?

A—1 believe the stations, the buildings and plant, including cars, &e.

Q.—Was the total amount of the risk mentioned ? )

A.—It was at the time, but T really can’t recollectit. e offered me, T think,
the tirst two instances, one-third of the entire amount to be insured, which I agre
to take, the premium on which would have amounted to about $1,500, upon whi¢
he wanted a commission of ten per cent.

€).—What were the annual premiums {o be ? i

A.~—I think one-third woul(]l have been something like $1,500 in cich instant®

Q.~—Then the ten per cent, or five per cent, would have been on that? )

A.—Yes, whatever the premium was. Ot conrse it would be ten per cent. onth?
$1,500, for the premium was that.

Q.—Was it declined ? . .

A.—I declined, becanse I told him I could not give the commission, for it woul
leave me without anything at all, ' "

Q.—Do you know any Companies which effected insurance tor the Northe!
Railway Company ? 1

A.—I think the .Etna was one, and the Dritish Amervica, and the Western. Al
am not sure; but I know, so far as [ was eoncerned, T was given to understand 0%
the JEtna had taken the amount offered to me. i

Q.—Did you have any conversation with Mr, . W, Cumberland himself?

52



40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 10.) A. 1877

A.—No, it was only with Mr. Barlow Cumberland. He was clerk in the Northern
Rail\vay Office. and managed all the insurance, I think.
Q.—How late was the last offer ?
A ~-1 think within three yecars, _ » .
().—Did you understand that he was then in the Northern Ruilway Oftice ?
A—T emrtainly did.
(Signed) I, 1. HEWARD.

Mr. Noann BARNIART, sworn.

Examined by Mr. Betlune :—

).—Were you a Director of the Northern Railway ?

A —For a very short time.

Q. —It extended over what period ?

AL —TI think it was about six months.

Q. —In what year ?

A —It was just after the amalgamation took place.

Q.—Are you interested in any Insurance Companies in the cjty ?

A.—T am a director in the Western Insurance Company.

QQ.—-TIs that the only one?

A.—Yes. N

Q.—Do you know anything of an insurance being eftected in the Western on
the property of the Northern Railway Company ?

A.—1I do not know anything further than an application for a certain portion of
the insurance over the whole of the rolling stock of the Company, and the stations
o0 the road.

Q.—~Do you know that that insurance was effected ?
A.—1 really do not know, It came before our Board, but I do not know whether
e} took the policy or not. .
" Q.—Do you know if anything was paid to Mr. Camberland or his son in connec-
On with these insurances by the Company ?

A.—I do not.

Q.—Do you know anything about a contract which was let to Messrs, Manning
d Ginty in"connection with the Meaford or North Grey Railway Extension ?

W, Ar. Bounlton ohjected to the question on the ground that the Meaford Company
48 a Company distinct from the Northern Railway Company, and this enquiry con-

Cerned only the latter.

N, Q.—What was the connecction existing between the North Grey Railway and the
Orthern Railway Company ?

A.~None whatever, until the former was leased to the Northern Railwoy-.

2.—~Do the Northern Railway Company own that Branch now ?

A.—They own that now under the Amalgamation Act.

Q.—They turnished, in fact, the funds that built that road ?

\.—They did not.

Q.—They guaranteed the interest ?

B A.—They guaranteed the interest on 2,000 pounds per mile for the Muskoka
fanch and the North Grey Branch.

}'m“tQ?—Were these amalgamated before the North Grey (or Meaford Branch) was

A.—No, long after it was built.

Q.—Was Mr. Cumberland connected with that road in any way ?

A.—IIe was the consulting engineer of both the North Grey and the Muskoka.

Q.—Was that in virtue of his being Managor of the Northern Railway ?

A.—Not that T am aware of.

anq (Q,_, ~Do you know anything of the payment of a commission to Messrs. Manning
rinty ?

t}
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A.—No, I do not.

Q.—Do you know anything about the purchase of the steamers Chicora and
Cumberland ?

A.—I do.

Q.—Were you interested in the Cumberland ?

A.—Not at all.

Q—You don’t know anything about the Cumberland ?

A.—Nothing at all.

Q—Do you know anything about the Chicora ?

A.—Yos.

Q.—Y¥rom whom was she purchased ?

A.—From the Milloys.

.—For how mueh 7

A.—$52,500.

Q.—-By whose agency was this purchase made ?

A.—It was through Mr. Frank Smith and Mr. Camberland. Mr. Frank Smith
paid one-third, Mr. Cumberland one-third, and I one-third.

Q.—That would be about $18,000 apiece ?

A.~Yes, but there was a charge on the boat at the time, and I paid about
$30,000 in cash. I have lost more than $45,000 on that boat including interest.

Q.—IIow much has Mr, Cumberland paid ?

A.—Mr. Frank Smith and I have paid off the whole, and there is now no
liability on the boat. Mr. Cumberland is in arrear about $500 or $800.

Q.—How much would that make the payment made by him ? $30,000 ?

A.—I don’t know. I think he has paid something like $28,000.

Q.—Have you any knowledge as to how much of that was paid out of the fund?
of the Northern Railway Company ?

A.—I never had any idea of that.

Q-—Did the steamer stand in his name ?

A.—Tt did not. 'We were not going to give him any interest in it until he wa®
all paid up.

Q.—You did not know his purchase was on behalf of the Northern Railway ?

A.—No. The agreement was with Mr. Cumberland personally.

Q.—How many years since you bought the boat ?

A.—1t was in 1873 that we bought her.

Q.—1lave you run her gince on your own account, or has she been chartered ?

A.—She was chartered last year and this to the Northern Railway Company.

Q.—When was the charter fixed ? )

A.—In the spring.

Q.—At what sum ?

A —All that we got for her running last year was some §3,800,

Q.—Was that for scveral years ?

A.—No, only for that season.

Q.—Was that charter in writing ?

A.—1 don’t know.

Q—Was there any resolution of the Board, or was it by arrangement with M
Cumberland ?

A.—I think there was a resolation of the Board.

Q.—Who made the bargain between the Company and you ?

A.—Both Mr. Smith and myself.

Q.—Who represented the Company in making the bargain ?

A.—Mr. Cumberland. :

Q.—How was it that Mr. Cumberland, being interested in the boat, made &
bargain of that kind ?

A.—We refused to run the boat. We got her in the hope, as M. Cumberland
represented, that there would be money in her, cverything we have done has bee?
for the benefit of the Northern Railway, and we have lost our money.
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\-_
Q.—Do you know anything of a contract for building the elevatorin Toronto ?
A.—I1 do not.
By the Chairman :—
Q.—Who got the $3,800 ?

A.—Mr. Smith and I.

Q.—Did Mr. Cumberland get nothing ?

A.—Nothing at all.

By Mr. Bethune : ~- )
.. Q—Did he get the benefit 6f the one-third, because he was conncceted with the

]lability to that extent ?

A.—1T1 think Mr. Smith and I carried that liability.
. Q.—Do you know anything of a purchase from Captain Isaac May ot some plant
0 §imcoe ? Did they purchase the stcamer Emily May ?
" A—I don’t remember a great deal about it. She was honght by the Extension
GOmpany. Mr. Henry Howland made the bargain.

Q.—You were not personally concerned ?

A.—I was interested in tho ¥aying of money.

Q.—What was pa:d for her

A.—T think it was $15,000.

Q.—Was that considered her value ?

A.—T think so. That has not been paid off yet.

Q.—Was thero a mortgage on her?

A.—Acting upon what were assumed to be the powers conferred by the
‘ém:xlgamation Act, the Company took the steamer at waat she cost the Ixtension

Ompany.

I()Q.—EDO you know anything about any dealings between Mr. Patrick Burns

nqd Rhe Northern Railway Company for the carriage of coal ?
.—No.
(Signed) NOAH BARNHART.

Mr. Patrick Burys, sworn.

Examined by Mr. Bethune :—

Q.—You are a dealer in coal and wood in the City of Toronto ?

A.—Yes, Sir.

Q.—And have been for some years ?

A.—Yes, Sir.
C Q.—Within some years have you had a contract with the Northern Railway

Ompany for the carrying of wood over the Northern Railway ?

A.—They carried wood, but I had no contract with them.

Q.—Had you a verbal arrangement ?

A.—Yes.

Q.—How many years has that been going on?

A.—Ten or twelve years.

Q.—Was there any arrangement—this year or last year ?

A.—No. I got some wood down last year, in the ordinary way.

Q.—About what quantity ?
°°l‘dsA.~I could not say exactly. I don't think I got over threc or four hundred
Q.—Did you make any arrangement with any person in connection with the
pany for the carrying of that down?
A.—I don’t think so.” It was ordinary freight.
Q.—Was there any arrangement made at ail ?
A.—I bought the wood on the place and brought it down.
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Q.—-Did you make any arrangement with Mr. Barlow Camberland—did you have
any talk with him ?

A.—I think I had some talk with him last winter.

Q.—Where was this tallk ?

A.—T think it was in his office.

Q.—What was the result of the talk ? Did he say he would bring the wood down?

A—Yes.

Q.—What rates did you pay ?

A.—I don’t know. I think I paid the regular rates.

QQ.—Was there any bonus paid to him or any one clse ?

A.—Never, at any time.

Q.—How did you pay, by cheque?

A.—-T paid it to the freight agent, Mr, McDonald, but the cheque was always to
the Northern Railway Company. '

Q.—DBut there was nothing extra to be given to Mr. Barlow Cumberland, either
in that or any other year?

A.—Neither the elder nor the younger Mrv. Cumberland, never.

By the Chairman :— .
Q—Did he get any commission in any way, in wood, or anything of that kind ?
A.—Nothing whatever.
(Signed) P. BURNS.

Mr. ALEXANDER MANNING, sWOID.

Examined by Mr. Bethune :—

Q.—You are a contractor, Mr. Manning ?

A—Tam.

Q.—I believe you and Mr. Ginty have been from time to time in partnership?

A.—We have. .

Q.—Had you a contract for the building of u railway to Mecaford ?

A.~—Yes, a contract for the North Grey of the Northern Extension Company:

Q.—Was there, divectly or indirectly, any sum of money paid to Mr. Cumberlan
in connection with that contract, cither in the way of a bonus, orin any way whatever ?

Mr. Boulton objected.

A.—Never, in any shape. We never had any contracts with the Northern
Railway Company. This contract was with another company altogether.

Q. —But 1t has since become a part of the Northern Company ?

A.—That I understand.

Q.—You say that nothing was ever paid by youor Mr. Ginty to Mr. Camberland-
Wuas anything paid to Mr. Camberland’s” gon, or any one for him ?

A.—Nothing whatever, as & bonus,

Q.—Was Mr. Cumberland’s son a partner with you ?

A.—The son was a partner afier we got the contract.

Q.—Mur. Barlow Cumberland ? '

A.—Yes.

Q.—How much was he to have ?

A.——He was to have one half interest in the profits. That contract was never
completed.

%.-f-yvVas anything paid to him to buy out his interest ?

.—No.
Q.—Why was it never completed, then ?
A.—It was Mr. Ginty who first spoke about the arrangement. I was dissatisfied

with an arrangement of that kind, and after sometime I spoke to Mr. Cumberlan
about it, and I paid him for his services by salary.
Q.—How much ?
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A.—-$65 a month.

Q.—What services did he render ?

A.—I1e looked after the contracts and the work. He lived where the work was
.‘Z’:Oing on. But he gave up before the work was completed, at the desire of his

ather,

Q.—Was he employed at that time tn the Northern Railway Company ?

A.—No, not to my knowledge. Iis whole time was given up to us, He went
from us to the Great Western, I think.

b Q.—Who negotiated the contract on behalf of the Railway ? Was it Mr. Cum-
erland ?

A.—No. I tendered for the work, and I understood that my bid was the
lowest by $14,000, and the contract was awarded to me. It was decided by the
Directors--Mr. Frank Smith, Mr. Branhart, Mr. Turner and other Directors and so
far as 1 recollect, Mr. Cumberland was consulting engineer.

Q.—Then the employment of the son had no connection with your getting the
contract ? .

A.—Nonc whatever. I speak frankly as to how I felt respecting the partnership
wi'h Mr. Barlow Cumberland. I was very much aunoyed. Mr. Ginty first spoke
abo :t this matter, and I was very much dissatisfied with it.

Q.—Were you interested in the building of the Northern Railway clevator ?

A.—No.

.—Did young Mr. Cumberland get any more besides the $65 a month ?

A.-~Tcould not tell you how much he did get.

Q.—Did he get anything but his proper salary ?

A.—I think not. He was two years with me, and he got $4,000.

Q.—That would be mcre than $65 a month ?

A.—It included his expenses outside. He kept a horse, and puid all his travel-
ling and other personal expenses connected with the work.

Q.—But the travelling cxpeuses would not amount to $1,220 per annum.

A. There was a great deal of oxpenses connected with it. I could tell you if
I'looked at the books.

Q.—$4,000 was the whole amount he got including salary and expenses?

A.—Yecs, the whole amount, so far as I recollect.

Q.—You say you will furnish a statement of the whole expenses?

A.—I will furnish a statement.

(J.—Were you interested in the building of the Northern Railway elevator here.

A.—T had no interest whatever. I think Mr. Reekic was the contractor.

Q.—Were any debentures given to young Mr. Cumberiand in any way? Ifow
wag he paid ?

A.—He was paid in money.

Q.—You did not give debentures, then ?

A.—No. We were paid in money, and never received any debentures. I may
say that Inomplained to Mr. Cumberland about his son having anything to do with
this work. I did not think there was anything wrong in his son coming into any
partnership, but I had a decided objcction to getting only one-quarter interest. Mr.
Cumberland also objected strongly to his son’s continuing in the partnership.

By Mr. Mowat :—

Q.—Was any paper signed by Mr, Barlow Camberland ?

. A.—No. The paper was signed by myselt and Mr. Ginty, but never by Mr.
Barlow Cumberland ?
By Mr. Bethune :—

Q.—Who had the negotiations in the matter of the contract between you and
M. Ginty on the one part, and the Railway Company on the othor?

A.—Mr. Fdgar as solicitor for the Extension Company prepared the contract,
and Mr. Ginty and myself executed the same at his office. I never entered into this
Or any other contract by buying it or giving & bonus.

(Signed) ALEX. MANXING.
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Myr. JonN GINTY, sworn.

Examined by Mr. Bethune :—

Q.—You were a partner with Mr. Manning, contractor for the building of the
North Grey Railway to Meaford ?

A.—Yes.

Q.—Had you any other partner besides Mr. Manning ?

A.—I made a verbal agreement first with Mr. Cumberland, but I will explain
that. I was thinking it strange that I had to do all the work, and I wanted to get
an active partner to take some of the work off my hands; for I was uttending to the
Muskoka road.

Q.—You had another partner then. Who was it ?

A.—Mr. Cumberland was to have an interest in it,—the young man.

Q.—How was it that he was to have an interest ?

A.—At my suggestion.

Q.—Where did you make tho arrangement with him ?

A.—Tt was after wo commenced work.

Q.—Where?

A.—It must bave been in Toronto.

Q.—What was Mr. Barlow Cumberland doing at that time ?

. A.—The first conversation I had with him was in Toronto. Hec was studying
law, and I told him he had better quit studying law, and come into partnership.

Q.—How long was this after the contract was let ?

A.—I think about two months,

Q.—Had you commenced work ?

A.—T think so.

Q.—TIad the contract been signed by the Company ?

A.—Yes, all completed.

Q.—Had you any conversation with his father about the proposed partnership.

A.—Never, directly nor indirectly.

L.—Did any one suggest Mr. Barlow Cumberland’s name to you ?

A.—Never, directly nor indirectly. It was my own suggestion.

Q.—What share of the profits was he to get ?

A.—1 could not tell.

Q.— But you did fix some share ?

A.—Yes, but it is so long ago that T forget all about it. The memorandum ot
agreement was signed by me.

Q-~—What did you do with this memorandum, did you give itto Mr. Barlow
Camberland ?

A.—No. I think it must have been My, Edgar or Mr. Boulton that T gave it to;
at all events Mr. Manning and I signed it together and left it with the witness
whoever he was. '

Q.—But you haven’t got it now ?

A.—No, I have never scen it since.

(.—How long did matters go on the footing of his being a partner with you ?

A.—TI could not tell. It is so long ago. The first arrangement was made with
Mr. Barlow Cumberland and myself.

Q.—When was that arrangement ended ?

A.—T think it was a year afterwards.

Q.—Then he was about a year a partner with you ?

A.—I think so.

).—What did you give him for his year's share of the profits ?

A.—TI am not aware that he got a dollar.

(0 —-But he didn’t work a year for nothing ?

A —-If Mr. Manning hasgiven him more than his salavy, T am not aware of it.

Q.—1low long did that work gn on ? '

A.—T think it was three years,
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Q.—-Have you any idea of what was paid to Mr. Barlow Cumberland ?

A.—I don’t know. Mr. Manning paid it. I have not seen the books since. 1
understood from Mr. Manning that he was just to get his salavy.

Q.—What salary was he to get ?

A.—I don’t know. I think it was something like $100 per month and his
cxpenses.

Q.—The books, I suppose, would show ?

A.—Yes.

Q.—Have you the books ?

A.—No, Mr. Manning has them.

Q.—How long was Mr. Barlow Cumberland employed at a salary—during the
balance of the time ?

A.—No, he left before we were through, and went to the Great Westorn,

Q.—~Were you interested in the building of the Toronto Elevator ?

A.—Not at all, directly nor indirectly. I never did any work for the Northern
Railway Company. I might say that when we tendered, we first tenderel for the
Muskoka road and got it, and 1 think it pleased the Directors, for they went over it,
before they had decided the tenders for the other road. Mr. F. W. Cnmberland, in
two conversations with me, said, ¢ if you don’t tender low, you will not get the work
because we are going to give tho contract to the lowest tender.”

By the Chairman :— :

Q.—You do not know whether Mr. Barlow Cumberland got $4,000 for two years ?

A.—] could not tell. I never saw the books of the North Grey Road. T had
charge of the Muskoka Road altogether.

By Mr. Bethune :—

Q.—Was Mr. Barlow Camberland interested in the Muskoka Branch at all.,

A.—No, decidedly not.

Q.—He had no connection with it ?

A.—Neither directly nor indirectly.

Q.—And he was consequently never paid anything whatever on that?

A.—Never, neither directly nor indirectly. [ wish to add that in a conversation
with Mr. F. W. Cumberland about a year after his son had been connected with us
he said that if his son had any intercst in the road, beyond his salary, it must cease.

(Signed) JOTIN GINTY.

Mr. WinLiax Rowrnanp, sworn.

Fxamined by Mr. Bethune :(—
QQ.—You are the agent of the Queen Insurance Company ?
A.—Yes, the Liverpool Company.
Q.—How long have you been agent ?
A.—About thirteen years.
Q.—Has your Company any riskZon the Northern Railway property ?
A.—Not at present.
3.——Had you last year?

—No.
Q.—How long since you had any risk ?
A.—I don’t think we have had any risk since 1871.
Q.—What amount ?
A.~TI think it was $10,000, on the Northern Elevator at Collingwood.
Q.~—With whom did you make the arrangement for that risk ?
A.—Mr. Barlow Cumberland.
Q.—Was any commission paid to him at that time ?
A.—Not at all.
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Q.—At what rate was the insurance effected ?

A,—The premium was $§90 on $10,000 for three months., It was while the
Elcvator was in course of ercction. It was a builder’s risk.

Q.—That was paid by a cheque of the Northern Railway, I supposc.

A.—Yes,
Q.—And o part was handed back to Mr. Barlow Cumberland ?
A.--No.

(Q.——And that was the only insurance you had for the Northern Railway ?
A.—Yes. We havo hadInsurances on the Northern Railway property, but they
were re-insurances for other Companies, and not dirveetly for the Nortnern Company.

(Signed) WILLIAM ROWLAND.

Mr. WinLiam HeNrRy Lockuart Gorpoy, sworn,

Examined by Mr. Bethune :—

Q.—Have you seen the written statement, or the correspondence which passed
between you, Mr. Campbell, and the Government ?

A.—Iread a statement of work done by us, prepared for the purpose, I under-
=tood, of being furnished to the Government.

Q.--Did that truly state matters in which you were intercsted in behalf of the
dissentient shareholders ?

A~Yes, it did. It did not fully state the amount of work that was done by us,
because Mr. Campbell was anxious to get it immediately, and T had not time to set
out completely all the work done.

Q.—A good deal has been said in the way of discussion to the cftect that the
charge of 85,000 seemed cxtravagant for the services which were rendered ? -

A.--All T can say is this---that if I had known the amount of work that had to
be done, and the time that had to be given, and the way we had to neglect the other
work of the office to carry on this, I certainly would never have undertaken it for
any sum like that. Perhaps it would be as well for me to state how the fec was
arrived at. When the shareholdors engaged me to undertake this matter, they asked
me if I would go to England and raise the capital that was required to pay off the
Government claim, and for other purposes of the road. We had previously been at
Ottawa, and we understood from Mr. Mackenzie that if the sharcholders could do
that the matter would be handed over to the shareholders, and they would have the
financing of the scheme. The sharcholders requested me to raise this money, and I
undertook to do it at a commission of one per cent.

Q.—Was that in writing ?

A—Yes.

(The Document was here put in, and marked « No. 1.”)

The witness continued :—1 thought that before I went to England, it was better
to have the terms of my undertaking the financial business in writing, and that was
drawn up and signed by the Chairman and the Secretary, and with that I went to
England. And I think I may say that 1 made arrangements with one of the first
firms in London to raisc this capital. There was one obstacle, however, in the way,
and that was that they required the co-operation of the bondholders; but they said
that if I got the co-operation of the bondholders, they would have no difficulty in
raising the capital. They requested me to communicate with Mr. Cumberland to get
him to say whether the bondholders would co-operate. Ithink I waited there for six
weeks, corresponding with the committee and my own firm on this side, and waiting
for Mr. Cumberiand to go over to England. When I found that Mr. Cumberland could
not come, I came over to Canada on the advice of the gentlemen I was acting ‘with,
to sce if I could not get the Board to agree to co-operate with us, and then go back
and complete the arrangement. When I came back here, I found that Mr. Camber-
land, very naturally, did not want to be interfered with by the sharcholders, ard he
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refused to assist us in our attempt to raise the new capital, so Colonel Denison went
down with me to Ottawa to see if we could get Mr. Mackenzie to use his influence,
and we understood from the correspondence that Mr. Mackenzie thought it unreason-
able that the bondholders should be an obstacle in the way, and there was official
correspondence, asking if it would not be possible for the Board to co-operato with us.
Mr. Cumberland had been to Englsnd in the meantime, and, after he came baclk, the
first thing he did was to send for Mr. Campbell and me and some others, to see if we
could not come to some compromise. The result was that my clients agreed to a
compromise. That being so, they took the thing out of my hands, If they had been
able to furnish the authority of the bondholders, I would have been able to raise the
money. I had been to England, and had incurred a great deal of expense. I employed
a firm of'rolicitors there, who afterwards rendered a bill of 200 pounds stg. T mention
that to show what I did there.

Q.—1 observe in this contracy the one per cent. was to be paid to you only n
the event of your raising the sum required, and I perccive also that the committee
did not make themselves personally responsible ?

A.—But they pledged themselves on behalf of the shareholders 1o pay me the
one per cent. ' )

QQ.—What amount were you proposing to raise in England ?

A.—300,000 pounds. 1n addition to that, there was work at Ottawa during tho
Session of 1874-75. This business was commenced in Febiuary, 1874, and it was not
closed until July, 1875, ubout eighteen months.

Q.—Had you any instruction from the shareholders for the work done at Ottawa,
or was the whole work done on this contract ?

A.—No. [ got special instructions from the committee. 1 attonded meetings
of the committee, and drew up three Bills and revised the draft of a Bill which Mr.
Edgar drew up for the road.

- Q.—Were the sharcholders liable to you for that work ?

A.—1I think the committee was.

QQ.~—1IIad you any written instructions which would malke them liable ?

A.—I had simply instructions to go to Ottawa and do this work.

.—May that bo considered as based on the liability of this letter ?

A.—No. I cousider I had two claims on them~one in a financial capacity and
one as legal ndviser.

Q.—Had you anything in your books as to that?

A.—We had entries in our books as to our expenses at Ottawa.

Q.~—Were any charges made upon the Northern Railway ?

A.—The entry was against the committee of private shareholders of the Northern
Railway.

Q,j—Had you any other letter of instructions besides this letter from the private
shareholders ?

A.—No. But over and over again there were resolutions passed by the committee,
authorizing Mr. Campbell, Colonel Denison and myself to act for them. In the book
kept by the committee I can get copies of all these. I also had verbal instructions
from them. .

Q.—IHow did you tix on the $5,000 paid for your services ?

A.——Mr. Campbell and Colonel Denison knew the work I had done. They had
been with me the whole time, and the committee of shareholders at one of their
meotings passed a resolution to the effect that the committee should be relieved of
all responsibility for costs, and also disbursements, and it was left to Mr. Campbell and
Colonel Denigon to decide.

Q.—By whom were they to be relieved ?

A.—1 think the resolution was to this effect—that the committee consider that
the Northern Railway ought to pay all the costs incurred by the committee. I did
not think the settlement was to }mve been made subject to the costs being paid, but
it was put in the shape above mentioned, and My. Campbell asked Mr. Cumberland
to relieve them of that responsibility.
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Q.—Did you understand at the time the Bill was settled on that basis, that the
xcttlement took place irrespective of the liability of the Company to pay this sum for
costs and disbursements ?

A.—T did not look to the Northern Railway company at all for my disburse-
ments. I looked to the committee.

Q.—Did you render an account to the committeo before that settlement ?

A.—XNo account had been asked for, but we rendered an account which was
handed to Mr. Campbell.

Q.— Did you understand that the payment of your account was part and parcel of
the scttlement ?

A. —The settlement was all made beforo any question was raised as to the costs;
but the terms on which the Bill was to be accopted by all parties and passed, were
agreed to at the Northern Railway Office.

Q.—Before anything was said about the cost ?

A.—Certainly.

Q.—Suppose Mr. Cumberlund had refused to ]};ay this sum—do you think the
committeo would have opposed the passage of the Bill?

A.—T cannot say. All I know is that there was a minute or resolution of the
committee to the eftect that the Company ought to pay the costs, and some members
of the committee were very strong on the matter. They said they had spent money,
and they thought they ought not to bear any of the costs.

Q.—Was the account paid before the Bill was passed ?

A.—1 donot know. Tdon't think it was. I know Mr. Campbell got notes to
pay this and other matters, for I got notes from Mr. Campbell. 1 don't think
anything was paid nor did we receive any notes until after the Bill was assented
to by the Governor General.

(+ Exhibit No. 2" was here put in.)

().—There are disbursements mentioned in * Exhibit No. 4 of the 14th Septem-
Ler, to the amount of $891.47, besides the sum paid to your London agents. Was
this sum of $891.47 arrived at by actual computation ?

A.—Yes. If we went to Ottawa, for instance, when we came back we just
charged the expensos of the trip, and the above sum includes printing and telegraph-
ing and cvery other disbursement.

Q.—This snm was an actual cazh disbursement ?

A.—Yes.

Q.—Did any person receive, except the members of your own tirm, any part of
the $5,000?

A.—No.
Q.—The disburscment of $3S was in connection with the suit ?
A.—Yes.

Q.—Was that an actual cash disbursement, or did it include the ordinary
charges ?

A.—I think it included the ordinary charges,

Q.—You were all ready with that suit, and served the parties?

A.—The bill was drawn, and not actually filed, and four or five copies made of
it ready for service.

Q.—And that $98 was a proper charge?

A.—Certainly. I wish to prcduce the letter given to me by the committee
of sharcholders authorizing me to go to England and raiso the money.

(Signed) W. H. LOCKART GORDON.

(This letter is filed as lixibit No. 1 of 26th September, 1876, when tho foregoing
cvidence was read over and signed.)
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(Exhibit 1.—Filed 23rd September, 1876.)

Toroxnto, June 12, 1874.
Sir.~-In the event of your succeeding in raising the neccssary capital for paying
off the Government lien on the Northern Railway of Canada, and for the other pur-
poses mentioned in the Bill, prepared for us and the Government, we hereby agree,
as far as we have power to do o, for and on behalf of the private shareholders of
the Northern Railway of Canada, to allow you a commission on the amount of the
capital so raised, at the rate of one per cent on the par value of such capital. Bat it
is distinctly understood by you that we do not make ourselves or the shareholders
individually liable to you for this commission, or any part thereof, but only in our
capacity as representing the sharcholders we pledge ourselves to carry this out on
their behalf. .
On behalf of the committee of the private shareholders on the Northern Railway
of Canada.
(Signed) R. L. DENISON,
Chairman.
R. C. HENDERSON,
Secretary.

E— i

(Exhibit 2.—Filed 28rd September, 1876.)

Mgessrs. REnsnaw axp Rowrm,
In account with

Mgssrs. MorrisoN, WELLs AND GORDON,
Of Toronto, Canada.

Re the Northern Railway of Canada.
February 4th; 1874, to March, 1875.

Intructions to act for certain number of the Stockholders of this Railway
Company in England in asserting their claims as against the Bondholders,
and to endeavour to find the capital required by the Company, for the
purposes of the Company, upon the security of preference stock of the
Company or otherwise.

Nuamerous letters to you and other parties upon the subject, and a great number
of attendances on various firms in Loudon, with a view to their taking
up the sccurities offered. :

Numerous attendances also on Mr. Gordon when in England, and letters to you
almost weckly during those dates upon the subject.

Perusing mass of reports and papers in connection with the previous history of
the Railway Co. In the meantime, Messrs. M'Culloch, on certain con-
ditions, agreed to take up the business.

Frequent interviews with them referring to various details. unltimately it was
arranged that Mr. Gordon should return to Canada, u+ it was impossible
to proceed to negotiate any security in London without some terms of
co-operation being arranged between the Bondholding interest and the
Stockholding interest.

Received 15th June, 1875, vcviiviiiiiiiiiiiinii i e e e e e e £200

STAMP. l

Renspaw & RorLpn.
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(Exhibit 1—Filed 26th Sept., 1876.)

ToronTo, June 12th, 1874.

Sir,—On behalf of the private Shareholders of the Northern Railway of Canada,
we hereby authorize you to raise new capital, necessary to pay oft the claims of the
Government on the road, and for the other purposes mentioned in the Bill prepared
for us and the Government, and we hereby give you full power to raise this capital
onthe terms and conditions that may seem to you best ; and, in making arrangements
to do this, we authorize you to shew this letter to all parties with whom you may
open negotiations, in order that they may sce yon are our sole aceredited agent in
this matter.

On behalf of the Committec of private sharcholders of the Northern Railway.

(Signed) R. L. DENISON,
7 Chairman.
(Sigued) R. C. IIENDERSON,

Secretary.
To W. H. LockaART GoRrpox, Ksq.,
Toronto.

(Exhibit 2—Filed 26th Sept., 1876.)
ToroxTto, Sept. 23, 1876.

DEear Sir,—The Commissioners may probably have thought that I was unwil-
ling to state the amount paid me on the occasion of my mission to England on
behalf of the Northern Railway.

I have no objection whatever to name the amount I received, but thought it was
quite irrevelant to the business before the Commission. I went to England at the
request and by resolution of the Board; they undertaking to pay my personal
expenses. 1 was absent three months and these expenses amounted to £1%0, which
sum was paid me. I received no compensation in any way, directly or indirectly for
my services on this or any other occasion.  You are at liberty to have this filed ov
make any use you please of it.

I remain,
Yours truly,
(Signed) C. J. CAMPBELL..
L. W. Surrs, lisq.,
Chairman, N. R. Conunission.

(Exhibit No. 1. Filed 27th September, 1876.)
STATEMENT oF Mr. CUMBERLAND.

The Insurance business of the Company is inftwo branches, viz: - Aceidents and
Guarantee,” and ¢ Fire.”

Prior to 1869, Mr. Robert Spratt, Insurance Broker of Yonge Street, acted a3
agent of the Company, cffected its insurances, and took the commissions.

At about that time Mr. Barlow Cumberland having entered business in the oftice
of Messrs. Harrison, Osler & Moss, Mr. Spratt transferred the Insurance agency of
the Company to him. =

He subsequently (1872) entered the service of the Company, and continued to
act as agent and to manage the Fire insurance business of the Company, and
continued to receive the usual brokerage from the respective companies. i

Throughout the same period, the « Accidents & Guarantee” Department has
been similarly managed, the late passenger agent Mr. Adam Rolph, having acted a8
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Insurance Agent, roceiving also the usual brokerage, and on Mr. Rolph’s retirement
from the service, the agency was transferred to his successor Mr. Telfer, of the
ngineers’ Department, who still holds it and takes the commissions.

In determin’ng from time to time the salaries to be paid to these officers respect-
ively, regard has always been had to the amount of the brokerage commissions
received by each of them, and it has always been regarded and recognized as a portion
of their emoluments as Company’s officers, and their salaries struck and adjusted
accordingiy—and it is 80 now, )

The commissions have ranged from $400 to $500 per annum, but in the last two
or three years, the lines of insurance in both departments have been reduced.

Were this system abandoned the salaries paid by the Qomgany to these
officers must be advanced, and the Insurance Companies, or outside brokers, be the
gainers by the sum of the commissions. :

OrTrAWA, Docember 26, 1876.

My DEar Sir,—I herewith enclose the final report of the Northern Railway
Commission, as requested by the Chairman Larratt W. Smith, Esq.
I am yours very truly,
(Signed) J. P. FEATHERSTON.
The Hon. R. W. Scort, Esq.,
Provincial Secretary, Ottawa.

To His Excellency the Right Honorable Sir FrReperick TeMpLE, Earl of DurveriN,
&e., &c., &c., Governor General of the Dominion of Canada, and Vice-Amiral
of the same.

May it please Your Excellency :—

Since the date of making our Interim Report on the]4th day of October last,
Certain further proceedings have been taken in the matter of the Commission * for
* investigating the books, accounts and vouchers of the Northern Railway Company
“ of Canada, and the disbursements and expenditures of the said Company,” which
Proceedings we have the honor to report to Your Excellency.

Having been informed that Mr. Cumberland had recovered from the illness
Which was said to have prevented his attendance, as mentioned in our Interim
Re})ort, we determined to proceed with the Commission on the 25th day of October
ast ; and, having caused the Company to be notified of our intention, the Chairman

9f the Commission received on the day previous a letter from Mr. G. D’Arcy Boulton,
the Solicitor of the Railway Company, as follows :—

(Copy.) “ NORTHERN RAILWAY OF CANADA,

“ SoLIciToR's OFFICE,
“ToroNTo, 24th October, 1876
“ Sir,—Although 1 have as yet received no notice, I understand that the Com-
“ Iigsion is summoned for to-morrow. Mr. Cameron is out of town, and will not, I
‘ beliove, return before the end of the week, and I also am obliged to go out of town
“' to-morrow on private affairs. I would therefore ask that the meeting of the Commis.
8ion should be postponed until this day week.
“ Your obedient servant,

(Signed) G. D’AROY BOULTON,
“ Larrarr W. Smirh, Esq.,
“ Chairman N, %., Commissé%n."

10—5
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To which the following reply was returned :—

Del. (Copy-)
“ ToroNro, 24th QOctober, 1876.

“Sir,~—On my return from Court, where I have been engaged'all day, I found
‘“ your letter, asking for a further postponement of the meeting of the Commission
“ (fixed for to-morrow) until Tuesday ncxt, and have consulted with my colleague
‘“ on the subject ; and, as the Minister of Justice is not unwilling, we are not disposed
* to press it, although the delays have been very great. As Mr. Cameron’s and your
“ absence from town cannot affect Mr. Cumberland, who, I assume, is once more
‘“ restored to health, I shall be glad if you will fix an hour to-morrow at which the
“ Government accountant can have access to the books.

“T am, your obedient servant,

(Signed) “ LARRATT W. SMITH.
« Chairman, N. R. Commission.
“ G. D’Aroy Bouwnroxn, Esq.,
&e., &e.,
« Solicitor Northern Railway of Canada.”

Mr. Boulton did not answer this letter, and, on the 31st day of October last, we
proceeded, under the Commission, pursuant to adjournment. There were present the
Honorable Attorney-General Mowat on behalf of the (overnment, and Mr. G-
D’Arcy Boulton for the Northern Railway Company, also counsel for other parties
interested. The Attorney-General asked Mr. Boulton if it was the intention of the
Company to allow the books to be examined, in pursuance with the Chairman’s request,
Mzr. Boulton thereupon stated that it was not, as the lien of the Government had
been dischargoed ; and, on being requested to put his reply in writing, handed
in the following memorandum :—

MEMORANDUM.

« Mr, Boulton, as Counsel for the Company, states that since the adjournment
«“ from last Tuesday, the amounts to pay off the Government lien, under the Acts of
¢« the Dominion Parliament, have been paid by him over to the Receiver-General of
¢ the Dominion, and certificates under the said Acts of such payments, have been
“ signed and delivered to him, whereby the lien has been fully released. Mr, Boulton
« therefore submits that, as the Commission is entirely based upon the Government
“lien, that it having now been satisfied, there are no grounds for further proceedings
«.ynder the Commission. Mr. Boulton, therefore, in answer to the demand of the
¢« Attorney-General, declines to allow the Company’s books to be produced.”

It appeared to us proper, having regard to all that had taken place, to give the
Company and its officers the opportunity which would have been "afforded by a fur-
ther prosecution of the Commission, for further investigation and explanation, but
the Company taking the ground stated in the memorandum, the Commission was
adjourned, and upon full consideration we have come to the conclusion that the
ground work of the Commission being the existence of the lien, and the lien being
fully satisfied, and theo Company objecting to the further prosecution of the Commis
sion, we ought not to proceed further.

We have only to 1efer to our interim report, as showing how far we have beep
able to execute the duty imposed upon us by the Commission.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

(Signed) LARRATT W. SMITH,
Commissioner, Chairman.
(Signed) J. P. FEATHERSTON,
Commissioner,
ToronTo, 218t December 1876, 6
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Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by
His Excellency the Governor Gieneral in Council, on the 22nd July, 1876.

The Committee of Council has the honor to report :—

That representations have been made by the Secretary of the Northern Railway
Company of Carada that the funds of the Company have been misappropriated nd
that fraudnlent entries have been made in the Eooks of the said Company ;

That the wovernment of Canada have a lien on the property of the Company,
amounting to £475,000 sterling, subject to certain prior charges;

That any unauthorized application of the funds of the lﬁorthern Railway Com-
Pany must have a prejudicial etfect on the above mentioned claim of the Government
and the value of the lien held on the Railways;

That it is therefore deemed expedient to cause enquiry to be made into and con-
Cerning the various matters connected with the financial transactions of the Company,
and tho management of the Railway by the said Company, especially the several
Items of expenditure under the head of Working Expenses—and the several accounts
botween such Company and the Northern Extension Company and the disposal of
Sums realized from working the line as revenue :

TLey therefore recommend that a Commission do issne to be addressed to Larratt
w. Smith, Esquire, Q.C., D.C.L.. Barrister-at-Law, Toronto; John P. Featherston,

quire, of the City of Ottawa, and Adam Hope, Esquire, of Hamilton (the said
arratt W. Smith to be chairman of the Commission, for such purpose, under autnority
of'the 31st Victoria, Chap. 38, constituting thom Commissioners for investigating the
00ks, Accounts and Vouchers of the Northern Railway Company of Cunada and the
disbursements and expenditure of the said Company, and its actions and transactions,
and to ascertain what, if any, money or moneys at any time have been applied by the
ompany or any officer or officers thereof to purposes other than those authorized by
aw, and the effect thereof so far as regards the want of reduction of incumbrances
8xisting upon the said Railway, prior in lien to the Government.
. And that authority shall be given to such Commissioners by whom such enquiry
18 to be conducted, to summon hefore thom any party or witnesses, and to require
them to give evidence on oath orally or in writing (or on solemn affirmation if they
parties entitled toaffirm in civil matters), and to produce such documents, books of
4eount and things as such Commissioners deem requisite to the full investigation of
he mattors into which they are appointed to examine,
. And further that the Commissioncrs or any two of them do and shall report from
lme to time, or in one report as they may think fit, the result of their said

Snquiry.
The sittings of the said Commission to be held at the City of Toronto.
Certified.
(Signed) W. A. HIMSWORTH.

Clerlk, Privy Council.
To the Honorable
the Secretary of State.
&e., &c., &c.

St D. 8. 8., 27th July, 1876.
)
I am directed to inform you that representations have been made that the funds
fthe Northern Railway Company of Canada have been misappropriated and that
audulent entries have been made in the books of the Company.
I am further to state that the Government of Canada have a lien on the pro-
{’el‘ty of the Company amounting to £4'75,000 sterling, subject to prior charges, and
hat any unauthorized application of the funds of the Company must have a prejudi-
ﬁ‘al effect on the above mentioned claim of the Government and the value of the lien
old on the railway.
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His Excellency in Council has therefore deemed it expedien- to cause enquiry
to be made into and concerning the various matters connected with the financial
transactions of the Company and the management of the Railway by the said Com-
pany, especially the several items of expenditure under the Lead of Working
Expenses, and the several accounts between such Company and the Northern Extension
Company, and the disposal of sums realized from working the line as.revenue.

is Excellency has accordingly been pleased to direct that a Commission do
issue addressed to Larratt W. Smith, Eeq., Q.C., D.C.L., Barrister-at-Law, Toronto;
John P. Featherston, Esq., of the City of Ottawa, and Adam Hope, Esq., of the City
of Hamilton, (the said Larratt W. Smith to be chairman) for the above purpore,
under the authority of the 31 Vic., cap. 38, constituting them Commissioners for
investigating the books, accounts and vouchers of the Northern Railway Con”".pany, and
the dis%ursements and expenditure of the said Company and its actions and trans-
actions, and to ascertain what, if any, money or moneys at any time have been applied
by the Company or any officer or officers thereof to purposes other then those
authorized by Law, and the effect thereof so far as regards the want of reduction of
incumbrances existing upon the said Railway prior in lien to the claim of the
Government.

His Excellency has further been pleased to direct that authority be given:to the
said Commissioners to summon before them any party or witnesses and to require
them to give evidence on oath, or affirmation, orally or in writing, and to produce
such documents, books of account and things as the Commissioners deem requisite to
the full investigation of the matters into which they are appointed to examine.

I am to add that the sittings of the said Commission are to be held at the City of
Toronto.

I have, &c.,
(Signed) E. J. L
To the PrEsIDENT,
Northern Railway Company of Canada,
Toronto.

D. S. 8., 28th July, 1876.

S1r,—I am directed to inform you that representations have been made that the
funds of the Northern Railway of Canada have been misappropriated, and that fraw
dulent entries have been made in the books of the Company.

T am further to state that the Government of Canada have a lien on the property
of the Company amounting to £475,000 stg., subject {o prior charges, and that any
unauthorized application of the funds of the Company must have a prejudicial effect
on the above mentioned claim of the (Government and the value of the lien held on the
Railway.

Iir Excellency the Governor General in Council has accordingly been pleased
to direct that a Commission do issue under the authority of the 31 Vie,. cap. 38
addressed to yowrself'; J.P. Featherston, Exq, of the City of Ottawa, an dAdam Hopé

"Esq., of the City of Hamilton, constituting you Commissioners for investigating the

books, accounts and vouchers of the said Company and the disbursments and oxpe®
diture of the said Company, and its actions and transactions, and to ascertain what
if any, money or moneys at any time have heen applied by the Company or any
officer or officers thercof to purposes other than those authorized by Law, and the
offect thereof so far as regards the want of reduction of incumbrances existing upon
the said Railway prior in lien to the claim of the (rovernment. '

Mis Excellency has also been pleased to direct that authority be given to the
Com 1ssioners to summon before them, any party or withesses and to require them
to give evidence on oath or affirmation, orally or in writing, and to produce such
documents, books of account and things as the Commissioncrs deem requisite to the
full investigation of the matters into which they are appointed to examine,
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T am to add that Ifis Excellency has been pleased to appoint you Chairman of
the Commission and to direct that its sittings bo held in the City of Toronto. The
necessary Commission is being prepared and will be forwarded to you when
completed.

I have, &c.,
(Signed) E. J. L.
Larrarr W. Suita Esq., Q.C., D.CL.,
Toronto.

(Similar letters (M.M.) to J. P. Featherston, E.iq., Ottawa, and Adam Hope»
Esq., Hamilton.)

NorTHERN RarLway oF CANADA,
ManagIiNg DIRECTOR’s OFFICE,
ToronToO, 28th July, 1876.

Sir,—I have the honor to acknowledge receipt this day of your letter dated
Ottawa 27th inst., informing me of the appointment of a Commission to enquire into
the past management of this Company, and I beg to inform you that the sameis under
consideration of the Board of Directors, who will anthorize me to make afurther early
communication with you upon the subject.

I have the honor to be,

Sir,
Your obedient Servant,
(Signed) WILLIAM THOMSON,
President.
E. J. Langevin, Esq.,
Under Secretary of State,
Ottawa.,

Toronro, 1st August, 1876.

Sir,—I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your communisation of
the 28th ult., on the subject of the proposed Commission to investigate the affairs of
the Northern Railway Company, nominating me as a Commissioner, and appointing
me Chairman of said Commission.

.1 shall have much pleasure in acting on the Commisson as Chairman thereof, and
in ol»serving the instructions contained in your letter.
I have the honor to be,

Sir,
Your obedient Servant,
(Signed) LARRATT W. SMITH.
The Honorable the Secretary of State,
Ottawa.
CANADA.

VICTORIA, by the Grace of God, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Ireland, QueeN, Defender of the Faith, &ec., &c., &e.

To all to whom these presents shall come, or whom the same may in any wise
concern—GREETING.

“THEREAS representations have been made to Us by the secretary of the Northern
Railway Company of Canada that the funds of the Company have been misap-
Propriated and that fraudulent entries have been made in the books of the said Company.
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And whereas the government of Canada have a lien on the property of the Company,
nmounting to £475,000 sterling, subject to certain prior charges. And whereas any
unauthorized application of the funds of the Northern Railway Company must have
a prejudicial effect on the above mentioned claim of the government and the value of
the lien hicld on the Railway. And whereas it is deemed expedient to cause enquiry
to be mude into and concerning the various matters connected with the financial
transactions of the Company and the management of the Railway by the said Com-
puny, especially the several items of expenditure under the head of Working Expenses:
and the several accounts between such Company and the Northern Extension Com-
pany and the disposal of sums realized from working the line as Revenue. Now
Kryow Y that under the authority of an Act of the Parliament of Canada passed in
the 31st yoar of our Reign and intituled : « An Act respecting inquiries concerning
Public Matters,” We have by and with the advice of Our Privy Council for Canada
nominated, constituted and appointed, and We do by these presents nominate, cons-
titute and appoint Larratt W. Smith of the City of Toronto, in the Province of Ontario,
Esquire, and of Osgoode Hall, Barristor-at-Law, Docter of Laws ; John P. Feather-
ston of the City of Ottaws, n the said Province, Esquire, and Adam Hope, of the City
of Hamilton, Esquire, to be Commissioners for investigating the books, accounts and
vouchers of the Northern Railway Company of Canada, and the disbursements and
expenditure of the said Company and its actions and transactions, and to ascertain
what, if any, money or moneys at any time have heen applied by the Company or any
officer or officers thereof to purposes other than those authorized by Law, and the
effect there of so far as regards the want of reduction of incumbrances existing upon
the said Railway, prior in lien to the claim of the Government. And We do hereby
confer upon our said Commissioners hereby appointed or any two of them the power
of summonning thefore them any party or witnesses and of requiring them to give
evidenco on oath, orally or in writing (or on solemn affirmation if they be parties
entitled to affirm in civil matters), and to produce such documents as our said Com-
missioners or any two of them deem requisite to the full investigation of the matters
into which they are appointed to examine. And we do hereby authorize our said
Commissioners or any two of them to report to Us from time to time or in one Report
as they may think fit the result of their said enquiry. And We do hereby direct
and require that the said Larratt W. Smith be Chairman of our said Commission and
that the sittings of our said Commissioners be held at the City of Toronto aforesaid.

In TesTiMONY WHEREOY, We have caused these Our Letters to be made Patent,
and the Great Scal of Canada to be hereunto affixed. Wirness, Our Right
Trusty and Well-Beloved Cousin and Councillor the Right Honorable Sir
Freperic TeMPLE, Earl of Durrerin, Viscount and Baron Clandeboye of
Clandeboye in the County Down, in the Peerage of the United Kingdom,
Baron Dufferin and Clandeboye, of Ballyleidy and Killcleagh, in the County
Down, in the Peerage of Treland, and a Baronet, Knight . f Our Most Illus-
trious Order of Saint Patrick, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished
Order of Saint Michael and Saint George, and Knight Commander of Our
Most Honorable Order of the Bath, Governor General of Canada, and Vice
Admiral of the same. '

At Onr Government House, in Our CITY of OTTAWA, this TWENTY-
SECOND day of JULY, in the year of Our Lord, one thousand eight hundred
and seventy-six, and in the Fortieth year of Our Reign.

By Command,
R. W. SCOTT,
Secretary of State.
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4th August, 1876.

Sir,~With refercnce to my letter of tho 27th ult., I am directed to transmit to
you, herewith, & Copmission appointing you, with Messrs. J. P. Featherston and Adam
Hope, Commissioners 1o enquire into the affairs of the Northern Railway of Canada.

I have, &c.,
(Signed) E. J. L.
Laerarr W, Swrry, Iisq., Q.C, D.CL,
‘Toronto,

Toronro, 31st July, 1876.

Sir,—~Adverting to my letter to’you of the 28th inst., I now beg leave to bring
under your notice, by the direction of our Board, the accompanying statement
prepared for our consideration by our standing Counsel, the Hon. J. H. Cameron.

I would further beg leave to say, that with that statement before them, the
anxiety of*the Board is, not to obstruct any legitimate enquiry the Government may
desire to make, but to avert as far possible any undoe injury that may arise to the
financial credit of the Company from any action that may be taken on the Commis-
sion, and in order that a clear understanding may be arrived at with the Government,
the Board have deputed Mr. Cameron and myself to proceed to Ottawa on Wednesday
next to ask for a conference on the subject.

I remain,
Your obedient Servant,
(Signed) WILLTAM THOMSON,
The Honorable the Secretary State, President.

Ottawa.

(Copy.) '
IN THE MATTER OF THE GOVERNMENT COMMISSION OF ENQUIRY INTO THE AFFAIRS OF
THE NORTHERN RAILWAY ,LCOMPANY,

Having been required by the Board of Directors of the Northern Railway Com-
pany, to advise them in reference to the Commission issued by the Dominion Govern-
ment, for the investigation of various accounts of the Company, with power to the
Commissioners to summon and examine witnesses on oath, and to call for the
production of any books or documents of the Company, I beg leave to state for the
information of the Board, that in my judgment, the Government have taken an
erroneous view of their powers in the issue of' this Commission.

The Statute 31 Vic., ch. 38, under which it is recited, that the Commission is
issued, authorizes the issue of a Commission by the Government, when it is deemed
expedient to enquire into any matter connected with the good government of the
Dominion, or the conduct of any part of the Public business thereof, and in no other
case ; and I am unable to understand how the accounts or affairs of the Northern
Railway come within either of those classes of subjects, merely because the Govern-
ment is a creditor of the Company and has a lien on the Railway, as stated in the
Commission, a lien to which Parliament has given a special protection, which it
Would have been hardly necessary to afford if it had been considered possible that
this extraordinary power of the Crown could be invoked on the suggestion of any
One to investigate the Company’s affairs.

In addition to this position, the Parliament of Canada have sanctioned an
arrangement between the Government and the Company to compromise the Govern-
ment lien of £475,000 stg., for £100,000 stg., have extended the time for the payment
of the £100,000 to a day which has not ye7t arrived, and have declared that on that
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payment the Company shall be released from all further liability, and the lien of the
Crown shall be discharged.

The Directors are aware, although the Government may not be, that a Bill has
been filed in Chancery in Ontario against the Managing Director of the Company,
and the Company itself, to investigzate and enquire into the very matters which are
to be made the subjects of this Government enquiry, and it may be prejudicial to the
defence of the Company in that suit, that an investigation shall be made by the
Commission, before the suit is brought to a hearing.

The Directors are also aware that the Act of Parliament, under which the debt of
the Company tothe Crown was compromised, provides for the appointment of a Govern-
ment Director, whosespecial duty it is to look after the interests of the Crown in the
Company, that the Government has appointed such a Director, who is able, by his
position to make all the investigation and enquiry sought for by the Commission,
except to examine witnesses upon oath, which he may have quite as good a right to
do as the Commissioners themselves.

The Board are further aware that the issue of a Government Commission and an
enquiry thereunder into alleged irregularities in the accounts and false and fraudu-
lent entries in the books of the Company, to the prejudice of the Government lien, i8
a matter of such grave moment that it may seriously affect the interests of the
Company, and render nugatory all their efforts to obtain the money necessary to pay
the £100,000 to the Government, and to carry out the other objects of the Company
provided for by the act of Parliament.

I therefore advise that under these circumstances, and with the view also of
communicating with the Shareholders and Bondholders who are the constituents of
the majority of the Directors, and whose interests may be prejudicially affected by
these proceedings, the Government should be informed of the points which I have
brougﬁt 1o the notice of the Board, and requested to suspend any action under the
Commission until they have been considered by the First Minister, and if necessary,
the Company heard thereon ; and also an opportunity given to the Board to commu~
nicate with their constituents on the subject, the Board themselves undertaking to
pursue at once a searching enquiry into any matters which may have been brought
under the notice of the Government, and which the Government may desire to have
investigated. '

I need hardly add that the action of the Government places the Board under &
grave responsibility, as to the course to be adopted. If my view of the Commission
be correct, every oath administered will be extrajudicial, and every witness summoned
may refuse either to appear or be sworn, aud any Sharehotder or Bondholder may
file a bill to enjoin the Company from submitting to the enquiry, or allowing their
books to be produced before, or examined by the Commissioners.

(Signed) J. HILLYARD CAMERON.
Towonro, 29th July, 1876,

OtTTAwA, 5th August, 1876,

Sir,~-1 am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 31st ultimo
- enclosing a copy of a statement prepared for the comsideration of the Northern
Railway Company of Canada by the Standing Counsel of the Company, in reference
to the appointment of the Commission referred to in my communication of the 27th
ultimo, to enquire into an alleged misappropriation of the funds of the Company, and
to investigate its books and accounts,

I have, etc.,s

igned E J. L
WiLLiaM THoMsON, Esq., igned)
Prest, Northern Railway Co, of Canada,
Toronto.
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Toronto, Tth August, 1876.

Ste,~1 have the Lhonor to acknowledge the receipt of your communijcation of
the 4th inst., together with the Commission appointing Messes, J. P, Featherston,
Adam Hope and myxclf, Commissioners to enquire into the aifairs of the Northern
Railway o Canada.

I have the honor to be, Sir,
Your obedient Servant,

LARRATT W. SMITH,
Chairman, N. R. Com.
The Honorable the Secretuary of State,
Ottawa.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
Orrawa, 31st August, 1876.

The undersigned has the honor to recommend;

That a communication be addressed by the Secretary of State to the President
of the Northern Ruailway Company, stating that His Excellency has been informed
that the Northern Ruilway Company have issued Bonds to the extent of eighty or one
Wundred thousand pounds sterling ; and further thatit is proposed to pay the principal
and interest, or one or the other of them, out of the profits of the Company, and stating
tat His Excellency is advised that it any such loan has been raised it is subsequent
' lien to the prior claim of the Government of Canada, and that if any payment is
Made by the Company or the Directors of principal or interest on the loan of eighty
O one hundred thousand pounds, or any part thereof, to the exclusion of the Govern-
Tuent fien, or the interest thereon, the same will be a misappropriation of the funds
of the Compuny for which the Directors will be held personally responsible.

(Signed) R. J. CARTWRIGHT,
Acting Minister of Justice.

D. 8. 8, 2nd Sept., 1876.

G SIR,—T have the honor to inform you that it has been represented to the
. Overnment that the Northern Railway Company of Canada have issued bonds to the
X‘tent of’ eigh[y, or one hundred thousand pounds sterling, and f'urbher, that it is
pl_ol.’oﬁed to pay the principal and interest, or one or the other of them, out of the

Protits of the Company. B )
it I'have to state that the Hon. the Deputy of the Governor General is advised that
A0y snch losn has been raised, it is subsequent in lien to the prior claim of the
({vernmgnt of (anada, and that if any payment is made by the Company. or the Direc-
anm’ OfPrmcipal or interest, on the loan of eighty or one hundred thous:u.i pounds, or
Y part thereof, to the exclusion of the Government lion, or the interest thereon, the

:?ilﬁe Will be a misappropriation of the funds of the Company, for which the Directors
be held personally responsible.
I have, &c.,
(Signed) EDOUARD J. LANGEVIN,

W
. Trouson, Esq., President,

1ONoGrthern Railway of Canada, Toronto.
(£
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NorRTHERN RAlLwAY oF Canapa.
ManaaiNG DirECTOR'S OFFICE,
Toronto, 8th Sept., 1876,

Sie,—I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of vour letter of the Znd
instant, notifying this Company not to make any payment of principal or interest op
the eighty or one hundred thousand pounds of Bonds issued 1o Messrs, Morton
Rose & Co., and to inform you that the same was immediately brought under the cone
sideration of my Board of Directors.

I have the honor to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

(Signed) WILLIAM THOMSON,
: President,
To the Honorable the Secretury of State,
Ottawa.

ToronTO, 4th October, 1876.

Sie.—I have the honor to encloxe you herewith, the Interim Report of the Com~
missioners appointed to investigate the atfairs of the Northern Railway Company)
and bave to request that you will huve the same lnid before his Excellency the
Governor General. ~

I have the honor to be,
Your obedient servant,

(Signed) LARRATT W. SMITH,
Chairman, Northern Ruailway Commission.
The Honorable R. W. Scorr, Q.C,,
Socretary of State, &e., &e.
Ottawa.

D. 8. 8, 10th October, 1876.

Sir.——TI am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 4th instant
transmitting the Interim Report of the Commissioners appointed to investigate the
affairs of the Northern Railway Company of Canada.

I have, etc.,
(Signed) E. J. L.
Largarr W. Sumira, Esq.,, Q.C, D.CL,
Toronto.

4



40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No.11.) A. 1877

ANNUAL REPORT

OF THE

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 80Tru JUNE, 1876

Printed by Grder of Parliament,

OTTAWA:
PRINTED BY MACLEAYN, ROGER & CO., WELLINGTON STREET,
1877,






40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 11.) A. 1877

TABLE OF CONTENTS.

Kepert of Minister of the Interior. i secscsess cernnnnnsens serssease corerves sovonsens sasnsencs sesssnene coversass

SPECIAL APPENDIX.

A. Lieut.-Governor Morris' Despatch, 8th July, 1876, reporting negotiations with reference

to the gettlement of the ‘ Outside Promises’’ and selection of ReBServes.......ccvescevsecsrrerees XXV

B. Lieut.-Governor Morris' Despatch, 14th July, 1876, covering Report from Mr J L. Reld
P.L.8., on improvements made by White Mud Indians and Reserve selected by them....
C. Report of Mr. M. G. Dickieson, respecting the payment by him of Annuities under Treaty

xxx

No. 4.. eeseears seeensant sassecese teasvenns ssane o6 4es0tn P30svesen et sPEsiOsE NesIerRRG TPebLEEY SR o cennes oveose o XXXV

D. Report of Mr J M. Wa.lsh respecting the payment by bim of Annuities uader Treaty

No. 4, to Indians at Cypress Hills.... stt Seesiese seseseses ssasesses besereand srbese sus srntes susees bessen xxxvii

E. Lieut.-Governor Morris' Despatch, 17th November, 1876, covering communication from
Hon. T. Howard and Mr. J. L. Reid, P.L.S., reporting the adhesion to Treaty No.5

of certain Indian Bands not previously dealt With .....ccvcceresverenene versssntecories conneas o eevene xxxix

F. Lieut.-Governor Morris' Despatch, 4th December, 1876, reporting the negotiation of
. liii

Treaty No. 6, with copy of the Treaty...ccccvcerereaiiienrsvsinices svnrerss soses seesns

GENERAL APPENDIX.
PART 1.—-INDIAN BRANCH.
Report of Deputy Superintendent Ganeral of Indian AfFRIrs......e.evies ceesverenseeers ceaserissess sore snsssnsas

ONTARIO SUPERINTENDENCIES.

No. 1. Grand River Superintendency, J. T. Gilkison, Visiting Superintendent and Commissioner..
. Western do 1st Division.—No Report from R. Mackenzie do -
do do 2nd  do do Wm. Livingstone, Agent....
. Central do Wmn. Plummer, Visiting Superintendent and Commissioner.
. Northern do 1st Division, J. C. Phipps, Visiting Superintendent.... .......
do do 2nd do  C. Skene, 4o eeeeenens
do do 3rd do W.Van Abbott, Indian Lands Agent.........

do do 4th do No Report from A. Wright, Indian Agent......

I R

QUEBEC AGENCIES.

No. 9. Caughnawaga Agency, No report from J. E. Pinsonneault, Indian Agent ..ceeriieriicceennes
10. Lake of Two Mountains Agency do do  ieeenn
11. 8t. Regis do John Davidson, Indian Agent......c.vcceeeeene crersersnene saenenens
12. 8t. Franeis do . L. A. DeBlois, A0 errern e s e esanens
13. Viger do A.LeBel, jun, 1 S worcarvarinssnssassennes
14. Lake St. John do L. E. Otis, do esarsrarsesnn saenssens seavensrs sssaasss
15. River Desert do Patrick Moore, do cessteren sesseanny serres saasre e ieoesesss

15
16
16
16

21

21
22
24

25



40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 11.) A. 1877

No.

No.

Nova ScoTiA AGENCIES.

Pacre
No. 16. District No. 1, John Harlow, Tndian AeDt....... coeeesevenes seaserss sorsss varsns suessesen ssessenes susesenss 26
17. do 2, Rev. P. M. Holden do e satesseses seeseserses seoensberant setnes sneset sessen drertsasens 26"
18. do 3, No report from Rev. P. Danaher, Indian Agent....o.ccciveviiiinisivineinnerenennnns 27
19. do 4, Rev. R. Macdonald, do reesiiseessessesaenees sessesssesecaee DT
20. do 5, Rev. W. Chisholm, do 28
21. do 6, Rev. J. McDougall, do 28
22. do 7, No report from J. B. McDonald, do 28
23. do 8, Rev. A. F. McGillivray, do 29
NEw BRUNSWICK SUPERINTENDENCIES
24. North-Eastern, No report from C. Sargeant, Visiting Superintendent..............cccceruervvennns K30
25. South-Western, Wm. Fisher, Visiting Superintendent......... oot crteesvenniene sinnieins venen onssenee 30
Prince EpWARD ISLAND SUPERINTENDENCY.
26. Theophilus Stewart, Visiting Superintendent.......c.ccevuvvieessoresinsesssesvnne e wee 31

No.

MaNiToBA AND N. W. TERRITORIES SUPERINTENDEWCY.

27. No report from J. A. N. Provencher, Acting Indian Superintendent......c..coccvevriiines cocnene 32

No.

MED oMW REE R BB

Brrrisa CoLuMBIA SUPERINTENDENCIES.

28. 1. W. Powell, Indian Superintendent....ccuue scuiee sereesessecseesonersraisnneessnessnssnses svssseseessssesnee 38
29. Jas. Lenihan do 37
TABULAR STATEMENTS.

1. Officers and Employés at HeaRAqUATTETS.....cet veercersaeeterranass sessstosainsss streseens srnrssenr seosores veeee 39
2. do Qutposts ...ceeeeneereiesens rnens .. 40
Accountant’s Report... . 43

1. Analyzed Balance Sheer. of the Indmn Fund ................ e ssnennaenes 490
2. Indian Land Management Fund .......cccoe wee veeieviicneraness wne 51
3. Province of Quebec Indian Fund..... . 56
4. Indian School Fund ........ v B9
B. SUSPENSE ACCOUNLE revees:orsersassissesseersesissasresser crssnssassas teesss saosssssasssasesss sossnsossusssss saasss soonssses  OF
1. Nova Scotia, 1 62
2. New Brunswick, 64
3. Prince Edward Island, Statement of Revenue and Expenditure...... ... weeereennvennns 66
4. British Columbia, 67
6. Manitoba and the North-West, 69
Statement of Indian Lands sold during the year; and surveyed, surrendered lands unsold..... 79
School Returhs...... ceesssessessaasasioncsssrensserss resvesaasaenressasees sesReR sesRe rbes srteas ravnes o 82
Census do o - ove rovresaee teenes vessnesen o 89

iv



40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No.1l.) A. 1877

PART 1I.-ORDNANCE AND ADMIRALTY LANDS BRANCH.
Pace,
Report of the Commissioner of Ordnance and Admira.lty Lands, from 1st July, 1875, to 30th
JUDE, I8T6.ueuvreens svssars eoreeensanasas srsnenes sevneres sosesess savsross suross sssuvsres orosasss sesssesne sssnssnss sussee
A. Statement of Recexpts and Dep031ts on account of Ordnance Lands, monthly, from 1st July,
1875, 10 30th JUDE, 1876 . vurerens saveseses serersees sesss cesrssnss soreress snsres sussnenss soessasensessessossresrosss 10
B. Statement of sums due for Rent and Instalments of Purchase Money and Interest, unpaid,

30th June, 1876... veerere easessesees tecssecesvsrsnssereesasesas sessesss useranst nsserases senseransresess sersss 18
C. Statement showing Locaht 28 from which Moneys have been received, from lst July, 1875, to
30th JUNe, 1876 . uereceeicirsraees sensicoss sevnsencs ssssanens  ssnsese 13

D. Statement of Sales of Ordnance Lands, from 1st July, 1875, to 30th June, 1876. ......cccccrvsesrenees 14
E. List of Ledgers in use containing accounts of Purchasers and Tenants of Ordnance Property.. 15

PART IIL.—-DOMINION LANDS BRANCH.

The Surveyor General’s REPOTT...ccinee creerssee vessssnes coranesssvresssans sasasannsosess sossasssn sseres satasnsesssssosnres 3
1. Report of Lindsay Russell, Esq., Assistant Surveyor General, in charge of Special Survey of &
INOTED WESE TEITILOTIES ovuresre ereess seresses sessmsasesseses -vaeseres 2a stae sssesssss seseenses sesssees sesessne B 13
2. Report of A. L. Russell, Esq., Dominion Lands Surveyor, in charge of Meridian and Parallel @
Sections.. teses cosanssen o seesese neesorens seserere e [ @ 15
3. Report of W. T. ng Esq, Astronomical Assistant.. 3 22
4. do of Survey (including topography, e, ) of Battleford and nclmty & 24
5. Report of A. H. Whitcher, Esq., Inspector of Surveys, in charge of Surveys Office, Wuunpeg 31
6 do  Donald Codd, Esq., Agent of Dominion Lands, WinniPeg...cerermeseesimmsrererres voaeessoverrnrs 34
7. Schedules, &c. :—
A. Showing Dominion Lands Surveys effected to 31st October, 1876, and comparing cost
thereof with other Surveys .. seessse ceissaeessiesssinans sreeesues seanesans sesbesies sasaesens srassssses OO
B. Showing Azimuths observed on (102’ W ) Second Principal Mendum RO §
C. Azimuth and Latitude ObSEIVALIONS...cuu vvrvcns servrsrrssnnsessosnneseesss essasons sesse snnveesse seseress 38
D. Latitude observations at Battleford .ccee euceciinies seenresss ceerse connenosisnsenes 49
E. Showing Surveyors employed on Dominion Land Surveys, durmg 1876 ravees 67
F. do  Block Surveys completed during 1876....ccceeiuviierreririneeniinenesiiores onnvene snassesesess 68
G. do  Subdivision Surveys do erressee sesensars sesens sesane sersnens sesessianteasss snanes B9
H. do Indian Reserves surveyed during 1876...cccceeeeerrvicsoccasrnranesisnens resssnsererios srasveen 70
K. Synopsis of Block and Subdivision Surveys...ccc.cuee s - sesesmsesseress sness ssassasssnisreransens 12
L. Showing transactions of Dominion Lands Office, at Winnipeg, and branches, during 1875, 73
M. do new settiements and villages in Manitoba, formed during 1876........c..s weeeerenass 4



40 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 11.) A. 1877

REPORT

OF THR

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,

FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 30t JUNE, 1876.

To His Excellency the Right Honorable Sik FrEDERIc TEMPLE, Earl of Dufferin,
Governor General of Canada, etec., etc., etc.

May 1T PLEASE YOUR EXCELLENCY.

I have the honor to submit the Report of the Department of the Interior for the
Jear ended 30th June, 1876, being the Third Annual Report of the Department.

The Report is accompanied by the usual Special and General Appendix.

The Special Appondix attached tomy own Report contains copies of the documents
‘onnected with some of the more important transactions of the past year, especially
those relating to the Administration of Indian Affairs in the North-West, which
Rot forming part of the ordinary routine business of the office are not specially
Yoticed in the Report of the Deputy Superintendent General, or of the other heads of
Branches.

The General Appendix consists of three parts.

Part First contains the Report of the Deputy Superintendent General of Indian
Aﬁ'B,irs, with a Report of the Indian Superintendents and Agents throughout tho

minion, and the accompanying accounts and vouchers for the expenditure of the
Past figeal year.

Part Second contains the Report of the Commissioner of Ordnance and
dmiralty Lands, with the necessary accounts and vouchers.

Part Third contains the Report of the Surveyor General of Domircion Lands,
aecOmpanied by the Report of the Assistant Surveyor General, the Agent of Dominion

Ands and the Inspector of Surveys, &c., and the necessary accounts and vouchers.
11—a ‘
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The five branches of the Public Service placed by law under the control of the
Minister of the Interior, will be noticed under separate heads in the following
Order:—

. North-West Territories.
. Indians and Indian Lands.
. Ordnance and Admiralty Lands.

N =

w

. Dominion Lands.
. Geological Survey of Canada.

[SL

Detailed information as regards the second, third and fourth heads, Indians and
Indian Lands,Orduance and Admiralty Lands and Dominion Lands, will be found i?
the Parts 1st, 2nd and 3rd of the General Appendix already referred to.

1 have much pleasure in stating that on assuming the business ot the Depart”
ment in November last, T found all the business coanected with the several Branche®
of this large Department in a most satisfactory state, there being little work in arrear
save what had necessarily accumulated after the departure of my predecessor, the
Hon. Mr. Laird, to assume the duties of Licut-Governor of the North-West Territories

L—NORTIH-WEST TERRITORIES.

During the past year two very important steps have been taken by the Gover?”
ment towards the better establishment of law and order in the Territories, and the
further extension therein of the privileges and responsibilities of self government.

On the 7th October last a Proclamation was issued. bringing into force and cftec?
*“The North-West Territories’ Act, 1875,” and on the samc day another Proclamatio?
was issued, bringing similarly into effect the Act past during the last Session of
Parliament (the 39 Vic,, cap. 21) intituled “ An Act respecting the North-\VeSt
Territories, and to create a separate Territory out of part thercof.”

The cftect of the former Proclamation was to set in motion the machinoty
provided by the * North-West Territories’ Act, 1875, for tho Executive and
Legislative Government of the whole of the Territories formerly known as Rxlpert"”_
" Land and the North-West Territories, with the exception of the Province o
Manitoba ; and the effect of the fatter was to detach the Eastern of these Territori€®
and set it apart with its own autonomy under the name of the District of Keewati®

The Honorable David Laird, the then Minister of this Department, was appointed
Governor of the North-West Territories, and His Honor, the Licutenant Governor ©
Manitoba, became, ex officio, the first Governor of the District of Keewatin.

It is a fortunate thing for the Councils to whom, under the Acts already cited the
Legislative and Executive functions of these nascent Governments are confided, that

while laying the foundations of a new and better order of things in their x-es])ccti“'e
vi
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I)istl'icts, they will be assisted in their labors by men of so much experience in public
Yiairy a5 the Licutenant-Governor of Manitoba and the Ex-Minister of the Interior.

It remains to be scen whether it will be possible, as settlement of the North-West
®rritories proceeds at points widely separated from each other, to continue to retain
® whole of that immense country under one Local (overnment,

II.— INDIANS.

TREATIES 1 AND 2.
Outside Promises.
In the report last year it was stated that the protracted and troublesome coutro-
Vo, . . . . cqs .
sy growing out of the so called Outside Promises, with one trifling exception, had
0 adjusted satisfactorily alike to the Government and the Indians,

The controversy in question was limited to the Indians of Treaties Nos. 1 und 2,

g all, save one of the Bands of Indians included in these treaties, cheerfully accepted

t year the terms offered by the Government, and expressed their satisfaction at
¢ liberality with which they were treated.

In tho case of the recalcitrant Band, that of the Portage la Prairie, known as
Yell0W Quill’s, the refusal arose, not from any dissatisfaction with the terms offered
the Government, but partly in consequence of'a dispute in reference to the reserve
‘s“igned to them, and partly in consequence of a division amongst themselves on the
"Wiect of their chief ; one part of the Band being composed of the adherents of Yellow
Ull, another portion of the adherents of Short Bear or Young Chief, and a third, of

. e residing near White Mud River, who desired to form an independent Band with
Chief of their own selection.

. His Honor Lieutenant Governor Morris, who conducted the negotiations last year
Vith these Indians, was requested again in the spring to treat with them, and
Vg authorized to meet, if practicable, theirwishes in the matter of the Reserves, and

®onsent to the division of the Band.

Re, His Honor was also authorized to take a Surveyor with him to set apart those
erves, should the Indians accept the terms proposed by the Government.

In June, last, the Licutenant Governor telegraphed to the Gevernment. that he

:dmet the Portage Band, and settled the Rescrve difficulty, and all other open
SStions,

SemThe Department, however, Fnas been unz?ble to recommend the contirmation of the
~Cment of the Reserve question then arrived at, as the territory selected was land
ich had been surveyed and set out for settlement, and in a portion of which, under
®terms of the Dominion Lands Act, the Hudson’s Bay Company had a vested right.

i
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The Government found it necessary to recognize three divisions of the Band, each
with its own Chief, and also to make some further concessions to the Indians generally
of Treaties 1 and 2, in order to place them on the same footing as to councillors and
headmen as the Indians of Treaty No. 3.

The concessions made to these Indians as regards the number of their headmen
were subsequently approved by Your Excellency in Council.

As the Acting Superintendent of Winnipeg has received full instructions from the
Department to carry out the arrangements with these Indians in reforence to these
Outside Promises, it is hoped that this troublesome controversy may be considered
as finally disposed of.

His Honor's despatch giving the official report of his mission to this Band, is con-
tained in the Special Appendix.
TREATY NO. 3. -
There is nothing special to notice here in reference to the Indians included in

this treaty. All the information of interest respecting them is given in the report of
the Deputy Superintendent General of Indian Affairs.

TREAYY NO. 4.
The payment of the annuities to the Indians under the treaty was assigned to
Mr. Dickieson, of this Department, and to Mr. Sub-Inspector Walsh of the Mounted
Police Force, stationed at Cypress Hills: Mr. Dickieson was assisted by Mr.
Angus McKay, who had been provisionally appointed local Indian Agent at Swan
River, and by Mr. W. H. Nagle of this city, and Mr. Walsh was assisted by Dr.
Miller of the Mounted Police Force, Indian Medical Officer at the Cypress Hills.

The Indians at Fort Ellice, Fort Pelly, the Touchwood Hills, Qu'Appelle Lake,
Bgg Lake, and Shoal River Post were paid by Mr. Dickieson and his Assistant,
and those at Cypress Hills by Mr. Walsh and his Assistant, the payments being
made in all cases at dates which the Indians had been previously notified to atterd
for that purpose.

The number of [ndians paid at the different pluces is as follows :—

Fort Ellice, 335 Indians who were paid.............oee. $ 1,850
Touchwood Hills, 310 Y e 2,159
Fort Pelly, 353 G s e 4,509
Qu’Appelle, 1,705  riierereeaeee 12,033
Shoal River, 404 e, 2,346
Cypress Hills, 794 G e 4,200

Total....... 3,901 e $37,097

Mr. Dickieson also secured the adhesion to the treaty of the Egg Lake Indians

who were absent in 1874 when that treaty was concluded.
V111
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Mcr. Dickicson was waited upon at Qu'Appelle Lake by the Sioux Chiefs, White
Cap and Standing Buffalo, formerly of the United States, but for many years past
resident in our territory, and also by a delegation of Sioux from the United States.
The latter expressed their entire confidence in the British Government, and their
anxious desire to be on good terms with those living on the British side of the
boundary line.

Mr. Dickieson and Mr. Walsh transmitted to the Department full and interesting
reports of their proceedings in connection with their missions. These reports are
included in the Special Appendix.

In future the paying of the Indians, under this treaty, will form part of the
ordinary duty of the Indian Superintendent of the North-West Territories.

TREATY NO. H.v

When His Honor Governor Morris concluded this treaty last year, there were
several bands of Indians, notably : the Swampy Crees at the Pas on the Saskatche-
wan, within the territory covered by the treaty, whom, from absence and other
cauaes, it was impossible to include on that occasion, and His Honur strongly
urged the necessity of taking steps, during the ensuing summer, to secure the
adhesion of these Indians.

His Honor was, accordingly, in June last, requested to take measures for this
purposc; and the task was entrusted by him to the Honourable Thomas Howard and
Mr. Lestock Reid, Dominion Lands Surveyor: these gentlemen being at the same
time charged with the duty of making the necessary payments to the Indians who
had been dealt with last year, and of distributing the provisions, implenients, clothing
and other articles to which they were entitled under the treaty.

His Honor reports that thesc gentlemen discharged their missions most success-
fally and satisfactorily. They succeeded in obtaining the assent to the treaty of the
numeroas Indian Bands scattered among the islands and shores of Lake Winnipeg,
whom they induced to unite together as one Band with one Chicf. They obtained
the adhesion to the treaty of the Indians of the Pas, of Cumberland and of Moose
Lake, as also that of the Indians of the Grand Rapids of Berens River.

While engaged in this labor, they assisted in selecting suitable localities for
the Indian Rescrves subject, of course, to the approval of Your Excellency in Council.

It may be added that, during the snmmer, Acting Superintendent Provencher
obtained the adhesion to this treaty of the Band of Indians at the mouth of the Black
River.

In this way the assent to Treaty 5 of all the Indian Bands within the territory
ceded thereby has been secured : a work which must Le considered, as His Honor
Governor Morris observes, as a satisfactory feature of the Indian operations during

the past twelve months.
ix
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The despatch of His Honor, reporting the facts above mentioned with the
reports of Messrs. Howard and Reid, will be found in the Special Appendix.

NEW TREATY.

Official reports received last ycar from His Honor Governor Morris and Colonel
Fronch, tho officer then in command of the Mounted Police Force, and from other
partics, showed that a feeling of discontent and uneasiness prevailed very generauy
amongst the Assiniboines and Crees lying in the unceded Eerritory between th?
Saskatchewan and the Rocky Mountains. This state of feeling which had prevai]"d
amongst these Indians for some years past, had been increased by the presence last
summer in their territory of the parties engaged in the construction of the telcgl‘ﬂPh
line, and in the survey of the Pacific Railway line, and also of a party belonging o
the Geological Survey. To allay this state of feeling, and to prevent the thrcatel"
hostility of the Indian tribes to the parties then employed by the Government, His
Honor Governor Morris requested and obtained authority to despatch a messenger tO
convey to these Indians the assurances that Commissioners would be sent tB¥

summer to negotiate a treaty with them, as had already been done with thelf
brethren further East. '

The Rev. George McDougal,* who had been resident as a Missionary among®"
these Indians for upwards of fourteen years, and who possessed great influence 0V¢
them, was selected by His Honor to convey this intelligence to the Indians, a 8
which he performedwith great fidelity and success : being able to report on his rotu®
that although he found the feeling of discontent had been very general among the
Indian tribes, he had been enabled entirely to remove it by his assurance of th°
proposed negotiations during the coming year.

TFor the purpose of negotiating this treaty with the Indians, Your Excellen®
availed yoursclf of the services of IIis Ilonor Governor Morris, who had b90:
formerly employed in negotiating Treaties Nos. 3,.4 and 5. With him wol
associated the Ion. James McKay and W. J. Christie, Esq., both of whom ba
had considerable experience in such work, and possessed moreover an intim“‘
acquaintance with the Indians of the Saskatchewan, their wants, habits and dialect”

In view of the temper of the Indians of the Saskatchewan during tho Pait
season, and of the extravagant demands which they were induced to prefer on cc!'“"ls’
points, it needed all the temper, tact, judgment and discretion of which the Com™"
sioners were possessed to bring the negotiations to a satisfactory issue.

e’
The treaty was concluded at Carleton, on the 23rd and 28th of August, and P
Fort Pitt, on the Jth day of September.

-

" . whil?

*This excellent man and devoted Missionary perished in the snow on the prairie last yeﬂtﬁm‘lou’
making one of his Missionary journeys. In him the Methodist body lost one of its mos

e ont
N ; li
and laborious ministers, and the Indian tribes one of their most devoted friends and intel g
advisers.
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The territory ineluded in the treaty is approximately estimated to contain one
hundred and twenty thousand square miles, and may be roughly described as that
‘part of the North-West Territories bounded on the East by Treaty No. 5, on the
West by the Rocky Mountains, on the North by Cumberland Lake, the Beaver River,
Red Deer Lake, and the Arthabasca River above tho Red Deer Lake, and on the

South respectively by the northerly boundary of Treaty No. 4, by the South branch
.of the Saskatchewan, and by the Red Deer River.

The Dominion has by this treaty acquired nearly the whole of the territory
within the fertile belt, and for some distance north of it; in fact all the lands east of

the Rocky Mountains, with the exception of a small district of about 35,000 square
miles, inhabited by the Blackfeet Indians.

The number of Indians living within the territory is estimated at about 5,000.

The Indians inhabiting the territory, are chiefly Crees, with a few Assiniboines
on the plains and slopes of the mountains, and a small number of Sauteaux, and one
Band of Chippewayans.

The Chiefs of all these Bands signed the treaty, with the exception of Great Bear.
. As the original treaty has not been received from His Honor Governor Morris,

the treaty has not as yet been formally sanctioned by Your Excellency in Council.

The terms of the treaty as regards the important matters of Reserves, schools,
the amount of the money gratuities and annuities made or secured to the Indians, are
substantially the same as those of Treaty No. 5; but there is inserted in this treaty
a provision in reference to aid promised to Indians in ease of famine or pestilence,
which is wholly new, and which I greatly regret should have been agreed to by the
Commissioners, as it may cause the Indians to rely upon the Government instead of
upon their own exertions for sustenance, especially as their natural meaus of subsis-
tence are likely to diminish wiil the settlement of the country; the conditions also
in reference to agricultural implements, tools and cattle, and other minor matters,
are somewhat more onerous than those of previous treaties.

His Honor's despatch covering the copy of the treaty will be found in the
Special Appendix.

MORAL AND MATERIAL CONDITION OF THE INDIANS IN THE MANITOBA AND THE NORTH-
WEST SUPERINTENDENCIES.

The moral and material condition of the Indians in the North-West has been
stoadily and surely progressing since the North-West Territories were included
within the Dominion. The liquor law and the Mounted Police Force have together
succeeded in stamping out almost entirely the vice of drunkenness. Crime is com-
paratively rare. The irritation and distrust which existed in certain localities, or
among particular Bands-of Indians, have been replaced by an almost universal feeling

of contentment and of gratitude to the Government for its liberality and benevolence.
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In the report of his mission during the past summer among the Indians of the
Saskatchewan, for the purpose ef negotiating o treaty, Governor Morris gives a very
encouraging account of the good spirit which he found prevailing among these Bands.

He stite- that he “ was surprised to find so great a willingness on the part of the
“Indians to cultivate the soil, and so great a desire to have their children instructed.”

Again, he says the Indians are  tractable and docile.”  ** The universal demand
‘is for teachersand for persons to instruct them how to cultivate the ground and to
“ build houses.” In a word, they seem preparved to abandon their savage life and to
adapt themselves as quickly as possible to the modex of the life of the White man.

The remarks of Governor Morris refer to the Iundiuns of the Saskatchewan.
Those in the Manitoba Superintendency have alveady in many places actually com-
menced the cultivation of the soil and built houses for themselves. It may be added
thyt no less than eight schools are in suceessful operation in the Manitoba Superin-
tendency.

These are encouraging symptons, and it cannot b loubted that the establishing
of resident local agents on the Superintendencies (four have been already provi-
sionally established during the past year in the Manitoba Saperintendency, and one-
in the North-West Superintendency) will help on the wood work of improvement
which has been so auspiciously commenced among the Todians,

There is, however, it must be admitted, another side to the picture. There is
one question at least which for some years past has sorely disquicted the mind of the-
Indian of the Saskatchewan, and which causes him to look forward with increasing
anxiety to the future. The question is this: IHow shall he find subsistence when the
buttalo is destroyed 2 Until within the last two years the buffalo, which roamed
over the prairie in apparently exhaustiess herds, furnishel the Indians with a supply
of food practically unlimited. For the last ten years the numbers of the buffalo have:
greatly diminished, and in another decade of vears, unless prompt measures be taken
in the meantime to prevent the catastrophe, the butfalo as a source of supply of food”
will be extinct.

It must be remembered that this animal, hesides furnishing the Indians with
their principal means of subsistence as fool, is otherwise ot greatimportance to them
The traffic of the butialo peltries is very considerable, and has hitherto enabled the
Indian to sup}ﬂy his family with many of the necessaries of life. The Indian feels,
therefore, that on the existence of the buffalo his own existence really depends. He
eannot view without dismay the wanton and indiscriminate slaughter of these animals,
mainly, be it observed, by the Whites and Half'hreels, who have intruded into the
domain of the red man, and who wage war upou the buttalo us an enemy instead of
proteeting him as a friend.

Fhe grave question received the attentive consideration of the late Council of
the North-West, and was commended by His Honor Governor Morris, in his valedic-

tery address 40 that body, to the attention of their successors.
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The subject also engaged the attention of His Honor Governor Laird while
Minister of the Interior, and as Governor of the North-West he will, no doubt, take
the carliest opportunity of securing for it the serious consideration of the Council of
the North-West 50 soon as it is organized. It will be for that body to consider—

1. What measures can be taken to protect the buffalo and preserve it us long as
possible for the benefit of the Indians.

2. What measures can be taken to prepare the Indians for the time not far distant
when the butlalo will be a thing of the past.

The former object will be to some extent attained by enforcing proper regula-
tions respecting tLe hunting and killing of the buttalo, and the latter by encouraging
the Indians to cuitivate the ground and apply themselves at once to other industrial
pursuits,

INDIANS S$TILL TO BE TREATED WITIH.

The treaty completed during the past summer by Ilis Houor Governor Morris
includes, as has been stated, all the Cree Indians in the North-West and embraces
the large area already described, leaving still unceded a comparatively small portion of
territory cast of the Rocky Mountains and south of Jasper House.

This territory, probably about 35,000 squarc miles, is oceupied principally by
the Blackfeet Indians, including unler that title the Blood, Peagun and Surcees
Indians. The Surcees are stated to be a portion of the Beavers of the Peace River.
The total number is estimated at about 4,000 souls,

When engzaged last swmmer in negotiating the treaty at Carleton Honse and Fort
Pitt, His Honor Governor Morris availed himself of the opportunity of acquiring
information in reference to the condition, habits and state of feeling of the Indians
occupying this unceded territory.

His report confirms the information previously reccived by the'Department as to
the general desive of these Indians for the early conclusion of a treaty with them.
He adds that there is u general consent of opinion amongst the missionaries settled
in that territory and others who are acquainted with these Indians, as to the
desirableness of having such a treaty made at the earliest possible date, with a view
to preserving the present friendly dispositon of these tribes, which might easily
give place to feelings of an unfriendly or hostile nature should the treaty negotiations
be much longer delayed.

The White settlers also, who are flocking into the neighbourhood of Fort McLeod
and other tertile portions of this territory, are most anxious to gee the treaty con—
cluded, in order that they may be enabled to settle themselves there without fear of
being disturbed.

The importance of the Mounted Police Force of encouraging the introduction of
White settlers, from whom they would be able to obtain cheap supplies for themselves

and their horses, is sufficiently obvious.
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It would appear that the Blackfeet, who some twelve or fifteen years‘ ago
numbered upwards of ten thousand souls and were then remarkable as a warlike and
haughty nation, have within the last decade of years been greatly demoralized and
reduced by more than one-half their number—partly in consequence of the poisoned
fire-water introduced into the territory by American traders, partly by the murderous
acts of lawless men from the American territory, and partly by the terrible scourge
of the Red man, small-pox, which in 1870 caused great havoc among the Indians in
this region. '

It is satisfactory to be able to state in connection with these Indians that when
invited during the summer by the Sioux Indians from the American side to join with
them in taking up arms against the Whites, they deelined te do so. For their good
conduct on that occasion they received the thanks of the Queon, who was pleased to
direct that they should be officially informed of her gratification at this evidence of
their loyalty and attachment.

Since the advent of the Monnted Police Force at the North-West the condition
of the Blackfeet has undergone a marvellous and most gratifying improvement, and
their feelings towards the Police Xorce are of the most friendly character.

THE INDIAN ACT, 1876.

During the last session of Parliament an Act, with the above short title, was
passed, amending and consolidating the laws respecting Indians.

The bill, { am informed, was very carefully prepared by the then Superintendent
General, the Hon. Mr. Laird, who was at pains to obtain the views of many of the
most inteiligent Indian Chiefs in Ontario respecting its provisions, and the bill was,
in some particulars, modified to meet their wishes.

Referring, in his report last year, to this measure, Mr. Laird observes:

“ Qur Indian legislation generally rests on the principle that the aboriginies are
“to be kept in a condition of tutelage and treated as wards or children of the State.
“'The soundness of the principle [ cannot admit. On the contrary, I am firmly
< persuaded that true interests of the aboriginies and of the State alike require that
“overy effort should be made to aid the Red man in lifting himself out of his condition
“ of tutelage and dependence, and that is clearly our wisdom and our duty, through
“education and every other means, to prepare him for a higher civilization by
“encouraging him to assume the privileges and responsibilities of full citizenship.

“In this spirit and with this object the enfranchisement clauses in the proposed

¢ Indian Bill have been framed.”
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It is satisfactory to be able to report that the Act as passed has met'with very
general acceptance among the Indians of Ontario. At a general Indian Council, held
in Saungeen in the month of July last, an almost unanimous vote was passed approving
of its provisions.

BRITISH COLUMBIA INDIAN LANDS.

In the annual report for last year tho then Superintendent General was enabled
to state that, while the report was in the hands of the printer, he rcceived intelli-
gence from the British Columbia Government that they had accepted the basis
proposed by the Dominion Government for the settlement of this grave and compli-
cated controversy, which had been the subject of correspondence between the
Governments for the two preceding years.

The despateh fiom the Licutenant Governor of pritish Columbia, announcing
“the acceptance by his Government of the terms proposed by the Dominion Govern-

ment, is dated 8th January, 1876, and was reccived here in the latter part of that
month.

It was agreed between the two Governments that the settlement of the Indian
Reserve question should be referred to three Commissioners, one to be appointed by
the Dominion Government, another by the Government of British Columbia, and the
third to be named jointly by the Dominion and Local Governments; that these Com-
missioners should visit, as soon as practicable, each .Indian nation in British
Columbia, and, after full enquiry into all matters affecting the question, determine for
each nation the number, extent and locality of the Reserves to be allowed to them.
In doing so0 the Commissioners were to be guided generally by the spirit of the terms
of union between the Dominion and Local Governments, which contemplated a
“ltberal policy” being parsued towards the Indians, They were to have special regard
to the habits, wants and pursuits of each Indian nation, to the amount of territory

available in the country occupied by them, aswell as to the claims of the White
population.

Early in May, Mr. Alexander C. Anderson, of North Saarach, British Columbia,
was appointed by His Excellency in Council as tho Indian Commissioner on behalf
of the Dominion Government. The British Columbia Government was at once
advised of the fact, and requested to name their own Commissioner, and also to sub-
mit the name of the gentleman whom they would propose as the third or joint Com-
missioner for the two Governments.

The Government of DBritish Columbia took no action in the matter until the
month of August, when they notified the Department by telegraph that Mr. Archi-
bald McKinley, of Lac la Ilache, British Columbia, had been selected as their Com_

missioner, and they submitted the name of Mr. Gilbert Malcolm Sproat as the third
or joint Commissioner.
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Mr. Sproat was appointed on the 15th August as the joint Commissioner of the
Dominion Government also.

The necessary Commissions, accompanied by full instructions, were seut to the
Dominion Commissioner und to the joint Commissioner on the 23rd August last.
Thes Commissioners were instructed to assuve the Indians of the anxious desire of
the Government to deal justly and liberally with them in the scttlement of their
Reserves, as well as in all other matters. They were to inform the Indians that the
aim and object of the Government was to assist them in their efforts to raise them-
selves in the social and moral scale so as ultimately to enjoy all the privileges and
advantages which were enjoyed by their white fellow subjects.

As regards the vicws of the Government on the subject of the land question, the
Commissioners were referred to the documents connected with the matter, printed
in the Annual Report for last year, in the spirit of which they were requested to act.
They were reminded that the Government considered it a matter of paramount im-
portance that is the settlement of the land question, nothing should be done which
eould militate against the maintenance of friendly relations between the Dominion
Government and the Indians of British Columbia, and they were offizially enjoined
as little as possible to interfere with any existing tribal arrangements; and, partic-
ularly, that they were to be careful not to disturb the Indians in the possession of any
villages, fishing stations, fur trading posts, settlements or clearings which they might
occupy, and to which they might be specially attached.

The Commissioners were, moreover, warned against making any attempt to cause
any violent or sudden change in the habits of the Indians, or to divert them from
any legitimate pursuits and occupations in which they might be profitably engaged,
but rather to encourage thera in any branch of industry in which they were so
employed.

The Commissioners were instrneted to confer in all matters with the two Super-
intendentsin British Columbia, namely, with Dr. Powell, of Victoria, and Mr, Leni-
han, of New Westminster, and these gentlemen were directed toco-operate with and
assist the Commissioners in the execution of their important labours. Finaliy, the
necessity of bringing their labours to a close as soon as practicable, with a view to

the early adjustment of this grave controversy, was strongly impressed on the
Commissioners.

It may be here remarked that all the Commissioners appointed have been for
many years past resident in British Columbia, and thoroughly identified with that
Province. They are, moreover, all men of high standing and character in the Pro-

vince, and who have taken much interest in public affairs, especially in matters
affecting the Indians.

In the month of September, the Department was notified that the Commissioners

had organized themselves and entered upon their lahours.
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It will be seen from the foregoing statement that the Commissioners are clothed
with ample power to deal in a practical and summary manner with this long stand-
ing controversy—one in which the interests of the White settlers of British Colum-
bia, as well as of the Indians of British Columbia are so deeply involved; and the
constitution of the Commission gives good reason to expect that the Commis-
migsioners will so deal with the question as to do justice to all parties interested.

Certain of tho provisions of the ¢ Indian Act of 1876,” passed last session (sub-
sequent to the date of the Order in Council regulating the powers of the Commis-
sion), being in conflict with the large powers thereby conferred upon the Commis-
sion, Your Excellency was advised to issue a Proclamation, under the provisions of
the 97th section of that Act, exempling the Indian Lands and Indian Reserves in
British Columbia from the operation of certain sections of that Act.

Tho Proclamation bore date the 23rd Decem ber, and the effect of it will be to
cnable tho Commissioners to deal absolutely and at once with the British Columbia
Reserves, without reference to cither the Dominion or Local Governments, in the
manner originally intended by the Order in Council of 6th May, 1876.

The question of the rights of the Indians in all the lands in British Columbia in
which their rights have not been extingaished by treaties between themscives and
the Crown is still unsettled.

IIL.—ORDNANCE AND ADMIRALTY LANDS.

The Commissioner of Ordnance and Admiralty Tiands has, in his report, taken
the pains, for my information, to review and epitomize the contents of preceding
annual reports, shewing the former condition and present state of the Ordnance
Lands, their contents and value at the time of the transfer in 1856, tho difficulties
encountered in reducing them to a manageable shape, and the result cf their manage-
ment to the present day, from a material and patriotic point of view, in the
settlement of large numbers of squatters claims and the conversion of numerous
families of this class from the hopeless and squalid condition of lawless trespassers
to the improved state and cheerful promise of lawfully established settlers.

It is shewn, also, as another result of this management, that a sum of $1,020,579.24
bas been paid over to the General Revenue, on account of the Militia Fund, up to
the 31st December last, without taking into account $196,734 duo but not yet payable
bat all amply sccured. It also shews that the annual income for the past 20 years
has averaged 850,000 per annum, and that the returns for the fiscal year. termin-
ating 31st December, 1876, amounts to $51,515.40.

Sales are quoted as having been made at Amherstburg, Kingston, Prescott,

Nepean, Ottawa, Ontaria; at St. John, Chambly, Sorel, Queber, realizing $76,496.12
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Mention is made of large and valuable military and naval properties trans-
ferred to this Department in Ontario, Quebec and in the Provinces of Nova Scotia
and New Brunswick, greatly increasing the duties aud labour of this branch.

The organization of this branch and the duties of the respective officers are
given in detail, also a general statement of the lands sold and moneys deposited on
account of the estate of the Bank of Upper Canada; I am informed also in a supple-
mentary report, that since the end of the fiscal year, 30th June, 1876, sales have
been made of building lots at Cove Field, Quebec, producing a total amount of $62,310,
of which sum, one-fifth, or $12,462, had been paid in; from this and other sources,
a sum of $80,905.54 had been paid over to the Consolidated Fund between the 30th

June and the 31st December, 1876.

It may also be added, that within the same period, $7,744.65 had been paid in
to the account of the estate of the Bank of Upper Canada, making thoe whole amount
derived, or to be derived, from this source, to the 31st December last, $194,702.48.

IV.—~DOMINION LANDSs.

The Report of the Surveyor-Greneral, with its appendices, including sub-reports
from the Assistant Surveyor-General and other principal officers employed in the
Dominion Lands Branch of the Department, furnish a general statement of the busi-
ness of tho Branch for the twelve months ending the 31st October last, '

SURVEYS.

Owing to the general depression in business which continued through tae past
year, it was not deemed expedient to undertake any surveys that were not impera-
tively required, and, in consequence, operations were restricted to the following
services : —

1. The Special Survey.

2. The laying out of certain Indian Rescrves.

3. The continuance of the survey of the “Outer Two Miles,” and the sub-
division of five townships, part of the tract set apart for the colony of Icelanders on
Lake Winnipeg.

Satisfactory progress is reported in laying down the bases and meridians pre-
scribed for the special survey, and the operations of the season have developed the
existence, upon the lines projected, of large tracts of land well suited for settlement:

The Assistant Surveyor-General, in charge of the Survey, reports that the efforts
of the astronomical section of his party during the season, to obtain the longitude of
certain important points upon the line of tbe Canadian Pacific Railway (which it
had been intended to effect by interchangelof electric signals with Winnipeg), failed,

in consequence of the imperfect condition of a portion of the telegraph line.
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The summary given by the Surveyor-General of the extent of the township
land surveyed, and the cost of survey, will be read with interest. The area of lands
gubdivided for settlement since the establishment of the Branch in d871, apart from
some 341,666 acres comprised in the Old Parishes, also surveyed and mapped,
amounts to 10,574,915 acres, at an average cost per acre of 3-83 cents, being but .
little over half the average cost per acre of township lands in Ontario and Quebec,
for the years 1841 to 1875 inclusive—a vesult which reflects no little eredit on the

manner in which those extensive surveys have been conducted by the Surveyor
General of Dominion Lands.

SETTHEMENT.

The lands entered during the past year show a total of 154,533 acres, being less
by 8,744 acres than the total entries of the year previous, the difference being due,
doubtless, to the fact already alluded to, the general financial stringency throughout
the Dominion.

The people in the Province, however, have recently enjoyed a bountiful harvest,

and there appears every prospect, despite the hard times, of a large addition to the
resident population during the coming season.

The Mennonites who have settled in Manitoba are reported as being in a

prosperous condition, and quite satisfied with the change which has placed them upon
Dominion lands.

Forty-two villages or Dorfs have already sprung into existence, and the whole of
the surroundings of these people indicates a special adaptation to the country which

they have made their home, and in which a few years, from present appearances, is
destined to find them a wealthy community.

HALF-BREED LANDS AND SCRIP.

A new distribution of the 1,400,000 acres granted by law to the children of the
Half-breed heads of families in Manitoba having become necessary for the reasons
explained in the Surveyor-Gencral’'s Report. Some little delay will, in consequence,
ensuc before patents can issue. No unnecessary time, however, will be lost in making
the distribution of the grant.

1 have the satisfaction of announcing to Your Excellency that serip has been
issued to the amount of $518,083.29, comprising all the grant to the Half-breed heads
of families, and to the Selkirk and other original White settlers in the Province, by
the Act 37 Vie., cap. 20, with the exception of some forty-seven individual claimsof a
special character which are now under consideration. '

The above amount also includes serip to the amount of $9,923.20, granted in
commutation of the hay and common right, in connection with patonts issued to the
present time for lands outside of those old parishes in the Province in which the hay

and common right has been commuted by a gift of the land in the outer two miles.
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COLONIZATION LANDS.

No satisfactory progress has been made in any one of the cases in which town-
ships have been set apart on special application, previous to the last year, for
colonization under the provisions of Sections 14 and 15 of the Act 37 Vic., Cap. 19.
As the locking up of the lands so set apart has, in the meantime, proved a sourco
of disappointment to many people seeking lands in the Province, and has tended to
cmbarrass settlement generally, I propose forthwith to withdraw the privileges here-
before extended in the several cases, excopt in those cases in which satisfactory
guarantees are furnished that the lands will be settled during the coming season.

The map of the north-west part of the Dominion referred to by the Surveyor-
General, intended to accompany this Report, will be distributed during the cnsuing
Session of Parliament.

BOUNDARY BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES AND THE NCRTH-WEST TERRITORIES.

A despatch from Lord Carnarvon to Your Excellency dated 1st December last,
conveys the informativn that the Commission for adjusting the above boundary,
appointed to act in conjunction with the Commission named by the Government of
the United States, had accomplished their work, and covers a copy of the Offieial
Report of Major Cameron, R. A., Her Majesty’s Commissioner on the subject.

His Lordship states that the joint maps, signed by both the British and United
States Commissioners, have been deposited in the Library of the Foreign Office, and
that copies of the same, when prepared, will be duly forwarded for the use of the
Dominion.

The work has been performed in a manner which has called forth the approval of
Her Majesty’s Government ; and Major Cameron, in transmitting to this Department
for distribution among the gentlemen appointed to the expedition in Canada, copies
of a despatch received by him to that effect, takes the opportunity of expressing his
high appreciation of the ¢ ability, energy, zeal and endurance exhibited by those
gentlemen while associated with him in carrying out the object of the Commission.”

The President of the United States in his recent message to Congress expresses
his satisfaction in being enabled to report the completion of the work of the joint
Commission for determining the boundary line between the United States and the
British possessions.

In view of the difficulties and disputes, threatening sometimes grave international
complications, which, inthe last few years, have arisen out of the uncertainty of this
part of our boundary line, the authoritative determination of this missing link of
our international boundary line must also be a source of great satisfaction to both

the Imperial and Dominion Governments.
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V—GEOLOGICAL SURVAEY, 1876.

The ordinary work of the Survey during the past year, has been more or less
interrupted by the claims on the time of and attention of the Director, and of severa
members of the staff in connection with the Centennial Exhibition, including the pre-
paration of the descriptive catalogue of the Canadian Mineral and Geological Exhibits
referred to in the last annual report of the Department. This volume was issued
during the summer, it contains 150 pages of valuable information upon Canadian
Minerals. A large number of copies were distributed at Philadelphia, and a copy was
presented to the Commissioners of every country represented at the Centennial.

The actual time given by the Director, and by other members of the Survey, to
the work in Philudelphia between the iatter end cf March, when it commenced to the
20th November, the date of its completion, has been 374 days, distributed as follows:—

The DireCtor....cuveerieeeeierniiireiereeirerseinennenes 90 days

Mr Richardson.....cccccoevevveriviinniiinieineniinennss 140«

Dr. Harrington....eeeeeiviviiieiiieeiciniinnniin 2T«

My, Weston. .ovreiieeieiee e ceveenerenereeeannans 51 «

Mr. Bell...... et eeeeteetetereaeraeeetnraeenenrnaeianes . 30 o«

M. Webstor.. oo 36 «
374

The above statement does not include the time spent in travelling to and fro, nor
that which was occupied in collecting, preparing and packing the specimens in Mon-
treal and clsewhere. Of thisno precise record has been kept, as it was done at inter-
vals, together with the ordinary Survey work, but it must certainly have amounted in
the aggregate to an equal period.

The total expenditure connected with the work, and paid through the Geolo:ical
Departmant, exclusive of the time of the officers employed, has been $11,235.15, of
this sum 85,000 was supplied by the Dominion Commissioners, and $1,865,36, jointly by
the Dominion Commissioners, and the British Columbia Advisory Board. The latter
Sum represents the total expenditure, freight excepted, on account of British Columbia
exhibits of all kinds, both manufactured and raw products. These figures show a
balance of $4.359.79, and this amount has been paid from the Geological Survey appro-
priation. Forty-one medals have been awarded by the International Judges to the
Mineral and Geological Exhibits, and twenty-eight by the British Judges in the special
“Canadian Competition,” making a total of sixty-nine medals to exhibitors in this
section ;Jand it may be further stated that the arrangement of the Canadian Mineral
exhibits was universally commended as being the most complete and instructive in

the whole Exhibition.
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In the field, the investigations of the Geological Corps, during the past
summer, embraced scveral important explorations and surveys. In British
Columbia, Mr. G. M. Dawson examined a large tract of country between the
Cascade Mountains and the Fraser River, including all the alternative routes
through this region which have been recently surveyed for the Pacific Railway; also
late in the autumn he made a hurried examination of the Nicola Valley coal fields
with the result of shewing that the coal beds there probably extended over a very
considerable area. He likewise visited the Cariboo gold field, with a view of giving
advice and information to persons interested in the development of the quartz reefs.

In Ontario, Mr. Bell made a minute cxamination of a portion of the eastern
shores of Lake Superior, west of the Michipicoten River; a portion of the valley
of Garden River, and the country around Echo Lake, were likewise examined as well
as the country in the vicinity of Shebaonaning, and the whole of the north-east
shore of Georgian Bay. A partial examination was also made of the country
between Parry Sound and Lake Nipissing, and reconnaissance of the region between
the latter and the Ottawa River. :

In the Counties of Renfrew, Pontiac and Ottawa, a very large area has been
examined by Mr. H. G. Vennor, including measurements of nearly 1,150 miles,
required for geographical purposes, and for fixing the position of important bands of
limestone.

In the Eastern Townships, a re-examination has been made of nearly 1,900 square
miles of country, and 52 miles of section lines have been chained and levelled by Mr
A. Webster.

In New Brunswick, Mr. Ells, Professor Bailey and Mr. G. F. Matthews have
continued their explorations, chiefly in Albert and Westmorland Counties, including
an examination of the celebrated Albertite mines, and a careful survey and examina-
tion of the Belivean Albertite and Oil Company’s property, a special report on which
has beon furnished to the Directors, The examination has extended over 220 square
miles of country, and 160 miles of roads and streams have been measured by odometer
and chain.

In Nova Scotia, Mr. Scott Barlow has continued the survey and examination of
the Cumberland County coal region, including a line of section chained and
levelled from River Philip across the Cobequid Mountain to the Basin of Minas, 243
miles in length. He has also made measurements for completing the mayp of the
district, and for fixing accurately the limits of the formations, amounting to about
140 miles.

In Cape Breton, a combined geographical and geological examination and survey
has been made of a part of the Counties of Cape Breton, Victoria and Richmond, by
Mr. Fletcher, who has also visited and examined several localities where discoveries

of gold, copper and coal were reported to have been made.
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Of all the above-named explorations, surveys and examinations, detailed veports
are being prepared, and will be ready for puablication in the annual report of the
sarvey for 1876-77.

Paleontological Branch.

Owing 1o the illness and death, in June last, of Mr. Billings, who had for twenty
years so efficiently superintended the palwcontological work of the survey, less than
usual has been accomplished during the year in this department.

Mr. J. F. Whiteaves, who has now been no:rinated as t e suce2sgor of Mr.
Billings in this important work, has, however, completed “Part 1, I'igures and
Descriptions of the Mesozoic Fossils of the Dominion,” containing ten plates, with 92
pages of descriptive matter, and a map. This has recently been published, and
forms a valuable and important addition to the literature of Canadian paleontology*

Laboratory.

The chemical work has included determinations of iron, copper, silver, lead and
gold in specimens from British Columbia and from the ILakes Supérior and Huron
regions, as well as from RQuebec and Nova Scotia. In addition to the ores examinon,
specimens of coal, apatite, pyrites, limestone, dolomite, and several minerals and rocks
of scientific interest have been assayed, and the results will appear in the survey
reports now being prepared for publication.

Library.

A larger number than usual of valuable reports and publications have heen
presented during the year to the Library in return for those of the Survey.

Museum.

In the Muscum, some additions and improvements have been made with a view
to rendering the collection more generally attractive, and much more might be
effected in this direction if funds were available for the requisite fittings and show
cages. From the Ist April, to the 31st December, 1876, 1,346 persons visited the
museum, an increase of 525 as compared with the corresponding period in 1874.

I cannot conclude this brief summary of the work accomplished during the pasy
season by the director of the Geologica Survey and his staff, without expressing my
entire satisfaction with the director of the Survey, Mr. A. R. C. Selwyn. That
gentleman has especially earned the thanks of the community for the admirable
arrangements he made for the display of the Canadian mineral and geological exhibits
at the Philadelphia Exhibition, the success of which was shown in the goneral
commendation]which the coll etion received, and in the unusual number of medals
awarded to it.

XXin
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The Act under which the Geological Survey is now carried on (the 35 Vic. cap.
22) having been passed, in accordance with the previous practice as regards this A t,
for five years only, will expire next summer. It will therefore be necessary to have
further legislation during the approaching Session of Parliament, to provide for the
continuance of the Survey, and the maintenance of the Geological Museum.

It is, bappily, unnecessary now to say anything as to the great importance, both
from a scientific and economic point of view, of the work done every year by the
Director of the Survey and his small staff. All educated and intelligent persons
throughout the Dominion fully recognize the immense practical results already
accomplished by the survey, and the publication of the annual report is looked
forward to not only on this continent, but in Europe, alike by scientists and parties
engaged in actual mining operations, with constantly increasing interest.

All of which is respectfully submitted.
DAVID MILLS.

Minjster of the Interior.

Department of Minister of Interior,
15th January, 1877.
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A.
SPECIAL APPENDIX.

GoVvERNMENT HOUSE,
Forr Garry, ManiToBA, 8th July, 1876.

His Honor Governor Morris to The Honorable the Minister of the Interior.

Sir,—I have the honour to inform you that, in compliance with your request, I
left this on the 14th ult. with the view of proceeding to the Long Plain on the
Assiniboine, in order to meet the Indians of tge Portage Band, to arrange the dispute
with re%ard to the Keserve and to settle the outside promiscs. Mr. Graham, of the
Indian Department, and Mr. Reid, P. L. 8., also went there at my request, the one to
act as paymaster, and the other, as you wished, to survey the Reserve. Owing to the
prevalence of heavy rain the roads were in 8o bad a condition that I was four days in
reaching the Long Plain, while we were also subjected to inconvenience and expense
by the detention of the provisions, owing to the same cause. Added to my other
discomforts was the presenee of mosquitoes in incredible numbers, so that the journey
and the sojourn at tEe Plain were anything but pleasurable. I had taken the pre-
caution to request Mr. Cummings, the Interpreter, to summon the White Mud Indians
as well as Yellow Quill’s Band, and those who adhered to the Short Bear.

On my arrival at the Long Plains, which T accomplished on the 17th, T found
about five hundred Indians assembled, but camped in three separate encampments. On
arriving, I was saluted by a feu de jote. At the Portage, Mr. Graham had obtained
some provisions, which he had sent forward in carts.

On our way we met some carts sent by the Indians to relieve my waggons of the
tents and baggage, the Indian trail being almost impracticable; but instead of so
using them I sent them on toward the Portage to meet the loaded carts, and was thus
enabled to get the temporary supply of provisions to the Plain, which was fortunate,
as the Indians were without food. The evening of my arrival the Councillors of
Yellow Quill came to talk with me, but I declined to do =0, telling thom that the
Chief had not come, and I would only speak with him. I acted thus, in consequence
of the conduct of their headmen, last year, when they controlled the Chief and
coerced the whole Band. In a short time Yellow Quill came with them to see me,
and finding that they had come about provisions, I rveferred them to Mr. Graham,
who, I informed them, had charge of the provisions and payments. The incident
had a marked effect in giving tone to the following negotiations.

On Monday I met the Indians, who ranged themselves in three parties. I
explained to them the proposed arrangement of the outside promises very fully, and
told them that as they were willing to accept of the settlement last year, 1 did so
for their information only. I then took up the question of the Reserve, read the
terms in which it was referred to, in the Stone Fort Treaty, explained 1o them that
they were getting double the land any other Indians in Treaties No. 1 and 2 were
doing, but told them the Reserve belonged to all of them and not to Yellow Quill's
Band alone. I then called on them to speak to me, asking Yellow Quill first. He
said he did not understand the extent of the Reserve. I then asked Mr. Roid to show
them a diagram of it, and to explain to them its length in ordinary miles, and
otherwise, which he did very satisfactorily, and at length they comprehended it.
I then called on Short Bear’s Band to express their views. They said they wanted
a Reserve at the Long Plain, if it was only a little piece of land ; that they liked the
place, that they had built houses and planted gardens, had cut oak to build more houses,
and wished to tfarm there. I then called on the White Mud Indians. They said that
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they were Christians and had always lived at the White Mud River; that they did
not wish to join either Yellow Quill’s or Short Bear's Reserve, but desired a Reserve
at the Bg Point. I told them they could not have it there, as there were settlers,
-and the Government wished them to join one of the other bands, and explained to
them that their holdings would be respected, except where inadvertently sold, I took
this course, as | had ascertained that the plan of Yellow Quill’s headmen was to make no
settlement this year, and that they had induced the other Indians to agree to act in
that way. I accordingly so shaped my opening speech and my dealings with the
Indians, as to defeat this project, by securing the support of Short Bear’s and the
‘White Mud Indians, which T succeeded in doing, though Yellow Quill’s spokesman
taunted the othérs with having broken their agreement. As the conference proceeded
Yellow Quill’s councillors said they did not want the Band broken up, as they wished
all to live together. I told Yellow Quill he would have his Reserve on both sides
of the river, reserving the navigation, and that if they could agree to go to one
Reserve, I would be pleased; but if not, that I would scttle the matter. Yellow Quiil
said His councillors were willing that the other Indians should have a separate Reserve
provided they retained the belt of twenty-five miles, in addition to their proportion
of the Rererve. I informed them this could not be done, the Reserve belonged to all.
They then asked for an adjournment, in order that they might meet together and
have a smoke over it, to assemble again when I hoisted my flag. After a. couple of
hours interval I againconvened them. The Short Bears and White Mud Indians adher-
ed to what they had stated to me, but Yellow Quill’s Band insisted on one Reserve for
all, but admitted that the objections of Short Bear’s Band to the place asked by them
-were well founded, and that it was sandy and unfit for farming, and that they would
like to select a Reserve higher up the River Assinniboine. I then adjourned the con-
forence until morning, and asked them to meet together and be prepared for settle-
* ment.
On Tuesday, the 20th June, the Indians again responded to the hoisting of my
flag, and met at 9 o’clock. Yellow Quill told me that his Band were now willing to
separate from the others, and wished to select a Reserve higher up the river. I
informed them that 1 would accede to their request, but that @ley must do it at once,
and on the approval thereof by the Privy Council it would be'laid off. Short Bear’s
Band still desired a-Reserve at the Long Plain, to which I assented. The White Mud
River Indians asked for a separate Reserve where they could farm, and I informed
them thatunder the diseretionary powers I possessed I wonld have a Reserve selected
for them, giving them their proportion of the original Reserve. The Indiansthen
agked that the two dollars per head, which had, as they said, slipped through their
fingers last year, should be paid-to them, and I told them that I had been authorized
to do so, which gave them much satisfaction. In anticipation of a settlement I had
prepared a draft agreement, which was being copied for me by Mr. Graham. I informed
them of this, and stated that I would sign it, and that the Chiefs and Councillors
must do so likewise, so that there should be no more misunderstanding. When the
agreement was completed, I asked Mr. Cummings, the Interpreter, to read it to
them, which he did. Three Indians, who understood English, and who had at an early
period been sele‘ed by the Indians to check the interpretation of what was said,
standing by, aul Mr. Cummings being assisted by Mr. Cook, of St. James, who, at
Mr. Cummings request, I had associated with him, on the Indians choosing their
interpreters I then signed the agreement, and called upon Yellow Quill to do so.
He came forward cheerfully and said he would sign it, because he now understood
what he never did before, viz., what was agreed to at the Stone Fort. I then called
on his Councillors to sign, but they refuscd. saying they had agreed by the mouth. I
then told the Indians that unless the Councillors signed nothing could be done, and
that the Councillors who refused would be responsible for the failure of the negotia-
tions. . One of them then signed, but the other persistently refused. I repeated my-
warning, and at length he reluctantly came forward and said he wished to ask me &
question, “ Would the headmen be paid ?” I told him I had no authority to do sy, but
- would report his request. He said he did not expectit this year, but hoped for it next.
xxvi :
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Eventually ho signed the agreement. I then said I would recognize Short Bear as a
Chief, and asked him to seiect his Councillors and braves. He did so at once, making
a judicious choice, and came forward to touch the pen, saying, “I thank you for my
people,” Iis Councillors promptly followed, one of them asking for a part of the

eserve on the other side of the river, which I refused. I then called onthe White Mud
River Indians to select a Chief and one Councillor, being under the impression at the
time that they were the least numerous band, which, however, has turned out not to be
‘the case, which they did at once, and on their being presented to me they signed the
agreement. I then gave a medal to Yellow Quill, and promised to send the other
two Chiefs medals when procured from Ottawa, the supply here being exhausted.
Mo the Chiefs and Counciilors suits of elothing were then distributed, Yellow Quiil
and his headmen having hitherto refused to accept cither medals or coats, but now
taking them. Yellow Quill then presented me with a skin coat, and said that he
parted with the other Indians as friends, and that there would be no hard feelings. The
conference then broke up, and thus terminated a difficulty which has existed for
several years, and the influence of which was felt as an obstacle as you are aware at Qu’
Appelle when the treaty was made there. Mr. Graham at once commenced the pay-
ments, and during the evening the three Chiefs and their Councitlors called on me,
-evidently being oun the most friendly terms with each other, a state of things which had
notexisted for a considerable period. Inthe morning, as I was leaving for the Portage,
the Indians assembled near my waggon and gave threc cheers for the Queen and three
for the Governor, and I then drove off amid a salute of firearms from all sectious of
the encampment. I left Mr. Graham to complete the payments, and here record my
sense of the efficient services he rendered me. He understands the Indian character,
and gets on well with them. I requested Mr. Reid to visit the White Mud region
and ascertain what persons are entitled to holdings under the terms of your instrue-
tions, and also to survey Short Bear's Reserve.

Yellow Quill is to go without delay to look up a reserve, and as there are no
settlers in the region in question, T propose that if Mr. R»id sees no objection to ths
locality he shonld at once lay it off, so as to effectually terminate the chronic
difficulty with this Band. I shall be glad to receive by telegram your approval of
his doing so.. The interpreters, Mr. Cummings, Mr. Cook, of St. Jumes,
a trader, and Kassoway, an Indian trader belonging to the Band, rendered me much
gervice; the latter trades in the west, and was passing the portage on his way to Fort
Garry, and as he belonged to Yellow Quill’s Band, and is a relative of his, being a son
of the deceased Pc-heto, (another of whose sons was the spokesman at Qu ’Appelle, as
you will recoilect) he came to the Long Plain to advise the Band to come to terms.
He remained at my request until the negotiations were conclude, and exerted a most
beneficial inflnence over Yellow Quill's Band. I cail your attention to the roquest
of Yellow Quill’s Uouncillors, that they should be paid as in treaties 3, 4 and 5, they
are paid ; anda as tho expense wounld not be large, 1 am of optnion that before the
Buperintendent of Indian Atfairs for the Superintendency of Munitoba proceeds to
make the payments in treaties 1 and 2, he should be authorized to pay the head
men. It will be dificult to oxplain why the difference is made, and it will secure in
every Band, men who will feel that they are officers of the Crown and remunerated
as such. Ircturned to Fort Garry on the 23rd inst., encountering on the way a very
severe thunder storm, which compelled me to take advantage of the very acceptable
shelter of the kindly-proffered residence of the Hon. Mr. Breland, at White Horse
Plzins, instead of a tent on the thoroughly-drenched prairie. I congratulate you that
with the successful issue of this negotiation is closed, in treaties 1 and 2, the vexed
quostion of the open promises. [ forward by this mail a copy of theagreement I have
above alluded to, retaining the original for the present, and will be pleased to hear of
its speedy approval by the Privy Council.

I have the honor to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,
AT XANDER MORRIS,
Lieutenant-Governor.
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Whereas the whole Band of Indians, of whom Oi-ya-we-kwin was Chief, were
arties to the treaty with Her Majesty the Queen, made at the Stonme Fort on the
gnd day of August, 1671, )

And whereas there was some misunderstanding as to the terms of the said
treaty, and in order to do away with the same, the Governor General of Canada, on
the 20th of April, 1875, approved a Minute of the Privy Council, a copy whercof is
attached hereto, for the purpose of adjusting all difficulties; which Minute has been
accepted by all the Bands of Indians, parties thereto, except the first-mentioned Band.

And whereas the said Band are now assembled, and have had the said Minute
communicated to them, and are satisfied therewith ;

It is hereby agreed between Her Majesty, represented by the Hon. Alexander
Morris, Lieutenant-Governor of Manitoba and the North-West Territories, subject to
Her Majesty’s approval, and all the Indians who have been heretofore included in said
Band as follows :—

1st. The said Indians accept of the said Order in Council as a satisfactory
settlement, and agree to continue bound by the said treaty as supplemented by the
said Order in Council.

2nd. Owing to the size of the said original Band, and the divisions existing
among the Indians composing it, the said Band is divided into two Bands,
namely, the Band composed of those who adhere to Oo-ya-we-kwin and the Band
composed of those who adhere to Short Bear.

3rd. Tnasmuch as there has been a ditference of opinion between the said Indians
and the Commissioner of Indian affairs as to the Reserve to be allotted to tbe said
Indians and its locality, a Reserve having been surveyed on the south side of the
River Assiuiboine, but not accepted by the said Indians, and it is desirable to settle
all matte s with the said Indians, it is hereby agreed with regard to the Reserve
promixeid by the said treaty, that to the band of Yellow Quill, a Reserve shall be
assigned by Her Majesty’s Commissioner or by a Commissioner appointed for the
purpose, to be selected in the region of country they now inhabit, and to be approved
of by tho said band, but said Reserve shall not be nearer to the Portage than twenty
miles, and it is further agreed that a Reserve shall be assigned to the Band, of which
Short Bear is Chief, by Her Majesty’s said Commissioner or special Commissioner on
the north side of the Assiniboine River, in the vicinity of the Long Plain. And itis
further agreed that the Indians residing heretofore, and now in the neighbourhood
of the White Mud River, shall ba recognized as a distinet Band, and Na-wa-che-way-
ka-pow shall be accepted as their Chief, that as some of them have settled there and
desire to remain, those of them who have substantial improvements shall be protected
in their holdings. except in cases where the land so occupied hasalready been sold or
granted by the Department of the Interior to other parties, but the said Indians will
not be allowed to occupy or take up any other lands, than those already hona fide
occupied by each of them.

And with regard to the remainder of the Band, a Reserve shall be selocted for
them in some suitable locality, by Her Majesty’s said Commissioner or special Com-
missioner. with the approval of the said band ; it being expressly understood that
Her Majesty reserves with regard to all the said Reserves, the right to deal with
any settler who may be found after the selection of any Reserve theretofore settled
within its limits as she shall deem just, but, so as not to diminish the extent of lands
allotted to the Indians, and inasmuch, as by the said treaty, the Reserve to be allotted
to the original band, was one hundred and sixty acres of land for each family of five,
or in that proportion for larger or smaller families, together with a tract enclosing the
same equivalant to twenty-tive square miles of equal breadth, it is hereby agreed that
the separate Reserves to be granted to the said three Bands, shall contain an amount
of land equal to that stipulated to be given to the original Band, and such land shall
be assigned to each Band in proportion to their relative numbers so that cach Band
shall reccive their fair and just share of the said land, but in case any of the said
Reserves embrace any river or lake, or any part thereof, the free navigation and frec
access to the shores thereof, for all Her Majesty’s subjects, is hereby expressly
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regerved ; it is further agroed that the head men for each of the two first Bands shall
be four instead of two as written in the said Order in Council, but there shall be only
two head men for the White Mud Band.

In witness whereof, Her Majesty’s Chief Commissioner of Indian affairs for the
Manitoba Superintendency, the said Honorable Alexander Morris, and the Indian
Chiefs and their Councillors, have hereunto subscribed and set there hands at the
Long Plain on the Assiniboine, this twentieth day of June, in the year of our Lord
one thousand eight hundred and seventy-six.

ALEXANDER MORRIS.
Lieuterant-Governor.
his
00-GA-WE-KWIN. x
Chief. mark.
his
Q0-8A-WE-PEEC-KECE. X
mark.
his
WAY-RE-WAY-KEE. X
mark.
his
‘WEE-AN-ME-TAH-COUSE X
mark.
KES-KEE-MAB-QUA, or his
SHORT BEAR, 4
Chief. mark.
his
KE-CHE-WEE-SE. X
mark.
his
PETER PRINCE. x
mark.
his
NA-WA-CHE-WAY-KA-POW, = X
Chaef. mark,
his
BarrisTE SPENCE. X
mark.
Signed, sealed and delivered : The said having been first read and explained o
them by Malcolm Cumming, and a copy of the taid Minute in Council ,delivered to
each of the said Chiefs in the presence of.

Jas. F. GraHAM.
J. Lxsrock REIp.
MarLcoLm CuMMING.

Haroy Cooxk.

E. C. Mogrsris,

E. PELLY,

JornNx Dvucearn McKay.
his

Kas-A-way. X

mark.
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SPECIAL APPENDIX.
B.

.From the Honorable Alexander Morris, Lieutenant Governor, to the Honorable the
Minister of the Interior.

GovernNMENT HoOUSE,
Forr Garry, MaNITOBA, 14th July, 1876. b

Sir,—1st. T have the honor to enclose you a copy of & report, made for “;.e tbye
J. L. Ried, Esq., P. L. S.—“ A” of his examination of the improvements O 18c0
Indians belonging to the White Mud River Band, and—*“ B"* intimating the pwh
where these Indians desire to hiave a Resorve allotted to them. T see no reason o
their desire should not be complied with; and if, on receipt of this, you coneur that
me, I would be obliged by you telegraphing me your approval thereof, in order ody
Mr. Reid may lay off the Reserve. I ask this inview of my contemplated 8P %
and Y{otracbed absence in the service of the Privy Council. 2nd. I enclose & copy in
Mr. Reid’s report, as to the location of the Reserve allotted to Short Bear's Ban o 10
accordance with your instructions, together with a tracing thereof, and hav ated
requost your approval of the same. 3rd. I haveto report that Yellow Quill reque ht,
Mr. Reid to meet him, as to the selection of the Reserve for his Band, in a fortnig
and from what I know of the country in question, which is unoccupied, 81 ster
-confidence I havein Mr. Reid’s judgment, I think you may safely entrust the mau
to him, and thus close a protracted controversy. I have therefore to re%rve,
telegraphic authority to instruct Mr. Reid to meet Yellow Quill, and allott the Res

I have the honour to be, Sir,

Your obedient servant,

ALEXANDER MORRIS.
Lieutenant Governors
[A]

From J. Lestock Reid, Commissioner to His Honor Lieut. Governor Morris.

Winnipee, July 12th, 1876_‘ the
SIr,—In accordance with your instructions, I have the honor to submib ot
following report, on the improvements made, and the country asked for as & Kese
by those Indiaus forming the White Mud Band. n X
Accompanied by the Chief of this Band, his Councillors and an interpl'ewe’
visited their improvements and would submit the following statements of the Siltm e
1. George Spence, S.E. } section, of section 33, Township 18, range 9, W8 lived
house about 30 feet by 20 feet, stable, nine head of cattle, four horses, and has
here about two years.

oste
2. Robert Sutherland, N.E. } section of section 33, Township 18, range 9, W
A small house; has lived hére about two vears.

3. Matawawawin, N.W, % section of section 26, Township 17, range 9, West-mi
small house, stable, and has fenced about an acre in garden ; has lived here eight y;egt.

.4 Joseph DeJaislais, N.W. } section of section 23, Township 17, range % nob
Owing to not being able to find the posts, the position of these buildings areﬁv od
accurate; two small houses, stable, two cows, threo calves and three horses; has
here about fifteen years,

h Has
5. Battiste Spence, N.W. } section of scction 2, Township 17,range 9, We?t'Band,
four horsos ; built his house last fall. It seems tobe the unanimous wish of this

*This enclosure is & plan,
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W have their Reserve located on the west shore of lLiake Manitoba, in Township 18,
Tt:(,ge 9, west, if such shouald meet the approvalof the Government. The whole of this
I tof country (township 18, range 9, west,) consists apparently of large meadows
Jing low and wet, abundyntly supplied with hay, with an occasional small ridge
I'vening, rising some two or three feet above the meadow lands, and though the
untry with tho exception of those ridges is unfit for actual tillage, still it is one of

@ best, if not the best stock farming district in the Province.
The Indians say they will have plenty of fish from the lake, a good game
fﬁ“ntl‘y, abundance of hay for their stock, and sufficient land to cultivate. I find from
¢ Land Office Register, that there is one entry, east 4 section 21, township 18, rango
) West, being a homestead and preemption. After returning to Portage la Prairie, [
"OC?ede(l to the Long Plain, located and pointed out to the Indians composing ¢ Short

s Band,” their Reserve, as directed by your Excellency.

X I would mention in conclusion that * the Short: Boar " ‘and the chief of the White
% Band, expressed the utmost satisfaction, and regard for the manner your

Exeellency saw fit to settle the difficult question 1n connection with their lands, &e.

I have the honor to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,
J. LESTOCK REID,
Dominion Land Surveyor.

SPECIAL APPENDIX.

C.
Rel;o}'t.fro;)t Mr. M. G. Dickieson to the Honorable the Minister of the Interior.

WINNIPEG, MANITOBA,
7th October, 1876.

2 Sir,—I have the honour to submit the following Report on the business trans-
T y myself during the past summer in connection with the Indians included in
Teaty No. 4.
Lleft Winnipeg on the 22nd July, accompanied by Mr. Nagle, and arrive
ort Bllice, where I was joined by Mr. Augus McKay, on the 3rd August, having
"t gone to Swan River Barracks, where I receivel the money, $24,000, previously
Bt to that point under the charge of Inspector Walker, of Mouated Police Force.
ang On the following day we met the Indians and paid all who were then present,
It afterwards those who arrived during the several days we remained there, and, as
s ound that a number had not then come in, but were expected very shortly, I left
0 with Mr. McDonald, Factor of the Hudson's Bay Company, to pay them when
€y arrived.
k We met and paid the Indians of Cote’s Band at Fort Pelly on the 14th. Kiske-
tgﬂse, one of the Shoal River Chiefs, was present with part of his Band, and wanted
be fod and paid here, but I declined to do 8o, as 1 believed it would not be a good
Tecedent to pay Indians whenever we might meet them, especially when thoy were
wh ut to return to their own locality, and wouldexpect {o be fod as well as the others
¢ the remainder of the Band was being paid.
The Egg Lake Indians had been notified to meet us at Fort Pelly, bu* only a
had arvived up to the 19th, when the Chief Yellow Quill, came in, but the
th Jority of the Band did not reach the post until some days later. Iremained awaiting
Tell' arvival until the 22nd, the day after that named for meeting the Indians at
%uchwood Hills, when I left for that place, Mossrs. McKay and Nagle remained to
Ure 1h» athesion of and pay those belonging to Egy Lake, and for this purpose L
them .afficient funds which were afterwards accounted for by Mr. Nagle.
XXXi
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I reached the Touchwood Hills on the eveming of the 24th, having been detained
for some hours by rain on the 24rl. and found two Bands waiting to be paid. I had
gent a request to Mr. McBeath, the Hudson's Bay Companv’s officer in charge of this

st, to issue rations to the Indians if we did not arrive at the time appointed, and
ound that he had done so, and consequently no dissatisfaction existel among them
on account of the delay ; on the 2i5th | paid those Bands, and on the following day
was rejoined by Messrs. McKay and Nagle, who had secured the adhesion of the
Egg Lake Indians to the treaty and paid thom in accordance with the conditions thereof.

On the 1st September we met the Indians at the Qu'Appelle Lakes, and 88
several Bands had not arrived we delayed the payments until Monday, the 4th, to-
allow them time to come in.

As the Indians had encamped near the Hudson Bay Company's fort, and on the
spot where they had previously been paid, our tent was pitched about half wa,
between the two, which happened to be close to, if not actaally on, the Company 8
Reserve. The Indians objected to receiving their annuities there, but as I saw no
reason for changing the position of the tent, I refused to have it removed, and gent
ther: word I would pay them where it was placed or not atall. . .

This had the desired effect, and in less than an hour after sending them this
mossage we began paying the first Band. It commenced to rain shortly after we
begun, and as it was cold and uncomfortable in the tent, we remove.d to an unfinishe
house inside the stockade of the Company’s post, where we continued the payments.

The Indians did not protest or object in any way to this arrangement, which
shewed that their disinclination to bé paid on the Company’s Re<erve had no resl
foundation, but was in all probability promoted and fostered by the traders, who
thought they would get more of their goods sold if the payments were made at 8
distance from the Company’s post.

We finished paying the Indians here on the 4th and the following two days.

From the Qu’Appelle Lakes we started for Shoal River Post, which we reached
on the 20th. We were unable, on account of the almost impassable condition of the
road, to reach the point where the boat had been directed to meet us, and had t0
send a message to the boatman to come about twenty miles further up, by which we
were detained twenty-four hours, and consequently did not arrive at Shoal River
uutil the day after that appointed. /

About a dozen families belonging to Kiskekonse’s Band live at Duck Bay,
whore they have houses and gardens ; they, consequently, do not wish to remove t0
any other locality. We agreed that this Band should have another headman to be
appointed by those belonging to this section, which was done.

This is a much larger Band than we anticipated it would be when its adhesion
was secured to the treaty last year, and I see no reason why the full number of
headmen should not be allowed to it, notwithstanding it was agreed at that time
that these should only be two.

This Band is divided into several parties, who have been settled in different
localities and never before connected as a Band. .

One of these parties is unrepresented by a headman, and its members complain
that they do not receive a fair share of the provisions and implement~. I would,
therefore, recommend that they be allowed a headman, which, I think, will remove
all cause of complaint on this score. \

On the evening ot the 21st September we left Shoal River, and arrived at Winni-
peg on the 4th inst.

The number of Indians and amounts paid at the various points are as follows :—

Fort Kllice, 335 Indians, who were paid................ $ 1,850
Touchwood nills 310 do 15 (s 2,159
Fort Pelly, 353 do do cierrnreeesoees 4,509
Qu'Appelle, 1,705 do do teerrerereerees 12,033
Shoal River 404 do do R % 1

Total...........3,107 $22,897
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A balance of $1,103 remained in my hands, which I deposited in the Ontario
Bank to the credit of the Receiver-General, and enclose certificate of deposit,

For further information as to the number of Chiefs, Headmen and Indians paid
for the first, second and third time I beg you to refer to the accompanying recapitu-
lation and summary of pay-sheets.

1 have to inform you that since the treaty was concluded in 1874 two Chiefs
have died, viz., ¢ Ka-kee-naw-up” and “ Wah-pii-moos-too-siis,” who have been suc-
ceeded by their sons, “Mus-cow-we.gun” and ¢ Ah-cha-coo-sah-coo-tak-coo-pit,”
respectively. The succession of these men to the chieftainship has not, so far as I
am aware, been previously reported to the Department and confirmed by His Excel-
lency the Governor General in Council, as required by the Indian Act.

There is no dissension among the Indians as to the right of these men to suc-
ceed their fathers as Chief. The leadership of the Indian Bands, so far as I have been
able to learn, has always been hereditary, and, as I know of no reason why the prac-
tice should be abandoned in these cases, I would recommend that the choice of the
Bands be coufirmed by an Order in Council.

The great majority of the Indians included within the territory, covered by Treaty
No. 4, are of such migratory habits that it will be impossible to establish schools
among them for some time to come, and until they have settled on their Reserves,
little or nothing can be done in this direction.

Only one %and, George Gordon’s at the Little Touchwood Hills, expressed any
desire in the matter. Charles Pratt, one of the members of this Band was educated
at St. John's College in Manitoba, and might be appointed as teacher when necessary.
[ explained the course the Government pursued in maintaining schools among the
Indians to Gordon and his Band, and told them they might rest assured, that so soon
as they had a suitable building erccted for a school house, a teacher would be provided
and paid, and further that I had no doubt lelp would be given them by the Govern-
ment in the way of materials if the Department saw they were making efforts to erect
a schoolliouse, and were striving to secure the education of their children.

It must be remembered that few of these Indians have any knowledge of tilling
the soil or of using farming implements, it is therefore important that a teacher
should be secured it possible who could shew the Indians how to use the tools supplied
by the Government, as well as to teach their children.

The former I consider in the present state of affairs the more important of the two.

The brass checks or tokens supplied last year were of great assistance, and
answered the purpose for which they were intended most admirably. The members
of several of tEe ands had not lost or exchanged a single check, and not the slightest
difficulty was experienced in finding the names of the Indians holding them. Insome
cases checks had been exchanged or given to the chiefs or headmen for safe lkeeping,
but even in these cases vevy little inconvenience resulted. Some few had lost their
checks, and the times in tinding the names in these instances proved the wisdom of
providing them. A few more will be required, and one complete set letter “U,”
numbered from 1 to 70, for Yellow Quill’s Band, who were supplied with paper
tickets.

Last winter several traders made advances to some of the Indians, and secured
their checks under the impression that on the strength of holding them they would
be entitled to draw the Indian’s annuities, I invariably refused to pay any trader hold-
ing these checks, though I was satisfied the Indians hud received goods to the amount
of their annuities. For the same refison I refused to pay written orvders purporting
%o be signed by an Indian even when accompanied by a check. I consider it better. to
prevent confusion and disputes hereafter, to pay only to some members of the
recipients family. In some cases I paid money to a Chief or headman for an Indian
who was absent, provided I was satisfied there was good reasons for so doing. These
will be found noted in the pay sheets.

I exporienced considerable trouble from Half-breeds who wished to join Bands
and draw money as Indians. This was particularly the case at Qu'Appelle Lakes,
Where a large number of Half-breed heads of families wanted to draw annuities. 1
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enquired if they had ever belonged to “any particular Band,” or had recognized any
Indian as their Chief. They replied in the negative, and informed me their desir¢
was to form a Band, distinct from the Indiavs, and under a Chief of their own.
assured them that this could not be done, and cited the Act of last Session whic
defines who shall be accounted as Indians, viz: “ First—Any male person of Indiad
blood reputed to belong to a particular Band.” . “Secondly. Any child of such
person ” as the authority under which I acted.

Finding I could not accede to their demands, they presented themselves as mem-
bers of Bands which were being paid, but I retused to pay them. Several of them
maintained they were Indians and not Half-breeds. 1 told them if they would swear
their fathers were or had been Indians I would pay them, but not otherwise, Thi8
they refused to do, and I accordingly had to abide by my decision.

These persons have always been accounted Half-breeds, have never adopted the
Indian habits or ways of life, and most of them as such, signed an address to Hi8
Honour Lieut.-Governor Morris, in the summer of 1874, which will be found priuted
in the report of the Department for the years 1873-74.

'T'he question as to who is or who is not an Indian is a difficult one to decides
many whose forefathers were Whites, follow the customs and habits of the Indian®
and have always been recognized as such.

The Chiefs, Cote, George Gordon and otbers, and likewise a large proportion of
their Bands, belonging to this class. A second class have little to distinguish them
from the former, but huve not altogether followed the ways of the Indians. A thir
class again have followed the ways of the Whites more than those of the Indians,
while others have followed the habits of the Whites and have never been recognized,
or accounted themselves as anything but Half-breeds.

The distinction between the first and fourth of these classes into which I have for
convenience divided the Half-breeds is marked enough, but the difference between the
first and second,the second and third,and third and fourth is very slight, and not obvious-

The question then arises—where shall the line be drawn to decide who is or who
is not an Indian? The Indian Act of last session, which defines that an ** Indian shall
“be any male person of Indian blood reputed to belong to any particular Band” o
“any child of such person,” does not cover the ground, for under *ne simer inworpr™
tation of the law, as I understand it, many who are of pure Indian blood would be
excluded as they have never belonged to *“any particular Band,” and a few of these
have followed to a considerable extent the customs of the Whites. When the pay-
ments were made in 1875, some Half-brecds, who though residing among, had never
followed the habits of the Indians, were udmitted. This was sanctioned by the Act
31 vic. cap. 42, clause 15, which provided that *all persons residing among these
“Indians ,of whom their parents, from either side, were descended from Indians or
“reputed Indians belonging to the nation, tribe or particular people of Indians
“intrusted in real estate or their descendants, should be accounted as Indians.”
could not refuse these their annuities since they now belonged to a Band, and accord-
ingly paid them.

You will understand the difficulty of the position I was placed in, when [ had t0
refuse to pay the brothers, sisters, and in some instances the parentsof these persons-
In the view of the Indians and some of their Chiefs, either wrong had been done last
year in admitting those, or I was not doing right now in refusing to admit their
relations into the Bands. I saw, that if one Half-breed was paid, who had never before
received treaty money, all would have to be admitted, and therefore positively declined
to pay any for the first time, except those who were undoubtedly of pure Indian blood.
T considered the policy of the Government was to elevate the Indian in the scale of
humanity not to degrade the White to the position of the savage. [ afterwards
ascertained that the majority of the Indians, all the Cree, and several of the Assinl-
boine Chiefs, were averse to the Ialt-breeds being admitted to their Bands and were
well satisficd when they hoard my decison. So anxious were they in regard to the
matter that several of the Cree Chiefs waited upon Mr. McDonald, the Hudson Bay
Company'’s officer in charge of the Swan River District, and pressed him to inform m¢
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of their views and to use his influence with me to prevent the Half-breeds from being
admitted ; but this he would not do, as he did not wish to intermeddle directly in the-
matter, though he did all in his power with the Half-breeds themselves to induce them
not to join the Indians. I was under the impression, previous to receiving this infor-
mation, that it was the general desire of the Indians that the Half-breeds should be
allowed to join their Bands, and was uncertain as to the effect the course I adopted
might have with them. I knew it was the desire of the Department that nothing
should occur which would tend to disquiet the Indians or weaken their confidence in
the Government, especially at the present time, in view of the trouble in the United
States, and was pleased to learn that my decision instead of giving offence as I expected
was a cause of gratification to the majority.

In connection with the ammunition supplied to the Indians, I have to inform you,.
that bullets should be size 28, which fit the bore of the Indian’s guns, and the shot
should not be smaller than what is commonly known as No 3. The greater quantity
of lead sent to Shoal River, Fort Pelly and Touchwood Hills, should be shot ; for the
other places, three quarters at least of the weight should be bullets. I forward here-
with a list of provisions on hand at various points, the quantity supplied having been
more than was required, owing to the time for which the Indians were fed, being
much shorter than was anticipated. I may remark that at no place was I detained
80 long as was expected when I left, the only points where any delay occurred having
been at Fort Pelly and the Qu’A ppelle Lakes, owing to unforeseen causes which I have
explained and over which 1 had no control. Mr. McKay conferred with the Indians
in relation to their Reserves, cattle, tools, etc., and willreportthe result of his labours
separately. By this arrangement much time was saved, as the consultations on these
Eoints and payments were carried on simultaneously, though with different Bands. 1

ave to suggest that the times of payment next year for the various Bands be as
follows :—Commencing at Shoal River about the 13th Augnst, Fort Pelly 20th,
Touchwood Hills 27th, Qu'Appelle 3rd September, Fort Ellice 13th, or the payments
here might be first made on the 4th August, previous to the Agent going to Shoal River.

Wah-pee-muk-na and Kichi-ka-wenin’s Bands having selected their Reserves at
the Moose Mountain are to be paid heveafter at Fort Ellice.

The subject which at present takes preceacnce o1 a1 others in connection witn
the Indian question in the North-West Territorier, is the preservation of the buffalo.
The vapid decrease in the numbers of the buffalo has become a matter of alarm
t the Indians, who see that, uuless steps are speedily taken to arrest it, their future
condition will be one of extreme hardship. That the buttalo are decreasing in num-
ber in arapidly increasing ratio iz a fact admitted on all sides. A few years ago
they were tuund in plenty over all the country extending from points eastward of
Fort Ellice to the Rocky Mountains and from the north branch of the Saskatchewan
to the United States boundary line. Hemmed in by the American hunters, the
Blackfeet, Bloods, Preguns and kindred tribes of Indians on the south and west, and
by the half-breeds, Saulteaux and Crees on the north and east, the area over which
they then roamed has been gradually encroached upon, and their numbers reduced.
This summer they have come further east than they have for many years and were
found within a few miles of' the Touchwood Hills Post, while south of the Qu’Appelle
they were reported to have been seen not far from the boundaries of the Province of
Manitoba. But, while they werc thus plentiful in the south and east section of the
country [ have above referred to, there were few or none to be found in the west and
north, and the Blackfeet and other tribes in these quarters were said to be starving
and following the buffalo eastward. I am aware that this question has already
received some consideration on the part of the Government and that representations
have been made by parties better informed than I claim to be, as to the necessity of
some action in regard to it. For this reason I will not enter into the matter as tully
as 1 would otherwise have done.

While at the Qu’Appelle Lakes the Cree Chiefs, accompanied by their principal
headmen, waited upon me and represented that they were becoming alarmed on
account of their means of subsistence failing, and begged me to report what they
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said to the Government, and to convey their request that something should be done
to prevent the entire extermination of the buffalo. To show the importance they
attach to this question, [ may remark that each Chief and his headman separately
made the same request. I[n all my previous intercourse with the Indians I have
never seen this course adopted. In discussing other matters a spokesman is gencr-
ally chosen who speaks for all, the others merely signifying their assent, but in this
case it was evident they considered something more was necessary and adopted. this
method to impress the gravity of their position upon me. In my opinion the buffalo
must be protected, or in a few years, not more than ten at the furthest, the whole
number of Indians in the North-West, who now rely upon these animals for subsist;,
ence, will require to be fed and maintained principally at the expense of the Dominion;,
Government. I can see no other alternative, as it is an impossibility to teach them;
in a short time to forsake their present mode of life and adopt that of civilized men..
The subject is one which demands and should receive the early consideration of the
Government, for the peace and consequent prosperity of the North-West Territories.
depend in a great measure upon it. Should the buffalo become exterminated it is not
to be expected that the starving Indians will ref-ain from helping themselves to the;
supplies to be found in the stores of the Hud-on’s Bay Company and other traders,,
and, compelled by hunger, outrages might be committed by them which wouwld result:
in an Indian war. These are the views of every one who.is well informed regarding.
the state of the country, and, while I admit that the Indians at present are peaceable;
well disposed and have every confidence in the Government, I think there can be no
doubt that they are correct. ) .
Besides the Sioux Chiefs, White Cap and Standing Buffalo, who have now lived’
on our territory for some years, I met at Qu'Appelle a delegation of Sioux from the
United States. These men said they had made a treaty of peace with the Cree Chief,:
Little Black Bear, and his band last summer, and had now come to meet us. They
represented that they found it difficult to live on the American side and wished to.
come to ours, where they heard the means of subsistence could be obtained. (They:
had on a previous occasion had a “talk” with Mr. McLean of the Hudson's Bay Com-
pany and wanted to procure from him repeating rifles and ammunition.) S
" They expressed the most perfect confidence in the British Government, and their
desire always to be on good terms with those who lived on this gide of the boundary:
line. It is certainly very gratifying to an agent of our Government to find that
while the 1ndians look with distrust and suspicion on the United States Government, .
they have such. faith in ours. A state of things which has resulted from the manner.
in which their ancestors were treatoed, and the report of which has been handed down'
from fathor to sor for several generations. R
I told them I was glad to learn they had made peace with the Crees, and hoped
they would always maintain the treaty unbroken ; that I was pleased to find they had
such confidence in the Government I represented. ,
In regard to what they said about procuring the means of subsistence, I could
only say that I had no doubt traders on our side of the line would be glad to trade
with them, that it had not been expected that I would meet them, and consequently no
message had been entrusted to me to deliver to them; that I was sent to transact.
business with our Indians only, and, as they saw, I was busily engaged in this. Igave
them a present of some provisions and tobacco and they left. They came to shake
hands with me before departing, but haying no interpreter we held mno intercourse,
White Cap wants to settle down on a reserve. all probability Mr, Wagner,
D. L. 8., on his return, will be able to report as to where he wishes to reside. :
My warmest thanks are due to the officers of the Hudson’s Bay Company, by
whom myself and party were treated with the utmost kindness and hospitality.
Mesgrs. McKay and Nagle rendered me all the assistance in their power, and
contributed very materially to the success which I met in dealing with the Indians.
’ I have the honour to be, Sir, :

Your obedient servant, '
M. G. DICKIESON.
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SPECIAL APPENDIX.

D.
Report frome Mr. Walsh to the Honorable the Minister of the Interior..

Fort WaLsH,
Cyrress Hivis, N. W. TERRITORY,
12th September, 1876.

HonorABLE Sir,—In compliance with general instructions, I beg leave to submit
the following report of matters of special interest relative to the payment of annuities
under Treaty No. 4, just concluded at this post.

By the 31st of August the Indians were nearly all encamped at or near this
Place, and sent me word to attend their Council, as they had matters of special

“importance to discuss; accordingly 1 visited the Council, accompanied by Sub-
Inspector Allen and Dr. Miller. 1 found the camp arranged in a circle, and in the
centre of this circle the ditferent Bands were seated, with Indian flags displayed in
front of each Band. I occupied a position in front; this was at six o'clock in the
<evening ; after a short talk we adjourned until 9 o’clock the next morning, when we
again met, a Cree Indian, “ Ouswpe” by name, was appointed spokesman, and said that
when they met tie Commissioners, he told them that in future whatever they wanted
they must make a demand to whom they made treaty or paid them, he had several

First,—They wanted a horse, buggy and harness for each Chief and Headman.
Second,—They wanted a log house built for each Chief and Headman; they wanted a
blacksmith to do their work free of charge ; they, furthermore, desired to bring from
the Amecrican side of the line any goods they wished without paying any duty, and
wanted the cattle promised them by the Commissioner in the treaty of 1874, made
at Qu'Appelle. and wished that as soon as they settled on their reservation that the
land should be broken for them, as they were unable to do it themselves. They
further demanded that the Half-breeds be admitted to the treaty, and receive the same
Payment as themselves; they regarded them as their brothers of the plain, and
were not inclined to part company with them now; and, further, that the Assiniboines,
Who had never attendea a treaty, should be taken in and be paid as they were, and
for the two preceding years, giving as a reason for this, that they might possibly
die between now and the time of next payment, and lose this year's pay.

To the foregoing demands, 1 replied as follows: That the first and second
demands, [ was positive would never be granted, and that there was no use in asking

. for them, as T should not encourage it; as to the blacksmith shop, I told them it
would probably not be entertained by the Government, but I would write to the
Hon. Superintendent-Gieneral of Indian Affairs, and possibly it might be granted; as
to bringing goods from the American side free of duty, 1 was sure it would never be
graunted, but if one of their number wishel to bring in articles for their own use, to
call on me and I would pass them free of duty (otherwise others would take advantage
of permission and regularly commission Indians to trade across the line for them);
as to the cattle promised them, they would be given them as soon as they complied
with the terms of the treaty, for each Band to settle on a reservation. [ informed
them that in regard to the hreaking of the land, when they scttled on a reservation
they would find no trouble, as white men would, no doubt, be in the neighbourhood,

Who would not object to give them instructions in the use of agricultural implements,
Which they would learn in a few days. 1In reply to the demand that the Half-breeds
be admitted, I told them I had full instructions what to do in the matter, and those

structions [ intended to carry out, that a Half-breed could not be a imitted into the

aly without instructions from the Honorable Superintendent of Indian Atfairs,

that I would show them clearly the reason why the Government had made provision for

the Half-breeds by giving them a grantof land in the Province of Manitoba, and that

alf-breed scrip was now in civeulation, and that the Half-breeds among them might

© in possession of this scrip, and hence be paid both ways ; but if Half breeds wished
11—c¢ XXXvii
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to relinquish their claims to lands and live among and be like Indians, the same
Jaws governing both, if they would call and see me after the payment and give in
their names, I would send their request to the Honorable Superintendent General
ot Indian Affairs, for his consideration.

In regard to the Assiniboines, I told them thatif there were any Indians present
who had not heretofore been admitted to a treaty, and could prove, to my satistaction,
that they were British Indians, they would probably receive the first and second
payment this year, and the third and fourth payment next year, that the Govern-
ment would not allow more than two years payment at one time. In conclusion, 1
told them the payment would be made at the post and commence immediately on
my arrival there; the Bands would be paid separately. I gave the names of the
Bands I wanted first and the names of Chiefs and Bands designated would follow in
rotation, the payment commenced on Friday, September 1st, and concluded on Monday-
One thousand two hundred and sixty-two (1,262) Indians, composed of Crees, Saulteaux
and Assiniboines, were paid the sum of eight thousand three hundred and eleven
dollars ($8,311.) I was informed at this juncturc that forty (40) lodges more had
arrived and that fifty (50) additional lodges were on the way. 1 immediately
stopped payment, and informed the Chiefs that as the number coming in was greatly
in excess of what the Government supposed there were who had not heretofore attended
any treaty, and that I could not pay any more as it would require more
money than I felt authorized to expend, and must defer further payment until I had
communicated with the' Hon. Superintendent General of Indian Affairs, the Chiefs
then informed me that these ninety (90) lodges were really British Indians from
the Assiniboine and Belly Rivers, but had been obliged to cross the Missouri River
as the buffalo became scarce in their own country, and had been living as much on this
side of the line as the other, and were surely as much entitled to all the provisions
of the treaty as the Indians who are living further north. (The Indians call South
Saskatchewsn Belly River.) I then told them that argument was useless, as I could
not make further payment to non-treaty Indians, but would take the number of
lodges and communieate what they had said to the Hon. Superintendent General of
Indian Affairs; they replied that these Indians had come to receive their annuities
and thonght it hard that they should be counted out, 1 replied that if they were
admitted at all I would recommend that they be paid for this year.

I would beg leave to suggest that if these Indians are admitted to this treaty
that they be paid commencing this year, they knew of the treaty of 1874, and did
not attend, neither did they attend the one last year, and I think if you would say
80 they would be fully satisfied that the payment commence from this year.

I find that in admitting the Assiniboines we must be very careful in questioning
the heads of families ag to their families; some of them have taken children of Sioux
Indians, to whom they are closely allied, their language being nearly the same, and
children of Ree and Mandan parentage and of other tribes belonging to the United
States, and raising them, and unless questioned closely will pass them in as their
own. 1 find that many of the Indians have pawned their checks to traders and
others, in case of the death of a head of a family have buried the check with him, and
others have lost them, I told them it was wrong to pawn their checks, and they
must be careful and notloose them, as they were given that they might be presented
when payment was due and receive their money. I further found that many of the
checks had been exchanged among themselves, causing no little confusion, and in
making payment 1 was compelled, in many cases, to be guided entirely by the
pame in the books corresponding with the number of the check, and, by this means,
restore the check to its proper owner. To those whom it was proven had lost their
checks I replaced by giving one of zinc with a number corresponding to the one lo
As the checks to be issued to the Indians who were admitted into the treaty did not
arrive, I issued checks made of zinc, marked “ W.V.X.” 1In case of a Chief bringin
in Indians not before at a treaty, I presented one of the W.V. or X. checks and add
the additional letter V.W. or X. to the Chiefs Band as the case might be. Several of
the Bands were divided, part of whom had gone to Qu'Appelle;; this was brought about
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by interested persons at Qu'Appelle who had sent runners out on the prairie to-
tell the Indians there was no payment to be made at Cypress Mountains, and
whoever told them so were trying to dcceive them. The Indians were afraid
they were not to receive any pay, and part went to Qu'Appelle and the rest came-
herc. Many of the No. 3 Treaty Indians were here to receive payment. I told them
they could not be paid here, but would have to wait until next year and be paid in
the district to which they belong.

A number of Indians expressed a desire to change Bands, this I would not allow
except in a few cases in which the Chiefs were willing they should go, as I had no
instructions from you on this point. ,

The Indians complain thaut at Qu'Appelle last year, that the rations were not pro-
perly distributed some received a large quantity and many very little, to prevent any-
thing of the kind occurring nere this year, I had the census of the camp taken before
making any issues and divided the quantity according to the number, and issued to
each Band its proper allowance. To Sub-Inspector Allen, I am very much indebted
for valuable assistance, which he rendered me in the iszue of rations, to him I entrus-
ted this important service, which he performed to the satisfaction of every one
concerned. Dr. Robert Miller aided me very materially, while the payment was in
progress he vaccinated several Indians, having but little vaccine he was obliged to
defer operations of this kind until such time as more could be obtained ; he also ren-
dered me other valuable service for which I am specially indebted.

If it is the intention of the Government to admit the Assiniboines, I would
recommend that a census be taken during the winter or early spring, while
the Chiefs are here and on Milk River, as all questions regarding their families
could be asked aad answered, and greatly lessen the labour and also the expense of”
keeping them, which would of necessity be entailed if it was putoff until time of pay-
ment.

If the Honourable Secretary of State, would allow me I could attend to this.
matter for you, without interfering greatly with my duties in the Police Force.

I have the honour to be, Honorable Sir,
Your most obedient servant,

J. M. WALSH.
Inspector R. Division, N. W. M. P.
Commanding Fort Walsh.

—

SPECIAL APPENDIX.
E

From Lieutenant-Governor Morris to the Honorable the Minister of the Interior.

GOVERNMENT HoOUSE,
Forr GARRY, 17th November, 1876.

Sir,—I recommended in my despatch of the 7th June, that measures should be-
adopted to secure the adhesion of the Indians, who had not been met with when
reaty No.b was concluded, and was requested by you to entrust the duty to Mr.
rahame, of the Indian Department here, or to the Honorable Thomas Howard.
r. Grahame was unable to leave the office. 1, therefore, entrusted the matter to-
3'11'. Howard and J. Lestock Reid, D. L. S. I gave these gentlemen written instruc-
tions, a copy of which will be found appended to the Report of Mr. Howard, in
Which I directed them to meet the Islamf) Fndians and those of Beren’s River together,
and then to separate, Mr. Reid proceeding to Norway House and Mr. Howard to the-:
‘Grand Rapids” of the Saskatchewan and the ¢ Pas,” this course being necessary to
®nable the work to be accomplished during the season. I have pleasure in informing
You that these gentlemen discharged their mission most successfully and satisfactorily,.
3 will be scen from the following Reports, which I enclose, viz:—
11—c} XXXix
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A. Joint Report of Messrs. Howard and Reid as to the Island Indians of Lake
‘Winnipeg and those of Beren’s River.

B. Report of Mr. Howard as to the Band at the Grand Rapids,and as to his
negotiations with the Indians at the * Pas.”

C. Report of Mr. Reid with regard to the Norway House Indians.

D. Report of Mr. Howard, submiiting the accounts of the Expenditure incurred
in carrying out my instructions.

1. It will ap}gear from these Reports that the Commissioners obtained the assent
of the scattered Bands among the Islands and shores of Lake Winnipeg, and had
them united in a Band with one Chief and his Councillors.

2. That the Indians of the Grand Rapids of the Beren's River accepted the
treaty, being received as part of the Band of Jacob Berens, and that the latter
Band wish their Reserves to be allotted them and some hay lands assigned.

3. That the Norway House Indians contemplate removal to Fisher's River, on
Lake Winnipeg.

4. That the Indians of Grand Rapids have removed, as they agreed to do last
year, from the point where they had settled on the Saskatchewan, and which has
been set apart as the site of a town.

5. That the Indians of the “ Pas” “Cumberland,” and “Moose Lake” gavein
their adhesion to the treaty, and, subject to the approval of the Privy Council, have
agreed upon the localities for their Reserves,

6. That the Bands at the Grand Rapids, the “ Pas” and “Cumberland ” arein a
sufficiently advanced position to be allowed the grant for their schools.

I forward herewith the balance sheet of Mr. Howard for the receipts and dis-
bursements connected with the completion of the Treaty and the payments, as also
the various vouchersin support thereof. I placed the charge of the financial arrange-
ments in the hands of Mr. Howard, on whom also fell the longest period of service in
the work entrusted to the Commissioners.

Talso forward by parcel post registered the original of the assents to the Treaty
of the various Bands.

To prevent complications and misunderstandings, it would be desirable that as
many of the Reserves should be surveyed without delay, and, from Mr. Reid’s con-
nection with the Treaty, and his fitness tor the work, I think that he would be a
suitable person to be employed in the duty.

I would remark. in conclusion, that I requested Mr. Provencher to obtain the
assent to the Treaty of the Band at the mouth of the Black River, and that he
informs me that he obtained the adhesion and has so reported to you. They having
obtained the assent of the whole of the Indians within the region treated so far, asa
most satisfactory feature of the year’s operations.

I have, &ec.,

ALEXANDER MORRIS,
Lieutenant-Governor.

A.

From Hon. Thos. Howard and J. Letsock Reid, Commissioners, to Hon. Alexander
Morris, Licutenant Governor, Fort Gtarry.

WinnipEG, October 10th, 1876.

Sik —Under instructions received from you, dated 1l4th July last, we were
directed to proceed to the Dog Head Point and Bereus River, on Lake Winnipeg, and
there obtain the adhesion of certain Indians to the treaty that was made and concluded
at Norway House last yoar, and we have now the honour to report.

Leaving here by the steamer ¢ Swallow” on the morning of the 20th July, we
arrived at the Stone Fort about noon on the same day, where our boats were in wait-
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ing for us. There we were obliged to retain them until the following morning, when
wo succeeded in getting them off, but as Mr. Howard had to make arrangements to
forward a large quantity of supplies in a third boat to the Saskatchewan River, it
was late the same evening before we started and drove to Mr. Monkman’s, where,
baving camped for the night, we left next morning on our journey.

With a fair wind and fine weather we reached the Narrows on Monday afternoon,
the 24th, at 4.30 p. m. Mr. Howuard called at the Hudson Bay Company’s post to see
about the provisions stored there, where he found Thickfoot and the Jack-Fish Head
Indians encamped, about 25 families in all, and learned from them that they were
desirous to meet and speak to us where they were, and not across the Narrows at the
Dog Head ; but, as the place of meeting was distinctly fixed, Mr. Howard informed
them that they would have to move their camps.

Mr. Reid having, in the meantime, gone to the Dog Head Point, was received
with a salute from the Indians there encamped, viz.: the Blood Vein River, Big
Island and Sandy Bar Bands, and, almost simultaneously with Mr. Howard’s arrival
there, the Indians belonging to Thickfoot and the Jack-Fish Head arrived also.

We hardly had time to make our camp before being waited upon by a represent-
ative from all the Bands except Thickfoot’s, and they desired toknow when we would
be prepared to have a conference ; and, having told them that the following day, the
25th, was the day appointed, and that we would meet them at 11 o’clock in the
morning, we gave them some provisions and they withdrew. Thickfoot subsequently
called upon us and stated that he was prepared at any time to meet us and sign the
treaty, that he had learned that it was our intention to make only one Chief for all
the Indians gathered there; that he had felt when the paper was placed in his hands
last year by the Governor, that he was making him the Chief; that hehad notified
-all the Indians that were there as he had agreed, and that they had threatened him
with violence for saying he was to be Chief, and that he was afraid now to join them
in any way, and that he and his Band wished to be spoken to by themselves.
Upon hearing this, we informed him that he need not be afraid of violence, that the
paper the Governor gave him merely stated that he was a principal Indian, and we
would certainly recognize him as such, and if the Indians desired him to be their
Chief, it would be a great pleasure to us.

The following morning the Indians sent word by a representative from each
Band, except Thickfoot’s, that they desired another day to meet in council before
having aconference; but, feeling they had sufficient time already, yet not wishing to
hurry them too much, we extended the hour of meeting to 4 o’clock on the same day,
-which satisfied them, and when they promised to be ready.

About 3 o’clock, we were informed that the Indians had gathered, so we at once
proceeded to meet them. The place we had chosen for the conference was on a
granite plateau, and at ome end our crews had erected a covering with boughs; a
more suitable spot for the meeting could not be found. :

After inquiring if they had all gathered, and, being assured that they had, we
began to explain the object of our mission, but immediately saw that the Bands were
determined to be considered distinct and wished to be treated with separately, when
.we informed them that only one Chief would be allowed, and that before we could
proceed any further we would require them all to meet together in council and there
-select one Chief and three Councillors, and be prepared to present them to us on the
following day. This evidently gave great dissatisfaction to the 1sland Band, of which
Ka-tuk-e-pin-as was headman, but they all withdrew; before doing so, agreeing to be
ready the next day at noon to meet us.

ﬁiefore the hour appointed for the meeting the next day, another delegation came
over and informed us that the Indians were not yet prepared, that thoy could not
come to any decision as to who should be Chief, and again asked to have the hour of
meeting extended to 3 o’clock, which we did upon the understanding that if they
were not then prepared we would return and report the facts to you.

Shortly after, we noticsd Thickfoot and his Indians sitting near our tents, and
evidently taking no part in the selection of a Chief, so we called bim over and found
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him still disinclined to join the other Indians. He stated that they would not have
him as Chiet, and that he would therefore remain away. We then explained that he
couid be head man of his Band by being elected a Councilior to whoever would be
appointed Chief, and at last prevailing upon him to go with his Indians to the Council
tent, we requested the Rev. Mr. Cochrane to proceed to the Indian Encampment and
state to them that from each Band other than the one from which the chief was
chosen, a Councillor would have to be taken, By this means, we saw our way to
satisfy all the Bands, and Mr. Cochrane having notified the Indians accordingly, we
felt confident the choice of a chief would soon be made; but in this we were disap-

inted, as a messenger shortly after arrived and said no choice could be made, a8

a-tuk-e-pin-ais would do nothing unless he was chosen Chief. On hearing this Mr.
Cochrane decided to visit the Indians in Council, and, having done so, proposed to
them that they should elect a Chief by ballot, and having got them all to agree to
this proposition, they proceeded to the clection. Several brllots had to be taken,
and at last resulted in fuvor of the Chief Indian of the Blood Vein River Band, Sa-ha-
cha-way-ass, and the Councillors elected were the head men from the Big Island,
Doghead and Jack-Fish Head Bands.

At 3 p.m., we were notified that the Indians had again gathered, when we pro-
<eeded to the place of meeting, and were presented to the Chiet and two of his
Councillors. Ka-tuk-e-pin-ais, the third Councillor, coming forward, said his Band
did not want him to act as Councillor; that he had seen the Governor the other day,
and had been told by him that he would be the Chiefof the Island Indians. Whereupon
we informed him that no such promise had been made by you, and that we could
-only recognize the choice of the majority. He then desired to withdraw from the
negotiations, and wait until he saw you, before signing the treaty; but as we had
learned that out of the 22 families that were in his Band, all, with one or
two oxceptions, had received the annuity since 1870, with the St. Peter’s Band, we
made them sit by themselves, and then explained that by receiving the annuity as 8
large number of them had done, they had really agreed to the treaty, and that we
were there only to deal with those of the Band that had at no time received money
trom the Queen. Ka-tuk-e-pin-ais then said that there were very few of his Indians
that had not received money from the Queen, but that he never had; that he was
quite prepared to sign the treaty now, only some of his people did not want him
to do so, unless we agreed to give them the Big Island for a Reserve. This we at
once refused, and at the same time told them that unless he and all his Band agreqd
to the terms we offered them without further delay, they might return to thelr
homes. Hearing this, they all withdrew, but soon returned, when Ka-tuk-e-pin-ai8
said one or two of his people did not want him to sign any treaty, but most 0
them did, and thut he was going to do so. He then took his seat along with
the Chiefs and other Countillors, and we proceeded to explain the terms O
the treaty. When we came to the clause referring to the Reserves, each Band was
anxious that the places where they are in the habit of living should be granted them
as Reserves, and the locations of the same mentioned in the treaty; but as owr
instructions were positive on this point, we refused, but assured them that the names
of the places they asked for, we would certainly forward with our report to you, ap
we stated that with the exception of the location asked for by the Sandy Bar Indians,
we felt sure the Government would grant their request, and give them their Reserves
where they desired. The following were the localities mentioned : —

Doy Head Band,—The point opposite the Dog Head.

Blood Vein Ricer Band,—At mouth of Blood %ein River.

Big Island Band,—At mouth of Badthroat River.

Jack- Fish Head Band,—Thenorth side of Jack Head Point, at the Lobstick, and the
Sandy Bar Band,—Whiteé Mud River, west side of Lake Winnipeg.

It must be remembered that the four Bands out of the above named, viz:—
Big Island, Jack-Fish Head, Dog Head and Blood Vein River are distinct Bands,
those at Sandy Bar really belonging to th;:l St. Peter’s Band of Indians, and that they
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have always lived at the different points upon the Lake from which they take their

names, and they therefore look upon these points as their homes. We would, there-

fore, beg to recommend that the request of all, with the exception of the Sandy Bar

Indians, be granted, although in doing so we are aware of the desire of the Govern-

ment that Indians should not be encouraged to break up into small Bands, yet we

f}%el sure in this instance it would be impossible to get them all upon any one
eserve,

The adhesion we had signed on Wednesday evening, July 26th, and then
arranged to begin the payments of annuities the following morning at 9 o'clock,
which was done, and the payments completed by 4 o’clock on the same day. Wa
then distributed the implements, ammunition, twine, and balance of provisions.

From the pay lists it will be seen that 276 were paid in all, and were distributed
-as follows :—

Jack-Fish Head......ccoiiiriemiiiiiiiinreiiniiiaereneen vovieess sevrennonos 63
BigIsland......ccoiviiniiiiiniiiiiiiii e s s 4
Blood Vein River...ccvvecieeiiiiiiniiiiiiiinicinniic e ensenenssanes b
Dog Hed.....couoeiviiiireniiunniiiiiiiiecsnmierensssenesssesrneesionee oo . 35
Sandy Bar...coiceiiiiiiiiiiiiii st rra s enerr e ressseenaes 27

As already stated, the Indians at Sandy Bar were formerly paid with the St.
Peter’s Band, they are now included in the limits of Treaty 5, an(f desire to receive
their annuity with the Island Band.

Having distributed the presents, we immediately moved our camp to an island
-about a quarter of a mile from the Point, and there remained until Saturday morning,
the 29th, when, having a favourable wind, we set sail and arrived off the mouth of
gerens River, and camped on Lobstick Island the following morning, Sunday, at
9.30 a.m.

We remained there until Tuesday and then moved our camp to the Methodist
Mission. The next day we went over in one of our boats to the Hudson Bay Company’s
‘post, where we met Mr. Flett, the officer in charge, and received from him the
provisions that had been previously forwarded and which he had in store, and then
Teturned to our camp.

Mr. Flett informed us that the Indians from the Narrows of Berens River, he
©Xpected would arrive that evening, and on Thursday, visited us to say that they
had arrived and were then holding a council. The same afternoon the Chief
-and Councillors called upon us and desired to know when we would be prepared
to meet them, and though the 5th was the day appointed, we thought it advisable,
88 all the Indians were then gathered there, and were anxious to return to their homes,
to aplf)oint the following day, the 4th August.

he next morning the Indians came over from where they were encamped, near
‘the Hudson’s Bay post, in York boats; and when we learned that they were allin
the school house we proceeded there, and met, in addition to the Berens River Band,
-about thirty Indians from the Grand Rapids of Berens River. We explained the
object of onr mission, and found the Indians from the Rapids most anxious to accept
the Queen’s bounty and benevolence, some of them had a. ready accepted the annuity
‘With the Lac Seule Indians we found, so we immediately told them that it was only
to those that had not previously received money or presents from the Queen, that the
first part of our mission extended, and with whom it was necessary we should first
Speak. The head man, Num-ak-ow-ah-nuk-wape, then said that he was fully pre-
ared, on behalf of all his Indians, to accept the same terms as given to the Berens
Iver Band, only he wanted his Reserve where he then lived, at the Grand Rapids;
"Upon which we told him that before we could speak further, we must be assured by
the Band that he was their head man, and this the Band at once did. We then
thought, it advisable to recommend that they should make the Chief of the Berens
ver Band their Chief, and make their head man a Councillor to him, and although
“ur proposition was not at once received satisfactorily, we ultimately prevailed upon
em to accept it, and the Chief was at once elected. By this means we saved the
xliii
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expense nceessarily incurred in maintaining one Chief and two Councillors. We
then stated that we were prepared to grant them their Reserve where they asked for
it; and having explained the treaty to them, clause by clause, and mentioned in the
adhesion where the Reserve should be. the adhesion was duly signed by the Chief and
Councillor, The payment of the annuity was then gone on with, and finished that
afternoon at 4 o'clock, when it was found that 392 had been paid. viz:—

Berens River Band.......ccooooiiiiiiiiin civnnennnn. crverereeieriean, . 228

Grand Rapids do .o e e 164

We then distributed the implements, ammunition, twine and provisions. Whem
we had tinished, the Chict and Councilloes eame forward, and thanked us for all that
had been done for them; they said they were well pleased with what they had
received, and desived us to inform you of ‘the fact. which we accordingly promised-
They then returned in the same boats they had come over in; hefore leaving the
bank, giving three cheers for the Queen and three for the Governor.

We are very much pleased to inform you that the best possible feeling appears
to exist hetween the Indians in this region. They all appeared anxious to farm an
getde down, and we heard that 2 number of houses had been built at Poplar River,
and considerable clearing done there since the treaty was made with them last year;
the implements and tools we bronght them were therefore most acceptable.  As these
Bands live at a considerable distance [rom each other, we would recommend that an
extra supply of tools be allowed them. We also feel satistied that the animals pro-
mised by the treaty might be turnished, as we certainly consider them in a position
to take care of the same.

As you directed, we informed them that their application for hay lands had been
forwarded to the Government, and this gave them great satisfaction. The following
morning, Saturday, August 5th, Mr. Reid left for Norway House, and during the
afternoon of the same day, Mr. Howard sailed for the Stone Fort on the Red River.

Having obtained the adhesion ot the Indians at the Dog Head, and at Berens
River, our duties as Joint Commissioners under your instructions ceased, but before
closing this report we would beg to call your attention to the following facts :—

We found on application to the Indian office here, that vnly a portion of the pro;
visions for supplies to Indians under this treaty had been forwarded, and that we ha
to carry in our boats, or make arrangements to forward to the ditferent points
upwards of 16,000 pounds weight consisting of provisions, implements, ammunitio®™
and twine. This occasioned very great trouble, especially in Mr. Howard’s case, 8%
it was impossible to take in any one boat the quantities required for the Indians &b
the Grand Rapids and “Pas"” on the Saskatchewan, he was therefore obliged 1O
obtain an extra boat and crew, and this was only done through the kindness of Mr.
Bedson, warden of the penitentiary, who procured one, after very great difficulty. MT-
Reid had in his boat a full loud for Norway Housce, and Mr. Howard the same for the
Dog Head and Berens River. Had these supplies been forwarded in the first instanc®
we are satistied that a large expenditure necessarily incaurred would have been savels
as the Commissioners could then have visited the different points in canoes, in place
of having boats requiring large crews.

We would further state that we found the provisions that had been forwarded 10
the Dog Head and Berens River quite inadequate for the number of Indians gathe
there, and, althongh we supplemented them out of the provisions we had receivet
we were thon unable to allow what we considered sufficient, and were obliged at the
Dog Head to purchase some and also give considerable out of our private stores.
certainly think that the usual ration that is allowed to Indians in the Province, whel
receiving their annuity, is far too little to be forwarded to the distant points upon the
lake where, only yearly, the Indians are visited, while those in the Provinco are fre-
quently seen and receive supplies from time to time.

We were fortunate enough to secure the services of the Rev. Henry Cochranés
who kindly acted as interpreter. Being in the Province on a visit from his mission
at the “Pas,” and desirous of returning, Mr. Howard gave him a passage in his boat,
and he rendered us the most valuable assistance throughout.
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Mr. Howard will hand youn the pay sheets of the Bands paid, together with a
statement of the quantities of provisions found stored at the different points; alsor
the quantities of provisions, implements, tools, ammunition and twine received by
us, and how distributed.

Having thus referred to the different matters connceted with our mission while
acting together, and assuring you that onr aim and desire was to fulfil it to yomr
entire satisfaction, which we trust we have done,

We have the honour to be, Siv,
Your obedient servants,

THOS. HOWARD,
J. LESLOCK REID,
Commissioners.

B.

From Hon. Thos. Howard, Commissioner. To Hon. Alex. Morris, Licutenant Governor?
Fort Garry.

WinNIPEG, Octoboer 10th, 1876.

Sir,—I have the honour to inform you that in compliance with your instructions,
a copy of which I hereunto anmnex, I proceeded, accompanied by Mr. Reid, to the
Dog Hoad and Berens River on Lake Winnipeg, and there successfully secured the
adhesion of the Island and Grand Rapids of Berens River Bands of Indians to treaty
No. 5, and, having paid the annuities to the Bereus River Indians, returned to the
Stone Fort. As mentioned in the joint report submitted to you by Mr. Reid and
myself, I had the greatest difficulty in procuring a boat to take me on my mission,
and only through the kindness of Mr. Flett, of the Hudson Bay Company. at the
Stone Fort, was I able to obtain even the loan of one as far as Berens River, from
where I had to return it.

I had to leave the Stone Fort with Mr. Reid and entrust to Mr. Bedson, Warden
of the Penitentiary, the task of procuring for me a boat to take me to the Saskatch-
ewan, and also of getting a second one to send with supplies to the “Pas.” and on
Iy return found that Mr. Bedson had kindly attended to all my wants, having suc-
ceeded in purchasing one boat and forwarding in it a full cargo to the “Pas” and
had received permission from Mr. Grahame, the Commissioner of the Hudson Bay
Company, for me %o use the same boat to the Saskatchewan that T had taken to the .

erens River. As it may appear strange why two boats had to be employed on this
Iission, I would state that I found it not only necessary to provide the required
transport for myself, but also had to forward a very large quantity of provisions,
Implements, &c., &e., from Winnipeg to the “ Pas,” and further, discovered fortu-
Dately in time 10 make the necessary arrangements, that all tho provisions pre-
Viously forwarded for the * Pas ” were merely stored at the Grand Rapids and would
Temain there unless I made arrangements 1o send them to their destination up the
Saskatchewan, and of course this I was obliged to do.

I left the Stone Fort for the Grand Rapids. on the morning of the 17th August,
and after a very fast, though rough and dangerous passage, reached the mouth of the
Saskatchewan river, early on the morning of the 26th. I found, on entering the river.
that the Indians were encamped near its mouth, on the south bank, where 1 landed,
and arranged to meet them at noon that day. As the provisions wero stored at the

udson Bay Company's post, about a mile and a half up the river, 1 decided to camp
&t the foot of the road leading across the four-mile Portage, and having done so, and
In the meantime sent the provision to the Indian camp, 1 returned there at the time
agreed upon.
~ The Band having assembled, I stated to them the object of my mission:—that I
been directed to pay them the annuity and deliver some of the tools and imple-
xlv
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ments granted them by the treaty, and also to distribute amongst those that formerly
had houses and gardens on the north bank of the river, and had moved to where they
were then living, as stipulated in the treaty, the sum of five hundred dollars.

To my surprixe, the Chief at once expressed his astonishment at my saying that
the treaty had been made last year, and said he had only a talk then with the
Governor preliminary to making the Treaty this year, and that they were only then
prepared to be treated with. I explained to the Band how T had been present myself
when it was made, and that I would have it read to them. I accordingly requested
Mzr. Cochrane to do so, explaining it thoroughly ; yct, it was only after a great deal of
talking on their part, during which thoy made most unreasonable demands, and
many explanations on my part, that the Indians were satisfied that a treaty had been
made, when they requested me to go on with the payments; at the same time 2
number of them stated that they had been misled by one of the counsellors, Joseph
Atkinson by name. I then paid the annuity, distributed the provisions, tools, imple-
ments, &c., and gave the Chief a copy of the treaty, and, arranging to meet them again
on Monday the 28th, I returned to my camp at midnight.

On Mounday, I met them as agreed, and at once began and made inquiries as to
who had houses and gardens on the north bank and bhad moved their houses to the
south bank, and I found that all those that had formerly lived on the north bank had
removed from there. I noticed that great feeling existed amongst them all as to the
division of the five hundred dollarsgranted. All the Band congregated round me and
the large majority desired that the amount should be divided equally between them
+all, and claimed that every one belonging to the Band was entitled to participate in
the division ; so I thought it best to leave it to themselves to decide how the amount
should be distributed, and they only succeeded in doing so after a great deal of talking,
and, I regret to say, quarrelling; but they at last arranged it, and I was requested b
the Chief and Counsellors to divide it amongst the whole Band in such proportions as
thought right, so I proceeded at once to what turned out to be a long and troublesome
undertaking; but having as I considered made a fair and equitable distribution of the
amount, [ paid the same. had the document witnessed by the Chief and Counsellors,
and only got back to my camp again at midnight. As I before said, all the Indians
had removed to the south bank of the river, but had made no preparations to build,
and were merely living in tents. Close to the encampment,’at the mouth of the river,
the Church Missionary Society have putup a large building to answer the purposes of
A Church and School House. Care must be taken and strict watch kept over the Band.
Living a8 they do on the bank of a navigable river, where people are constantly
passing, they can give great trouble and annoyance, and,'T am sorry to say, are inclined
$o do s0. Several complaints were made to me while there, and Ispoke to the Indians
regarding them. They promised me to abide faithfully by the terms of the treaty
henceforth and not give any further annoyance.

While occupied paying the Indians there, my crew were engaged in taking my
boat and supplies across the Portage. They left the camp early on Monday morning,
and with the assistance kindly rendered them by Mr. Matheson, of the Hudson Bay
Company, succeded in reaching the north end of the Portage on Tuesday evening. That
same afternoon 1 walked over the four-mile Portage and found there a numbec of
buildings belonging to the Hudson Bay Company. To this point the Saskatchewan River
steamer “ Northcote” descends and receives the supplies for the different posts
belonging to the Company to the West and North-West.

On Weduesday morning, the 30th, I left for the “Pas”” From the Grand
Rapids to the Narrows, before entering Cedar Lake, a distance of eighteen or twenty
miles, a continuous rapid extends, and it is only by tracking and poleing simults-
neously that you are ut all able to ascend the river. The first day I made only;nine
miles on my way and camped at the “ Demi Charge,” and it was late in the evening
ou the second day when I reached Cedar Lake. This Lake is about 35 miles in
length and is very shallow and dangerous in stormy weather. I was fortunate
enough to have very calm weather, and, therefore, crossed it without any delay am
ontered the Saskatchewan again at the Che-ma-wa-win or “Seineing place,” early’
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on Saturday morning, September 2nd. Noticing a large encampment of Indians
there, I landed and found they were part of the Moose Lake Band. They desired
that I should treat with them where they were, and not bring them to the “ Pas,”
but upon my telling them that I could only treat with them at the appointed
place of meeting, thoy readily assented to follow me up, and having givea them
some provision to take them there, and secured the services of one of them to act as
guide, I again started on my journey.

1 was then three days and two nights ascending the river, and on Tuesday
morning, the 5th September, the day appoirted for me to meet the Indians, I arrived
at the “ Pas” or “Devon Mission,” on my way up having been passed by the Indians
from the Che-ma-wa-win.

On entering the river after leaving Cedar Lake the whole aspeet of the country
changes, and from there to the ‘“ Pas’” and, I understand, for fully one hundred
miles above it, nothing but marsh can be seen; so much of it that it was difficult
along the bank of the river to find a spot dry enough to camp upon, and I was, conse-
<quently, obliged to eat and sleep in my boat. The dreariness of this voyage can
hardly be realized, and it was with feelings of delight that I landed at the Mission
at the “ Pas "’ where the Rev. Mr. Cochrane received me.

Mr. Cochrane had accompanied me from the Stone Fort and had been in my
boat up to the night before I arrived, when, meeting some Indians that were on the
look-out for us, he returned with them in their canoe and reached his home shortly
before I arrived. .

The “ Pas” or “ Devon Mission ” is situated on the south bank of the Saskatche-
wan, and distant, I should say, 140 miles from Grand Rapids. The Church Missionary
Society have a very nice church, school house and parsonage there; and the Hudson
Bay Company one of their posts. There are also a large number of houses belonging to the
Indians of the place; and on the other bank the firm of Kew, Stobart & Co. have
orected a store for trading purposes. There are also several dwelling houses on the
north bank. Altogether, the appearance of the place, on my arrival, was most
prepossessing. The banks were covered with Indians with their canoes, and immedi-
ately the boat rounded the point below the Mission and came in view a salute was
fired, the like of which, I was subsequently told, had never been heard in the
“ Ratty Country.”

Having landed at the Mission, Mr. Cochrane informed me that he had, as I
requested, summoned the Indians to meet in the School House at 3 o’clock that
afternoon, and when the hour arrived I proceeded there and found upwards of 500
Indians gathered. I stated the object of my mission to them, and was at once
assured of their desire 1o accept of, and their gratitude for, the Queen’s bounty and
benevolence.

I found that the “ Pas” and Cumberland Bands of Indians had acknowledged
Chiefs, but that the Moose Lake Band had none, owing to a division amongst them.
It appeared that the Indians from the Che-ma-wa-win desired to be a distinct Band
and have their Reserves where I had seen them at the entrance of the River from
Cedar Lake; but noticing, on my way up, the unfitness of the locality for a Reserve,
and having learned that at Moose Lake, where part of the Band desired to live, a
most suitable locality could be had, I had decided before meeting them upon the course
I should take, which was, not to encourage the division in the Band, and allow onl
one Chief; and this I did, and succeeded, without much trouble, in getting the Ban
to unite. 1 then requested all the Indians to meet in Council and select their Chief
and Headmen, and be prepared the following morning to present them to me, when I
Would be ready to speak to them.

The next morning at 11 o’clock I met them and found they had done as I
Tequested, and having been presented to_ the Chiefs and Councillors I proceeded to
9Xplain the terms of the treaty that I desired to receive their adhesion to. The
Chiefs immediately stated that they wanted to make a treaty of their own, and it was
only ufter great difficulty that I could make them understand that in reality it was &
Bew treaty they were about to make.
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They had heard of the terms granted the Indians at Carlton, and this acted most
prejudicially at one time against the successful carrying out of my mission; but [
at last made them understand the difference between their position and the Plain
Indians, by pointing out that the land they would surrender would be useless to the
Queen, while what the Plain Indians gave up would be of value to “ Her” for homes
for “ Her white children.,” They then agreed to accept the terms ofteved if [ would
agree to give them Reserves where they desired; and to their demands I patiently
listened, and having at last come to a satisfactory understanding T adjourned the
mecting to the following day.

Betore proceeding turther, T would draw your attention to the localitios I granted
for Reserves, subject to the approval of the Government, and beg to iuform
you that I made every inquiry as to the extent of furming land in each locality
mentioned.

At the Narrows, at Moose Lake, there is considerable good land, and a suitable
place for a Reserve can be had for the Moose Lake Band.

For the “ Pas " and Cumberland Indians I had to mention several localities. At
the “ Pas” all the land obtainable is now cultivated, and consists of a vegetable
garden and one field attached to the Mission, and a few patches of potatoes here and
there. A short distance from the River the marsh bogins, and extends to the south
for miles; and the same thing occurs to the north. In fact, on both banks of the
River at this point, and from the Che-ma-wa-win up to it, 150 acres of land fit for cul-
t@vattlion cannot be found; and about Cumberland the country in every respect 1#
similar.

The following day, Thursday the 7Tth, I met the Indians at 3 p.m., and had tho
adhesion read to them and signed. I then presented the medals and clothing to the
Chiefs and Councillors, with which they were greatly pleased, and having congratu-
lated them upon wearing the Qucen’s uniform, and having in return been heartily
thanked by them for what had been done, [ proceeded to an them, and continued t0
do s0 up to seven o’clock, when the funds at my disposal being exhausted, I directed
them to meet me again the following morning at 9 o’clock, which they did, and
completed the payments the same evening at 5 o'clock. 1 then distributed
the balance of provisions and the ammunition and twine. The implements®
and tools [ had been unable to bring from Grand Rapids, my boat being very heavily
laden; but Mr. Belanger, of the Hudson Bay Company, kindly promised to have
them brought up free of charge in a boat that was going to the (rrand Rapids in 3
few day~: [ therefore guve the Chief of the “ Pas” Band an order for the chest of
tools anu the implements.

The following day, Saturday, having again seen all the Chiefs and Councillors
and received their thanks, and after many expressions of gratitude from tho
Indians gathered, [ left the ¢ Pas” at 2.30 o'clock, and with rowing and floating
alternately during the atternoon and night, reach:l the Che-ma-wa-win on
Sunday evening; crossed (‘clar Lake on Monday, and landed at the head of Grand
Rapids on Tuesday morning. 1 then ran the rapids and hoisted the sail at the
mouth of the river at 2 p.m., having called upon Mr. Matheson aud sceun the
Chief of the Indians there on my way down. I then made all haste to return here,
but, owing to contrary winds, only succeeded in reaching the Stone Fort on the
20th September, yet, having made a very quick trip, unprecedented in fact, and,
in carrying out the mission entrusted to me, travolled in an open bout thirteen
hundred (1,300) miles.

I would now inform you that threeout of the four Bands of Indians I met on the
Saskatchewan, viz., the “ Grand Rapids,” ¢ Pay” and “ Camberland,” are in a position
to receive at once from the Government the grant allowed for the maintenunce ©
schools of instruction; at the Grand Rapids a large school-house is by this time
entirely comploted ; and at the “ Pas” and ¢ Cumberland,” schoolx, under the charge 0
the Church Missionary Society, have been in existence some yeurs. The Indians
belonging to the Bands I have named desired that the assistance promised should be
given as soon as possible.
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I would now mention the very valuable services rendered the Government by
the Rev. Mr. Cochrane, who acted as Interpreter at the Dog Head, Beren's
River, Grand Rapids and the “ Pas,” and who was at all times ready to give his
advice and assistance; as well as by Mr. A. M. Muckle, who accompanied me and
asgisted in making the payments; and by Mr. Mersey, who took charge of the hoat
with supplies for the “ Pas.” To Mr. Matheson, of the Hudson Bay Company, Grand
Rapids, and Mr. Belanger, of Cumberland House, I am deeply indebted, and take this
opportunity of tendering these gentlemen my sincere thanks for the assistance they
rendered e and the many kindnesses I received from them. I enclose herewith the
bay sheet of the ditferent Bands I paid; a statement of the cash expenditure; and
statements shewing quantities of provisions, implements, &c., received, and how dis-
tributed ; with a statement of clothing, medals &c., given to the Chiefs and Coun-
cillors, and a report I received from Mr. Bedson.

And, trusting that the manner in which I have carried out the mission entrusted
to my care, may meet with your approval,

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOMAS HOWARD,
Commissioner.

From the Hon. Alex. Morris, Lieutenant Governor, to Hon. Thos. Howard and J. Les-
tock Reid, Ksq.

Forr Garry, July 14th, 1876.

Dear Sikx,— Under authority from ‘the Minister of the Interior, 1 have to
request you to proceed to Lake Winnipeg for the purpose of—on behalf of the Privy
Council of Canada—securing the adhesion to Treaty No. 5 of the Indians who have
Lot yet been dealt with, and to make the necessary payments to the others.

1st. You will, if possible, together proceed to or meet at the following places,
being there on the days named, viz.: Dog-Head Point, 25th July, and Beren’s River
on the 5th August.

2nd. Mr. Howard will then proceed to the mouth of the Saskatchewan, so as to
reach there on the 25th of August, and then arrive at the Pas on the 5th of Sep-
tember.

3rd. Mr. Reid will proceed from Beren's River to Norway House, to arrive thero
on or before the 25th of August.

4th. You or either of you will secure the adhesion of the Island Indians to the
treaty after the form annexed, and will request them to select a Chief and three
Councillors, and will be authorized to promise them a Reserve of 160 acres to each
family of five, or that proportion for larger or smaller families, to be selected for
them by the person chosen for that end by the Privy Council with their approval.

5th. You or cither of you will obtain the adhesion of the Indiaus of the Grand

pids of Berens River to the Treaty according to the form annexed. You will ask
em to select a Chief and three Councillors. A similar provision will be made as to
4 Reserve, but if necessary you can fix the locality at the Sandy Narrows above the
rapids on the Berens River, reserving free navigation and aceess to the shores to ail
er Majesty’s subjects.

6th. Mr. Reid will pay the Norway Ilouse and Cross Lake Indians, and will
ascertain the intentions of the Norway Ho.se Indians as to the time of their removal
to Fisher River, of which I am unadvised.

7th. Mr. Howard will pay the Indians at the mouth of the Saskatchewan, and if
the Indjans have removed their houses, as agreed by the treaty, will pay them $500,
$l_l(tmif not and some have removed, will pay such their proportionate share of the

5
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8th. You will distribute the implements, tools, &c., sent among the Indians, as
also the ammunition and twine. Cattle cannot be given till the I[ndians arve suffi-
ciently scittled on the Reserves to make it seam that they will be cared for. You will
report any cases wheve you find this to be the case, for future action.

9th. You will inform the Berens River Indians that theirapplication for a “ hay
reserve” has been forwarded to the Privy Council by me, and that they will receive
a reply hereafter.

10th. Mr. Howard will secure the adhesion of the Indians at the Pas to the
treaty providing that Reserves of 160 acres to each family of five will be granted at

laces sel - cted for them by an officer of the Privy Council, with their approval; but

1t will probably be necessary to give them a Reserve at the Pas where they reside,
reserving carefully free navigation and access to the shores. As the extent of land
there is very nurrow, it may be desirable to indicate localities where farming reserves
will be granted, subject to the approval of the Privy Council.

11th. The Moose Lake Indians are a distinct Band, and will probably desive the
recognition of two separate Chiefs and the allotment of separate Reserves to them.

12th. The Cumberland House Indians are another Band, but very much scattered ;.
the question of a Reserve will have to be considered,and, in connection with it, as in
other cases, respect for actual, Jona fide, substantial improvements, and for the rights
of settlers.

13th. In all cases the places indicated for Reserves to be subject to Her Majesty’s
approval in Council, and frec navigation and access to the shores to be reserved.

14th. In the case of new adhesions to the treaty, which are in fuct new troaties,
only $5.00 is to be paid, but persons belonging to Bands treated with last year are to
receive last year's payment, if then absent, if necessary.

15th. You will each take with you a suitable person, to be approved of by me,
to assist you in the payment.

I have the honour to be,
Your obedient servant,

ALEX. MORRIS,
Lieutenant-Governor.

C.
From J. Lestock Reid, Commissioner, to the Hon. Alex. Moriis, Lieut. Gevernor.
‘WinNIPEG, October 14th, 1876.

Sir,—Referring to your letter of instructions under date of the 14th of July,
relative to the payment of the Norway House and Cross Lake Bands of Indians, 1
have the honour to submit the following report : —

Having, in co-operation with the Hon. Thomas Tloward, paid the Indians of
Berens River and successfuily secured the adhesion of the Island and Upper Berens
River Bands of Indians to Treaty No. 5, on the morning of Saturday, the 5th of
August, I left for Norway House, which place, owing to stormy weather and strong
head winds, I did not succeed in reaching until the morning of the 12th. On the
way I was met by Indians proceeding to inspect their Reserve at Fisher’s River, who
brought a letter from the Chiefs of Norway House and Cross Lake, stating that the
Indians were all assembled, and requesting to be paid at the earliest possible date.

On reaching this place, Norway House, after having camp pitched at a short
distance from the Fort, I despatched messengers to the several camps and villages,
notifying the Indians of my arrival and desiring the Chiefs to meet me on the
Monday morning following. On Sunday evening divine service was held within the
Fort by the Rov. Mr. Ruttan, Wesleyan missionary, at which a large number of
Indians were present.

On Monday morning the Chiefs and most of the Indians of both Bands having
assembled at my camp, the Cross Lake Band reguested to be paid there, and the
Norway House Chief asked that his people might be paid in the School House iD
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their village about two miles from the Fort. On hearing that all the Indians that
could come were assembled, I consented to pay them where they desired, and told
the Cross Lake Chief to bring his people at noon to receive their gratuities, the
Payment of which was satisfactorily completed the same day.

The next day I crossed over to the Indian village and paid the Norway House
Band their annuities. Not having sufficient cash on hand to complete the payments
and pay accounts, I was obliged to draw on the Hudson Bay Company for fourteen
hundred dollars and ninety-two cents ($1,400.92) which was kindly honoured by
Mr. Ross, the officer in charge of the district.

The following morning, Wednesday, August 16th, the Chiefs and Indians of
the two Bands having assembled at my camp, I distributed the provisions, imple-
ments, &c., which were received with the greatest degree of gratification and
satisfaction.

On my inquiring of the Chief of Norway House when his Band would be pre-
pared to remove to their Reserve at the Fisher River, he informed me that he had
8ent two of his people to that locality to report on the same, and that he could not
say anything detinite on the matter until their return. I might here state that, on
my way back to Winnipeg I met these men returning from Fisher’s River, who
expressed themselves as highly pleased with the proposed location, and that the

and in all probability would remove there in the spring.

Whilst at Norway House I was waited upon by a Chief and four Councillors
from the vicinity of Oxford House, who were anxious to know if the same bounties
Would be extended to them as were being extended to their brethren of Norway

ouse and Cross Lake, and also whether they could obtain a Reserve on Lake Winni-
Peg, as the country in which they were living was totally unfit for cultivatioun, and
that they had the greatest difficulty in procuring a livelihood. I told them that I
had no idea what were the intentions of the Government with regard to those
Indians living north of the present treaty, but that I would make known their
Tequests to Your Excellency, and that they would be duly notified of any action the
overnment might take in the matter.

I left Norway House on my return trip, on the morning of the 18th, arriving
at Winmipeg on the afternoon of Saturday the 26th, having that morning paid my
boat’s crew oft at Selkirk.

I would here mention that previous to my departure from Norway House there
Was a very hearty and apparently sincere expression of gratitude, on the part of all
the Indians present, for tlile liberality extended to them, and a general and spoken wish
that their thanks be conveyed to the Queen’s Representative in this Province for his

ind interest in their welfare.

I cannot conclude without bearing testimony to the kindness of Mr. Ross,

udson Bay Company’s Factor, and the Rev. Mr. Ruttan, Wesleyan missionary, for
S8ervices rendered during the few days occupied in my making the payments at
orway House.

I enclose herewith statement of expenditure, &ec., &c., with vouchers attached.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. LESTOCK REID,
Commissioner.

D.
From Hon. Thomas Howard, Commissioner, to His Honour Alex. Morris, Lieut.-Governor
‘WinNIPEG, 28th October, 1876.

Str,—In submitting the accounts of the expenditure made while carrying out
Your instructions in connection with Treaty No. 5, I would state that Mr. Reid and
Myself did all in our power to curtail it; and when it is taken into account that we

Orwarded from here over 15,0001b (fifteen thousand pounds) in weight of provisions,
li
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implements, tools, &c., and that nearly half that weight, together with upwards of
5,0001b \ tive thousand pounds) from the Grand Rapids, had to be sent up the
Baskatchewan River to the “ Pas;” T am sure the expenditure made will not be
considered great.  As will be seen from the accounts, Mr. Provencher furnished me

~ with the sum of 814,660 (fourteen thousand six hundred and sixty dollars) on the
18th July, but as that amount was insufficient even to pay the anuuities with, 1
received from him, by your instructions, a further sum of $7,516 (seven thousand five
hundred and 16 dollars) on the 23rd October. The statement now submitted will
shew how the whole amount was disbursed.

In the first instance, it was found necessary to pnrchase some extra provisions
at the “ Dog Head ” and “Pas,” the supply furnished for these points being quite
inadequate, and considering the number of Indians that were provisioned at the
latter place, I am sure the expenditure made under the head of “ Supplies to Indians "
cannot be thought in any way extravagant. The main expense incurred was
necessitated in having to forward the large quantity of provisions, implements, &c.,
to the different points, and move particularly those for the ““Pas.”” 1 found that the
Erovisionﬂ that has been previouslly sent for the treaty there, had becn left at the

rand Rapids, and I had, therefore, to make arrangements to send them up the
Saskatchewan along with those I had to send from here, and this I could only do by
employing a second boat, and had to purchase one for that purpose.  Both boats had
then to be fnlly equipped with sails, rigging, tarpaulins, camp utensils furnished, and
two crews paid and provisioned.

The account for transport will include “boats and equipment camp equipage,

ay and provisions for men, freight ex “Swallow,” and services of Lfr. Nursey j
Eut it must be remembered that I have on hand, belonging to the Government, one
boat with sails, rigging, tarpaulins, &c., and camp equipage for two boats, and that
all these articles are guite good, and can be used again for the same purpose if
required. Moreover, I furnished Mr. Reid with a sett of tarpaulins for his boat,
which he has in his possession, and which are charged in my accounts with ¢ boats
and equipment.” I would also state that in the account of “ provisions,” that the
provisions used by the Rev. Mv. Cochran, Mr. Muckle, Mr. Nurscy and myself,
during our journey, are included. Of course no such expenditure as the above would

. have been requisite in carrying out your instructions had the supplies all been for-
warded in the first instance, but I am quite satistied that at the time they were sent
it could not have been done cheaper than it was; everything was donc as econo-
mically as possible, and the journey made to the “Tas” and back, one of
the quickest known. I base the above assertion upon the opinion of several gentle-
men connected with the Hudson Bay Company, and I would here inform you that
the cost to the Hudson Bay Company to carry goods from the Stone Fort to the
4 Pas” upon their own steamers, per hundred pounds, is from $5.75 to $6.00, (five
seventy-five to six dollars) while with York boats they estimate it as high as $7.00;
(seven dollars) it will therefore be seen that the forwarding of supplies there, under
any circumstances, must be an expensive undertaking. As mentioned in the joinb
report that I sentin with Mr, Reid, I found the quantities of provisions allowed
for the ditferent points far inadequate, at the “Pas " particularly I was very short, and
the cost of provisions there prevented me from purchasing any quantity ; those that
did purchase were bought merely to return to the Hudson Bay Company for some
supplies they had furnished the Indians before my arrival, and although I made use
of the provisions sent to (irand Rapids, but belonging to “ Cross Lake,” and gave
them to the “TPas” Indians, I had far too little, and really should have had more ab
mY disposal. I would moreover inform you that I found the tobacco furnished of
vely inferior quality, and some of the pork in very bad condition.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

THOS. HOWARD,
i Commissioner.
11
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F.
SPECIAL APPENDIX.

GovERNMENT HOUSE,
Fort GARRY, MANITOBA,
4th December, 1876.

Sir,—I beg to inform you that in compliance with the request of the Privy
Council that 1 should proceed to the West to negotiate the Treaties which I had last
Year, through the agency of the late Rev. George McDougall, promised the Plain Crees,
would be undertaken, I left Fort Garry on the afternoon of the 27th of July last, with
the view of prosecuting my mission. I was accompanied by one of my associates,
the Hon. J. W. Christie, and by A. G. Jackes, Esq., M.D., who was toact as sccretary.
I selected as my gnide Mr. Pierre Levailler. The Hon. James McKay, who had also
been associated in the Commission, it was arranged, would follow me and meet me
at Fort Carlton.

On the morning of the 4th of August I forded the Assiniboine about five miles
from Fort Ellice, having accomplished what is usually regarded as the first stage of
the journey to Fort Carlton, about 220 miles. After crossing the river, I was over-

-taken by a party of the Sioux who have settled on the Reserve assigned to them at
Bird Tail Creek, and was detained the greater part of the day.

1 am sanguine that this settlement will prove a success, as these Sioux are dis-

ﬁlaying a laudable industry in cutting hay for their own use and for sale, and in

reaking up ground for cultivation. [ resumed my journey in the afternoon, but a
storm coming on, I was obliged to encamp at the Springs, having only travelled
eight miles in all during the day. :

On the 5th Ileft the Springs, and after traversing much fine country, with
excellent praivie, good soil, clumps of wood, lakelets, and hay swamps, in the Little
and Great Touchwood Hills and File Mountain region, I arrived at the South Saskat-
Chewan, at Dumont’s crossing, twenty miles from Fort Carlton, on the afternoon of’
the 14th of August.

. Here I found over one hundred carts of traders and freighters, waiting to be

- forried across the river. The scow was occupied in crossing the carts and effects of
Kis-so-wais, an enterprising Chippewa trader, belonging to the Portage la Prairie
and, who at once came forward and gave up to me his right of crossing.

I met, also, a young Cree who had been sent by the Crees to hand me a letter of
Welcome in the name of their nation.

The reason of this step being taken was, that a few wandering Saulteaux or

~ Chippewa, from Quill Lake, in Treaty No. 4, had come to the Crees and proposed to
em to unite with them and prevent me from crossing the river and entering the
ndian country. The Crees promptly refused to entertain the proposal, and sent a
essenger, as above stated, to welcome me.
. Lalso received from their messenger a letter from Lawrence Clarke, lxq., Chief
Factor of the ITudson Bay Company at Carlton, offering the Commissioners the
Ospitalities of the Fort.
. Lsent replies in advance, thanking the Crees for their action, and accepting the
kind ofter of Mr. Clarke, to the cxtent of the use of rooms ia the Fort.

It was late in the evening before our party crossed theriver, so that we encamped
on the heights near it.

On the morning of the 15th we left for Fort Carlton, Mr. Christic preceding me
% announce my approaching arrival at Dutch Lake. About twelve miles from

arlton I found the Hon. James McKay awaiting me, he having travelled by way of
Fort Pelly.

Here also a Chief, Beardy of the Willow Crees, came to see me.

He said that his people were encamped near the Lake, and that as there were

ne meadows for their horses they wishe(;i;ihe treaty to be made there.
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I was at once on my guard, and replied te him, that after I reached Carlton.
which was the place appointed, I would meet the Indians wherever the great body of
them desired it.

He then asked me to stop as T passed his encampment, and see his people-
This I agreed to do; as 1 was leaving Duck Lake [ met Captain Walker with his
troop of Mounted Police, coming to escort me to Carlton which they did.

When I arrived at Beardy’s encampment, the men came to my carriage and
holding up their right hands to the skies, all joined in an invocation to the deity for
a blessing on the bright day which had brought the Queen’s messenger to see them,
and on the messenger and themselves ; one of them shook hands with me for the others.

The scene was a very impressive and striking one, but as will be seen hereafter,
this Band gave me great trouble and were very difficult to deal with.

Leaving the’ Indian encampment I arrived at Fort Carlton, where Mr. Christie,
Dr. Jackes and myself were assigned most comfortable rooms, Mr. McKay preferring
to encamp about four miles from the Fort.

In the evening, Mist-ow-as-is and Ah-tuk-uk-koop, the two head Chiefs of the
Carlton Crees, called to pay their respects to me, and welcomed me most cordially.

On the 16th the Crees sent me word that they wished the day to confer amongst
themselves.

1 acceded to their request, learning that they desired to bring the Duck Lake
Indians into the negotiations,

1 sent a messenger Mr. Peter Ballenden, to Duck Lake, to inform the Indians
that I would mect them at the encampment of the Cariton Crees, about two miles
from the Fort.

On the 17th, on his return, he informed me that the Chiefsaid “ He had not given
“me leave to mect the Indians anywhere except at Duck Lake, and that they
“would only mect me there.” The Carlton Indians, however, sent me word, that they
would be ready next morning at 10 o’clock.

On the 13th, as I was leaving for the Indian encampraent, a messenger came tv
me from the Duck Lake Indians, asking for provisions. I replied, that Mr. Christie
was in charge of the distribution of provisions, but that I would not give any to the
Duck Lake Indians, in consequence of the unreasonableness of their conduect, and
that provisions would only be given to the large encampment.

1 then proceeded to the Indian camp, together with my fellow Commissioners,
and was escorted by Captain Walker and his troop.

On my arrival I found that the ground had been most judiciously chosen, being
elevated, with abundance of trees, hay marshes and <mall lakes. The spot which the
Indians had left for my Council tent overlooked the whole.

The view was very beautiful : the hills and the trees in the distance, and in the
foreground, the meadow land being dotted with clumps of wood, with the Indian tent?
clustered here and there to the number of two hundred.

On my arrival, the Union Jack was hoisted, and the Indians at once began t©
assemble, beating drums, discharging fire-arms, singing and dancing. In about half an
hour they were ready to advance and meet me, this they did in a semicircle, having
men on horseback galloping in cireles, shouting, singing and dischargiag fire-arms.

They then performed the dance of the * pipe stem,” the stem was clevated to the
north, south, west, and east, a ceremonial dance was then performed by the Chiefs
and Headmen, the Indian men and women shouting the while. '

They then slowly advanced, the horsemen again preceding them on their approach
to my tent. I advanced to meet them accompanied by Messrs. Christie an
McKay, when the pipe was presented to us, and stroked by our hands.

After the stroking had been completed, the Indians sat down in front of the
Council tent, satisfied that in accordance with their custom we had accept,od the
friendship of the Cree nation.

I then addressed the Indians in suitable terms, explaining that I had been sent
by the Queen, in compliance with their own wishes and the written promise I ha
given them last year, that a messenger woald be sent to them.
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I had ascertained that the Indian mind was oppressed with vagne fears; they
<dreaded the treaty ; they had been made to believe that they would be compelied to
live on the Reserves wholly, and' abandon their hunting, and that in time of war,
they would be placed in the front and made to fight.

I accordingly shaped my address, so as to give them confidence in the intentions
‘ot the Government, and to quiet their apprehensions. I impressed strongly on them
the necessity of changing their present mode of life, and commencing to make homes
-and gardens for themselves, 50 as to be prepared for the diminution of the buffalo and
other large animals which is going on so rapidly. :

The Indians listened with great attention to my address, and at its close asked
an adjournment that they might meet in council to consider my words, which was of
course granted.

The Rev. C.Scollen, a Roman Catholic Missionary amongst the Blackfeet, arrived
soon after from Bow River, and informed me that on the way he had learned that
“Sweet Grass,” the principal Chief of the Plain Crees, was out hunting and would
not be at Fort Pitt, and that he was of opinion that hiy absence would be.a great
obstruction to a treaty.

After consulting with my colleagues, I decided on sending a messenger to him,
requesting his presence, and succeeded in obtaining, for the occasion, the serviees of
Mr. John McKay, of Prince Albert, who had accompanied the Rev. George McDougall
‘on his mission last year.

In the evening, Lieut.-Colonel Jarvisarrived with a reinforcement of the Mounted
Police, and an excellent band, which has been established at the private cost of one
-of the troops. .

On the 19th, the Commissioners, escorted by the Mounted Police, headed by the
band, proceeded to the Indian encampment.

The Indians again assembled, following  Mist-ow-as.is” and “Ah-tuk-uk-koop,”
the recognized leading chiefs.

I asked them to present their chiefs; they then presented the two head Chiefs,
and the minor ones.

At this juncture, a messenger arrived from the Duck Lake Indians, asking that
I should tell them the terms of the treaty. I replied that if the Chiefs and people
had joined the others they would have heard what I had to say, and that I would not
tell the terms in advance, but that the messenger could remain and hear what T had
to say. He expressed himself satisfied and took his seat with the others. I then
fully explained to them the proposals I had to make, that we did not wish to inter-
ferc with their present mode of living, but would assign them Reserves and assist
them as was being done elsewhere, in commencing to farm, and that what was done
Wwould hold good for those that were away.

The Indians listened most attentively, and on the close of my remarks “ Mist-
Ow-as-is” arose, took me by the hand, and said *“That when a thing was thought
of quietly, it was the best way,” and asked * this much, that we go and think of his
words.”

Iacquiesced at once, and expressed my hope that the Chiefs would act wisely, and
thus closed the second day.

The 20th being Sunday, the Rev. Mr. John McKay, of the Church of England,
‘Conducted divine scrvice at the Fort, which was largely attended ; the Rev. Mr.
8collen also conducted service.

At noon a messenger came from the Indian camp, asking that there should be a
Service held at their camp, which Mr. McKay agreed to do; this service wasattended
by about two hundred adult Crees.

On Monday, 21st, the head Chiefs sent word that, as the previous Jday was
sﬂnday, they had not met in couneil, and wished to have the day for consultation,
and if ready would meet me on Tuesday morning. I cheerfully granted the delay

m the reasonablencss of the request; but I was also aware that the head Chiefs
Were in a position of great difficulty.
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The attitude of the Duck Lake Indians and of the few discontented Saulteaux
embarrassed them, while a section of their own people were either averse to make &
treaty or desirous of making extravagant demands.. The head Chicfs were men of
intelligence, and anxious that the people should act unitedly and reasonably.

We, therefore, decided to give them all the time they might ask, a policy which
they fully appreciated.

On the 22nd the Commissioners met the Indians, when I told them that we had
not hurried them, but wished now to hear their Chiefs.

A spokesman, “ The Pond Malker,” then addressed me, and asked assistance when
they settled on the land, and further help as they advanced in civilization.

I replied that they had their own means of living, and that we could not feed the
Indians, but only assist them to settle down. “The Badger,” “Soh-ah-moos,” and
several other Indians all asked help when they settled, and also in case of troubles
unforeseen in the future. I explained that we could not assume the charge of their
every-day life, but in a time of a great national calamity they coxzld trust to the
generosity of the Queen.

The Honorable James McKay also addressed them, saying that their demands
would be understood by a White man as asking for daily food, and could not be
granted, and explained our objects, speaking with effect in the Cree tongue. '

At length the Indians informed me that they did not wish to be fed every day,
but to be helped when they commenced to settle, because of their ignorance how to
commence, and also in case of general famine.

“ Ah-tuk-uk-koop ” winding up the debate by stating that they wanted food im
the spring when they commenced to farm, and proportionate help as they advanced
m civilization, and then asking for a further adjournment to consider our offers.

The Commissioners granted this, but I warned them not to be unreasonable, and
to be ready next day with their decision, while we on our part would consider what
they had said.

The whole day was occupied with this discussion on the food question, and it
was the turning point with regard to the treaty.

The Indians were, as they had been for some time past, full of uneasiness.

They saw the buftalo, the only means of their support, passing away. They were
anxious to learn to supgort themselves by agriculture, but felt too ignorant to do 80,
and they dreaded that during the transition period they would be swept off by discase
or famine—already they have suffered terribly from the ravages of measles, scarlet
fever and small-pox

It was impossible to listen to them without interest, they were not exacting, but
they were very apprehensive of their future, and thankful, ax one of them put it, “8
new life was dawning upon them.”

On the 23rd the conference was resumed, an Indian addressed the people, telling
them to listen and the interpreter, Peter Erasmas, would read what changes they
desived in the terms of our offer. They asked for an ox and a cow each family ; ap
increase in the agricultural implements; provisions for the poor, unfortunate, blind and
Jame ; to be provided with missionaries and school teachers ; the exclusion of fire water
in the whole Saskatchewan; a further increase in agricultural implements as the Band
advanced in civilization ; freadom to cut timber on Crown lands; liberty to change the
site of the Neserves before the survey; frce passages over Government bridges oY
scows; other animals, a horse, harness and waggon and cooking stove tor each Chiefs
a free supply of medicines; a hand mill to each Band; and lastly, that in case of war
they should not be liable to serve.

Two spokesmen then addressed us in support of these modifications of the terms
of the treaty.

I replied to them that they had asked many things some of which had
been promised, and that the Commissioners would consult together about what
they had asked that day and the day before, and would reply, but before doing 8¢
wished to knmow if that was the voice of the whole people, to which the Indians
all assented.
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After an interval we again met them, and [ replied, going over their demands
and reiterating my statements as to our inability to grant food, and again explaining
that only in a national famine did the Crown cver intervene, and agreeing to make
gome additions to the number of cattle and implements, as we felt it woulﬁ be desir-
able to encourage their desire to settle.

I closed by stating that, afier they settled on the Reserves, we would give them
provisions to aid them while cultivating, to the extent of $1,000 per annum, but for
three years only, as after that time they should be able to support themselves.

I told them that we could not give them Missionaries, though I was pleased with
their request, but that they must look to the churches, and that they saw Catholic
and Protestant Missionaries present at the conference. We told them that they must
help their own poor, and that if they prospered they could do so. With regard to
war, they would not be asked to fight unless they desired to do so, but if the Queen
did call on them t0 protect their wives and children, I believed they would not be
backward.

I then asked if they werc willing to accept our modified proposals.

“Ah-tuk-uk-koop " then addressed me, and concluded by calling on the people, if
they werc in favor of our offers, to say so. This they all did by shouting assent and
holding up their hands.

“The Pond Maker” then rose and said he did not differ from his people, but he
did not see how they could feed and clothe their children with what was promised.

¢ expected to have received that; he did not know how to build a house nor to
cultivate the ground.

Joseph Joma, a Saulteaux, said he spoke for the Red Pheasant, Chief of the Battle

iver Crees, and made demands as follows: Men to build houses for them, increased
salaries to the Chiefs and Headmen, &c., &c. He said what was offered was too little ;

e wanted enough to cover the skin of the people, guns, and also ten miles of land
round the Reserves in a belt, '

I asked the Red Pheasant how it was that he was party to the requests of his
People, and how, when I asked if that was their unanimous voice he had assented,
and yet had now put forward new and large demands.

I said it was not good faith, and that I would not accede to the requests now
Made ; that what was offered was a gift as they had still their old mode of living.

The principal Chiefs then rose and said that they accepted our offers, and the Red
Pheasant repudiated the demands and remarks of Joma, and stated that he had not
Authorized him to speak for him.

Mist-ow-as-is then asked to speak for the Half-breeds, who wish to live on the

eserves,

I explained the distinction between the Half-breed people and the Indian Half:
breed who lived amongst the Indians as Indians, and said the Commissioners would
Consider the case of each of these last on its merits.

The trealy was then signed by myseclf, Messrs. Christie and McKay, «“ Mist-ow-
8s-is ” and *“ Ah-tuk-uk-koop,” the Head Chiefs and by the other Chiefs and Councillors,
those signing, though many Indians were absent, yet representing all the bands of any
Importance in the Carlton regions, except the Willow Indians.

On the 24th the Commissioners again met the Indians, when I presented the
Head Chiefs with their medals, uniforms and flags, and informed them that Mr. Christie
Would give the other Chiefs and Councillors the same in the evening.

Some half a dozen of Saulteaux then came forward, of whom I found one was
from Qu’Appelle, and had been paid there,and the others did not belong to the Carlton
Togion. I told them that I had heard that they had endeavoured to prevent me
Crossing the river, and to prevent a treaty being made, but that they were not wiser
than the whole of their nation, who had already been treated with.

They did not deny the charge, and their spokesman becoming insolent, I declined
to hear them further, and they retired, some stating that they would go to Fort Pitt,
Which T warned them not to do.
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Besides these Saulteaux, there were others present who disapproved of their
proceedings, amongst them being “Kes-so-way-i-,” already mentioned, and ¢ Pecheeto,”
who was the chiet spokesman at Qu'Appelle, but is now a Councillor of the Fort
Ellice Band.

I may mention here that the larger part of the Band to whom these other
Saunlteaux belonged, with the Chief’ Yellow Quill, gave in their adhesion to Treaty
No. 4 at Fort Pelly about the time that their comrades were troubling me at Fort
Carlton.

Mr, Christie then commenced the payments, assisted by Mr, McIKay, of Prince
Albert, and was engaged in so doing during the 24th and 25th. Amongst those paid
gerz the few resident Saulteaux, who were accepted by the Cree Chicfs as part of their

ands.

The next morning, the 26th, the whole Band. headed by their Chiefs and Coun-
cillors, dressed in their uniforms, came to Cariton House to pay their farewell visit t0
me.

The Chiefs came forward in order, each addressing me afew remarks, and I
replied briefly.

They then gave three cheers for the Queen, the Governor, one for the Mounted
Police, and for Mr. Lawrence Clarke, ot Carlton House, and then departed, firing guns
as they went.

Considering it undesirable that so many Indians should be excluded from the
treaty, as would be the case if I left the Duck Lake Indians to their own devices, I deter-
mired on sending a letter to them. I, therefore, prepared a message, inviting them
to meet me at the Hon. Mr. McKay's encampment, about three miles from the large
Indian encampment, about half way to Duck Lake, on Monday, the 28th, if they were:

repared then to accept the terms of the treaty I had made with the Cariton Indians.
y letter was entrusted to Mr. Levailler, who proceeded to Duck Lake.

On entering the Indian Council room, he found they had a letter written to me
by the Rev. Mr. Awdré, offering to accept the terms of the treaty it [ came to Duck
Lake.

The Indians sent for Mr. Awdré to read my letter to them, which was received
with satisfaction; both he and Mr. Levailler urged them to accept my proposal,
which they agreed to do, and requested Mr. Levailler to inform me that they would
go to the appointed place.

Accordingly, on the 28th the Commisssoners met the Willow Indians.

After the usual handshaking and short speeches from two of the Chiefs, I
addressed them, telling them I was sorry for the course they had pursued, and that
did not go away without giving them this opportunity to be included in the treaty.-

Kah-mee-yes-too-waegs, the Beardy, spoke for the people. He said some things
were too little. He was anxious about the buffalo. ‘

Say-sway-kees wished to tell our mother, the Queen, that they were alarmed
about the buffalo. It appeared as if there was only one left.

The Beardy again addressed me, and said—* You have told me what you have
done with the others you will do with us. I accept the terms; no doubt it will run
further, according to our numbers ; when I am utterly unable to help myself I want
to veceive assistance.”

I replied to them, explaining, with regard to assistance, that we could
not support or feed the Indians, and all that we would do would be to help them to-
cultivate the soil.

Ifa general famine came upon the Indians the charity of the Government would
come into exercise. 1 admitted the importance of steps being taken to preserve the
buffalo, and assured them that it would be considered Ey the Goverfior General an
Council of the North-West Territories, to see if a wise law could be framed such a8
could be carried out and obeyed.

The three Chiefs and their Headmen then signed the treaty, and the medals and
flags were distributed, when Mr. Christie intimated that he was ready to make the
payments.
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They then asked that this should be done at Duck Lake, but Mr. Christie informed
them that, as we had to leave for Fort Pitt, this was impossible ; and that, moreover,
their share of the unexpended provisions and the clothing and presents were at the
Fort, where they would require to go for them.

They then agreed to accept the payment, which was at once proceeded with.

The persistency with which these Indians clung to their endeavour to compel
the Commissioners to proceed to Duck Lake was in part owing to superstition, the
Chief Beardy having announced that he had a vision, in which it was made known to
him that the treaty would be made there.

It was partly, also, owing to hostility to the treaty, as they endeavoured to
induce the Carlton Indians to make no treaty, and urged them not to sell the land,
but to lend it for four years.

The good sense and intelligence of the Head Chiefs led them to reject their pro-
Posals, and the Willow Indians eventually, as I have reported, accepted the treaty,

The 29th was occupied by Mr. Christie in settling accounts, taking stock of the
clothing, and preparing for our departure.

An application was made to me by Toma, the Saulteaux, who took part in the
Proceedings on the 23rd, to sign the treaty as Chief of the Saulteaux Band.

As I conld not ascertain that there were sufficient families of these Indians
resident in the region to be recognized as a distinet band, and as I had no evidence
that they desired him to be their Chief, I declived to allow him to sign the treaty,
but informed him that next year, if the Saulteaux were numerous enough, and
expressed the wish that he should be Chief, he would be recognized.

He was satisfied with this, and said that next year they would come to the
payments. .

His daughter, a widow, with her family, was paid, but he preferred to remain
until next year, as he did not wish to be paid, except as a Chief.

On the morning of the 31st, the previous day having been wet, Mr. Christie and
L left for Fort Pitt, Mr. McKay having preceded us by the other road—that by way
of Battle River.

We arrived on the 5th September, the day appointed, having rested, as was our
custom throughout the whole journey, on Sunday, the 3rd.

About six miles from the Fort we were met by Col. Jarvis and the Police, with
their band, as an escort, and also by Mr. McKay, the Factor of the Hudson’s Bay
Com%?ny, who informed us that he had rooms ready for our occupation.

e found over one hundred lodges of Indians already there, and received a
message from them that as their friends were constantly arriving, they wished delay
until the Tth. ‘

On the morning of the 6th “ Sweet Grass,” who had come in, in consequence of
iy message, accompanied by about thirty of the principal men, called to see me and
express their gratification at my arrival.

Their greeting was cordial, but novel in my experience, as they embraced me in
their arms, and kissed me on both cheeks, a recoption which they extended also to
Mr. Christie and Dr. Jackes.

The Hon. James McKay arrived from Battle River in the evening, and reported
that he had met there a number of Indians, principally Saulteaux, who had been
¢amped there for some time. There had been about seventy lodges in all, but as the
buffalo had come near, the poorer Indians had gone after them.

They expressed good feeling, and said they would like to have waited until the
15th, the day named for my arrival there, to see me and accept the treaty, but that
}he buffalo hunt was of so much consequence to them that they could not wait so
ong,

This Band is a mixed one, composed of Crees and Saulteaux from Jack Fish Lake,
their Chief being “ The Yellow Sky.”

_ On the 7th the Commissioners proceeded to the council tent, which was pitched
Ot a high plateau above the Fort, commanding a very fine view, and facing the
dian encampment.
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They were accompanied by the escort of the police, witn their band.

The Indians approached with much pomp and ceremony, following the lead of
“ Sweet Grass.”

The stem dance was performed as at Fort Carlton, but with much more cere-
mony, there being four pipes instead of one, and the number of riders, singers and
dancers being more numerous.  After the pipes were stroked by the Commissioners,
they were presented to each of them to be smoked, and tken laid upon the table to
be covered with calico and cloth, and returned to their bearers.

Atter the conciusion of these proceedings I addressed them, telling them we had
come at their own request, and that there was now a trail leading from Lake Superior
to Red River, that I saw it stretching on thence to Fort Ellice, and there branching
off, the one track going to Qu'Appelle at Cypress Hills, and the other by Fort Pelly
to Carlton, and thence I expected to sce it extended, by way of Fort Pitt, to the
Rocky Mountains ; on that road I saw all the Chippewas and Crees walking, and I
saw along it gardens being planted and houses built.

I'invited them to join their brother Indians, and walk with the White men on
this road. I told them what we had done at Carlton, and offered them the same
terms, which I would explain fully if they wished it.

On closing, *“Sweet Grass” rose, and taking me by the hand, asked me to
explain the terms of the treaty, after which they would all shake hands with me and
then go to meet in Council.

1 complied with this request, and stated the terms fully to them, both addresses
having occupied me for three hours. On concluding they expressed satisfaction,
and retired to their Council.

On the 8th the Indians asked for more time to deliberate, which was granted, as
we learned that some of them desired to make exorbitant demands, and we wished to
let them understand through the avenues by which we had access to them that
these would be fruitless.

On the 9th, the Commissioners proceeded to the council tent, but the Indians were
slow of gathering, being still in Council, endeavouring to agree amongst themselves.

At length they approached and seated themselves in front of the tent. I then
asked them to speak to me. *The Eagle” addressed the Indians, telling them not
to be afraid, and that I was to them as a brother, and what the Queen wished to
establish was for their good.

After some time had passed, I again called on them to tell me their minds and
not to be afraid. ““Sweet Grass” then rose and addressed me in a very sensible
manner. He thanked the Queen for sending me ; he was glad to have a brother and
a friend who would help to lift them up above their present condition. He thanked
me for the offer and saw nothing to be afraid of. e therefore accepted gladly, and
took my hand to his heart. He said God was looking down on us that day, and has
opened a new world to them. “Sweet Grass” further said, he pitied those who had
to live by the buffalo, but that if spared until this time next year, he wanted, this my
brother (i.e. the Governor), to commence to act for him in protecting the buffalo;
for himself he would commence at once to preparc a small piece of land and his
kinsmen would do the same.

Placing one hand over my heart, and the other over his own, he said: “May the
White man’s blood never be spilt on this earth. I am thankful that the White man
and red man can stand together. When T hold your hand and touch your heart, let
us be as one; use your utmost to help me and help my children so that they may
prosper.”’

he Chief’s specch, of which the foregoing gives a brief outline in his own words,
was sssented to by the pcople with the peculiar guttural sound, which takes with
them the place of the British cheer.

I replied, expressing my satisfaction that they had so unanimously approved of
the arrangement I had made with the nation at Carlton, and promised that I
would send them next year, as I had said to the Crces ot Carlton, copies of the treaty
printed on parchment.
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I said that T knew that some of the Chiefs were absent, but next year they would
receive the present of money as they had done.

The Commiss‘onars then signed the treaty, as did “Swect Grass,” eight other
Chiefs and those of their Councillors who were present, the Chiefs addressing me
before signing. James-Le-num, Chief of the Crees at White Fish Lake, said that he
<ommenced to cullivate the soil some years ago.

Mr. Christie, then Chief Factor of the Hudson Bay Company, gave him a plough,
but it was now broken. He had no cattle when he commenced, but he and his people
direw the plough themselves, and made hoes of roots of trees.

" Mvr. Christie also gave him a pit-saw and a grindstone, and he] was still using
lem.

. His heart was sore in spring when hie children wanted to plough and had no

implements, '

He asked for these as soon as possible, and referring to the Wesleyan Mission at
that place, he said by following what I have been taught it helps me a great deal.

he * Little Huuter,” a leading Chief of the Plain Crees, said he was glad from
his very heart; he felt in taking the Governor's hand as if it was the Queen’s. When
I hear her words that she is going to put this country to rights, it is the help of God
that put it into her Lheart. e wished an everlasting grasp of her hand; he was
thankful for the children who would prosper. All the children who were settlin,
there hoped that the Great Spirit would Il)ook. down upon us as one. Other Chiefs
expressed themselves similarly.

Ken-oo-say-00, or “The Fish,” was a Chippawayan or mountaineer, a small
band ot whom are in this region.

They had no Chief, but at my request they had sclected a Chief and presented
the Fish to me. He said, speaking in Cree, that he thanked the Queen, and shook
hands with me; he was glad for what had been done, and if he could have used his
own tongue he would have said more.

I then presented Sweet Grass his medal, uniform, and flag, the band playing
God Save the Queen and all the Indians rising to their feet.

The rest of the medals, flags and uniforms, were distributed, as soon as possible,
and Mr, Christie commenced to make the payments.

On Sunday, the 10th, the Rev. Mr. McKay conducted the service for the
Police and others, who might attend, and in the afternoon the Rov. Mr. Me-

ougall had a service in Crec; Bishop Grandin and the Rev. Mr, Scollan also had
8ervices for the Crees and Chippawayans.

On Monday, the 11th, Mr. Christie completed the payments and distribution of
Provisions. The Police commenced crossing the Saskatchewan, with a view to leaving
on Tuesday the 12th for Battle River. We therefore sent our horses and carts across
the river and had our tents pitched, with the view of commenecing our return joarney
®arly in the morning. Just as we were about to leave Fort Pitt, however, tho Great

ear, one of the three Cree Chiefs who were absent, avrived at the Fort and asked
see me. The Commissioners met him, when he told me that he had been out on the
Plains hunting the buftalo, and had not heard the time of the meeting ; that on hearing
of it he had Leen sont in by the Crees and by the Stonies or Assiniboines to speak for
them. I explained to him what had been done at Carlton and Pitt; he expressed
Pegret that I was going awuy as he wished to talk to me. I then said we would not
Temove until the next day, which gratified him much.
On the 13th, Sweet Grass and all the other Chiefs and Councillors came down to
e Fort with the Great Bear to hid me farewell,
Sweet Grass, told me the object of their visit. The Bear said tho [udians on the
lains had sent him to speak for thom, and those who were away were as a barrier
fore what he would have to say.

Sweet Grass said, addressing him, “ you see the reprosentative of the Queen here.
Lthink the Great Spirit put it into their hearts to come to our help. Lot there be no

Arrier, as it is with great difficulty that this was brought about. Say yes and take
18 hand.” The White Fish spoke similalrly.
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The Bear said “ Stop, 1y friends. Inever saw the Governor before ; when I heard
he was to come, I said I will request him to save me from whatI most dread—hanging;
it was not given to us to have the rope about our necks.” I replied, that God h'ad
given it to us to punish murder by death, and explained the protection the Police
force afforded the Indians. .

Big Bear still demanded that there should be no hanging, and I informed him
his request would not be granted. He then wished that the buffalo might be protectod
and asked why the other Chiefs did not speak.

The Fish, the Chippawayan, replied “ we do not because Sweet Grass has spoken
and what he says we all say.”

I then asked the Bear to tell the other two absent Chiefs, Short Tail and
Sagamat, what had been done; that I had written him and them a letter, and sent it
by Sweat (irass, and that next year they could join the treaty; with regard to the
buffalo, the North-West Council were considering the question, and I again explaine
}hat we would not interfere with the Indian’s daily life except to assist them 1B

arming.

I then said I never expected to see them again. The land was so large thab
another Governor was to be sent, whom I hoped they would receive as they had done
me, and give him the same confidence they had extended to me. The Chiefs and
Councillors, commencing with Sweet Grass, then shook hands with Mr. Christie and
myself each addressing me words of parting.